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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K 

PARTI 

Item 1. Business 

Overview 

The Corporation 

Sprint Nextel Corporation, incoiporated in 1938 under the laws of Kansas, is mainly a holding company, 
with its operations primarily conducted by its subsidiaries. Unless the context otherwise requires, references to 
"Sprint Nextel," "we," "us" and "our" mean Sprint Nextel Corporation and its subsidiaries. 

We are a global communications company offering a comprehensive range of wireless and wireline 
communications products and services that are designed to meet the needs of individual consumers, businesses 
and government customers. We have organized our operations to meet the needs of our targeted customer groups 
through focused communications solutions that incorporate the capabilities of our wireless and wireline services 
to meet their specific needs. We are one of the three largest wireless companies in the United States based on the 
luunber of wireless subscribers. We own extensive wireless networks and a global long distance. Tier 1 Internet 
backbone. 

We, together with three third party affiliates, or PCS Affiliates, offer digital wireless service in all 50 states, 
Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands under the Sprint® brand name utilizing wireless code division multiple 
access, or CDMA, technology. The PCS Affiliates, through commercial arrangements with us, provide wireless 
services mainly in and around smaller U.S. metropolitan areas on CDMA-based wireless networks built and 
operated at their expense, in most instances using spectrum licensed to and controlled by us. We offer digital 
wireless services under our Nextel® brand name using integrated Digital Enhanced Network, or iDEN®, 
technology. We also offer wireless services that focus on the youth market, including our Boost Mobile® prepaid 
wireless service on our iDEN network and Boost Unlimited, a local calling prepaid service on our CDMA 
network. We are one of the largest providers of long distance services and one of the largest carriers of Internet 
traffic in the nation. 

On December 17, 2007, Daniel R. Hesse joined our company as President and Chief Executive Officer. 
Senior management is currently reviewing our operations and assessing our strategies and future business plans. 
This process is still ongoing and, depending on the outcome our operations, future capital requirements and 
future valuation of our long-lived assets could be affected. 

Our Series 1 voting common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, under the symbol "S." 

Business Combinations & Spin-off 

We merged with Nextel Communications, Inc. and acquired Nextel Partners, Inc. in 2005 and 2006, 
respectively. We also have acquired seven former PCS Affiliates. We paid a premium over the fair value ofthe 
net tangible and intangible assets that we acquired in each of these business combinations. As a result, in 
connection with these business combinations, we recorded $26.3 billion of goodwill in addition to the 
$4.4 billion of goodwill previously recorded on our balance sheet. All ofthe goodwill was allocated to our 
Wireless segment. In the fourth quarter 2007, we conducted our annual assessment of goodwill for impairment. 
As a result, we recorded a $29.7 billion non-cash goodwill impainnent charge in the fourth quarter 2007 in 
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SEAS, No. 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible 
Assets. Refer to note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information. 
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On May 17, 2006, we spun-off to our shareholders our local communications business, which is now known 
as Embarq Corporation and is comprised primarily of what was our Local segment prior to the spin-off. The 
results of Embarq for periods before the spin-off are presented as discontinued operations, and we have recast 
information for our Wireless and Wireline segments for the periods presented in note 12 of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Access to Public Filings and Board Committee Charters 

Our website address is www.sprint.com. Information contained on our website is not part ofthis annual 
report. We provide public access to our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, cuiTcnt 
reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to these reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or 
SEC, under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These documents may be accessed free of charge on our 
website at the following address: www.sprint.com/sprint/ir. These documents are available promptly after filing 
with the SEC. These documents also may be found at the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. 

We also provide public access to our Code of Ethics, entitled the Sprint Nextel Code of Conduct, our 
Corporate Governance Guidelines and the charters of the following committees of our board of directors; the 
Audit Committee, the Human Capital and Compensation Committee, the Executive Committee, the Finance 
Committee, and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The Code of Conduct, corporate 
governance guidelines and committee charters may be viewed free of charge on our website at the following 
address: www.sprint.eom/governance. You may obtain copies of any of these documents fi'ee of charge by 
writing to: Sprint Nextel Shareholder Relations, 6200 Sprint Parkway, Mailstop KSOPHF0302-3B424, Overland 
Park, Kansas 66251 or by email at shareholder, relations® sprint.com. If a provision ofthe Code of Conduct 
required under the NYSE corporate governance standards is materially modified, or if a waiver of the Code of 
Conduct is granted to a director or executive officer, we will post a notice of such action on our website at the 
following address: www.sprint.com/governance. Only the Audit Committee may consider a waiver ofthe Code 
of Conduct for an executive officer or director. 

Certifications 

The certifications of our Chief Executive Officer and Acting Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 
Sections 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 are attached as Exhibits 31.1, 31.2, 32.1 and 32.2 to this 
annual report. We also filed with the NYSE in 2007 tlie required certificate of our Chief Executive Officer 
certifying that he was not aware of any violation by Sprint Nextel of the NYSE corporate governance listing 
standards. 

Our Business Segments 

We have two repoitable segments: Wireless and Wireline. See note 12 ofthe Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements for additional information on our segments. 

Wireless 

We offer a wide array of wireless mobile voice and data transmission services on networks that utilize 
CDMA and iDEN technologies. 

Strategy 

Our cuiTcnt strategy for the Wireless segment is to utilize state-of-the-art technology to provide 
differentiated wireless services and applications, including our push-to-talk, walkie-talkie applications, in order 
to acquire and retain wireless subscribers. To enable us to offer innovative applications and services, we are 
deploying high-speed evolution data optimized, or EV-DO, technology across our CDMA network. The services 
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supported by this technology, marketed as Power Vision̂ M^ give our subscribers with EV-DO-capable devices 
access to the Internet and numerous sophisticated high-speed data messaging, photo and video offerings, 
entertainment and location-based applications. Currently, EV-DO technology covers nearly 234 million people 
and serves customers in over 236 communities with populations of at least 100,000. We have incorporated 
EV-DO Rev. A, the most recent version of EV-DO technology, into over 82% of our CDMA network. We 
anticipate incorporating EV-DO Rev. A into all new cell sites added in our CDMA network in 2008. EV-DO 
Rev. A is designed to suppoit a variety of internet protocol, or IP, video and high performance walkie-talkie 
applications on our CDMA network. In addition, we are improving our product and service offerings on our 
iDEN network, which will include the introduction of several new handsets in 2008. 

Products and Services 

We offer a wide array of wireless mobile telephone and data transmission services and features in a variety 
of pricing plans, including prepaid service plans. Our wireless mobile voice communications services include 
basic local and long distance wireless voice services, as well as voicemail, call waiting, three way calling, caller 
identification, directory assistance, call forwarding, speakerphone and voice-activated dialing features. Through a 
variety of roaming anangements, we provide roaming services to areas in numerous countries outside the United 
States, including areas of Asia Pacific, Central and South America, North America and most major Caribbean 
islands. 

Our data communications services include: 

• wireless photo and video offerings, including the ability to shoot and send digital still pictures and 
video clips from a wireless handset; 

• wireless data communications, including Internet access and messaging and email services; 

• on our CDMA network, wireless entertainment, including the ability to view live television; listen to 
Sirius® satellite radio; download and listen to music from our Sprint Music Store, a music catalog with 
thousands of songs from virtually every music genre; and play games with full-color graphics and 
polyphonic sounds all from a wireless handset; and 

• location-based capabilities, including asset and fleet management, dispatch services and navigation 
tools. 

We offer walkie-talkie services, which give subscribers with iDEN-based devices the ability to 
communicate instantiy across the continental United States and to and from Hawaii. Also, through agreements 
with third parties, subscribers with iDEN-based devices can communicate instantly with our walkie-talkie feature 
to and from selected areas in Canada, Latin America and Mexico. Our walkie-talkie features offer subscribers 
instant communications in a variety of other ways, including push-to-email applications that allow a user to send 
a streaming voice message to an email recipient, and off-network walkie-talkie communications available on 
certain handsets. Our line of combined CDMA-iDEN devices, marketed as PowerSource, feature voice and data 
applications, including our Power Vision data applications, over our CDMA network and our walkie-talkie 
applications over our iDEN network, giving users the benefits of instant communications coupled with high 
quality voice services. We are focusing our sales efforts of PowerSource devices toward existing subscribers of 
iDEN services to offer them the additional benefit of higher data speeds on CDMA. In 2008, we plan to launch 
QUALCOMM Incorporated's QChat® technology, which is designed to provide high performance walkie-talkie 
services on our CDMA network, and we are designing interfaces to provide for interoperability of walkie-talkie 
services on our CDMA and iDEN networks. Upon successful launch of QChat devices, we expect that they will 
succeed the PowerSource devices. Currently, we are testing the QChat application on our CDMA network and 
plan to launch customer user group trials in early 2008 with a goal of launching the related service offerings in 
2008. For information regarding a dispute involving the intellectual property rights of QUALCOMM that relate 
to QChat, see Item 1 A, "Risk Factors—The intellectual property rights utilized by us and our suppliers and 
service providers may infringe on intellectual property rights owned by others." 



We also offer wireless services that focus on the youth market, including our Boost Mobile prepaid wireless 
service on our iDEN network and Boost Unlimited®, a local calling prepaid service on our CDMA network. 

Our services are provided using a wide variety of handsets and personal computer wireless data cards 
manufactured by various suppliers for use with our voice and data services. We generally sell these devices at 
prices below our cost in response to competition, to attract new customers and as retention inducements for 
existing customers. 

We sell accessories, such as carrying cases, hands-free devices, batteries, battery chargers and other items to 
customers, and we sell handsets and accessories to agents and other third-party distributors for resale. 

We offer wholesale CDMA-based wireless services to resellers, commonly known as mobile virtual 
network operators, or MVNOs. MVNOs purchase wireless services from us at wholesale rates and resell the 
services to their customers under their own brand names. Under these MVNO aiTangements, the operators bear 
the costs of subscriber acquisition, billing and customer service. We currently provide wholesale services, 
through multi-year, wholesale agreements, to a number of MVNOs, including Virgin Mobile USA, Qwest 
Communications International, Inc., Movida Communications, Inc., Helio Inc. and Embarq. Virgin Mobile USA 
offers prepaid wireless service targeted to the youth and prepaid markets and was originally formed as a joint 
venture between us and Virgin Group. 

We offer customized design, development, implementation and support services for wireless services 
provided to large companies and government agencies. 

Sales, Marketing and Customer Care 

We focus the marketing and sales of wireless services on targeted groups of customers: individual 
consumers, businesses and government customers. We offer a variety of pricing options and plans, including 
plans designed specifically for business customers, individuals and families. We use a variety of sales channels to 
attract new subscribers of wireless services, including: 

• direct sales representatives whose efforts are focused on mai'keting and selling CDMA- and iDEN-
based wireless services primarily to mid-sized to large businesses and government agencies that value 
our industry and technical expertise and extensive product and service portfolio, as well as our ability 
to develop custom communications capabilities that meet the specific needs of these larger customers; 

• retail outlets that focus on sales to the consumer market, including Sprint Nextel retail stores owned 
and operated by us, as well as third-party retailers such as Radio Shack, Best Buy, Target and 
Wal-Mart; 

• indirect sales agents that primarily consist of local and national non-affiliated dealers and independent 
contractors that market and sell services to small businesses and the consumer market, and are 
generally paid through commissions; and 

' customer-convenient channels, including web sales and telesales. 

We market our post-paid services under the Sprint and Nextel brands. We offer these services on a contract 
basis typically for one or two year periods, with services billed on a monthly basis according to the applicable 
pricing plan. We market our prepaid services under the Boost Mobile brand, as a means to directiy target the 
youth and prepaid wireless service markets. 

Although we market our services using traditional print and television advertising, we also provide exposure 
to our brand names and wireless services through various sponsorships. We are the tide sponsor ofthe NASCAR 
Sprint Cup Series''" '̂, the premier national championship series of the National Association for Stock Car Auto 
Racing, or NASCAR®. We are NASCAR's official telecommunications sponsor, which entitles us to a variety of 
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branding, advertising, merchandising and technology-related opportunities, many of which are exclusive with 
NASCAR, its drivers and teams, and the racetrack facilities. We also are the official telecommunications service 
provider ofthe National Football League, or NFL, and the provider of exclusive and original NFL-related content 
as part of our Sprint-branded wireless service. The goal of these initiatives, together with our other marketing 
initiatives, which include affiliations with most major sports leagues, is to increase brand awareness in our 
targeted customer base and expand the use of our customer-convenient distribution channels: web sales, telesales 
and retail stores. 

We added about 1.6 million net post-paid subscribers on the CDMA network in 2007; however, we have 
experienced a continued decline in the number of new CDMA post-paid subscribers in the fourth quarter 2007. 
Competitive marketing conditions including increased advertising and promotions among our competitors have 
contributed to the decline in the number of new customers. Churn of CDMA customers improved slightiy in 
2007 as compared to 2006; however, our post-paid churn remains high relative to our competitors. 

We have experienced declines in the number of new iDEN post-paid subscribers in recent quarters and we 
lost about 2.8 million net post-paid subscribers of iDEN-based services during 2007. Consumer sentiment 
regarding the iDEN network, reduced marketing programs and limited new handset offerings at higher than 
market prices have all contributed to the decline in new iDEN customers. Capacity constraints in certain markets 
on the iDEN network have improved in recent quarters due to fewer subscribers and investments we have made 
to improve the network. 

Our customer management organization works to improve our customer's experience, with the goal of 
retaining subscribers of our wireless services. Customer service call centers, some of which are operated by us 
and some of which are operated by independent contractors, receive and respond to inquiries from customers. We 
have implemented initiatives that are designed to improve call center processes and procedures, including those 
related to customer satisfaction ratings with respect to customer care and first call resolution. As of December 31, 
2007, about 72% of our direct post-paid subscriber base is managed on a single billing platform, which we 
believe has increased functionality for our customer care representatives and has the potential to enhance the 
customer experience. We expect to convert our remaining post-paid subscribers in the first half 2008. 

Wireless Network Technologies 

CDMA Network 

We provide our Sprint-branded post-paid. Boost Mobile branded prepaid and wholesale wireless services 
over our CDMA network, an all-digital wireless network with spectrum licenses that allow us to provide service 
in all 50 states, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands. The CDMA network uses a single frequency band and a 
digital spread-spectrum wireless technology that allows a large number of users to access the band by assigning a 
code to all voice and data bits, sending a scrambled transmission ofthe encoded bits over the air and 
reassembling the voice and data into its original format. 

We, together with the PCS Affiliates, operate CDMA networks in 360 metropolitan markets, including 341 
of the 349 largest U.S. metropolitan areas, where more than 271 million people live or work. We provide 
nationwide seivice through a combination of: 

• operating our own digital network in both major and smaller U.S. metropolitan areas and rural 
connecting routes using CDMA technology; 

• affiliations under commercial aiTangements with the PCS Affiliates; and 

• roaming on other providers' networks. 
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Under the terms of the commercial arrangements with the PCS Affiliates, our wireless services are offered 
under the Sprint brand on CDMA networks built and operated at the expense of the PCS Affiliates. In most 
instances, the PCS Affiliates use spectrum licensed to, and controlled by, us. The PCS Affiliates operate mainly 
in and around smaller U.S. metropolitan areas. 

CDMA subscribers can use their phones through roaming agreements in countries other than the United 
States, including areas of Asia Pacific, Central and South America, North America and most major Caribbean 
islands. Our digital quad band devices can utilize global system for mobile communications, or GSM, 
technology, the network technology utilized by many wireless providers throughout Europe and other parts of the 
world, which enables subscribers to roam in numerous countries outside the U.S., including countries in Europe. 

We are deploying the high-speed EV-DO technology across our CDMA network. EV-DO increases average 
mobile-device data speeds up to ten times faster when compared to the prior generation technology. In addition, 
this technology delivers applications and services available only on EV-DO-capable handsets and laptops 
equipped with EV-DO-capable Sprint PCS Connection Cards'̂ f̂ . The services supported by this technology, 
marketed as Power Vision, give consumer and business customers access to numerous sophisticated applications 
using EV-DO-capable devices, including mobile desktop, data messaging, photo and video offerings, 
entertainment and location-based applications. Cuirently, EV-DO technology covers nearly 234 million people 
and serves customers in over 236 communities with populations of at least 100,000, which represents the 
majority of the footprint of our CDMA network. EV-DO data roaming is available in selected markets in Canada 
and Mexico. 

We have incorporated EV-DO Rev. A, the most recent version of EV-DO technology, into over 82% of our 
CDMA network. We anticipate incorporating EV-DO Rev. A into all new cell sites added to our CDMA network 
in 2008. EV-DO Rev. A is designed to suppoit a variety of IP, video and high performance walkie-talkie 
applications on our CDMA network. 

The cell site equipment used in the CDMA network often resides on buildings or communications towers, 
most of which are leased from third parties. The acquisition of Nextel has given us access to cell site 
communications towers erected for use in connection with the Nextel iDEN network, which in some cases 
enables us to co-locate CDMA cell site equipment on these towers. Similarly, in certain circumstances, we are 
able to co-locate iDEN cell site equipment on the CDMA communications towers. We also locate cell site 
equipment on buildings and deploy in-building systems and outdoor distributed antenna systems where cell site 
solutions are not feasible. 

iDEN Network 

We provide our Nextel-branded post-paid and Boost Mobile-branded prepaid wireless services over our 
iDEN network. Our iDEN network is an all-digital packet data network based on iDEN wireless technology 
provided by Motorola, Inc. We are the only national wireless service provider in the United States that utilizes 
iDEN technology, and, generally, the iDEN handsets that we eunently offer are not enabled to roam onto 
wireless networks that do not utilize iDEN technology. We operate iDEN networks in 355 metropolitan markets, 
including 336 of the top 349 U.S. markets, where about 266 million people live or work. 

We have roaming or interoperability agreements with iDEN-based wireless service providers that operate in 
selected areas of Canada, Mexico, Argentina, Brazil, Chile and Peru, which gives subscribers of iDEN-based 
services the ability to utilize our walkie-talkie services to communicate to and from these markets. Subscribers 
can also get voice only services when roaming on iDEN-based wireless service providers in areas of Singapore, 
the Philippines, South Korea, Israel, Jordan and Guam. With an 1930 or 1920 iDEN handset, subscribers are able 
to roam in numerous countries outside the U.S., including countries in Europe. These handsets utilize GSM 
technology. In addition, any iDEN subscriber can remove the subscriber identity module, or SIM, card found in 
each iDEN handset and place it in any unlocked device that utilizes GSM technology when traveling outside of 
the U.S. 



Although the iDEN technology offers a number of advantages over other technology platforms, including 
the ability to offer our walkie-talkie features, unlike other wireless technologies, it is a proprietary technology 
that relies principally on our and Motorola's efforts for further research, and product development and 
innovation. We rely on Motorola to provide us with technology improvements designed to expand and improve 
our iDEN-based wireless services. Motorola provides substantially all ofthe iDEN infrastructure equipment used 
in oiu" iDEN network, and substantially all iDEN handset devices. We have agreements with Motorola that set the 
prices we must pay to purchase and license this equipment, as well as a structure to develop new features and 
make long-term improvements to our network. Motorola also provides integration services in connection with the 
deployment of iDEN network elements. We have also agreed to warranty and maintenance programs and 
specified indemnity arrangements with Motorola. Motorola is, and is expected to continue to be, our supplier of 
iDEN infrastructure and iDEN handsets, except primarily for BlackBerry® devices, which are manufactured by 
Research In Motion. Further, our ability to timely and efficientiy implement the Report and Order ofthe Federal 
Communications Commission, or FCC, which implemented a spectrum reconfiguration plan designed to 
eliminate interference with public safety operators in the 800 megahertz, or MHz, band, is dependent, in part, on 
Motorola. See "Item 1 A. Risk Factors—If Motorola is unable or unwilling to provide us with equipment and 
handsets in support of our iDEN-based services, as well as anticipated handset and infrastructure improvements 
for those services, our operations will be adversely affected." 

Competition 

We believe that the market for wireless services has been and will continue to be characterized by intense 
competition on the basis of price, the types of services and devices offered and quality of service. We compete 
with a number of wireless carriers, including three other national wireless companies: AT&T (formerly known as 
Cingular Wireless), Verizon Wireless and T-Mobile. AT&T and Verizon also offer competitively-priced wireless 
services packaged with local and long distance voice, high-speed Internet services and video. We also compete 
with regional providers of mobile wireless services, such as Alltel Corporation. Our Boost Mobile-branded 
prepaid and Boost Unlimited services compete with a number of regional carriers, including Metro PCS 
Communications, Inc. and Leap Wireless International, Inc., which offer competitively-priced calling plans that 
include unlimited local calling. Competition will increase to the extent that new firms enter the market as 
additional ladio spectrum is made available for commercial wireless services. We also expect competition to 
increase as a result of other technologies and services that are developed and introduced in the future, including 
potentially those using unlicensed spectrum, including wireless fidelity, or WiFi. The continued addition of 
MVNOs also contributes to increased competition. 

Pricing competition has led to declining average voice revenue per subscriber as we and our competitors 
have offered more competitive service pricing plans, including lower priced plans, plans that allow users to add 
additional units to their plans at attractive rates, plans with a higher number of bundled minutes included in the 
fixed monthly charge for the plan, plans that offer the ability to share minutes among a group of related 
customers, or a combination of these features. 

In addition to pricing, we believe that our targeted customers ai'e also likely to base their purchase decisions 
on quality of service and the availability of differentiated features and services that make it easier for them to get 
things done quickly and efficiently. We believe we compete based on our differentiated service offerings and 
products, including our Power Vision applications and push-to-talk walkie-talkie feature. Our primary 
compelitois offer high-speed data, imaging, entertainment and location-based services and walkie-talkie-type 
features that are designed to compete with our differentiated products and services. Other competitors offer, or 
have announced plans to introduce similar services. To the extent that our competitors offer, or are able to 
provide applications and features that are comparable to ours, any competitive advantage from the differentiation 
of our seivices from those of our competitors would be reduced. To the extent that the competitive environment 
requires us to decrease prices or increase service and product offerings, our revenue could decline or our costs 
could increase. Competition in pricing and service and product offerings also may adversely impact customer 
retention. See "Item 1 A. Risk Factors—We face intense competition that may reduce our market share and harm 
our financial performance." 



Wireline 

We provide a broad suite of wireline voice and data communications services targeted to domestic business 
customers, multinational corporations and other communications companies. We are one of the nation's largest 
providers of long distance services and operate all-digital long distance and Tier 1 IP networks. 

Strategy 

In an effort to maintain market share in an environment where many wireline communications services, 
primarily stand-alone voice services, are being marketed and sold as low-cost commodities, our Wireline 
segment focuses on expanding its presence in the data communications markets by utilizing our principal 
strategic assets: our high-capacity national fiber-optic network, our Tier 1 IP network, our base of business 
customers, our established national brand and offerings available from our Wireless segment. We continue to 
assess the portfolio of services provided by our Wireline segment and are focusing our efforts on IP-based 
services and de-emphasizing stand-alone voice services and non-IP-based data services. For example, in addition 
to increased emphasis on selling IP services, we are converting many of our existing customers from 
asynchronous transfer mode, or ATM, and frame relay to more advanced IP technologies, in part to support our 
effort to move to one platform. We also are taking advantage of the growth in voice services provided by cable 
multiple system operators, or MSOs, as consumers increase their use of MSOs as alternatives to local and long 
distance voice communications providers, by providing large cable MSOs with local and long distance voice 
communications service, which they offer as part oftheir bundled service offerings. 

Products and Services 

Through our Wireline segment, we provide a broad suite of wireline voice and data communications 
services, including domestic and international data communications using various protocols such as multi­
protocol label switching, or MPLS, technologies, as well as IP, ATM, frame relay and managed network services 
and voice services. We also provide services to cable MSOs that resell our local and long distance service and/or 
use our back office systems and network assets in support of their telephone service provided over cable facilities 
primarily to residential end user customers. Although we continue to provide voice services to residential 
consumers, we no longer actively market those services. Our Wireline segment markets and sells its services 
primarily through direct sales representatives. We also provide voice and data services to our Wireless segment. 

Competition 

Our Wireline segment competes with AT&T, Verizon Communications, Qwest Communications, Level 3 
Communications, Inc., other major local incumbent operating companies, cable operators and other 
telecommunications providers in all segments ofthe long distance communications market. Some competitors 
are targeting the high-end data market and are offering deeply discounted rates in exchange for high-volume 
traffic as they attempt to utilize excess capacity in their networks. In addition, we face increasing competition 
from other wireless and IP-based service providers. Many caniers are competing in the residential and small 
business markets by offering bundled packages of both local and long distance services. Competition in long 
distance is based on price and pricing plans, the types of services offered, customer service, and communications 
quality, reliability and availability. Our ability to compete successfully will depend on our ability to anticipate 
and respond to various competitive factors affecting the industry, including new services that may be introduced, 
changes in consumer preferences, demographic trends, economic conditions and pricing strategies. See "Item 1 A. 
Risk Factors—We face intense competition that may reduce our market share and harm our financial 
performance." 

WiMAX Initiative 

We plan to deploy a next generation broadband wireless network that will be designed to provide 
significantly higher data transport speeds using our spectrum holdings in the 2.5 gigahertz, or GHz, band and 



technology based on the Worldwide Inter-Operability for Microwave Access, or WiMAX, standard. We are 
designing this network to support a wide range of high-speed IP-based wireless services in a mobile environment. 
Our initial plans contemplate deploying the new network and introducing commercial service offerings in 
Chicago, Baltimore and Washington, DC in mid-2008. We are exploring strategic initiatives and third party and 
other financing alternatives related to this initiative. 

Legislative and Regulatory Developments 

Overview 

Communications services are subject to regulation at the federal level by the FCC and in certain states by 
public utilities commissions, or PUCs. The Communications Act of 1934, or Communications Act, preempts 
states from regulating the rates or entry of commercial mobile radio service, or CMRS, providers, such as those 
services provided through our Wireless segment, and imposes various licensing and technical requirements 
implemented by the FCC, including provisions related to the acquisition, assignment or transfer of radio licenses. 
CMRS providers are subject to state regulation of other terms and conditions of service. Our Wireline segment 
also is subject to limited federal and state regulation. 

The following is a summary ofthe regulatory environment in which we operate and does not describe all 
present and proposed federal, state and local legislation and regulations affecting the communications industry. 
Some legislation and regulations are the subject of judicial proceedings, legislative hearings and administrative 
proceedings that could change the manner in which our industry operates. We cannot predict the outcome of any 
of these matters or their potential impact on our business. See "Item 1 A. Risk Factors—Government regulation 
could adversely affect our prospects and results of operations; the FCC and state regulatory commissions may 
adopt new regulations or take other actions that could adversely affect our business prospects or results of 
operations." Regulation in the communications industry is subject to change, which could adversely affect us in 
the future. The following discussion describes some of the major communications-related regulations that affect 
us, but numerous other substantive areas of regulation not discussed here may also influence our business. 

Regulation and Wireless Operations 

The FCC regulates the licensing, construction, operation, acquisition and sale of our wireless operations and 
wireless spectrum holdings. FCC requirements impose operating and other restrictions on our wireless operations 
that increase our costs. The FCC does not eunently regulate rates for services offered by CMRS providers, and 
states are legally preempted from regulating such rates and entry into any market, although states may regulate 
other terms and conditions. The Communications Act and FCC rules also require the FCCs prior approval of the 
assignment or transfer of control of an FCC license, although the FCC s rules permit spectrum lease 
arrangements for a range of wireless radio service licenses, including our licenses, with FCC oversight. Approval 
from the Federal Trade Commission and the Department of Justice, as well as state or local regulatory 
authorities, also may be required if we sell or acquire spectrum interests. The FCC sets rules, regulations and 
policies to, among other things: 

• grant licenses in the 800 MHz band, 900 MHz band, 1.9 GHz personal communications services, or 
PCS, band, and 2.1 and 2.5 GHz Broadband Radio Service, or BRS, and Educational Broadband 
Service, or EBS, bands, and license renewals; 

• rule on assignments and transfers of control of FCC licenses, and leases covering our use of FCC 
licenses held by other persons and organizations; 

' govern the interconnection of our iDEN and CDMA networks with other wireless and wireline carriers; 

' establish access and universal service funding provisions; 

• impose rules related to unauthorized use of and access to customer information; 



• impose fines and forfeitures for violations of FCC rules; 

• regulate the technical standards governing wireless services; and 

• impose other obligations that it determines to be in the public interest. 

We hold several kinds of licenses to deploy our services: 1.9 GHz PCS licenses utilized in our CDMA 
network, and 800 MHz and 900 MHz licenses utilized in our iDEN network. We also hold 2.1 GHz BRS 
licenses, 2.5 GHz BRS licenses, and we lease use of 2.5 GHz BRS and EBS licenses held by others, for our first 
generation fixed wireless Internet access service and eventual use in our WiMAX next generation broadband 
wireless network. We also hold and lease 2.5 GHz, 1.9 GHz and other FCC licenses that we cun'cntly do not 
utilize in our networks or operations, but which we intend to use in the future consistent with customer demand 
and our obligations as a licensee. 

1.9 GHz PCS License Conditions 

All PCS licenses are granted for ten-year terms. For purposes of issuing PCS licenses, the FCC utilizes 
major trading areas, or MTAs, and basic trading areas, or BTAs, with several BTAs making up each MTA. Each 
license is subject to buildout requirements, and the FCC may revoke a license after a hearing if the buildout or 
other applicable requirements have not been met. We have met these requirements in all of our MTA and BTA 
markets. 

If applicable buildout conditions are met, these licenses may be renewed for additional ten-year terms. 
Renewal applications are not subject to auctions. If a renewal application is challenged, the FCC grants a 
preference commonly refened to as a license renewal expectancy to the applicant if the applicant can 
demonstrate that it has provided "substantial service" during the past license term and has substantially complied 
with applicable FCC rules and policies and the Communications Act. The licenses for the 10 MHz of spectrum in 
the 1.9 GHz band that we received as part of the FCCs Report and Order, described below, have ten-year terms 
and are not subject to specific buildout conditions, but are subject to renewal requirements that are similar to 
those for our PCS licenses. 

800 MHz and 900 MHz License Conditions 

We hold licenses for channels in the 800 MHz and 900 MHz bands that are used to deploy our iDEN 
services. Because spectrum in these bands originally was licensed in small groups of channels, we hold 
thousands of these licenses, which together allow us to provide coverage across much of the continental United 
States. Our 800 MHz and 900 MHz licenses are subject to requirements that we meet population coverage 
benchmarks tied to the initial license grant dates. To date, we have met all of these construction requirements 
applicable to these licenses, except in the case of licenses that are not material to our business. Our 800 MHz and 
900 MHz licenses have ten-year terms, at the end of which each license is subject to renewal requirements that 
are similar to those for our 1.9 GHz licenses. 

BRS-EBS License Conditions 

We hold and lease FCC BRS and EBS licenses. We cun^entiy use a portion of this spectrum to provide fixed 
wireless Internet access services to homes and small businesses using "first generation" line-of-sight technology. 
This service operates across the countiy in 14 markets with approximately 14,000 subscribers. We operate our 
network and a third party provides customer care. 

In 2004, the FCC ordered that the 2496-2690 MHz band, or the 2.5 GHz band, which is the spectrum for our 
EBS and BRS licenses, be reconfigured into upper and lower-band segments for low-power operations, and a 
mid-band segment for high-power operations. Transition to the new band plan has begun. We and other parties 
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are transitioning the 2.5 GHz band to its new configuration market-by-market in a process that may require 
several years to complete nationally. As of early January 2008, we had served pre-transition data requests to 
licensees in 264 BTAs, filed initiation plans with the FCC for 226 BTAs and filed notices of completion for 
transitions in 175 BTAs. When the transition is complete, we believe that the 2.5 GHz band will be more suitable 
for our WiMAX next generation broadband wireless network. We intend to provide fourth generation, or 4G, 
Wireless Interactive Multimedia Services, or WIMS, and other services, such as fixed point-to-point 
communications, using this spectrum. 

The FCC affirmed its prohibition of commercial ownership on approximately 62% of the total 2.5 GHz 
spectrum band, which is held primarily by educational institutions; however, these institutions are authorized to 
lease up to 95% of their licensed capacity to commercial operators, such as us, subject to certain restrictions. In 
addition, the FCC adopted a band plan that requires the relocation of licensed BRS operations from the 2150-
2162 MHz band, or the 2.1 GHz band, into the 2.5 GHz band. The FCC adopted rules that require new licensees 
in the 2.1 GHz band to provide incumbent licensees with "comparable facilities," which will permit incumbents 
to continue to offer fixed data services to current and future subscribers ifthey choose to do so. 

All BRS-EBS licenses are subject to renewal. In January 2007, the FCC Wireless Telecommunications 
Bureau reinstated more than 50 expired EBS licenses and additional requests for reinstatement of expired EBS 
licenses remain pending at the FCC. Since January 2007, approximately 150 additional former licensees have 
sought to reinstate expii-ed licenses. We have and will continue to challenge the validity of these requested or 
adopted reinstatements, but there can be no assurance that our challenges wifl be successful. The reinstatement of 
an expired license may affect our wireless broadband deployment plans in a market in which the reinstated 
license interferes with one or more of our 2.5 GHz holdings or otherwise requires alteration of our deployment 
plans. 

The FCC conditioned its approval ofthe Sprint-Nextel merger on two deployment milestones in the 2.5 
GHz spectrum band. Within four years following the August 8, 2005 effective date ofthe merger order, we must 
offer service using the 2.5 GHz band to a population of no less than 15 million people. This deployment must 
include areas within a minimum of nine ofthe nation's most populous 100 BTAs and at least one BTA less 
populous than the nation's 200th most populous BTA. In these ten BTAs, the deployment must cover at least 
one-third of each BTA's population. In addition, within six years from the effective date ofthe merger order, we 
must offer service using the 2.5 GHz band to at least 15 million more people in areas within a minimum of nine 
additional BTAs in the 100 most populous BTAs, and at least one additional BTA less populous than the nation's 
200th most populous BTA. In these additional ten BTAs, the deployment must also cover at least one-third of 
each BTA's population. Like all BRS-EBS licensees, we must provide "substantial service" to the public on each 
of our 2.5 GHz licenses by May 1, 2011. 

800 MHz Band Spectrum Reconfiguration 

In recent years, the operations of a number of public safety communications systems in the 800 MHz block 
of spectrum have experienced interference that is believed to be a result of the operations of CMRS providers 
operating on adjacent frequencies in the same geographic area. 

In 2001, Nextel filed a proposal with the FCC that would result in a more efficient use of spectrum through 
the reconfiguration of spectrum licenses and spectrum allocations in the 700, 800 and 900 MHz bands and, 
thereby, resolve many of these interference problems. In 2004, following a rulemaking process to consider 
proposals to solve the public safety interference issue, the FCC adopted a Report and Order that included new 
rules regarding interference in the 800 MHz band and a comprehensive plan to reconfigure the 800 MHz band. In 
February 2005, Nextel accepted the Report and Order, which was necessary before the order became effective, 
because the Report and Order required Nextel to undertake a number of obligations and accept modifications to 
its FCC licenses. We assumed these obligations when we merged with Nextel in August 2005. 
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The Report and Order provides for the exchange of a portion of our FCC spectrum licenses, which the FCC 
is implementing through modifications to these licenses. Specifically, the Report and Order modified a number 
of FCC licenses in the 800 MHz band, including many of our licenses, and implemented rules to reconfigure 
spectrum in the 800 MHz band in a 36-month phased transition process. It also obligated us to surrender all of 
our holdings in the 700 MHz spectrum band and certain portions of our holdings in the 800 MHz spectrum band, 
and to fund the cost incun'cd by public safety systems and other incumbent licensees to reconfigure the 800 MHz 
spectrum band. Under the Report and Order, we received licenses for 10 MHz of nationwide spectrum in the 1.9 
GHz band, but we are required to relocate and reimburse the incumbent licensees in this band for their costs of 
relocation to another band designated by the FCC. 

The reconfiguration process is to be completed by geographic region and involves reaching agreement and 
coordinating numerous processes with the incumbent licensees in that region, as well as vendors and contractors 
that will be performing inuch ofthe reconfiguration. We are permitted to continue to use the spectrum in the 800 
MHz band that was surrendered under the Report and Order during the reconfiguration process; however, as part 
ofthe reconfiguration process in most regions, we must cease using portions ofthe surrendered 800 MHz 
spectrum before we are able to commence use of replacement 800 MHz spectrum, which has contributed to the 
capacity constraints experienced on our iDEN network, particularly in some of our more capacity constrained 
markets, and has, in the past, impacted the performance of our iDEN network in the affected markets. 

The Report and Order requires us to complete the 800 MHz band reconfiguration within a 36-month period, 
ending in June 2008, subject to certain exceptions, particularly with respect to markets that border Mexico and 
Canada, and to complete the 1.9 GHz band reconfiguration within a 31.5-month period, originally ending in 
September 2007 and recently extended, as discussed below. If, as a result of events within our control, we fail to 
complete our reconfiguration responsibilities within the designated time periods for either the 800 MHz or 1.9 
GHz reconfigurations, the FCC could take actions against us to enforce the Report and Order. These actions 
could have adverse operating or financial impacts on us, some of which could be material. We believe, based on 
our experiences to date, that the 800 MHz reconfiguration will not be completed within the applicable FCC 
designated time period due primarily to circumstances largely outside of our control. 

On September 11, 2007, the FCC issued a Third Memorandum Opinion and Order, or Third MO&O, in 
which the FCC ordered, among other things, that by June 2008 we vacate many 800 MHz channels that we 
cuirentiy use, even if the applicable public safety licensee is not ready to relocate to the vacated spectrum. Based 
upon status reports filed by the 800 MHz Transition Administrator, or TA, and discussions with public safety 
licensees, we believe that a significant number of large public safety agencies will not be able to complete their 
reconfigurations by June 2008. Should this occur, the Third MO&O provides that we would no longer have 
access to a significant portion of 800 MHz spectrum. 

Any sudden and significant decrease in network capacity that results from the requirements ofthe Third 
MO&O could adversely affect the performance of our iDEN network. To compensate, we could attempt to 
construct additional sites or acquire additional spectrum, to the extent possible. In those markets where these 
network investments are not possible, we may be required to curtail subscriber additions and incent certain 
existing subscribers of iDEN services to use PowerSource devices or move to our CDMA network until the 
capacity limitation can be alleviated, particularly ifthe replacement 800 MHz spectrum is not available for any 
length of time. Degradation in network performance in any market could result in higher subscriber churn in that 
market. The loss of a significant number of subscribers could adversely affect our results of operations. 

We believe that the Third MO&O is not consistent with the terms ofthe Report and Order or our 
understanding of the reconfiguration process described in the Report and Order, which served as the basis under 
which Nextel consented to its terms. In addition, we believe that the process by which the Third MO&O was 
adopted was legally deficient in a number of respects. Accordingly, on October 12, 2007, we filed an appeal with 
the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit. On November 27, 2007, the U.S. Court of Appeals granted our 
Motion for Expedition, setting forth an accelerated briefing schedule which should result in a decision by the 
Court by the FCCs June 2008 deadline. Both the FCC and we have filed our briefs with the Court, and oral 
arguments ai'c scheduled to begin on March 18, 2008. 
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In addition, as part ofthe Report and Order, the reconfiguration ofthe 1.9 GHz band was required to be 
completed by September 7, 2007. On September 5, 2007, we, along with the Association for Maximum Service 
Television, Inc., or MSTV, the National Association of Broadcasters, or NAB, and the Society of Broadcast 
Engineers, or SBE, filed a joint petition requesting an additional 29 months to complete the transition of the 
broadcast auxiliary service, or BAS, to frequencies above 2025 MHz. On November 6, 2007, the FCC granted a 
waiver until January 5, 2008 to complete the BAS transition above 2025 MHz. On December 6, 2007, Sprint 
Nextel, the MSTV, the NAB and the SBE submitted a consensus plan for completing the transition ofthe BAS 
licensees that should complete the BAS transition by September 2009. The FCC subsequently extended the 
waiver ofthe BAS relocation date until March 5, 2008 and encouraged the BAS licensees and new entrant 
mobile-satellite service licensees to continue discussing ways to share use ofthe spectrum before the transition is 
completed. 

The Report and Order requires us to make a payment to the U.S. Treasury at the conclusion of the band 
reconfiguration process to the extent that the value of the 1.9 GHz spectrum we received exceeds the total of the 
value of licenses for spectrum positions in the 700 MHz and 800 MHz bands that we surrendered under the 
decision, plus the actual costs that we incur to retune incumbents and our own facilities under the Report and 
Order. The FCC determined under the Report and Order that, for purposes of calculating that payment amount, 
the value of the 1.9 GHz spectrum is about $4.9 billion and the aggregate value ofthe 700 MHz spectrum and the 
800 MHz spectrum suirendered, net of 800 MHz spectrum received as part of the exchange, is about $2.1 billion, 
which, because ofthe potential payment to the U.S. Treasury, results in minimum cash expenditures of about 
$2.8 billion by us under the Report and Order. The FCC has designated the TA to monitor, facilitate and review 
our expenditures for 800 MHz band reconfiguration. A precise methodology for evaluating and confirming our 
internal network costs has not yet been established by the TA. Because the TA may not agree that all ofthe costs 
we submit as external and internal costs are appropriate or are subject to credit, we may incur certain costs as part 
of the reconfiguration process for which we will not receive credit against the potential payment to the U.S. 
Treasury. 

In addition, a financial reconciliation is required to be completed at the end of the reconfiguration 
implementation to determine whether the value of the spectrum rights received exceeds the total of (i) the value 
of spectrum rights that are surrendered and (ii) the qualifying costs referred to above. If so, we will be required to 
pay the difference to the U.S. Treasury, as described above. Based on the FCCs determination ofthe values of 
the spectrum rights received and surrendered by Nextel, the minimum obligation to be incurred under the Report 
and Order is $2.8 billion. The Report and Order also provides that qualifying costs we incur as part of the 
reconfiguration plan, including costs to reconfigure our own infrastructure and spectrum positions, can be used to 
offset the minimum obligation of $2.8 billion; however, we are obligated to pay the full amount ofthe costs 
relating to the reconfiguration plan, even if those costs exceed that amount. From the inception of the program 
and through December 31, 2007, we have incuired approximately $1.1 billion of costs directiy attributable to the 
spectrum reconfiguration program. This amount does not include any of our internal network costs that we have 
preliminarily allocated to the reconfiguration program for capacity sites and modifications for which we may 
request credit under the reconfiguration program. If we are successful in our appeal ofthe Third MO&O, we 
estimate, based on our experience to date with the reconfiguration program and on information currently 
available, that our total direct costs attributable to complete the spectrum reconfiguration will range between $2.7 
billion and $3.4 billion. This estimate is dependent on significant assumptions including the final licensee costs, 
and costs associated with relocating licensees in the Canadian and Mexican border regions for which there are 
currently no approved border plans. In addition, the above range does not include any of our apportioned internal 
network costs. Actual results could differ from such estimates. In addition, we are entitled to receive 
reimbursement from the mobile-satellite service licensees for their pro rata portion of our costs of clearing a 
portion of the 1.9 GHz spectrum. Those licensees may be unable or unwilling to reimburse us for their share of 
the costs, which we estimate to be approximately $200 million. If we are unsuccessful in our appeal of the Third 
MO&O, we anticipate that our costs could exceed $3.4 billion by an amount that would likely be material. 
However, we believe that it is unlikely we will be required to make a payment to the U.S. Treasury. 
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As required under the terms of the Report and Order, we delivered a $2.5 billion letter of credit to provide 
assurance that funds will be available to pay the relocation costs of the incumbent users of the 800 MHz 
spectrum. Although the Report and Order provides for the possibility of periodic reductions in the amount of the 
letter of credit, no reductions had been requested or made as of December 31, 2007. 

New Spectrum Opportunities and Spectrum Auctions 

Several FCC proceedings and initiatives are underway that may affect the availability of spectrum used or 
useful in the provision of commercial wireless services, which may allow new competitors to enter the wireless 
market. We cannot predict when or whether the FCC will conduct any spectrum auctions or if it will release 
additional spectrum that might be useful to wireless caixiers, including us, in the future. 

911 Services 

Pursuant to FCC rules, CMRS providers, including us, are required to provide enhanced 911, or E911, 
services in a two-tiered manner. Specifically, wireless carriers are required to transmit to a requesting public 
safety answering point, or PSAP, both (a) the 911 caller's telephone number and (b) the location ofthe cell site 
from which the call is being made using latitude and longitude. With respect to our iDEN and CDMA network 
services, such information can be determined only ifthe caller is using a handset with global positioning satellite, 
or GPS, capability. Implementation of E911 service must be completed within six months of a PSAP request for 
service in its area, or longer, based on the agreement between the individual PSAP and can'ier. 

In September 2007, the FCC adopted an order that changes the method by which wireless carriers measure 
compliance with accuracy requirements for locating 911 callers. Under the order, accuracy must be measured 
against each of the more than 6,000 PSAP boundaries rather than an average of system performance over a 
national network. Implementation of this measurement method, which is required over a five-year period, could 
result in significant costs to us and could subject us to penalties if we do not comply with these new rules. We are 
evaluating the feasibility of implementing this measurement method, many aspects of which may not be feasible 
technically, and we are working with the wireless industry to consider an appropriate response, particularly if 
implementation continues to appear to be technically infeasible. We have sought a stay ofthe effectiveness ofthe 
FCCs order and filed an appeal ofthe order with the U.S. Coiut of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit on February 25, 
2008. 

Homeland Security 

Homeland security issues are receiving attention at the FCC, from the states and in Congress. The FCC 
chairman has created a new FCC bureau devoted to this area. We expect that increased scrutiny of wireless 
can'iers' networks and several new initiatives could lead to new regulatory requirements regarding disaster 
preparedness, network reliability, and communications among first responders. In October 2006, Congress 
passed the Warning, Alert and Response Network Act, or WARN Act, which created a new voluntary wireless 
emergency alert program. As a result of the WARN Act, the FCC created the Commercial Mobile Service Alert 
Advisory Committee to recommend standards and protocols for delivery of emergency alerts to wireless 
customers. The FCC recently released a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking on the recommendations of the 
Advisory Committee. We have filed comments in the proceeding, but we are unable to predict the impact of 
these initiatives on our business. 

Tower Siting 

Wireless systems must comply with various federal, state and local regulations that govern the siting, 
lighting and construction of transmitter towers and antennas, including requirements imposed by the FCC and the 
Federal Aviation Administration. FCC rules subject certain cell site locations to extensive zoning, environmental 
and historic preservation requirements and mandate consultation with various parties, including Native 
Americans. The FCC adopted significant changes to its rules governing historic preservation review of projects, 
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which makes it more difficult and expensive to deploy antenna facilities. The FCC is also considering changes to 
its rules regarding environmental protection as related to tower construction, which, if adopted, could make it 
more difficult to deploy facilities. To the extent governmental agencies impose additional requirements on the 
tower siting process, the time and cost to construct cell towers could be negatively impacted. 

State and Local Regulation 

While the Communications Act generally preempts state and local governments from regulating entry of, or 
the rates charged by, wireless canters, certain State PUCs and local governments regulate customer billing, 
termination of service arrangements, advertising, certification of operation, use of handsets when driving, service 
quality, sales practices, management of customer call records and protected information and many other areas. 
Also, some state attorneys general have become more active in enforcing state consumer protection laws against 
sales practices and services of wireless carriers. Varying practices among the states may make it more difficuh 
for us to implement national sales and marketing programs. States also may impose their own universal service 
support requirements on wireless and other communications carriers, similar to the contribution requirements that 
have been established by the FCC, and some states are requiring wireless carriers to help fund the provision of 
intrastate relay services for consumers who are hearing impaired. We anticipate that these trends will continue to 
require us to devote legal and other resources to work with the states to respond to their concerns while 
attempting to minimize any new regulation and enforcement actions that could increase our costs of doing 
business. 

Regulation and Wireline Operations 

Competitive Local Service 

The Telecommunications Act of 1996, or Telecom Act, the first comprehensive update of the 
Communications Act, was designed to promote competition, and it eliminated legal and regulatory barriers for 
entry into local and long distance communications markets. It also required incumbent local exchange earners, or 
ILECs, to allow resale of specified local services at wholesale rates, negotiate interconnection agreements, 
provide nondiscriminatory access to certain unbundled network elements, or UNEs, and allow co-location of 
interconnection equipment by competitors. The rules implementing the Telecom Act remain subject to legal 
challenges. Thus, the scope of future local competition remains uncertain. These local competition rules impact 
us because we provide wholesale services to cable television companies that wish to compete in the local voice 
telephony market. 

We provide cable companies with communications and back-office services to enable the cable companies 
to provide competitive local and long distance telephone services primarily in a voice over IP, or VoIP, forniat to 
their end-user customers. We are now providing these services to cable companies in a number of states while 
working to gain regulatory approvals and obtain interconnection agreements to enter additional markets. Certain 
rural ILECs continue to take steps to impede our ability to provide services to the cable companies in an efficient 
manner. However, regulatory decisions in several states may speed our market entry in those states. 

Voice over Internet Protocol 

We offer a growing number of VoIP-based services to business customers and transport VoIP-originated 
traffic for various cable companies. The FCC has not yet resolved the regulatory classification of VoIP services, 
but continues to consider the regulatory status of various forms of VoIP. In 2004, the FCC issued an order 
finding that one form of VoIP, involving a specific form of computer-to-computer services for which no charge 
is assessed and conventional telephone numbers are not used, is an unregulated "information service," rather than 
a telcconnnunications service, and preempted state regulation ofthis service. The FCC also ruled that long 
distance offerings in which calls begin and end on the ordinary public switched telephone network, but are 
transmitted in part through the use of IP, are "telecommunications services," thereby rendering the services 
subject to all the regulatory obligations imposed on ordinary long distance services, including payment of access 
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charges and contributions to the universal service funds, or USE. In addition, the FCC preempted states from 
exercising entry and related economic regulation of interconnected VoIP services that require the use of 
broadband connections and specialized customer premises equipment and permit users to terminate calls to and 
receive calls from the public switched telephone network. However, the FCCs ruling did not address specifically 
whether this form of VoIP is an "information service" or a "telecommunications service," or what regulatory 
obligations, such as intercarrier compensation, should apply. Nevertheless, the FCC requires interconnected VoIP 
providers to contribute to the federal USE, offer E911 emergency calling capabilities to their subscribers, and 
comply with the electronic surveillance obligations set forth in the Communications Assistance for Law 
Enforcement Act, or GALEA. Because we provide VoIP services and transport VoIP-originated traffic, an FCC 
ruling on the regulatoiy classification of VoIP services and the applicability of specific intercarrier compensation 
rates is likely to affect the cost to provide these services; our pricing of these services; access to numbering 
resources needed to provide these services; and long-term E911, GALEA and USF obligations. Two parties have 
recentiy filed petitions with the FCC seeking forbearance from the intercamer compensation rules as they apply 
to VoIP traffic. These petitions seek opposite results - one petition argues that access charges should not apply to 
VoIP traffic, while the other petition argues that access charges should apply. The FCC has at most 15 months to 
act on these petitions. 

High-speed Internet Access Services 

Following a June 2005 U.S. Supreme Court decision affirming the FCCs classification of cable modem 
Internet access service as an "information service" and declining to impose mandatory common carrier regulation 
on cable providers, the FCC issued an order in September 2005 declaring that the wireline high-speed Internet 
access services, which are provided by ILECs, are "information services" rather than "telecommunications 
services." As a result, over time ILECs have been relieved of certain obligations regarding the provision of the 
underlying broadband transmission services. In 2007, the FCC followed this decision with a similar deregulation 
of wireless high-speed Internet access services. Such deregulation should result in less regulation of some of our 
EV-DO and WiMAX products and services. Deregulation of broadband services, however, has sparked a debate 
over "net neutrality" and "open access." Proponents of "net neutrality" assert that operators of broadband 
transmission facilities should not be permitted to make distinctions among content providers for priority access to 
the underlying facilities and that networks should be "open" to use by any device the customer chooses to bring 
to the network. While we have announced our intention to open the wireless operating platform of our handsets 
through our participation with Google in the Open Handset Alliance, an open access or net neutrality mandate 
that is not narrowly crafted could adversely affect the operation of our broadband networks by constraining our 
ability to control the network and protect our users from harm caused by other users and devices. Additionally, 
the FCC has a pending proceeding to consider whether all high-speed Internet access services, regardless of the 
technology used, are subject to various FCC consumer protection regulations. The imposition of any such 
obligations could resuU in significant costs to us. 

Other Regulations 

Truth in Billing and Consumer Protection 

The FCCs Truth in Billing rules generally require both wireline and wireless telecommunications caniers, 
such as us, to provide full and fair disclosure of all charges on their bills, including brief, clear, and 
non-misleading plain language descriptions ofthe services provided. In response to a petition from the National 
Association of State Utility Consumer Advocates, the FCC found that state regulation of CMRS rates, including 
line items on consumer bills, is preempted by federal statute. This decision was overturned by the 1 Ith Circuit 
Court of Appeals and the Supreme Court denied further appeal. As a consequence, there may be an increase in 
state activities to impose various regulations on the billing practices of wireless carriers. The FCC is continuing 
to look at issues of consumer protection, including the use of early termination fees, and the appropriate state and 
federal roles. If states gain such authority, or there are other changes in the Truth in Billing rules, our billing and 
customer service costs could increase. 
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Access Charge Reform 

ILEC and competitive local exchange canters, or CLECs, impose access charges for the origination and 
termination of long distance calls upon wireless and long distance carriers, including our Wireless and Wireline 
segments. Also, interconnected local caniers, including our Wireless segment, pay to each other reciprocal 
compensation fees for terminating interconnected local calls. In addition, ILECs and CLECs impose special 
access charges for their provision of dedicated facilities to other caniers, including both our Wireless and 
Wireline segments. These fees and charges are a significant cost for our Wireless and Wireline segments. There 
are ongoing proceedings at the FCC related to access chai-ges and special access rates, which could impact our 
costs for these services, but these proceedings have been pending for some time and FCC action is not anticipated 
in the near future. 

In the past year, several ILECs have sought and received forbearance from FCC regulation of certain 
enterprise broadband services. Specifically, the FCC granted forbearance to AT&T, ACS Anchorage, Embarq 
and Citizens from price regulation of their non-time division multiplexing, or TDM-based high-capacity special 
access services. Furthermore, in 2007, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia found that Verizon 
was "deemed granted" forbearance from the same rules when the FCC deadlocked on its similar forbearance 
petition, and that the "deemed grant" was unreviewable by the Court. Our request for en banc review was denied. 
We Jiave appealed the FCCs rulings with respect to AT&T and Embarq. These deregulatory actions by the FCC 
could enable the ILECs to raise their special access prices. 

The FCC currently is considering measures to address "traffic pumping" by local exchange carriers, or 
LECs, predominantly in rural exchanges, that have very high access charges. Under traffic pumping 
arrangements, the LECs partner with other entities to offer "free" or almost free services (such as conference 
calling and chat lines) to end users; these services (and payments to the LECs' partners) are financed through the 
assessment of high access charges on the end user's long distance or wireless carrier. Because ofthe peculiarities 
of the FCCs acceiss rate rules for small rural carriers, these LECs are allowed to base their rates on low historic 
demand levels rather than the vastly higher "pumped" demand levels, which enables the LEC to earn windfall 
profits. The FCC is considering the legality of traffic pumping arrangements as well as rule changes to ensure 
that rates charged by LECs experiencing substantial increases in demand volumes are just and reasonable. As a 
major wireless and wireline carrier, we have been assessed millions of dollars in access charges for "pumped" 
traffic. Adoption by the FCC of appropriate measures to limit the windfall profits associated with traffic pumping 
will have a direct beneficial impact on us. Also, we and other caiTiers have traffic pumping cases against several 
LECs and their traffic pumping partners pending in various U.S. district courts and the Iowa Utilities Board. 

Universal Service Reform 

Communications carriers contribute into and receive support from the USF, established by the FCC and 
many states. The federal USF program funds services provided in high-cost areas, reduced-rate services to 
low-income consumers, and discounted communications and Internet services for schools, libraries and rural 
health care facilities. The USF is funded from assessments on communications providers, including our Wireless 
and Wireline segments, based on FCC-prescribed contribution factors applicable to our interstate and 
international end-user revenues from telecommunications services and interconnected VoIP services. Similarly, 
many states have established their own universal service funds into which we contribute. The FCC is considering 
changing the interstate revenue-based assessment with an assessment based on telephone numbers or connections 
to the public network, which could impact the amount of our assessments, but it is not clear that the FCC is 
prepared to take action in the near future. As permitted, we assess customers for these USF charges. 

The FCC also is considering changing the way it distributes federal USF support to caniers. In particular, 
FCC or state actions could make it more difficult for our Wireless segment, which cmxently receives support in 
24 states as an Eligible Telecommunications Canier, or ETC, to qualify for and to receive support. In 2007, 
through approvals of mergers and acquisitions, the FCC capped the amount of USF money Alltel and AT&T 
Wireless can receive, and the FCC is considering other means to cap the amount other wireless carriers, 
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including us, can receive. Further restrictions on our ETC status at the federal and state levels could result in the 
rescission of our ETC status, and a group of rural LECs has challenged our ETC designation in Virginia. We 
demonstrated that this challenge was without merit, and to date, no action has been taken. The Federal-State Joint 
Board on Universal Service has recommended significant changes to the federal USF, including a cap on USF 
support to competitive ETCs, and establishment of separate mobility, broadband, and "provider of last resort" 
funds. The FCC has sought comment on these proposals, as well as other proposals to limit the size ofthe fund. 
If adopted by the FCC as proposed, these changes would likely reduce our ETC universal service support, with 
little or no reduction in our USF contribution obligations. 

Electronic Surveillance Obligations 

The GALEA requires telecommunications carriers, including us, to modify equipment, facilities and 
services to allow for authorized electronic surveillance based on either industry or FCC standards. Our GALEA 
obligations have been extended to data and VoIP networks, and we are in compliance with these requirements. 
Certain laws and regulations require that we assist various government agencies with electronic surveillance of 
communications and records concerning those communications. We are a defendant in four purported class 
action lawsuits that allege that we participated in a program of intelligence gathering activities for the federal 
government following the tenorist attacks of September 11, 2001 that allegedly violated federal and state law. 
Relief sought in these cases includes injunctive relief, statutory and punitive damages, and attorneys' fees. We 
believe these suits have no luerit. We do not disclose customer information to the government or assist 
government agencies in electronic surveillance unless we have been provided a lawful request for such 
information. 

Privacy-Related Regulations 

We comply with FCC customer proprietary network information, or CPNI, rules, which require caniers to 
comply with a range of marketing and safeguard obligations. These obligations focus on carriers' access, use, 
storage and disclosure of CPNI. In 2007, the FCC adopted a new CPNI Order that imposed additional CPNI 
obligations on carriers. The new CPNI rules took effect in December 2007. We are utilizing a variety of 
compliance vehicles, such as technical and systematic solutions and updated policies and procedures, to conform 
our operations to the new CPNI obligations. The technical and systematic solutions offer significant data security 
benefits, but they also require significant development and testing. We petitioned the FCC for a limited waiver of 
some new CPNI rules so that we could complete development, testing and deployment of our CPNI compliance 
solutions. No opposition comments were filed in response to our petition. We also continue to monitor our CPNI 
compliance program and make enhancements and improvements when necessary. 

Emergency Backup Power Rules 

In October 2007, the FCC adopted rules that require wireless caniers to have eight hours of backup power at 
their cell sites and remote terminals. Wireless earners may be able to exclude some of these facilities from the 
requirement if they can demonstrate in a report to be filed with the FCC within six months after the rules become 
effective that the installation ofthe equipment necessary to comply with the eight-hour back-up rules, e.g., 
generators or batteries, presents a risk to safety, life or health; is precluded by private legal obligation or 
agreement; or is precluded by Federal, state, tribal or local law. For those facilities that do not fall within one of 
these exclusions, wireless carriers are required to bring such facilities into compliance with the back-up power 
rules within twelve months from the effective date ofthe rules or file with the FCC a certified emergency backup 
power compliance plan detailing how the wireless carrier intends to meet the backup power requirements. The 
rules are not yet in effect. Assuming that compliance is even possible, which is not likely, such compliance with 
the rules could result in significant costs to us. We have requested and been granted a stay of the rules by the U.S. 
Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia, and we, CTIA-The Wireless Association® and USA Mobility have 
filed Petitions for Review of the rules at the same Court. The FCC recently consented to expedited review of the 
Petitions for Review so it is likely that the Court will act by the middle of 2008. 

Environmental Compliance 

Our environmental compliance and remediation obligations relate primarily to the operation of standby 
power generators, batteries and fuel storage for our telecommunications equipment. These obligations require 
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compliance with storage and related standards, obtaining of permits and occasional remediation. Although we 
cannot assess with certainty the impact of any future compliance and remediation obligations, we do not believe 
that any such expenditures will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations. 

We have identified seven former manufactured gas plant sites in Nebraska, not cun-ently owned or operated 
by us, that may have been owned or operated by entities acquired by Centel Corporation, formerly a subsidiary of 
ours and now a subsidiary of Embarq. We and Embai'q have agreed to share the environmental liabilities arising 
from these former manufactured gas plant sites. Three ofthe sites are part of ongoing settiement negotiations and 
administrative consent orders with the Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA. Two ofthe sites have had 
initial site assessments conducted by the Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality, or NDEQ, but no 
regulatory actions have followed. The two remaining sites have had no regulatory action by the EPA or the 
NDEQ. Centel has entered into agreements with other potentially responsible parties to share costs in connection 
with five of the seven sites. We are working to assess the scope and nature of these sites and our potential 
responsibility, which is not expected to be material. 

Patents, Trademarks and Licenses 

We own numerous patents, patent applications, service marks and trademarks in the United States and other 
countries. "Sprint," "Nextel" and "Boost Mobile" are among our trademarks. Our services often use the 
intellectual property of others, such as licensed software, and we often license copyrights, patents and trademarks 
of others. In total, these licenses and our copyrights, patents, trademarks and service marks are of material 
importance to the business. Generally, our trademarks and service marks endure and are enforceable so long as 
they continue to be used. Our patents and licensed patents have remaining terms generally ranging from one to 19 
years. 

We occasionally license our intellectual property to others, including licenses to others to use the trademarks 
"Sprint" and "Nextel." 

We have received claims in the past, and may in the future receive claims, that we, or third parties from 
whom we license or purchase goods or services, have infringed on the intellectual property of others. These 
claims can be time-consuming and costiy to defend, and divert management resources. If these claims are 
successful, we could be forced to pay significant damages or stop selling certain products or services or stop 
using certain trademarks. We, or third parties from whom we license or purchase goods or services, also could 
enter into licenses with unfavorable terms, including royalty payments, which could adversely affect our 
business. 

Employee Relations 

As of December 31, 2007, we had about 60,000 employees. 

Management 

For infonnation concerning our executive officers, see "Executive Officers ofthe Registrant" starting on 
page 29 of this document. 

Information as to Business Segments 

For information regarding our business segments, see "Part II, Item 7 Management's Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and also refer to note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

Item lA. Risk Factors 

In addition to the other information contained in this Form 10-K, the following risk factors should be 
considered carefully in evaluating us. Our business, financial condition, liquidity or results of operations could be 
materially adversely affected by any of these risks. 
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Risks Related to the Sprint-Nextel Merger and the Spin-off of Embarq 

We may continue to face difficulties in integrating the businesses of Nextel, the acquired PCS Affiliates or 
Nextel Partners with ours. 

We continue to devote significant management attention and resources to integrating the Nextel wireless 
network and other wireless technologies with ours, as well as the business practices, operations and support 
functions of the two companies. The challenges we are facing and/or may face in the future in connection with 
these integration efforts include the following; 

• integrating our CDMA and iDEN wireless networks, which operate on different technology platforms 
and use different spectrum bands, and developing wireless devices and other products and services that 
operate seamlessly on both technology platforms; 

• developing and deploying next generation wireless technologies; 

• combining and simplifying diverse product and service offerings, subscriber plans and sales and 
marketing approaches; 

• preserving subscriber, supplier and other important relationships; 

• consolidating and integrating duplicative facilities and operations, including back-office systems; and 

• addressing differences in business cultures, preserving employee morale and attracting and retaining 
key employees, including in connection with our headquarters consolidation in Kansas, while 
maintaining focus on providing consistent, high quality customer service and meeting our operational 
and financial goals. 

The process of integrating the operations of Nextel, the seven acquired PCS Affiliates and Nextel Partners 
with ours has caused, and may in the future cause, interruptions of, or loss of momentum in, our business and 
financial performance. The diversion of management's attention and any delays or difficulties encountered in 
connection with the integration of the two companies' operations has had, and could continue to have, an adverse 
effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. We may also incur additional and unforeseen 
expenses in connection with the integration efforts. 

We are subject to exclusivity provisions and other restrictions under our arrangements with the remaining 
independent PCS Affiliates, Continued compliance with those restrictions may limit our ability to fully 
integrate the operations of Nextel and Nextel Partners in the geographic areas served by those PCS Affiliates, 
and we could incur significant costs to resolve issues related to the merger under these arrangements. 

The aiTangements with the three independent PCS Affiliates restrict our and their ability to own, operate, 
build or manage specified wireless communication networks or to sell certain wireless services within specified 
geographic areas. One of these PCS Affiliates has litigation pending against us asserting that actions that we have 
taken or may take in the future in connection with our integration efforts are inconsistent with our obligations 
under our agreement with them, particularly with respect to the restrictions noted above. Continued compliance 
with those restrictions may limit our ability to fully integrate the operations of Nextel and Nextel Partners in the 
areas served by those PCS Affiliates. We could incur significant costs to resolve these issues. 

We are subject to restrictions on acquisitions involving our stock and other stock issuances and possibly other 
corporate opportunities in order to enable the spin-off of Embarq to qualify for taxfree treatment. 

The spin-off of Embarq cannot qualify for tax-free treatment if 50% or more (by vote or value) of our stock, 
or the stock of Embarq, is acquired or issued as part of a plan, or series of related transactions, that includes the 
spin-off. Because the Sprint-Nextel merger generally is treated as involving the acquisition of 49.9% of our stock 
(and the stock of Embarq) for purposes of this analysis, we are subject to restrictions on certain acquisitions 
using our stock and other issuances of our stock in order to enable the spin-off to qualify for tax-free treatment. 
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V 
These restrictions apply to transactions occuntng subsequent to the spin-off that are deemed to be part of a plan 
or series of transactions related to the Sprint-Nextel merger and the Embarq spin-off. Under applicable tax law, 
transactions occurring within two years of the spin-off are presumed to be pursuant to such a plan unless we can 
establish the contrary. At this time, it is not possible to determine how long these restrictions will apply, or 
whether they will have a material impact on us. 

Ifthe .spin-off of Embarq does not qualify as a tax-free transaction, tax could be imposed on both our 
shareholders and us. 

We received a private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service, or IRS, that the spin-off of Embarq 
qualifies for tax-free treatment under Code Sections 355 and 361. In addition, we obtained opinions of counsel 
from each of Cravath, Swaine & Moore LLP and Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison LLP that the 
spin-off so qualifies. The IRS ruling and the opinions rely on certain representations, assumptions and 
undertakings, including those relating to the past and future conduct of Embarq's and our business. The IRS 
private letter ruling does not address all the issues that are relevant to determining whether the distribution 
qualifies for tax-free treatment. The IRS could determine that the distribution should be treated as a taxable 
transaction if it determines that any of the representations, assumptions or undertakings that were included in the 
request for the private letter ruling are false or have been violated, or if it disagrees with the conclusions in the 
opinions that are not covered by the IRS private letter ruling. Ifthe distribution fads to qualify for tax-free 
treatment, it will be treated as a taxable distribution to our shareholders in an amount equal to the fair market 
value of Embarq's equity securities (i.e., Embarq's common stock issued to our common shareholders) received 
by them. In addition, we would be required to recognize gain in an amount up to the fair market value of the 
Embarq equity securities that we distributed on the distribution date plus the fair market value of the senior notes 
of Embarq received by us. 

Furthermore, subsequent events, some of which are not in our control, could cause us to recognize gain on 
the distribution. For example, even minimal acquisitions of our equity securities or Embarq's equity securities 
that are deemed to be part of a plan or a series of related transactions that include the distribution and the Sprint-
Nextel merger could cause us to recognize gain on the distribution. 

Risks Related to our Business and Operations 

We face intense competition that may reduce our market share and harm our financial performance. 

Our operating segments face intense competition. Our ability to compete effectively depends on, among 
other things, the factors discussed below. 

If we are not able to attract and retain customers, our financial performance could be impaired. 

Our ability to compete successfully for new customers and to retain our existing customers will depend on: 

• our marketing and sales, arrangements with MVNOs, service delivery and customer care activities, and 
our credit and collection policies; 

• our ability to anticipate and develop new or enhanced products and services that are attractive to 
existing or potential customers; and 

• our ability to anticipate and respond to various competitive factors affecting the industry, including 
new services that may be introduced by our competitors, changes in consumer preferences, 
demographic trends, economic conditions, and discount pricing and other strategies that may be 
implemented by our competitors. 

A key element in the economic success of communications caitiers is the ability to retain customers as 
measured by the rate of subscriber churn. Our ability to retain customers and reduce our rate of churn is affected 
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by a number of factors including, with respect to our wireless business, the actual or perceived quality and 
coverage of our network, the attractiveness of our handsets and service offerings and the customer care 
experience, including new account set up and billing. Our ability to retain customers also is affected by 
competitive pricing pressures and the quality of our customer service. Our recent efforts to reduce churn have not 
been successful, and our high rate of churn has impaired our ability to maintain the level of revenues generated in 
prior periods, and caused a deterioration in the operating margins of, our wireless operations and our operations 
as a whole, the effects of which will continue if we do not reduce our rate of churn. Our ability to retain 
customers may also be negatively affected by industry trends related to customer contracts. We and our 
competitors no longer require customers to renew their contracts when making changes to their pricing plans and 
have announced that we will be moving to prorated eaity termination fees. These changes could negatively affect 
our ability to retain customers and could lead to an increase in our churn rates if we are not successful in creating 
a competitive product and service mix. 

As the wireless market matures, we must increasingly seek to attract customers from competitors and 
face increased credit risk from first time wireless subscribers. 

We and our competitors increasingly must seek to attract a greater proportion of new customers from each 
other's existing customer bases rather than from first time purchasers of wireless services. Recently, we have not 
been able to attract customers at the same rate as our competitors and have had a net loss of subscribers during 
2007. In addition, the higher market penetration also means that customers purchasing wireless services for the 
first time, on average, have a lower credit rating than existing wireless users, and the number of these customers 
we are willing to accept is dependent on our credit policies, which change from time-to-time. To the extent we 
cannot compete effectively for new customers, our revenues and results of operations will be adversely affected. 

Competition and technological changes in the market for wireless services could negatively affect our 
average revenue per user, subscriber churn, our ability to attract new subscribers and operating 
costs, which would adversely affect our revenues, growth and profitability. 

We compete with several other wireless service providers in each of the markets in which we provide 
wireless services. As competition among wireless communications providers has increased, we have created 
pricing plans that have resulted in declining average revenue per minute of use for voice services, a trend which 
we expect will continue. Competition in pricing and service and product offerings may also adversely impact 
customer retention, which would adversely affect our results of operations. 

The wireless communications industry is experiencing significant technological change, including 
improvements in the capacity and quality of digital technology and the deployment of unlicensed spectrum 
devices. This change causes uncertainty about future subscriber demand for our wireless services and the prices 
that we will be able to charge for these services. Rapid change in technology may lead to the development of 
wireless communications technologies or alternative services that are superior to our technologies or services or 
that consumers prefer over ours. If we are unable to meet future advances in competing technologies on a timely 
basis, or at an acceptable cost, we may not be able to compete effectively and could lose customers to our 
competitors. 

Mergers or other business combinations involving our competitors and new entrants, including MVNOs, 
beginning to offer wireless services may also continue to increase competition. These wireless operators may be 
able to offer subscribers network features or products and services not offered by us, coverage in ai'cas not served 
by either of our wireless networks or pricing plans that are lower than those offered by us, all of which would 
negatively affect our average revenue per user, subscriber churn, ability to attract new subscribers, and operating 
costs. For example, AT&T, Verizon and T-Mobile now offer competitively-priced wireless services packaged 
with local and long distance voice and high-speed Internet services, and flat rate voice and data plans, and our 
Boost Mobile-branded services compete with a number of regional canters, including Metro PCS and Leap 
Wireless, which offer competitively-priced calling plans that include unlimited local calling. In addition, we may 
lose subscribers of our higher priced plans to our Boost Mobile offerings. 
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One of the primary differentiating features of our Nextel-branded service is the two-way walkie-talkie 
service available on our iDEN network. A number of wireless equipment vendors, including Motorola, which 
supplies equipment for our Nextel-branded service, have begun to offer wireless equipment that is capable of 
providing walkie-talkie services that are designed to compete with our walkie-talkie services. Several of our 
competitors have introduced handsets that are capable of providing walkie-talkie services. If these competitors' 
services are perceived to be or become, or if any such services introduced in the future are, comparable to our 
Nextel-branded walkie-talkie services, a key competitive advantage of our Nextel service would be reduced, 
which in turn could adversely affect our business. 

Failure to improve wireless subscriber service and failure to continue to enhance the quality and 
features of our wireless networks and meet capacity requirements of our subscriber base could impair 
our fmancial performance and adversely affect our results of operations. 

We must continually make investments and incur costs in order to improve our wireless subscriber service 
and remain competitive. In connection with our continuing enhancement of the quality of our wireless networks 
and related services, we: 

• maintain and expand the capacity and coverage of our networks; 

• secure sufficient transmitter and receiver sites and obtain zoning and construction approvals or permits 
at appropriate locations; 

• obtain adequate quantities of system infrastructure equipment and handsets, and related accessories to 
meet subscriber demand; and 

• obtain additional spectrum in some or all of our markets, if and when necessary. 

Network enhancements may not occur as scheduled or at the cost that we have estimated. Delays or failure 
to add network capacity, failure to maintain roaming agreements or increased costs of adding capacity, could 
limit our ability to satisfy our wireless subscribers, resulting in decreased revenues. Even if we continuously 
upgrade our wireless networks, there can be no assurance that existing subscribers will not prefer features of our 
competitors and switch wireless providers. 

Consolidation and competition in the wholesale market for wireline services could adversely affect 
our revenues and profitability. 

Our Wireline segment competes with AT&T, Verizon, Qwest Communications, Level 3 Communications, 
and cable operators, as well as a host of smaller competitors, in the provision of wireline services. Some of these 
companies have built high-capacity, IP-based fiber-optic networks capable of supporting large amounts of voice 
and data traffic. These companies claim certain cost sti'ucture advantages which, among other factors, may allow 
them to maintain profitability while offering services at a price below that which we can offer profitably. 
Increased competition and the significant increase in capacity resulting from new technologies and networks may 
drive already low prices down further. AT&T and Verizon, as a result oftheir acquisitions, continue to be our 
two largest competitors in the domestic long distance communications market. We and other long distance 
carriers depend heavily on local access facilities obtained from ILECs to serve our long distance customers, and 
payments to ILECs for these facilities are a significant cost of service for our Wireline segment. The long 
distance operations of AT&T and Verizon have cost and operational advantages with respect to these access 
facilities because those carriers serve significant geographic areas, including many large urban areas, as the 
incumbent local carrier. 

Failure to complete development, testing and deployment of new technology that supports new 
services could affect our ability to compete in the industry. In addition, the technology we use may 
place us at a competitive disadvantage. 

We develop, test and deploy various new technologies and suppoit systems intended to enhance our 
competitiveness by both supporting new services and features and reducing the costs associated with providing 
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those services. Successful development and implementation of technology upgrades depend, in part, on the 
willingness of third parties to develop new applications in a timely manner. We may not successfully complete 
the development and rollout of new technology and related features or services in a timely manner, and they may 
not be widely accepted by our customers or may not be profitable, in which case we could not recover our 
investment in the technology. Deployment of technology supporting new service offerings may also adversely 
affect the performance or reliability of our networks with respect to both the new and existing services. Any 
resulting customer dissatisfaction could affect our ability to retain customers and have an adverse effect on our 
results of operations and growth prospects. 

Our wireless networks provide services utilizing CDMA and iDEN technologies. Wireless subscribers 
served by these two technologies represent a smaller portion of global wireless subscribers than the subscribers 
served by wireless networks that utilize GSM technology. As a result, our costs with respect to both CDMA and 
iDEN network equipment and handsets may continue to be higher than the comparable costs incun'ed by our 
competitors who use GSM technology, which places us at a competitive disadvantage. 

The blurring of the traditional dividing lines between long distance, local, wireless, video and Internet 
services contribute to increased competition. 

The traditional dividing lines between long distance, local, wireless, video and Internet services are 
increasingly becoming bluned. Through mergers, joint ventures and vaitous service expansion strategies, major 
providers are striving to provide integrated services in many ofthe markets we serve. This trend is also reflected in 
changes in the regulatory environment that have encouraged competition and the offering of integrated services. 

We expect competition to intensify across all of our business segments as a result of the entrance of new 
competitors or the expansion of services offered by existing competitors, and the rapid development of new 
technologies, products and services. We cannot predict which of many possible future technologies, products, or 
services will be important to maintain our competitive position or what expenditures we will be required to make 
in order to develop and provide these technologies, products or services. To the extent we do not keep pace with 
technological advances or fail to timely respond to changes in the competitive environment affecting our 
industry, we could lose market share or experience a decline in revenue, cash flows and net income. As a result 
of the financial strength and benefits of scale enjoyed by some of our competitors, they may be able to offer 
services at lower prices than we can, thereby adversely affecting our revenues, growth and profitability. 

If we are unable to meet our future capital needs relating to investment in our networks and other obligations, 
it may be necessaty for us to curtail, delay or abandon our business growth plans. If we incur significant 
additional indebtedness to fund our plans or experience a significant decline iti financial performance, our 
borrowing costs could increase or our ability to raise additional capital could be limited. A recent downgrade 
in our rating could cause us to incur higher interest costs and negatively impact our access to the capital 
markets. 

We likely will require additional capital to make the capital expenditures necessary to implement our 
business plans, including our fourth generation network, to support future growth of our wireless business and to 
satisfy our debt service requirements. In addition, we may incur additional debt in the future for a variety of 
reasons, including future acquisitions. We may not be able to airange additional financing to fund our 
requirements on terms acceptable to us. Our ability to airange additional financing will depend on, among other 
factors, our ratings, financial performance, general economic conditions and prevailing market conditions. Some 
of these factors are beyond our control. One debt rating agency recently downgraded our rating to below 
investment grade, and this may cause us to incur higher interest costs and our access to the capital markets could 
be negatively impacted. Our access to the commercial paper market may not be available on terms attractive to 
us, or at all. Failure to obtain suitable financing when needed could, among other things, result in our inability to 
continue to expand our businesses and meet competitive challenges. If we incur significant additional 
indebtedness, or if we do not continue to generate sufficient cash from our operations, our ratings could be 
adversely affected, which would likely increase our future borrowing costs and could affect our ability to access 
capital. 
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Our credit facilities require that we maintain a ratio of total indebtedness to trailing four quarters eainings 
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization and other non-cash gains or losses, such as goodwill 
impairment charges, of no more than 3.5 to 1.0, which as of December 31, 2007, was 2.5 to 1.0. If we do not 
continue to satisfy this ratio, either because we do not generate sufficient cash from operations or otherwise, we 
will be in default under our credit facilities, which could trigger defaults under our other debt obligations, which 
in turn could result in the maturities of certain debt obligations being accelerated. 

If we are unable to improve our results of operations, we face the possibility of additional charges against 
earnings for impairments of goodwill and other assets. 

In connection with our annual assessment for impairment of goodwfll and other long lived assets, we 
reduced the goodwill and consolidated shareholders' equity by $29.7 billion in the fourth quarter 2007. As part of 
this annual assessment, we updated the forecasted cash flows of our wireless reporting unit. If we are unable to 
improve our results of operations and cash flows, or other indicators of impairment exist, such as a sustained 
significant decline in our share price and market capitalization, we may incur another, material charge against 
earnings relating to our remaining goodwill. 

hi addition, we review our wireless and wireline long lived assets for impairment whenever changes in 
circumstances indicate that the caixying amount may not be recoverable. If we are unable to improve our results 
of operations and cash flows, such a review could lead to a material impairment charge in our consolidated 
financial statements. 

We have entered into outsourcing agreements related to certain business operations. Any dijficulties 
experienced in these arrangements could result in additional expense, loss of customers and revenue, 
interruption of our services or a delay in the roll-out of new technology. 

We have entered into outsourcing agreements for the development and maintenance of certain software 
systems necessary for the operation of our business. We have also entered into agreements with third parties to 
provide customer service and related support to our wireless subscribers and outsourced many aspects of our 
customer care and billing functions to third parties. We also have entered into an agreement whereby a third 
party has leased or operates a significant number of our communications towers, and we sublease space on these 
towers. As a result, we must rely on third parties to perform certain of our operations and, in certain 
circumstances, interface with our customers. If these third parties are unable to perform to our requirements, we 
would have to pursue alternative strategies to provide these services and that could result in delays, intenuptions, 
additional expenses and loss of customers. 

The intellectual property rights utilized by us and our suppliers and service providers may infringe on 
intellectual property rights owned by others. 

Some of our products and services use intellectual property that we own. We also purchase products from 
suppliers, including handset device suppliers, and outsource services to service providers, including billing and 
customer care functions, that incorporate or utilize intellectual property. We and some of our suppliers and 
service providers have received, and may receive in the future, assertions and claims from third parties that the 
products or software utilized by us or our suppliers and service providers infringe on the patents or other 
intellectual property rights of these third parties. These claims could require us or an infringing supplier or 
service provider to cease certain activities or to cease selling the relevant products and services. Such claims and 
assertions also could subject us to costly litigation and significant liabilities for damages or royalty payments, or 
require us to cease certain activities or to cease selling certain products and services. 

All .suppliers of our CDMA handsets license intellectual property from QUALCOMM. Some ofthis 
QUALCOMM intellectual property has been found to infringe on certain patents owned by Broadcom Corporation. 
The International Trade Commission has found that QUALCOMM infringes certain of Broadcom's intellectual 
property, and a United States district court recentiy enjoined QUALCOMM from further infringement of other 
patents and from certain other activities. Although that injunction is effective immediately, the ruling contains a 
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sunset provision for certain QUALCOMM products, which expires on January 31, 2009, that provides time for 
QUALCOMM to modify its infringing products to avoid infringement. If QUALCOMM does not modify its 
products so as to avoid infringement of Broadcom's patents at issue by January 31, 2009, QUALCOMM will be 
unable to sell or support those products that were found to infringe and we may be unable to use CDMA handsets 
that are the subject of these claims, including handsets that utilize QUALCOMM's QChat technology, which we 
intend to use to provide walkie-talkie services on our CDMA network. We are eunently unable to use other 
QUALCOMM products found to be infringing that are not subject to the sunset provision. 

If Motorola is unable or unwilling to provide us with equipment and handsets in support of our iDEN-based 
services, as well as anticipated handset and infrastructure improvements for those services, our operations will 
be adversely affected. 

Motorola is our sole source for most ofthe equipment that supports the iDEN network and for all ofthe 
handsets we offer under the Nextel brand except primarily for BlackBeiry devices. Although our handset supply 
agreement with Motorola is structured to provide competitively- priced handsets, the cost of iDEN handsets is 
generally higher than handsets that do not incorporate a similar' multi-function capability. This difference may make 
it more difficult or costly for us to offer handsets at prices that are attractive to potential customers. In addition, the 
higher cost of iDEN handsets requires us to absorb a larger pait of the cost of offering handsets to new and existing 
customers. These increased costs and handset subsidy expenses may reduce our growth and profitability. Also, we 
must rely on Motorola to develop handsets and equipment capable of supporting the features and services we offer 
to subscribers of services on our iDEN network, including the dual-mode handsets. A decision by Motorola to 
discontinue manufacturing, supporting or enhancing our iDEN-based infrastructure and handsets would have a 
material adverse effect on us. In addition, because iDEN technology is not as widely adopted and has fewer 
subscribers than other wireless technologies and because we expect that over time more of our customers will utilize 
service offered on our CDMA network, it is less likely that manufacturers other than Motorola will be willing to 
make the significant financial commitment required to license, develop and manufacture iDEN infrastructure 
equipment and handsets. Further, our ability to timely and efficiently implement the spectrum reconfiguration plan 
in connection with the FCCs Report and Order is dependent, in pait, on Motorola. 

The reconfiguration process contemplated by the FCCs Report and Order may adversely affect our business 
and operations, which could adversely affect our future growth and operating results. 

In order to accomplish the reconfiguration of the 800 MHz spectrum band that is contemplated by the Report 
and Order, in most cases we will need to cease our use of a portion of the 800 MHz spectrum on our iDEN network 
in a particular market before we are able to commence use of replacement 800 MHz spectrum in that market. To 
mitigate the temporary loss of the use of this spectrum, in many markets we will need to construct additional 
transmitter and receiver sites or acquire additional spectrum in the 800 MHz or 900 MHz bands. This spectrum may 
not be available to us on acceptable terms. In markets where we are unable to construct additional sites or acquire 
additional spectrum as needed, the decrease in capacity may adversely affect the peiformanee of our iDEN network, 
require us to curtail subscriber additions in those markets until the capacity limitation can be alleviated, or a 
combination of the two, particularly if the replacement of 800 MHz spectrum is not available for a significant period 
of time. The FCC recently ordered that we vacate by June 2008 a portion of the 800 MHz spectrum that we 
eunently use, even if the applicable public safety licensee is not ready to relocate to the vacated spectrum. Any 
delay by public safety licensees in relocating to the vacated spectrum, absent the grant of a waiver by the FCC, 
would delay when we could commence use of the replacement 800 MHz spectrum. Degradation in network 
performance in any market would likely result in higher subscriber churn in that market, the effect of which could 
be exacerbated if we are forced to curtail subscriber additions in that market. A resulting loss of a significant 
number of subscribers could adversely affect our results of operations. We believe that the reconfiguration process 
has contributed adversely to the capacity and performance of our iDEN network, particularly in some of our more 
capacity constrained markets. In addition, the Report and Order gives the FCC the authority to suspend or otherwise 
limit our use of the 1.9 GHz spectrum that we received under the Report and Order if we do not comply with our 
obligations under the Report and Order. 
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Government regulation could adversely affect our prospects and results of operations; the FCC and state 
regulatory commissions may adopt new regulations or take other actions that could adversely affect our 
business prospects or results of operations. 

The FCC and other federal, state and local governmental authorities have jurisdiction over our business and 
could adopt regulations or take other actions that would adversely affect our business prospects or results of 
operations. 

The licensing, construction, operation, sale and interconnection anangements of wireless 
telecommunications systems are regulated by the FCC and, depending on the jurisdiction, state and local 
regulatory agencies. In particular, the FCC imposes significant regulation on licensees of wireless spectrum with 
respect to how radio spectrum is used by licensees, the nature ofthe services that licensees may offer and how 
such services may be offered, and resolution of issues of interference between spectrum bands. 

The FCC grants wireless licenses for terms of generally ten years that are subject to renewal and revocation. 
There is no guarantee that our licenses will be renewed. Failure to comply with FCC requirements in a given 
license area could result in revocation ofthe license for that license area. 

Depending upon their outcome, the FCCs proceedings regai'ding regulation of special access rates could 
affect the rates paid by our Wireless and Wireline segments for special access services in the future. Similarly, 
depending on their outcome, the FCCs proceedings on the regulatory classification of VoIP services could affect 
the intercarrier compensation rates and the level of USF contributions paid by us. 

Various states are considering regulations over terms and conditions of service, including such things as 
certain billing practices and consumer-related issues that may not be pre-empted by federal law. If imposed, these 
regulations could make it more difficult and expensive to implement national sales and marketing programs and 
could increase the costs of our wireless operations. 

Our business could be negatively impacted by security threats and other disruptions. 

Major equipment failures, natural disasters, including severe weather, terrorist acts, cyber attacks or other 
breaches of network or information technology security that affect our wireline and wireless networks, including 
transport facilities, communications switches, routers, microwave links, cell sites or other equipment or third-
party owned local and long-distance networks on which we rely, could have a material adverse effect on our 
operations. These events could disrupt our operations, require significant resources, result in a loss of customers 
or impair our ability to attract new customers, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our business, 
results of operations and financial condition. 

Concerns about health risks associated with wireless equipment may reduce the demand for our services. 

Portable communications devices have been alleged to pose health risks, including cancer, due to radio 
frequency emissions from these devices. Puiported class actions and other lawsuits have been filed against 
numerous wireless carriers, including us, seeking not only damages but also remedies that could increase our cost 
of doing business. We cannot be sure of the outcome of those cases or that our business and financial condition 
will not be adversely affected by litigation ofthis nature or public perception about health risks. The actual or 
perceived risk of mobile communications devices could adversely affect us through a reduction in subscribers, 
reduced network usage per subscriber or reduced financing available to the mobile communications industry. 
Further research and studies aie ongoing, and we cannot be sure that additional studies will not demonstrate a 
link between radio frequency emissions and health concerns. 

Item IB. Unresolved Staff Comments 

On May 25, 2007, we received a comment letter from the Staff of the Division of Corporation Finance of 
the SEC with respect to its review of our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 and our Form 10-Q 
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for the quarter ended March 31, 2007. The Staff's letter included a comment requesting amendment of our 2006 
Form lO-K and first quarter 2007 Form 10-Q to provide more robust discussion ofthe trend of significant net 
declines in our iDEN subscriber base, on a consecutive quarter-over-quarter basis during 2006, continuing 
through the first quarter of 2007. In response to this comment, we have added additional disclosure to the 
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations section in this Form 
10-K, in a manner consistent with disclosures presented in our second and third quarter 2007 Forms 10-Q. 

Item 2. Properties 

Our coiporate headquarters is located in Overland Park, Kansas and consists of about 3,853,000 square feet. 

Our gross property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2007 totaled $48.0 billion, distributed among the 
business segments as follows: 

2007 

(in billions) 

Wireless $41.4 
Wireline 3.9 
Corporate and other 2.7 

Total $48.0 

Properties utilized by our Wireless segment consist of base transceiver stations, switching equipment and 
towers, as well as leased and owned general office facilities and retail stores. We lease space for base station 
towers and switch sites for our wireless network. 

Properties utilized by our Wireline segment generally consist of land, buildings, switching equipment, 
digital fiber-optic network and other transport facilities. We have been granted easements, rights-of-way and 
rights-of-occupancy by railroads and other private landowners for our fiber-optic network. 

As of December 31, 2007, about $463 million of outstanding debt, comprised of certain secured notes, 
capital lease obligations and mortgages, is secured by $1.7 billion of gross property, plant and equipment, and 
other assets. 

Additional information regarding our commitments related to operating leases can be found in note 13 ofthe 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Item 3. Legal Proceedings 

In March 2004, eight purported class action lawsuits relating to the recombination of our tracking stocks 
were filed against us and our directors by holders of PCS common stock. Seven of the lawsuits were consolidated 
in the District Court of Johnson County, Kansas. The eighth, pending in New York, was voluntarily stayed. The 
consolidated lawsuit alleged breach of fiduciary duty in connection with allocations between the wireline 
operations and the wireless operations before the recombination of the tracking stocks and breach of fiduciary 
duty in the recombination. The lawsuit was settled for an amount not material to the company, and the settlement 
was given final approval by the Court on December 12, 2007. 

In September 2004, the U.S. District Court for the District of Kansas denied a motion to dismiss a 
shareholder lawsuit alleging that our 2001 and 2002 proxy statements were false and misleading in violation of 
federal securities laws to the extent they described new employment agreements with certain senior executives 
without disclosing that, according to the allegations, replacement of those executives was inevitable. These 
allegations, made in an amended complaint in a lawsuit originally filed in 2003, are asserted against us and 
certain of our cunent and former officers and directors, and seek to recover any decline in the value of our 
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V. . . 
tracking stocks during the class period. The parties have stipulated that the case can proceed as a class action. All 
defendants have denied plaintiffs' allegations and intend to defend this matter vigorously. Allegations in the 
original complaint, which asserted claims against the same defendants and our former independent auditor, were 
dismissed by the Court in April 2004. Our motion to dismiss the amended complaint was denied, and the parties 
are engaged in discovery. 

A number of cases that allege Sprint Communications Company L.P. failed to obtain easements from 
property owners during the installation of its fiber optic network in the 1980's have been filed in various courts. 
Several of these cases sought certification of nationwide classes, and in one case, a nationwide class was 
certified. In 2003, a nationwide settlement of these claims was approved by the U.S. District Court for the 
Northern District of Illinois, but objectors appealed the preliminary approval order to the Seventh Circuit Court 
of Appeals, which overturned the settlement and remanded the case to the trial court for further proceedings. The 
parties now are proceeding with litigation and/or settlement negotiations on a state by state basis, and settiement 
negotiations have been coordinated in all cases but those pending in Louisiana and Tennessee. The Louisiana 
claims have been separately settled for an amount not material to the company, and that settiement was given 
final approval by the Court, and the time to appeal that approval has expired. In 2001, we accrued an expense 
reflecting the estimated settlement costs of these suits. 

Various other suits, proceedings and claims, including purported class actions, typical for a large business 
enterprise, are pending against us or our subsidiaries. While it is not possible to determine the ultimate 
disposition of each of these proceedings and whether they will be resolved consistent with our beliefs, we expect 
that the outcome of such proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on 
our financial condition or results of operation. 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

No matter was submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter 2007. 

Executive Officers of the Registrant 

The following people are serving as our executive officers as of February 29, 2008. These executive officers 
were elected to serve until their successors have been elected. There is no familial relationship between any of 
our executive officers and directors. 

Current 
Position 

Name Business Experience Held Since Age 

Daniel R. Hesse Chief Executive Officer and President. He was appointed Chief 2007 54 
Executive Officer, President and a member of the Board of Directors 
on December 17, 2007. He served as Chairman, President and Chief 
Executive Officer of Embarq Corporation fi'om May 2006 to December 
2007. He served as Piesident of our local telecommunications business 
from June 2005 to May 2006. He served as Chairman, President and 
Chief Executive Officer of Terabeam Corporation, a Seattle-based 
communications company, fi-om Mai'ch 2000 to June 2004. He served 
as President and Chief Executive Officer of AT&T Wireless Services, a 
division of AT&T, from 1997 to 2000. 

William G. Arendt . . . . Acting Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President & Controller. 2008 50 
He was appointed Acting Chief Financial Officer effective January 25, (with 
2008 and Senior Vice President & Controller at the time ofthe Sprint- respect 
Nextel merger in August 2005. He served as Senior Vice President of to Acting 
Nextel from February 2004 until August 2005 and as Controller of CFO) 
Nextel fi-om May 1997 until August 2005. He also served as Vice 2005 
President of Nextel from May 1997 until February 2004. 

29 



Current 
Position 

Name Business Experience Held Since Age 

Keith O. Cowan President—Strategic Planning and Corporate Initiatives. He was 2007 51 
appointed President—Strategic Planning and Corporate Initiatives in 
July 2007. He served as Executive Vice President of Genuine Parts 
Company from January 2007 to July 2007. He held several key 
positions with BellSouth Corporation from 1996 to January 2007, 
including Chief Planning and Development Officer, Chief Field 
Operations Officer, President—Marketing and Product Management 
and President—Interconnection Services. 

Robert Johnson Chief Service Officer. He was appointed Chief Service Officer in 2007 49 
October 2007. He served as President—Northeast Region from 
September 2006 to October 2007. He served as Senior Vice 
President—Consumer Sales, Service and Repair from August 2005 
to August 2006. He served as Senior Vice President—National Field 
Operations of Nextel from February 2002 to July 2005. 

Leonard J. Kennedy . . . General Counsel. He was appointed General Counsel at the time of 2005 56 
the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. He served as Senior Vice 
President and General Counsel of Nextel from January 2001 to 
August 2005, 

Richard LeFave Chief Information Officer. He was appointed Chief Information 2005 56 
Officer at the time of the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. He 
served as Senior Vice President - Chief Information Officer of 
Nextel from Februaiy 1999 to August 2005. 

Richard S. Lindahl . . . . Senior Vice President & Treasurer. He was appointed Senior Vice 2006 44 
President & Treasurer in July 2006. He served as Vice President & 
Treasurer from the time ofthe Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005 
until July 2006. He served as Vice President and Treasurer of Nextel 
from May 2002 until August 2005. He served in various capacities 
at Nextel, including Assistant Treasurer and Director—Financial 
Planning & Analysis, from August 1997 until May 2002. 

Kathryn A. Walker . . . . Chief Network Officer. She was appointed Chief Network Officer at 2005 48 
the time of the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. She served as 
our Executive Vice President—Network Services from October 
2003 to August 2005. She served as Senior Vice President— 
Network Operations of the Wireline segment from 2002 to October 
2003. She served as a Vice President in the Wireline segment from 
1998 to 2002. 

Barry West Chief Technology Officer and President-^G Mobile Broadband. 2006 62 
He was appointed President—4G Mobile Broadband effective 
August 2006. He was appointed Chief Technology Officer at the 
time of the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. He served as 
Executive Vice President and Chief Technology Officer of Nextel 
from March 1996 until August 2005. 
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V 
PART II 

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of 
Equity Securities. 

Common Share Data 

The principal trading market for our Series 1 common stock is the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE. 
Our Series 2 common stock is not publicly traded. 

2007 Market Price 

End 
of 

High Low Period 

Series 1 common stock 
First quarter $20.42 $16.93 $18.96 
Second quarter 23.42 18.89 20.71 
Third quarter 22.64 17.24 19.00 
Fourth quarter 19.70 12.96 13.13 

2006 Market Price 
End 
of 

High Low Period 

Series 1 common stock 
First quarter $26.25 $22.47 $25.84 
Second quarter 26.89 19.33 19.99 
Third quarter 20.80 15.92 17.15 
Fourth quarter 20.63 16.75 18.89 

Number of Shareholders of Record 

As of February 21, 2008, we had about 53,000 Series 1 common stock record holders, 11 Series 2 common 
stock record holders, and no non-voting common stock record holders. 

Dividends 

We paid a dividend of $0,025 per share on our outstanding common stock in each of the quarters of 2007 and 2006. 

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 

Maximum Number 
Total Number of (or Approximate 

Shares Purchased as Dollar Value) of 
Total Part of Publicly Shares that May 

Number of Average Price Announced Yet Be Purchased 
Shares Paid Plans or Under the Plans 

Period Purchased'^' per Share Programs'^' or Programs 

(in billions) 
October I through October 31 Series 1 common 

stock ~ $— — $2.5 
November I through November 30 Series 1 

common stock ~ ~ -— 2.5 
December 1 through December 31 Series 1 

common stock — — — 2.5 

Total —^ — —^ 

(/) There were no acquisitions of equity securities during the fourth quarter 2007 pursuant to our share 
repurchase program. 
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(2) On August 3, 2006, we announced timt our hoard of directors autimrized us to repurchase through open 
market purchases up to $6.0 billion of our common shares over an 18 month period that expired in famiary 
2008. As of December 31, 2007, we had repurchased $3.5 billion of our common shares at an average price 
of $18.77 per share. 

Performance Graph 

The graph below compares the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total shareholder return for our 
Series 1 common stock with the S&P® 500 Stock Index and the Dow Jones U.S. Telecommunications Index for 
the five-year period fi'om December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2007. The cumulative total shareholder return for 
our Series 1 common stock has been adjusted for the periods shown for the recombination of our EON common 
stock and PCS common stock that was effected on April 23, 2004. The graph assumes an initial investment of 
$100 in our common stock on December 31, 2002 and reinvestment of all dividends. 

The Dow Jones U.S. Telecommunications Index is cuiTently composed ofthe following companies: AT&T 
Inc., CenturyTel Inc., Cincinnati Bell Inc., Citizens Communications Co., Embarq Corporation, IDT Corp., Leap 
Wireless International Inc., Leucadia National Corp., Level 3 Communications Inc., Metro PCS 
Communications, Inc., Nil Holdings Inc., Qwest Communications International Inc., RCN Corp., Sprint Nextel 
Corporation, Telephone & Data Systems Inc., Time Warner Telecom, Inc., U.S. Cellular Corp., Verizon 
Communications Inc., Virgin Media Inc. and Windstream Corp. 

5-Year Total Return 

- D - Sprint Nextel - A - S&P 500 - Q - D o w Jones U.S. Telecom Index 
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Value of $100 Invested on December 31, 2002 

2002 

Sprint Nextel $100.00 
S&P 500 $100.00 
Dow Jones U.S. Telecom Index $100.00 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

$120.19 
$128.69 
$112.69 

$211.67 
$142.69 
$135.79 

$201.23 
$149.69 
$138.56 

$178.01 
$173.34 
$186.79 

$124.29 
$182.86 
$217.44 
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V 
Item 6. Selected Financial Data 

The 2007 and 2006 data presented below is not comparable to that of the prior periods primarily as a result 
ofthe August 2005 Sprint-Nextel merger and the Nextel Partners and the PCS Affiliate acquisitions. The 
acquired companies' financial results subsequent to their acquisition dates are included in our consolidated 
financial statements. Embarq, which was spun-off in 2006, and our directory publishing business, which was sold 
in 2003, are shown as discontinued operations for all periods presented. 

Year Ended December 31, 
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 

(in millions, except per share amounts) 
Results of Operations 

Net operating revenues $ 40,146 $41,003 $ 28,771 $21,647 $20,414 
Goodwill impairment^') 29,729 — — — — 
Depreciation 5,711 5,738 3,864 3,651 3,909 
Amortization 3,312 3,854 1,336 7 1 
Operating income (loss)0K2) (28,910) 2,484 2,141 (1,999) (729) 
Income (loss) from continuing operations(»(2) (29,580) 995 821 (2,006) (1,306) 
Discontinued operations, net — 334 980 994 2,338 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, 

net(-̂ ) — ~ (16) — 258 

Earnings (Loss) per Share and Dividends 
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share '̂'̂  

Continuing operations^ix^) $ (10.31) $ 0.34 $ 0.40 $ (1.40) $ (0.92) 
Discontinued operations ^ 0.11 0.48 0.69 1.65 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting 

principle'-^) — — (0.01) — 0.18 
Dividends per common share^ '̂ 0.10 0.10 0.30 See (5) below 

Financial Position 
Total assetsC) $ 64,109 $97,161 $102,760 $41,321 $42,675 
Property, plant and equipment, net 26,496 25,868 23,329 14,662 19,130 
Intangible assets, net̂ '* 28,096 60,057 49,307 7,809 7,788 
Total debt and capital lease obligations (including 

equity unit notes) 22,130 22,154 25,014 16,425 18,243 
Seventh series redeemable prefened shares — ~ 247 247 247 
Shareholders' equityfD 21,999 53,131 51,937 13,521 13,113 

Cash Flow Data 
Net cash from continuing operating activities $ 9,245 $10,055 $ 8,655 $ 4,478 $ 4,141 
Capital expenditures 6,322 7,556 5,057 3,980 3,797 

(1) In the fourth quarter 2007, we peiformed our annual assessment of goodwill for impainnent and recorded a 
non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $29.7 billion. Refer to note 3 ofthe Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements for additional information regarding the assessment process and charge. 

(2) In 2007, we recorded net charges of $956 million ($590 million after tax) primarily related to merger and 
integration costs, asset impairments, and severance and exit costs. In 2006, we recorded net charges of 
$620 million ($381 million after tax) primarily related to merger and integration costs, asset impairments, 
and severance and exit costs. In 2005, we recorded net charges of $723 million ($445 million after tax) 
primarily related to merger and integration costs, asset impairments, and severance and hurricane-related 
co.sts. In 2004, we recorded net charges of $3.7 billion ($2.3 billion after tax) primarily related to severance 
and Wireline network impairment, partially offset by recoveries of fully resei'ved MCI (now Verizon) 
receivables. In 2003, we recorded net charges of $1.9 billion ($1.2 billion after tax) primarily related to 
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severance, asset impairments and executive separation agreements, partially offset by recoveries of fully 
resented MCI (now Verizon) receivables. 

(3) In 2005, we recorded a cliarge of $16 million due to the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board, 
or FASB, Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations, and in 2003, we 
recorded a credit of $258 million as a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset 
Retirement Obligations. Both resulted in a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. 

(4) All per share amounts have been restated, for all periods before 2004, to reflect the recombination of our 
common stock and PCS common .stock as of the earliest period presented at an identical conversion ratio 
(0.50 shares of our common stock for each share of PCS common stock). The conversion ratio was also 
applied to dilutive PCS securities (mainly stock options, employees stock purchase plan shares, convertible 
preferred stock and restricted stock units) to determine diluted weighted average shares on a consolidated 
basis. 

(5) In the first and second quarter 2005, a dividend of$0.125 per share was paid. In the third and fourth 
quarter 2005 and for each quarter of 2006 and 2007, the dividend was $0.025 per share. Before the 
recombination of our two tracking stocks, shares of PCS common stock did not receive dividends. For each 
of the years in the hvo year period ended December 3 J, 2004, shares of our common stock (before the 
conversion of shares of PCS common stock) received dividends of $0.50 per .share. In the first quarter 2004, 
shares of our common stock received a dividend of$0.125 per .share. In the second, third and fourth quarter 
2004, shares of our common stock, which included shares resulting from the conversion of shares of PCS 
common stock, received quarterly dividends of$0.125 per share. 

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Forward-Looking Statements 

We include certain estimates, projections and other forward-looking statements in our annual, quarterly and 
cunent reports, and in other publicly available material. Statements regarding expectations, including 
performance assumptions and estimates relating to capital requirements, as well as other statements that are not 
historical facts, are forward-looking statements. 

These statements reflect management's judgments based on currently available information and involve a 
number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-
looking statements. With respect to these forward-looking statements, management has made assumptions 
regarding, among other things, customer and network usage, customer growth and retention, pricing, operating 
costs, the timing of various events and the economic and regulatory environment. 

Future performance cannot be assured. Actual results may differ materially from those in the forward-
looking statements. Some factors that could cause actual results to differ include: 

• the effects of vigorous competition, including the impact of competition on the price we are able to 
charge customers for services and equipment we provide and our ability to attract new customers and 
retain existing customers; the overall demand for our service offerings, including the impact of 
decisions of new subscribers between our post-paid and prepaid services offerings and between our two 
network platforms; and the impact of new, emerging and competing technologies on our business; 

• the impact of overall wireless market penetration on our ability to attract and retain customers with 
good credit standing and the intensified competition among wireless carriers for those customers; 

• the impact of difficulties we may continue to encounter in connection with the integration of the 
pre-merger Sprint and Nextel businesses, and the integration ofthe businesses and assets of Nextel 
Partners and the PCS Affiliates that provide wireless PCS under the Sprint® brand name, that we have 
acquired, including the risk that these difficulties may limit our ability to fully integrate the operations 
of these businesses and the risk that we will be unable to continue to retain key employees; 
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• the uncertainties related to the implementation of our business strategies, investments in our networks, 
our systems, and other businesses, including investments required in connection with our planned 
deployment of a next generation broadband wireless network; 

• the costs and business risks associated with providing new services and entering new geographic 
markets, including with respect to our development of new services expected to be provided using the 
next generation broadband wireless network that we plan to deploy; 

• the impact of potential adverse changes in the ratings afforded our debt securities by ratings agencies; 

• the effects of mergers and consolidations and new entrants in the communications industry and 
unexpected announcements or developments from others in the communications industry; 

• unexpected results of litigation filed against us; 

the inability of third parties to perform to our requirements under agreements related to our business 
operations, including a significant adverse change in the ability of any of our handset suppliers to 
provide devices, or Motorola's ability or willingness to provide related equipment and software 
applications, or to develop new technologies or features for our iDEN® network; 

• the impact of adverse network performance; 

• the costs and/or potential customer impacts of compliance with regulatory mandates, particularly 
requirements related to the reconfiguration of the 800 MHz band used to operate our iDEN network, as 
contemplated by the FCCs Report and Order released in August 2004 as supplemented by subsequent 
memoranda; 

• equipment failure, natural disasters, terrorist acts, or other breaches of network or information 
technology security; 

• one or more of the markets in which we compete being impacted by changes in political, economic or 
other factors such as monetary policy, legal and regulatory changes or other external factors over which 
we have no control; and 

• other risks referenced from time to time in this report, including in Part I, Item 1A "Risk Factors" and 
other filings of ours with the SEC. 

The words "may," "could," "estimate," "project," "forecast," "intend," "expect," "believe," "target," 
"providing guidance" and similai' expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements are found throughout this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations, and elsewhere in this report. The reader should not place undue reliance on forward-
looking statements, which speak only as ofthe date ofthis report. We are not obligated to publicly release any 
revisions to forward-looking statements to reflect events after the date ofthis report, including unforeseen events. 

Overview 

We are a global communications company offering a comprehensive range of wireless and wireline 
communications products and services that are designed to meet the needs of individual consumers, businesses 
and government customers. We have organized our operations to meet the needs of our targeted customer groups 
through focused communications solutions that incorporate the capabilities of our wireless and wireline services 
to meet their specific needs. We are one of the three largest wireless companies in the United States based on the 
number of wireless subscribers. We also are one of the largest providers of wireline long distance services and 
one of the largest carriers of Internet traffic in the nation. We own extensive wireless networks and a global long 
distance. Tier 1 Internet backbone. 

On December 17, 2007, Daniel R. Hesse joined our company as President and Chief Executive Officer. 
Senior management is currently reviewing our operations and assessing our strategies and future business plans. 
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This process is still ongoing and, depending on the outcome, our operations, future capital requirements and 
future valuation of our long-lived assets could be affected. As part of our overall business strategy, we regularly 
evaluate opportunities to strengthen our business and may at any time be discussing or negotiating a transaction 
that, if consummated, could have a material effect on our business, financial condition, liquidity or results of 
operations. As a result, the forward-looking information provided in this document is based only on information 
currently available to senior management. 

We believe the communications industry has been and will continue to be highly competitive on the basis of 
price, the types of services and devices offered and quality of service. Although we believe that many of our 
targeted customers base their purchase decisions on quality of service and the availability of differentiated 
features and services, competitive pricing, both in terms of the monthly recumng charges and the number of 
minutes or other features available under a particular rate plan, and handset offerings and pricing are often 
important factors in potential customers' purchase decisions. 

The FCC regulates the licensing, operation, acquisition and sale ofthe licensed radio spectrum that is 
essential to our business. The FCC and state Public Utilities Commissions, or PUCs, also regulate the provision 
of communications services. Future changes in regulations or legislation related to spectrum licensing or other 
matters related to our business could impose significant additional costs on us either in the form of direct 
out-of-pocket costs or additional compliance obligations 

Business Segments 

We have two reportable segments: Wireless and Wireline. See note 12 ofthe Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements for additional information on our segments. 

Wireless 

Products and Services 

Our strategy is to utilize state-of-the-art technology to provide differentiated wireless services and 
applications in order to acquire and retain high-quality wireless subscribers. We offer a wide array of wireless 
mobile telephone and wireless data transmission services on networks that utilize CDMA and iDEN technologies 
to meet the needs of individual consumers, businesses and government customers. 

Through our Wireless segment, we, together with the PCS Affiliates and resellers of our wholesale wireless 
services, offer digital wireless service in all 50 states, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands, and provide 
wireless coverage in 360 metropolitan markets, including 341 ofthe 349 largest U.S. metropolitan areas, serving 
about 54 million wireless subscribers as of December 31, 2007. We offer wireless international voice roaming for 
subscribers of both CDMA and iDEN-based services in numerous countries. Our CDMA network utilizes high­
speed evolution data optimized, or EV-DO, technology to provide high-speed data applications. We have 
incorporated EV-DO Rev. A, the most recent version of EV-DO technology that is designed to support a variety 
of IP, video and high performance walkie-talkie applications, into over 82% of our CDMA network. 

We offer a wide aiTay of wireless mobile telephone and data transmission services and features in a variety 
of pricing plans, typically on a contract basis, for one or two year periods. Services are billed on a monthly basis 
according to the applicable pricing plan, which typically includes a fixed charge for certain services and variable 
charges for other services. We also offer wireless services that focus on the youth market, including our Boost 
Mobile prepaid wireless service on our iDEN network and our Boost Unlimited '̂̂ Hocal calling wireless service 
on our CDMA network. We also offer wholesale CDMA-based wireless services to resellers, commonly known 
as MVNOs, such as Qwest Communications International, Inc., Virgin Mobile USA, Helio Inc., Movida 
Communications, Inc., and Embarq, which purchase wireless services from us at wholesale rates and resell the 
services to their customers under their own brand names. Under these MVNO aiTangements, the operators bear 
the costs of subscriber acquisition, billing and customer service. 
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We offer a broad portfolio of data services across our CDMA network, including data messaging, photo and 
video offerings, entertainment and location-based applications, marketed as Power Visions'^, and mobile 
broadband applications for laptops and other devices. 

On our iDEN network, we continue to support features and services designed to meet the needs of our 
customers. Both the Nextel and prepaid Boost Mobile brands feature our industry-leading walkie-talkie services, 
which give subscribers the ability to communicate instantiy across the continental United States and to and from 
Hawaii and, through agreements with other iDEN providers, to and from select markets in Canada, Latin 
America and Mexico, as well as a variety of digital wireless mobile telephone and wireless data transmission 
services. We offer some data services on the iDEN network, but that network does not support a full complement 
of data services and many of those services are available only with limited capabilities. 

We offer devices that operate seamlessly between our CDMA and iDEN networks^marketed as 
PowerSource'''̂ ^— t̂hat enable us to offer wireless service that combines our CDMA-based voice and data 
applications and our iDEN-based walkie-talkie applications. We are focusing our sales efforts of PowerSource 
devices on existing subscribers of certain iDEN services to offer them the benefit of higher data speeds on 
CDMA. In addition, we are also improving our product and service offerings on our iDEN network, which will 
include the introduction of several new handsets in 2008. 

We plan to utilize QUALCOMM Incoiporated's QChat® technology, which is designed to provide high 
performance walkie-talkie services on our CDMA network, and we are designing interfaces to provide for 
interoperability of walkie-talkie services on our CDMA and iDEN networks. Upon successful launch of QChat 
devices, we expect that they will succeed the PowerSource devices. Cunently, we are testing the QChat 
application on our CDMA network and our goal is to launch commercial service offerings in 2008. For 
information regarding a dispute involving the intellectual property rights of QUALCOMM that relate to QChat, 
see Item 1 A. "Risk Factors—The intellectual property rights utilized by us and our suppliers and service 
providers may infringe on intellectual property rights owned by others." 

Service Revenue 

Our Wireless segment generates revenues from the provision of wireless services, the sale of wireless 
equipment and the provision of wholesale and other services. The ability of our Wireless segment to generate 
service revenues is primarily a function ofi 

' the number of subscribers that we serve, which in turn is a function of our ability to acquire new and 
retain existing subscribers; and 

• the revenue generated from each subscriber, which in turn is a function of the types and amount of 
services utilized by each subscriber and the rates that we charge for those services. 

The declines in our subscriber base and revenue generated from each subscriber group discussed below have 
resulted in a decline in service revenue. 

Post'Paid and Prepaid Subscribers 

The wireless industry is subject to intense competition, which impacts our abihty to attract and retain 
subscribers for wireless services. Most markets in which we operate have very high rates of penetration for 
wireless services, which will limit the growth of subscribers of wireless services. Consequently, we believe that 
wireless carriers must attract a greater proportion of new subscribers from the existing customer bases of 
competitors rather than from first time purchasers of wireless services. Because of high penetration rates, first 
time purchasers of wireless services tend to have lower credit ratings or no credit history. As a result, wireless 
can iers have focused considerable efforts on the care and service of existing subscribers and retention of valued 
customers. Some of our competitors have reported significant improvements in their post-paid customer retention 
rates (i.e., rates of customer churn). The combination of decreased rates of churn of some of our competitors, 
together with a slowing in the rate of subscriber growth, has reduced the pool of potential subscribers making 
wireless service provider decisions. 
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Below is a table showing (a) net addit ions ( losses) for the past twelve quarters of direct subscribers for our i D E N and C D M A networks , excluding 

subscribers obta ined through business combinat ions , existing subscribers who have migrated between ne tworks and indirect subscribers of M V N O s and 

PCS Affiliates, (b) our total i D E N and C D M A post-paid subscribers as of each of the quarters in 2005 . 2006 and 2007 , and (c) our average rates of 

monthly post-paid and prepaid cus tomer churn for the past twelve quarters . 

Quarter Ended 

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31, 
2005 2005 2005 2005 2006 2006 2006 2006 2007 2007 2007 2007 

Net additions (losses) 
(in thousands) 

Post-paid: 
iDEN — — 136 188 72 (68) (379) (643) (744) (662) (700) (686) 
CDMA^^t 518 400 394 558 491 278 191 337 524 678 363 3 

Total 518 400 530 746 563 210 (188) (306) (220) 16 (337) (683) 

Boo.sl Mobile-branded service: 
iDEN-based prepaid — — 230 638 502 498 216 171 272 70 (57) (202) 
CDMA-ba.sed unlimited 

local calling plan — — — — — — — — 3 99 124 257 

Total — — 230 638 502 498 216 m 275 169 67 55 

End of period subscribers 
(in thousands) 

iDEN post-paid — — 16,367 16,555 16,616 18,624 18,204 17,60l(i) 16.535 15,472 14,355 13.246 
CDMA post-paid<2) 18,283 18.683 19,600 20,422 22.487 22,781 23,471 24,204(i) 25,050 26,129 27.079 27,505 

Total post-paid 18.283 18.683 35,967 36,977 39.103 41,405 41,675 41,805 41,585 41,601 41,434 40,751 

Boost Mobile prepaid — — 1,987 2.625 3.127 3,625 3,841 4,012 4.284 4,354 4,297 4,095 
Boost Mobile unlimited local 

calling plan — — — — — — — — 3 102 226 483 

Total prepaid — — 1.987 2,625 3.127 3,625 3,841 4,012 4,287 4.456 4,523 4,578 

Monthly customer churn rate 
Direct post-paid'^) 2.5% 2.2% 2.2% 2.1% 2.1% 2.1% 2.4% 2.3% 2.3% 2.0% 2.3% 2.3% 
Direct prepaid — — 3.5% 4.6% 5.4% 6.0% 6.8% 6.5% 7.0% 6.8% 6.2% 7.5% 

(/) In the fourth quarter 2006, we duinged our subscriber deactivation policy for post-paid subscribers to provide us additional time to retain subscribers who were subject to 
deactivation due to late payment. To effect this change, the subscriber base as of October I, 2006 was increased by 436,000 subscribers. We adjusted our subscriber beginning 
balance so as to not increase our direct net subscriber additions or decrease the customer churn rates for thej'ourth quarter 2006 due to this policy change. 

(2) Includes subscribers with PowerSource devices, introduced in the fourth quarter 2006. 
(3) During the third quarter 2007, we implemented an additional churn rule to remove the impact of activations and deactivations occurring within 30 days in the .same account. The 

new rule, which we believe presents a more precise churn calculation, reduced churn by 10 basis points to 2.3% in the third quarter 2007. The additional churn rule did not 
impact reported net additions or results of operations. Prior period churn figures have not been adjusted for this additional churn rule. 



During 2007, we endeavored to retain subscribers and attract new subscribers by improving our customer care and 
sales and distribution functions. In addition, we took other actions in an effort to improve our customers' experience 
including improving our network performance by adding cell sites to expand the coverage and capacity of our networks, 
enhancing our brand awareness by increased media spending, and broadening our handset portfolio primarily through the 
introduction of new CDMA and PowerSource handsets. 

We added about 1.6 million net post-paid subscribers on the CDMA network in 2007; however, we have experienced 
a continued decline in the number of new post-paid CDMA subscribers in the fourth quarter 2007. Competitive marketing 
conditions including increased advertising and promotions by our competitors have contributed to the decline in the 
number of new customers. Earlier in the year, we adjusted our credit policy in certain markets in an effort to attract new 
subscribers. In late 2007, we adjusted our credit policies and returned to policy standards similar to those in mid 2006, 
which also contributed to the decline in subscriber additions on our CDMA platform in the fourth quarter 2007. We 
contiiuiaily monitor and adjust our credit policies in an effort to attract desirable and profitable customers, including our 
lower credit quality customers. Our ratio of subscribers with a subprime credit rating to those with a prime credit rating 
has decreased slightly from the fourth quarter 2006. Refer to "—Results of Operations—Segment Results of Operations— 
Wireless—Wireless Segment Earnings" below for a discussion of subscriber trends. 

We have experienced declines in the number of new iDEN post-paid subscribers in recent quarters and we lost about 
2.8 million net post-paid subscribers on this network during 2007. Consumer sentiment regarding the iDEN network, 
reduced marketing programs and limited new handset offerings at higher than market prices have all contributed to the 
decline in new iDEN customers. 

We calculate churn by dividing net subscriber deactivations for the quarter by the sum ofthe average number of 
subscribers for each month in the quarter. Net subscriber deactivations are used in the numerator ofthe churn calculation. 
For accounts comprised of multiple subscribers, such as family plans and enterprise accounts, net deactivations are 
defined as deactivations in excess of customer activations in a particular account within 30 days. Post-paid churn consists 
of both voluntary churn, where the subscriber makes his or her own determination to cease being a customer, and 
involuntary churn, where we terminate the customer's service due to a lack of payment or other reasons. Involuntary 
deactivations represent slightly over half of all deactivations on our CDMA network in 2007. Although overall post-paid 
churn was relatively flat in 2007 as compared to 2006, post-paid churn on our iDEN platform increased, which was offset 
by reduced post-paid churn on our CDMA platform. Voluntary churn on the iDEN network has been adversely impacted 
by customer sentiment related to: the network, limited handset offerings at higher than market prices, and customer care 
experience. Our overall 2007 post-paid churn remains high relative to that of our competitors for the same reasons. 
Prepaid subscriber churn increased as compared to 2006, primarily due to competition in our prepaid and youth markets 
from new entrants. Refer to "—Results of Operations—Segment Results of Operations—Wireless—Wireless Segment 
Earnings" below for a discussion of churn trends. 

Average Revenue per Subscriber 

Below is a table showing our average revenue per post-paid and prepaid subscriber for the past twelve quarters. 

Quarlcr Ended 

March .^I, June 30, September 30, December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31, 
2005 2005 20Q5 2005 2006 2006 2006 2006 2007 20O7 2007 2007 

Average monthly service 
revenue per user 

Dircci posl^paid $ 6 1 S 62 363 S63 $62 $62 S61 S60 $59 $60 S59 S58 
Dircci prepnid — — $37 S37 S36 $34 S33 $32 $32 S31 S30 $28 

Average monthly service revenue per subscriber for the quarter is calculated by dividing our quarterly service 
revenue by the sum of our average number of subscribers for each month in the quarter. Changes in average monthly post­
paid service revenue are due to changes in the rate plans we offer and usage of our service and applications by subscribers. 
The decline in our average monthly voice revenue is primarily due to the loss of subscribers with higher priced service 
plans, while new subscribers and the subscribers acquired from the PCS Affiliates have lower priced service plans. In 
addition, the decline is partly attributable to the migration of our existing customers to family add-on plans or plans that 
include roaming in their service plan, as well as increased sales to businesses and the government, which receive favorable 
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volume-based pricing. In addition to our standard voice plans, we offer data plans or add on plans that provide 
our customers offerings such as short message service, or SMS, connection cards and our Sprint Vision and 
Power Vision service plan. As these products and services are becoming increasingly popular with our 
customers, the decline in the average voice revenue per subscriber is being partially offset by an increase in the 
average data revenue per post-paid subscriber. There is no assurance that data service revenue per subscriber will 
continue to grow at cunent rates or eventually offset the declines in voice revenue. 

Segment Earnings 

Wireless segment earnings is primarily a function of wireless service revenue, costs to acquire subscribers, 
network and interconnection costs to serve those subscribers and other Wireless segment operating expenses. The 
costs to acquire our customers includes the net cost at which we sell our handsets, refened to as handset 
subsidies, as well as the marketing and sales costs incuned to attract those customers. Network costs primarily 
represent switch and cell site costs and interconnection costs generally consist of per-minute use fees and 
roaming fees paid to other carriers. The remaining costs associated with operating the Wireless segment include 
the costs to operate our customer care organization, back office support and bad debt expense. Wireless service 
revenue, costs to acquire subscribers, and network and interconnection costs are generally variable in nature and 
fluctuate with the growth in our subscriber base but certain elements are fixed. 

800 Megahertz Spectrum Reconfiguration 

Under the FCCs Report and Order, we are required to complete a reconfiguration plan that is designed to 
eliminate interference with public safety operators in the 800 MHz spectrum band through a spectrum 
reallocation that will result in more efficient use of 800 MHz spectrum. For a more detailed discussion ofthe 
Report and Order and its impact on us, see Item I. Business-Legislative and Regulatory Developments— 
Regulations and Wireless Operations-800 MHz Band Spectrum Reconfiguration. 

The Report and Order implemented rules to reconfigure spectrum in the 800 MHz band in a 36-month 
phased transition process. We sun-endered certain portions of our holdings in the 800 MHz spectrum band and 
are obligated to fund the cost incuned by public safety systems and other incumbent licensees to reconfigure the 
800 MHz spectrum band. As part of this process, in most markets, we must cease using portions of 800 MHz 
spectrum during the reconfiguration before we are able to commence use of replacement 800 MHz spectrum. 
Based on the terms of the Report and Order and subsequent FCC and 800 MHz Transition Administrator, or TA, 
actions, we have been planning and implementing spectrum exchanges with each affected public safety agency 
based upon that agency's ability to complete the reconfiguration process, thereby limiting the time from when we 
cease using the stiiTcndered spectrum and when the replacement spectrum is available for our use. In 
September 2007, the FCC issued an order, the Third MO&O, that, among other things, requires that by June 2008 
we vacate many 800 MHz channels that we currentiy use, even if the applicable public safety licensee is not 
ready to relocate to the vacated spectrum, which could result in a sudden and significant decrease in network 
capacity, which in turn would adversely affect the performance of our iDEN network. We have appealed this 
order in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit. 

If this order is not overturned or modified, we could attempt to construct additional sites or acquire 
additional spectrum, to the extent possible. In those markets where these network investments are not possible, 
we may be required to curtail subscriber additions and incent certain existing subscribers of iDEN services to use 
PowerSource devices or move to our CDMA network until the capacity limitation can be alleviated, particularly 
if tlie replacement 800 MHz spectrum is not available for an extended length of time. Degradation in network 
performance in any market could resuh in higher subscriber churn in that market. The loss of a significant 
niunber of subscribers could adversely affect our results of operations. 

Based on the FCCs determination of the values ofthe spectrum rights received and suiTcndered, the 
minimum obligation to be ineuired under the Report and Order is $2.8 billion. The Report and Order also 
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provides that qualifying costs we incur as part of the reconfiguration plan, including costs to reconfigure our own 
infrastructure and spectrum positions, can be used to offset the minimum obligation of $2.8 billion; however, we 
are obligated to pay the full amount of the costs relating to the reconfiguration plan, even if those costs exceed 
that amount. 

In addition, a financial reconciliation is required to be completed at the end ofthe reconfiguration 
implementation to determine whether the value of the spectrum rights received exceeds the total of (i) the value 
of spectrum rights that are suiTcndered and (ii) the qualifying costs referred to above. If so, we will be required to 
pay the difference to the U.S. Treasury, as described above. Based on the FCCs determination of the values of 
the spectrum rights received and surrendered by Nextel, the minimum obligation to be incurred under the Report 
and Order is $2.8 billion. The Report and Order also provides that qualifying costs we incur as part ofthe 
reconfiguration plan, including costs to reconfigure our own infrastructure and spectrum positions, can be used to 
offset the minimum obligation of $2.8 billion; however, we are obligated to pay the full amount ofthe costs 
relating to the reconfiguration plan, even if those costs exceed that amount. From the inception ofthe program 
and through December 31, 2007, we have incuned approximately $1.1 billion of costs directly attributable to the 
spectrum reconfiguration program. This amount does not include any of our internal network costs that we have 
preliminarily allocated to the reconfiguration program for capacity sites and modifications for which we may 
request credit under the reconfiguration program. If we are successful in our appeal of the Third MO&O, we 
estimate, based on our experience to date with the reconfiguration program and on information cunently 
available, that our total direct costs attributable to complete the spectrum reconfiguration will range between $2.7 
billion and $3.4 billion. This estimate is dependent on significant assumptions including the final licensee costs, 
and costs associated with relocating licensees in the Canadian and Mexican border regions for which there ai'e 
cunently no approved border plans. In addition, the above range does not include any of our apportioned internal 
network costs. Actual results could differ from such estimates. In addition, we are entitled to receive 
reimbursement from the mobile-satellite service licensees for their pro rata portion of our costs of clearing a 
portion ofthe 1.9 GHz spectrum. Those licensees may be unable or unwilling to reimburse us for their share of 
the costs, which we estimate to be approximately $200 million. If we are unsuccessful in our appeal ofthe Third 
MO&O, we anticipate that our costs could exceed $3.4 billion by an amount that would likely be material. 
However, we believe that it is unlikely we will be required to make a payment to the U.S. Treasury. 

As required under the terms of the Report and Order, we delivered a $2.5 billion letter of credit to provide 
assurance that funds will be available to pay the relocation costs ofthe incumbent users ofthe 800 MHz 
spectrum. Although the Report and Order provides for the possibility of periodic reductions in the amount ofthe 
letter of credit, no reductions have been requested or made as of December 31, 2007. 

Wireline 

Through our Wireline segment, we provide a broad suite of wireline voice and data communications 
services targeted to domestic business customers, multinational corporations and other communications 
companies. These services include domestic and international data communications using various protocols, such 
as MPLS technologies, IP, asynchronous transfer mode, or ATM, frame relay, managed network services and 
voice services. We also provide services to the cable MSOs that resell our local and long distance service or use 
our back office systems and network assets in support of their telephone service provided over cable facilities 
primarily to residential end-user customers. We are one of the nation's largest providers of long distance services 
and operate all-digital long distance and Tier 1 IP networks. 

For several years, our long distance voice services have experienced an industry-wide trend of lower 
revenue from lower prices and competition from other wireline and wireless communications companies, as well 
as cable MSOs and Internet service providers. Growth in voice services provided by cable MSOs is accelerating 
as consumers use cable MSOs as alternatives to local and long distance voice communications providers. We 
continue to assess the portfolio of services provided by our Wireline segment and are focusing our efforts on 
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IP-based services and de-emphasizing stand-alone voice services and non-IP-based data services. For example, in 
addition to increased emphasis on selling IP and managed services, we are converting existing customers from 
ATM and frame relay to more advanced IP technologies. This conversion has and will continue to result in 
decreases in revenue from frame relay and ATM service offset by increases in IP and MPLS services. We also 
are taking advantage of the growth in voice services provided by cable MSOs, by providing large cable MSOs 
with wholesale voice local and long distance, which they offer as part oftheir bundled service offerings, as well 
as traditional voice and data services for their enterprise use. 

WiMAX Initiative 

We plan to deploy a next generation broadband wireless network that will be designed to provide 
significantly higher data transport speeds using our spectrum holdings in the 2.5 gigahertz, or GHz, band and 
technology based on the Worldwide Inter-Operability for Microwave Access, or WiMAX, standard. We are 
designing this network to support a wide range of high-speed IP-based wireless services in a mobile environment. 
Our initial plans contemplate deploying the new network and introducing commercial service offerings in 
Chicago, Baltimore and Washington, DC in mid-2008. We are exploring strategic initiatives and third party and 
other financing alternatives related to this initiative. In 2007, operating expenses related to this initiative totaled 
$193 million and capital expenditures totaled $384 million. Deployment ofthis network will continue to require 
capital resources, without any meaningful revenues, for the foreseeable future. 

Results of Operations 

We present consolidated information, as well as separate supplemental financial information for our two 
reportable segments, Wireless and Wireline. The disaggregated financial results for our two reportable segments 
have been prepared in a manner that is consistent with the basis and manner in which our executives evaluate 
segment performance and make resource allocation decisions. Consequentiy, segment earnings is defined as 
wireless or wireline operating income before other segment expenses, such as depreciation, amortization, 
severance, exit costs, asset impairments and other, goodwill impairment, and merger and integration expenses 
solely and directly attributable to the segment. Expenses and income items excluded from segment earnings are 
managed at the coiporate level. Merger and integration expenses are generally non-recuning in nature and 
primarily include costs for the launch of common customer interfacing systems, processes and other integration 
and planning activities, certain costs to provide wireless devices that operate seamlessly between the CDMA and 
iDEN networks, certain customer care costs, costs to retain employees, costs related to re-branding, and other 
integration costs. See note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on 
our segments. For reconciliations of segment earnings to the closest generally accepted accounting principles 
measure, operating income, see tables set forth in "—Wireless" and "—Wireline" below. We generally account 
for transactions between segments based on fully distributed costs, which we believe approximate fair value. In 
certain transactions, pricing is set using market rates. 

Consolidated 

Our consolidated and wireless results of operations include the results of the merged and acquired 
companies from either the date of merger/acquisition or the start of the month closest to the acquisition date. As 
such, the results of merged and acquired companies are included as of the following dates: Nextel 
Communications and US Unwired from August 12, 2005; Gulf Coast Wireless Limited Paitnership from 
October 1, 2005; IWO Holdings, Inc. from November 7, 2005; Enterprise Communications Partnership and 
Alamosa Holdings, Inc. from February 1, 2006; Nextel Partners and UbiquiTel Inc. from July 1, 2006 and 
Northern PCS Services, LLC from August 1, 2007. The results of Velocita Wireless Holding Corporation are 
included from the date of acquisition, March I, 2006, through the date of sale, June 27, 2007. For further 
information on business combinations, see note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. These 
transactions affect the comparability of our reported operating results with other periods. 

42 



On May 17, 2006, we spun-off to our shareholders our local communications business, which is now known 
as Embarq Corporation and is comprised primarily of what was our local wireline communications segment prior 
to the spin-off. As a result ofthe spin-off, we no longer own any interest in Embarq. The results of Embarq for 
periods prior to the spin-off are presented as discontinued operations. The following table summarizes our 
consolidated results of operations. 

Year Ended December 31, 
2007 2006 2005 

(in millions) 

Net operating revenues $ 40,146 $41,003 $28,771 
Goodwill impainnent 29,729 — — 
Income (loss) from continuing operations (29,580) 995 821 
Discontinued operations, net — 334 980 
Net income (loss) (29,580) 1,329 1,785 

Net operating revenues decreased about 2% in 2007 as compared to 2006, reflecting the decrease in 
revenues from our Wireless segment, principally due to the decrease in wireless equipment revenue, and 
increased 43% in 2006 as compared to 2005, primarily as a result ofthe business combinations, partially offset 
by declining revenues of our Wireline segment. For additional information, see "—Segment Results of 
Operations" below. 

Income from continuing operations decreased to a loss of $29.6 billion in 2007, compared to income of 
$995 million in 2006, primarily due to the goodwill impairment charge of $29.7 billion. Income from continuing 
operations increased to $995 million in 2006, as compared to income of $821 million in 2005, primarily due to 
revenue growth as a result of the business combinations described above, partially offset by increases to cost of 
service primarily due to higher volume in roaming and interconnection expenses. For additional information, see 
"̂ — Ŝegment Results of Operations" and "-—Consolidated Information" below. 

In 2007, we incuned a net loss of $29.6 billion as compared to net income of $1.3 billion in 2006, due to the 
reasons stated above and the absence of income from discontinued operations in 2007. Net income decreased to 
$1.3 billion in 2006 as compared to net income of $1.8 billion in 2005 primarily as a result of the Embarq spin­
off. For additional information, see "—Segment Results of Operations" and "—Consolidated Information" 
below. 

Presented below are results of operations for our Wireless and Wireline segments, followed by a discussion 
of consolidated information. 
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Segment Results of Operations 

Wireless 

Year Ended December 31, Change from Previous Year 

2007 2006 2005 2007 vs 2006 2006 vs 2005 

(in millions) 

Service $ 31,044 $ 31,059 $19,289 0% 61% 
Wholesale, affiliate and other 1,061 870 908 22% (4)% 

Total services revenue 32,105 31,929 20,197 1% 58% 
Cost of services*!) (8,612) (8,058) (5,419) 7% 49% 

Service gross margin $ 23,493 $23,871 $14,778 (2)% 62% 

Service gross margin percentage 73% 75% 73% 
Equipment revenue $ 2,595 $ 3,172 $ 2,129 (18)% 49% 
Cost of products'•> (5,023) (4,927) (3,272) 2% 51% 

Equipment net subsidy $ (2,428) $ (1,755) $(1,143) 38% 54% 

Equipment net subsidy percentage (94)% (55)% (54)% 
Selling, general and administrative expense^' . . . . $(11,151) $(10,438) $(6,703) 7% 56% 

Wireless segment earnings 9,914 11,678 6,932 (15)% 68% 
Merger and integration expenses*'̂  (344) (191) — 80% NM 
Severance, exit costs, asset impairments and other, 

nett2) (394) (179) (105) 120% 70% 
Goodwill impairment*^ '̂ (29,729) — — NM NM 
Depreciation'^) (5,175) (5,232) (3,364) (1)% 56% 
Amortization<2) (3,310) (3,854) (1,335) (14)% 189% 
Wireless operating income (loss) (29,038) 2,222 2,128 NM 4% 

NM—Not Meaningful 

(1) Merger and integration expetises are discussed in the Consolidated Information section. These amounts 
include $63 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, which has been reclassified from the Corporate 
segment as these expenses are .solely and directly attributable to the Wireless segment. 

(2) Severance, exit costs, asset impairments, depreciation and amortization are discussed in the Consolidated 
Information section. Other expense, net includes net costs associated with the exit of a non-core line of 
business, and for the year ended December 31, 2007 includes charges associated with legal contingencies 
and insurance recoveries. 

(3) During 2007, we recognized a $29.7 billion non-cash impairment charge to goodwill related to the Wireless 
segment, which is recorded as a component of operating income. Goodwill impairment is further discussed 
in the Consolidated Information section. 

Service Revenue 

Service revenues consist of fixed monthly recurring charges, variable usage charges and miscellaneous fees 
such as activation fees, directory assistance, operator-assisted calling, equipment protection, late payment and 
early termination charges and certain regulatory related fees. Service revenue totaled $31.0 billion in 2007, 
$31.1 billion in 2006 and $19.3 billion in 2005. 
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V . 

The following is a summary of our average subscribers and average revenue per subscriber for the years 
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. The number of subscribers impacts service revenues, cost of service 
and bad debt expense, as well as support costs, such as customer care and billing, which are included in general 
and administrative expenses. A summary of changes in net additions to subscribers and average monthly revenue 
per subscriber for each of the last three years may be found on pages 38 and 39. 

Year Ended December 31, Change from Previous Year 

2007 2006 2005 2007 vs 2006 2006 vs 2005 

(subscribers in thousands) 

Average post-paid subscribers*iH2) 41,454 40,319 25,185 1,135 15,134 
Average prepaid subscribers 4,391 3,461 829 930 2,632 

Average monthly service revenue per user: 
Direct post-paid $ 59 $ 61 $ 63 $ (2) $ (2) 
Direct prepaid 30 33 37 (3) (4) 
Average direct post and prepaid 56 59 62 (3) (3) 

(1) Average subscribers represent the weighted average number of direct subscribers included in our customer 
base during the period, including subscribers added through acquisitions, net of deactivated subscribers. 

(2) The a verage subscribers for the year ended December 31, 2007 are inclusive of 170,000 subscribers 
acquired through our 2007 acquisition of Northern PCS, compared to 4,156,000 subscribers acquired 
through our 2006 acquisitions of certain PCS Affiliates and Nextel Partners, and 17,989,000 and 860,000 
subscribers acquired through the 2005 Sprint-Nextel tnerger and the acquisitions of certain PCS Affiliates. 

Service revenues decreased $15 million or less than 1% in 2007 as compared to 2006, due to: 

• a decrease of approximately $220 million in service revenue from our direct post-paid subscribers. This 
decrease is due primarily to a decline in average monthly service revenue per post-paid user, 
attributable to a decrease in the average monthly voice revenue per post-paid user, which is only 
partially offset by an increase in the average monthly data revenue per post-paid user. This decline is 
partially offset by an increase in revenue attributable to the increase in the weighted average number of 
direct post-paid subscribers; 

offset by 

• a net increase of approximately $205 million in service revenue from our prepaid subscribers. This 
increase is due primarily to an increase in the average number of direct prepaid subscribers, partially 
offset by a decline in average monthly service revenue per prepaid subscriber. 

Service revenues increased $11.8 billion or 61% in 2006 as compared to 2005, due to: 

• a net increase of approximately $10.8 billion in service revenue from our direct post-paid subscribers, 
due primarily to an increase in the average number of direct post-paid subscribers, most of which were 
acquired in the Sprint-Nextel merger; and 

' a net increase of approximately $ 1.0 billion in service revenue from our prepaid subscribers, due 
primarily to an increase in the average number of direct prepaid subscribers, most of which were 
acquired in the Sprint-Nextel merger. 

The net increase in post-paid subscribers is a function of several factors. We believe that other than the 
subscribers acquired through business combinations, new subscribers are attracted to our differentiated products 
and services, particularly CDMA-based data-related services, including those available under our Sprint Power 
Vision service plans, and other non-voice services. Within our existing customer base in 2007, 1.6 million 
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subscribers, including over 400,000 subscribers in the fourth quarter, transfeiTcd from our iDEN subscriber base 
to take advantage of these products and services, which include data cards, downloading music, global 
positioning satellite, or GPS, enabled navigation services, instant messaging and emails, sending and receiving 
pictures, playing on-line games, browsing the Internet wirelessly, and with our PowerSource handsets, using 
CDMA-based voice and data applications and our iDEN-based walkie-talkie applications. Offsetting the increase 
in CDMA subscribers, we have also experienced a continued decline in iDEN subscribers in addition to those 
that transferred from the iDEN subscriber base to the CDMA subscriber base. We believe that this decline was 
due in part to customer sentiment related to: the network, limited handset offerings at higher than market prices 
and customer care experience. See subscriber trends discussed in "—Wireless Segment Earnings" below. 

The average monthly service revenue per post-paid subscriber generally decreased year over year due 
primarily to declines in voice revenue per subscriber. This decline is primarily due to the loss of subscribers with 
higher priced service plans, while new subscribers and the subscribers acquired from the PCS Affiliates have 
lower priced service plans. In addition, the decline is partly attributable to the migration of our existing 
customers to family add-on plans or plans that include roaming in their service plan, as well as increased sales to 
businesses and the government, which receive favorable volume-based pricing. This decline in the average voice 
revenue per subscriber is partially offset by an increase in the average data revenue per post-paid subscriber, 
which is attributable to our CDMA-based data offerings such as short message service, or SMS, connection cards 
and our Sprint Vision and Power Vision service plans. The decrease in the average monthly service revenue per 
prepaid subscriber in the year ended December 31, 2007 is due in part to a decrease in usage of wireless services 
by our existing customers. See average monthly service revenue per post-paid subscriber trends discussed in 
"—Wireless Segment Earnings" below. 

Wholesale, Affiliate and Other Revenue 

Wholesale, affiliate and other revenues consist primarily of revenues from the sale of wireless services to 
companies that resell those services to their subscribers and net revenues retained from wireless subscribers 
residing in PCS Affiliate territories. Wholesale, affiliate and other revenues increased 22% in 2007 as compared 
to 2006 primarily due to increases in our wholesale operators' subscribers. Wholesale, affiliate and other 
revenues decreased 4% in 2006 as compared to 2005 primarily due to the PCS Affiliate acquisitions. In 2007, 
wholesale subscriber additions were 1.3 million, resulting in about 7.7 million wholesale subscribers at 
December 31, 2007, compared to about 6.4 million wholesale subscribers at December 31, 2006 and 5.2 million 
wholesale subscribers at December 31, 2005. 

Cost of Services 

Cost of services consists primarily ofi 

• costs to operate and maintain our CDMA and iDEN networks, including direct switch and cell site 
costs, such as rent, utilities, maintenance, payroll costs associated with our network engineering 
employees and frequency leasing costs; 

• fixed and variable interconnection costs, the fixed component of which consists of monthly flat-rate 
fees for facilities leased from local exchange caniers based on the number of cell sites and switches in 
service in a particular period and the related equipment installed at each site, and the variable 
component of which generally consists of per-minute use fees charged by wireline and wireless 
providers for calls terminating on their networks, which fluctuates in relation to the level and duration 
of those terminating calls; 

• long distance costs paid to the wireline business; 

• costs to service and repair handsets and activate service for new subscribers; 
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• roaming fees paid to other carriers; and 

• variable costs relating to payments to third parties for the use of their proprietary data applications, 
such as ringers, games, music, TV and navigation by our customers. 

Cost of services increased 7% in 2007 as compared to 2006 primarily due to increased costs relating to the 
expansion of our network and increased minutes of use on our networks. Specifically, we experienced: 

• an increase in roaming expenses, primarily with respect to subscribers of our CDMA services, due to 
increased data and voice usage outside of our CDMA network; and 

• an increase in cell site and switch-related operational costs, including increases in rent and fixed and 
variable interconnection costs due to the increase in usage, number of cell sites and related equipment 
in service. 

Cost of services increased 49% in 2006 as compared to 2005, primarily due to increased costs resulting from 
the Sprint-Nextel merger. 

Service gross margin declined 2% in 2007 as compared to 2006 and increased 62% in 2006 as compared to 
2005, due to the reasons described above. As a percentage of total service revenue, service gross margin 
decreased slightly to 73% in 2007 fi-om 75% in 2006 and 73% in 2005. 

Equipment Revenue 

We recognize equipment revenue when title to the handset or accessory passes to the dealer or end-user 
customer. We reduce equipment revenue for certain payments to third-party dealers, which reimburse the dealer 
for point of sale discounts that are offered to the end-user subscriber. Revenues from sales of handsets and 
accessories decreased 18% in 2007 as compared to 2006, primarily due to a decrease in the average sales price of 
handsets due to more aggressive acquisition and retention handset pricing, which was only slightly offset by an 
increase in the number of handsets sold. Revenues from sales of handsets and accessories increased 49% in 2006 
as compared to 2005, primarily due to additional handsets sold due to the Sprint-Nextel merger and the PCS 
Affiliate and Nextel Partners acquisitions. 

Cost of Products 

We recognize the cost of handsets and accessories when title to the handset or accessory passes to the dealer 
or end-user customer. Cost of handsets and accessories also includes order fulfillment related expenses and write­
downs of handset and related accessory inventory for shrinkage and obsolescence. The cost of handsets is 
reduced by any rebates that we earn fi*om the supplier. Handset and accessory costs increased 2% in 2007 as 
compared to 2006 due to the increase in the number of handsets sold and an increase in the average cost ofthe 
units sold as we continue to sell higher priced units with more functionality. Handset and accessory costs 
increased 51% in 2006 as compared to 2005 primarily due to additional handsets sold due to the Sprint-Nextel 
merger and the PCS Affiliate and Nextel Partners acquisitions. 

Subsidy 

Our marketing plans assume that handsets typically will be sold at prices below our cost, which is consistent 
with industry practice. Our subscriber retention efforts often include providing incentives to customers such as 
offering new handsets at discounted prices. Handset costs in excess of the revenues generated from handset sales 
(referred to in our industry as subsidy) as a percentage of equipment revenues increased to 94% in 2007 from 
55% in 2006 and 54% in 2005, as a result of efforts to promote the acquisition of new and retention of existing 
subscribers. 
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Selling, General and Administrative Expense 

Sales and marketing costs primarily consist of customer acquisition costs, including commissions paid to 
our indirect dealers, third-party distributors and direct sales force for new handset activations and upgrades, 
residual payments to our indirect dealers, payroll and facilities costs associated with our direct sales force, retail 
stores and marketing employees, advertising, media programs and sponsorships, including costs related to 
branding. General and administrative expenses primarily consist of costs for billing, customer care and 
information technology operations, bad debt expense and back office suppoit activities, including collections, 
legal, finance, human resources, strategic planning and technology and product development. 

Sales and marketing expense increased about 9% in 2007 from 2006 as compared to an increase of 47% in 
2006 from 2005. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we experienced increased advertising expense, 
reflecting our renewed focus on promoting our brand in an effort to gain market share by attracting new 
subscribers and continuing to build loyalty among existing subscribers, and we increased compensation of our 
post-paid third-party dealers for both new subscriber additions and upgrades. 

General and administrative costs increased about 5% in 2007 from 2006 as compared to an increase of 67% 
in 2006 from 2005, primarily due to increases in bad debt expense resulting from higher average write-offs per 
account and increases in customer care costs due to higher call volumes and additional customer care 
representatives. These costs were partially offset by decreases in IT and billing costs due to application 
rationalization, including financial reporting and billing system consolidations. 

Bad debt expense increased $262 million in 2007 to $896 million, as compared to a $168 million increase in 
2006 to $634 million. The 2007 increase was primarily the result of higher average write-offs per account, which 
accounted for about 77% of the increase in bad debt. Increases in the average write-offs per account can be 
attributed to a higher number of subscribers per account, increased add-a-phone activity, increased incidence of 
overages, increased fees related to data services and increased credit extended in early 2007 and 2006. The 2006 
increase is primarily attributable to the increase in the number of subscribers, including subscribers acquired 
through acquisitions, and an increase in involuntary churn. 

Wireless Segment Earnings 

Wireless segment earnings decreased about $1.8 billion or 15% in 2007 from 2006 primarily due to 
increases in costs to acquire our subscribers, due to lower equipment revenue, and increases in network and 
interconnection costs. Wireless segment earnings increased $4.7 billion or 68% in 2006 from 2005, primarily due 
to increased revenue resulting from additional subscribers acquired in connection with the Sprint-Nextel merger 
and the PCS Affiliate and Nextel Partners acquisitions. 

Based on information cunently available to management, we expect to experience continued downward 
pressure on Wireless segment earnings in the near term, including a significant reduction in the first quarter 2008 
as compared to our Wireless segment earnings of about $2.2 billion in the fourth quarter 2007. Specifically, we 
expect service revenue to continue to decline in the near term due to expected declines in the number of new 
subscribers and increases in churn including churn on our CDMA network for the reasons discussed on page 39, 
as well as a decline in our average monthly service revenue per user as growth from our data services is expected 
to only partially offset declines in voice services. In addition, because we plan to lower the prices of certain 
handset devices, our equipment net subsidy may increase, which could increase the overall cost to acquire 
subscribers. Although management has implemented a program designed to rationalize our cost structure by 
reducing our workforce, decreasing the number of external contractors and eliminating poor performing 
distribution points, we do not expect that these cost reductions will offset the expected service revenue declines 
and increases in net equipment subsidy described above. See "—Forward-Looking Statements." 
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Wireline 

Year Ended December 31, Change from Previous Year 
2007 2006 2005 2007 vs 2006 2006 vs 2005 

(in millions) 
Voiced) $ 3,509 $ 3,769 $ 4,120 (7)% (9)% 
Data 1,210 1,432 1,620 (16)% (12)% 
IntenietC) 1,575 1,143 829 38% 38% 
Other 169 216 249 (22)% (13)% 

Total net services revenue 6,463 6,560 6,818 (1)% (4)% 
Costs of services and products (4,446) (4,491) (4,386) (1)% 2% 

Service gross margin $ 2,017 $ 2,069 $ 2,432 (3)% (15)% 

Service gross margin percentage 31% 32% 36% 
Selling, general and administrative expense $ (943) $(1,078) $(1,398) (13)% (23)% 

Wireline segment earnings 1,074 991 1,034 8% (4)% 
Severance, exit costs, asset impairments and 

other(2) (42) (31) (30) 35% 3% 
Depreciation and amortization^^) (534) (506) (499) 6% 1% 
Wireline operating income 498 454 505 10% (10)% 

(!) 2006 figures include a reclassification of VoIP revenues from voice to internet of $209 million, as the cable 
product was supported by the IP platform. 

(2) Severance, exit costs and asset impairments and depreciation and amortization are discussed in the 
Consolidated Information section. Other expense includes charges associated with legal contingencies for 
the year ended December 31, 2007. 

Total Net Services Revenues 

Total net services revenues decreased 1% in 2007 as compared to 2006 and decreased 4% in 2006 as compared 
to 2005, primarily as a result of a lower priced product mix, as well as volume decreases associated with the 
reduction in our customer base, which is a result of our exit from several businesses described below. This decrease 
was partially offset by a higher volume of minutes in our affiliate business and growth in our VoIP business. 

Voice Revenues 

Voice revenues decreased 7% in 2007 as compared to 2006 and decreased 9% in 2006 as compared to 2005. 
The 2007 decrease was primarily a result of certain business customers that were transferred to Embarq as part of 
the spin-off in the second quarter 2006, as well as a decrease in our customer base and continued price declines. 
Also contributing to the decrease is the loss of conference line customers due to the final transition of those 
activities in the third quarter 2006 as part ofthe sale of that business. The 2006 decrease also reflects the sale of 
our unbundled network element platform, or UNE-P, customers in the first quarter 2006. 

Our retail business experienced a decrease in voice revenues of 22% in 2007 as compared to 2006, and a 
decrease of 25% in 2006 as compared to 2005. The 2007 decrease was primarily due to the loss of accounts related 
to the Embarq spin-off, the sale of our conference line business and lower prices. The 2006 decrease was primarily 
due to increased competition, which resulted in lower prices per minute notwithstanding increased minute volumes. 
Our business trends continue to shift away from the retail business and toward the wholesale business. 

Voice revenues related to our wholesale business increased 1% in 2007 as compared to 2006 and increased 
about 19% in 2006 as compared to 2005. Minute volume increases accounted for the 2007 and 2006 increases, 
primarily as a result of our relationship with Embarq. We began providing wholesale long distance services to 
Embarq following the spin-off Rate declines slightly offset the minute volume increase. 
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Voice revenues generated from the provision of services to the Wireless segment represented 23% of total 
voice revenues in 2007 as compared to 17% in 2006 and 14% in 2005. 

Data Revenues 

Data revenues reflect sales of legacy data services, including ATM, frame relay and managed network 
services. Data revenues decreased 16% in 2007 as compared to 2006 and decreased 12% in 2006 as compared to 
2005 due to declines in frame relay and ATM services as customers migrated to IP-based technologies. These 
declines were partially offset by growth in managed network services. 

Internet Revenues 

Internet revenues reflect sales of IP-based data services, including MPLS. Internet revenues increased 38% 
in 2007 as compared to 2006 and increased 38% in 2006 as compared to 2005. The increases were due to higher 
IP revenues as business customers increasingly migrate to MPLS services, as well as revenue growth in our cable 
VoIP business, which experienced a 80% increase in 2007 as compared to 2006 and an 127% increase in 2006 as 
compared to 2005. 

Other Revenues 

Other revenues, which primarily consists of sales of customer premises equipment, or CPE, decreased 22% 
in 2007 as compared to 2006 and decreased 13% in 2006 as compared to 2005 as a result of fewer projects in 
2007 and 2006. 

Costs of Services and Products 

Costs of services and products include access costs paid to local phone companies, other domestic service 
providers and foreign phone companies to complete calls made by our domestic customers, costs to operate and 
maintain our networks and costs of equipment. Costs of services and products decreased 1% in 2007 from 2006 
and increased 2% in 2006 from 2005. The decrease in 2007 relates to decreased costs due to declining volumes 
and improved access cost rates in the retail business, partially offset by increased activity in the wholesale and 
cable VoIP businesses. The increase in 2006 relates primai'ily to network costs to support growth in our cable 
initiatives in addition to increased domestic access volume, partially offset by fewer CPE projects in 2006, the 
loss of UNE-P customers and renegotiated access rate agreements and initiatives to reduce access circuit costs. 

Service gross margin percentage decreased from 36% in 2005 to 32% in 2006 to 31% in 2007, primarily as 
a result of declining net services revenue and a lower margin product mix. 

Selling, General and Administrative Expense 

Selling, general and administrative expense decreased 13% in 2007 as compared to 2006 and decreased 23% 
in 2006 as compared to 2005. The 2007 decline was due primarily to recognition of a prepaid license from 
Vonage covering the use of certain patents within our patent portfolio, as well as a reduction in employee 
headcount, reduced commissions as a result of the spin-off of Embarq and decreased customer care and billing 
expenses due to a smaller customer base. These declines were partially offset by increases in costs associated 
with cable VoIP support. The 2006 decline was due primarily to decreased marketing and advertising as a result 
of a change in the mix of marketing strategies and lower general and administrative and information technology 
expenses. 

Selling, general and administrative expense includes charges for estimated bad debt expense. Each quarter 
we reassess our allowance for doubtful accounts based on customer-specific indicators, as well as historical 
trends and industry data, to ensure we are adequately reserved. In 2007, bad debt expense increased slightly 
primarily due to customer specific reserves. The improvement between 2006 and 2005 reflects improved trends 
in collections and agings. 

50 



Total selling, general and administrative expense as a percentage of net services revenues was 15% in 2007, 
16% in 2006 and 2 1 % in 2005. 

Wireline Segment Earnings 

Wireline segment earnings increased $83 million or 8% in 2007 from 2006 primarily due to an increase in 
internet revenue, and a decrease in selling, general and administrative expenses due to the recognition ofthe 
Vonage prepaid license, partially offset by decreases in voice and data revenue. Wireline segment earnings 
decreased $43 million or 4% in 2006 from 2005 primarily due to voice revenue declines related to customer 
migrations to alternate sources such as cable and wireless. 

In 2008, we expect to see continued revenue growth in IP services, offset by declines in voice revenues due 
to lower pricing on commercial contracts and continued pressure in the long distance market. In addition, 
increased competition and the excess capacity resulting from new technologies and networks may result in 
further price reductions. See "—Forward-Looking Statements." 

Consolidated Information 

Year Ended December 
2007 2006 

(in millions) 
Selling, general and administrative expenses $(12,673) $(11,957) 
Severance, exit costs and asset impairments (440) (207) 
Goodwill impairment (29,729) — 
Depreciation (5,711) (5,738) 
Amortization (3,312) (3,854) 
Interest expense (1,433) (1,533) 
Interest income 151 301 
Equity in (losses) earnings of unconsolidated 

investees (3) (6) 
Realized gain on sale or exchange of investments . . . 253 205 
Other, net (3) 32 
Income tax benefit (expense) 365 (488) 
Discontinued operations, net — 334 
Net income (loss) (29,580) 1,329 

NM—Not Meaningful 

31, Change from Previous Year 
2005 

$(8,850) 
(43) 
_^ 

(3,864) 
(1,336) 
(1,294) 

236 

107 
62 
39 

(470) 
980 

1,785 

2007 vs 2006 

6% 
113% 
NM 

0% 
(14)% 
(7)% 

(50)% 

(50)% 
23% 

(109)% 
NM 

(100)% 
NM 

2006 vs 2005 

35% 
NM 
NM 

48% 
NM 

18% 
28% 

(106)% 
231% 
(18)% 

4% 
(66)% 
(26)% 

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses 

Selling, general and administrative expenses are primarily allocated at the segment level and are discussed 
in the segment earnings discussions above. The selling, general and administrative expenses related to the 
Wireless segment were $11.2 billion in 2007, $10.4 billion in 2006 and $6.7 billion in 2005. The selling, general 
and administrative expenses related to the Wirehne segment were $943 million in 2007, $1.1 billion in 2006 and 
$1.4 billion in 2005. 

In addition to the selling, general and administrative expenses discussed in the segment earnings 
discussions, we incuned corporate general and administrative expenses of $359 million in 2007, $246 million in 
2006 and $649 million in 2005, including certain merger and integration expenses of $172 million in 2007, 
$222 million in 2006 and $580 million in 2005 as discussed in "—Merger and Integration Expenses" below. Also 
included in corporate general and administrative expenses are expenses related to our planned deployment of a 
next generation broadband wireless network, and such expenses are expected to increase in future quarters. 
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Merger and Integration Expenses 

We incurred $516 million of merger and integration expenses in 2007, $413 million in 2006 and 
$580 million in 2005, of which $344 million and $191 million are included in our Wireless segment for 2007 and 
2006, respectively, as the expenses are solely and directiy attributable to that segment. These expenses are 
generally classified as selling, general and administrative and cost of products as appropitate on our consolidated 
statement of operations. Merger and integration expenses that are not solely and directiy attributable to the 
Wireless segment are included in our Corporate segment and are classified as selling, general and administrative 
expenses. Merger and integration expenses increased in 2007 as compared to 2006, primarily due to costs to 
provide wireless devices that operate seamlessly between the CDMA and iDEN networks. Merger and 
integration expenses decreased in 2006 as compared to 2005 primarily due to reduced rebranding, internal labor 
and retention costs offset by increased system rationalization costs. 

Severance, Exit Costs and Asset Impairments 

During 2007, we had asset impairments of $163 million, which related to the write-off of network assets, 
including site development costs, that we determined would not be used based on management's strategic 
network plans, the loss on the sale of Velocita Wireless, and the closing of retail stores due to integration 
activities. We wrote off $69 million of assets in 2006 and $44 million of assets in 2005 primarily related to 
softwaie asset impairments. 

We recorded severance and exit costs of $277 million in 2007 related to the separation of employees, exit 
costs primarily associated with the sale of Velocita Wireless and continued organizational realignment initiatives 
associated with the Sprint-Nextel merger and the PCS Affiliate and Nextel Partners acquisitions. In 2006, we 
recorded $138 million in severance and exit costs primarily related to our realignment initiatives associated with 
the Sprint-Nextel merger and integration initiatives. 

Goodwill Impairment 

In the fourth quarter 2007, we performed our annual assessment of impairment for goodwill. As a result of 
this assessment, which is described in note 3 ofthe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, we recorded a 
non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $29.7 billion. 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 

Depreciation expense in 2007 remained flat as compared to 2006. The 2007 depreciation expense includes 
about a $400 million decrease related to depreciation rate changes with respect to our CDMA and Wireline 
networks assets, resulting from our annual depreciable lives study. These rate changes are primarily related to 
certain assets becoming fully depreciated and net changes in service lives of certain assets. The decreases 
resulting from the depreciation rate changes were fully offset by normal additions to our network asset base. 
Depreciation expense increased 48% in 2006 from 2005, primarily due to the Sprint-Nextel merger and the PCS 
Affiliate and Nextel Partners acquisitions. 

Amortization expense decreased 14% in 2007 from 2006, primarily due to decreases in the amortization of 
the customer relationships acquired as part of the Sprint-Nextel merger, which are amortized using the sum of the 
years' digits method, resulting in higher amortization rates in early periods that decline over time. Amortization 
expense increased $2.5 billion in 2006 from 2005, primarily due to the amortization ofthe value of customer 
relationships and other definite lived intangible assets acquired in connection with the Sprint-Nextel merger and 
the PCS Affiliate and Nextel Partners acquisitions. See note 3 ofthe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for additional information regarding our definite lived intangible assets. 
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Interest Expense 

Interest expense in 2007 decreased 7% as compaied to 2006, primarily reflecting the reduction in our 
average debt balance. The effective interest rate on our average long-term debt balance of $21.8 billion in 2007 
was 6.9%, unchanged from 2006 based on an average long-term debt balance of $23.2 billion. The effective 
interest rate includes the effect of interest rate swap agreements. As of December 31, 2007, the average floating 
rate of interest on the interest rate swaps was 8.0%, while the weighted average coupon on the underlying debt 
was 7.2%. See "—Liquidity and Capital Resources" for more information on our financing activities. 

Interest Income 

Interest income includes dividends received from certain investments in equity securities and interest eai-ned 
on marketable debt securities and cash equivalents. In 2007, interest income decreased 50%, as compared to 
2006, primarily due to a decrease in the average commercial paper held, as well as a decrease in the average 
temporary cash investments balance. In 2006, interest income increased 28% as compared to 2005, primarily due 
to the higher interest rates on the cash equivalents balances as well as interest income recognized in relation to a 
favorable tax audit settlement for the years 1995 to 2002. The 2006 increase was partially offset by the decrease 
in cash investment balances due to debt retirements, purchases of common stock and acquisitions. 

Equity in Earnings (Losses) of Unconsolidated Investees^ net 

Under the equity method of accounting, we record our proportional share of the earnings or losses of the 
companies in which we have invested and have the ability to exercise significant influence over, up to the amount 
of our investment in the case of losses. We recorded $3 miflion of equity method losses during 2007. We 
recorded $6 million of equity method losses during 2006, primarily due to our ownership interests in E-wireless. 
We recorded $ 107 million of equity method earnings in 2005 primarily related to Nextel Partners. 

Realized Gain on Sale or Exchange of Investments 

During 2007, we recognized a gain from the sale of investments of $253 million, primarily due to a pre-tax 
gain of $240 million related to the sale of a portion of our equity interest in Virgin Mobile USA, LLC, or VMU. 
See note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information. 

During 2006, we recognized a gain from the sale of investments of $205 million, primarily due to 
$433 million of gains on the sales of our investment in Nil Holdings, Inc., paitially offset by a loss of 
$274 million from the change in fair value of an option contract associated with our investment in Nil Holdings, 
as described in note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

We recognized a gain of $62 million fiom the sale of investments in 2005, which primarily consisted of 
gains related to our investments in Call-Net Enterprises, Inc., Nil Holdings and Earthlink, Inc. 

Other, net 

Other, net consists mainly of gain/loss on early retirement of debt and other miscellaneous income/expense. 

Income Tax Benefit (Expense) 

Our consolidated effective tax rates were 1.2% in 2007, 32.9% in 2006 and 36.4% in 2005. The 2007 
effective tax rate was impacted by $29.3 billion of the $29.7 billion non-cash impairment charge related to 
goodwill as substantially all of the charge is not separately deductible for tax purposes and a $105 million benefit 
related to state income tax law changes. Information regarding the items that caused the effective income tax 
rates to vary from the statutory federal rate for income taxes related to continuing operations can be found in 
note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Discontinued Operations, net 

Discontinued operations reflect the results of our Local segment for 2005 and the year-to-date period 
through May 17, 2006, the date of the Embarq spin-off. Additional information regarding our discontinued 
operations can be found in note 15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Net Income (Loss) 

We recorded a net loss in 2007 as compared to net income in 2006 principally due to a one time non-cash 
goodwill impairment charge in our Wireless segment and a decline in the performance ofthe Wireless segment. 
Net income decreased in 2006 compared to 2005 primarily due to the discontinued operations of Embarq in 
2006. 

We expect downward pressure on our consolidated results of operations in the near term caused principally 
by the expected decline in Wireless segment earnings discussed above, together with increased severance, exit 
costs. See "—Forward-Looking Statements." 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

We consider the following accounting policies and estimates to be the most important to our financial 
position and results of operations, either because of the significance of the financial statement item or because 
they require the exercise of significant judgment and/or use of significant estimates. While management believes 
that the estimates used are reasonable, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Revenue Recognition and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Policies 

Operating revenues primarily consist of wireless service revenues, revenues generated from handset and 
accessory sales and revenues from wholesale operators and PCS Affiliates, as well as long distance voice, data 
and Internet revenues. Service revenues consist of fixed monthly recuning charges, variable usage charges such 
as roaming, directory assistance, and operator-assisted calling and miscellaneous fees, such as activation, 
upgrade, late payment, reconnection and early termination fees and certain regulatory related fees. We recognize 
service revenues as services are rendered and equipment revenue when title passes to the dealer or end-user 
customer, in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin, or SAB, No. 104, Revenue Recognition, and 
Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangeme/tts with Multiple Deliverables. We 
recognize revenue for access charges and other services charged at fixed amounts ratably over the service period, 
net of credits and adjustments for service discounts, billing disputes and fraud or unauthorized usage. We 
recognize excess wireless usage and long distance revenue at contractual rates per minute as minutes are used. 
Additionally, we recognize excess wireless data usage based on kilobytes and one-time use charges, such as for 
the use of premium services, when rendered. As a result of the cutoff times of our multiple billing cycles each 
month, we are required to estimate the amount of subscriber revenues earned but not billed from the end of each 
bill cycle to the end of each reporting period. These estimates are based primarily on rate plans in effect and our 
historical usage and billing patterns. Subscriber revenue earned but not billed represented about 11.4% of our 
accounts receivable balance as of December 31, 2007. 

We establish an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable sufficient to cover probable and reasonably 
estimable losses. Because of the number of accounts that we have, it is not practical to review the collectibility of 
each of those accounts individually when we determine the amount of our allowance for doubtful accounts each 
period, although we do perform some account level analysis with respect to large wireless and wireline 
customers. Our estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts considers a number of factors, including 
collection experience, aging of the accounts receivable portfolios, the credit quality of our subscriber base, 
estimated proceeds from future bad debt sales, and other qualitative considerations, including macro-economic 
factors. The accounting estimates related to the recognition of revenue in the results of operations require us to 
make assumptions about future billing adjustments for disputes with customers, unauthorized usage, and future 
returns and mail-in rebates on handset sales. The allowance amounts recorded represent our best estimate of 
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future outcomes; to the extent that our actual experience differs significantly from historical trends, the required 
allowance amounts could differ from our estimate. Any resulting adjustments would change the net accounts 
receivable reported on our balance sheet, and bad debt expense, in the case of estimates related to doubtful 
accounts, or revenue, in the case of estimates related to other allowances, reported in our results of operations in 
future periods. For example, if our allowance for doubtful accounts estimate were to change by 10%, it would 
result in a corresponding change in bad debt expense of $37 million for the Wireless segment and $2 million for 
the Wireline segment. 

Device and Accessory Inventory 

Inventories of handsets and accessories in the Wireless segment are stated at the lower of cost or market. 
We determine cost by the first-in, first-out, or FIFO, method. Handset costs and related revenues are recognized 
at the time of sale. We do not recognize the expected handset subsidies prior to the time of sale because the 
promotional discount decision is made at the point of sale, and we expect to recover the handset subsidies 
through service revenues. 

As of December 31, 2007, we held $938 million of inventory. We analyze the realizable value of our 
handset and other inventory on a quarterly basis. This analysis includes assessing obsolescence, sales forecasts, 
product life cycle and marketplace and other considerations. If our assessments regarding the above factors 
change, we may be required to sell handsets at a higher subsidy or potentially record expense in future periods 
prior to the point of sale to the extent that we expect that we will be unable to sell handsets or use them in the 
service and repair channel. 

Valuation and Recoverability of Certain Long-lived Assets Including Definite Lived Intangible Assets 

A significant portion of our total assets are long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment and 
definite lived intangible assets. Changes in technology or in our intended use of these assets, as well as changes 
in economic or industry factors or in our business or prospects, may cause the estimated period of use or the 
value of these assets to change. 

Property, plant and equipment represented $26.5 billion of our $64.1 billion in total assets as of 
December 31, 2007. We generally calculate depreciation on these assets using the straight-line method based on 
estimated economic useful lives as follows: 

Long-lived Assets Estimated Useful Life Average Useful Life 

Buildings and improvements 3 to 30 years 12 years 
Network equipment, site costs and software 3 to 31 years 8 years 
Non-network internal use software, office equipment and 

other 3 to 12 years 4 years 

We calculate depreciation on certain of our assets using the group life method. Accordingly, ordinary asset 
retirements and disposals are charged against accumulated depreciation with no gain or loss recognized. 

Since changes in technology or in our intended use of these assets, as well as changes in broad economic or 
industry factors, may cause the estimated period of use of these assets to change, we perform annual internal 
studies lo confirm the appropriateness of depreciable lives for certain categories of property, plant and 
equipment. These studies take into account actual usage, physical wear and tear, replacement history, and 
assumptions about technology evolution, to calculate the remaining life of our asset base. When these factors 
indicate that an asset's useful life is different from the original assessment, we depreciate the remaining book 
values prospectively over the adjusted estimated useful life. 

During the first quarter 2007, we implemented depreciation rate changes with respect to assets that 
comprise the CDMA and Wireline networks resulting from our annual depreciable lives study. These revised 
rates reflected both changes in the useful life estimates of certain of our asset groups and adjustments to our 
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accumulated depreciation accounts. The reduced expense associated with the depreciation rate changes resulted 
in approximately $400 million reduction in depreciation expense or $0.09 per share reduction in net loss for the 
year ended December 31, 2007. In addition to performing our annual study, we also continue to assess the 
estimated useful life ofthe iDEN network assets, which had a net carrying value of $7.9 biflion as of 
December 31, 2007, and our future strategic plans for this network, as an increasingly larger portion of our 
subscriber base is served by our CDMA network. A reduction in our estimate ofthe useful life ofthe iDEN 
network assets would cause increased depreciation charges in future periods that could be material. For example, 
a 10% reduction in the remaining weighted average useful life ofthe iDEN network assets would increase annual 
depreciation expense by about $170 million. In conjunction with our fourth quarter goodwill impairment review, 
we re-assessed the remaining useful lives of our long-lived assets and concluded they were appropriate. We are 
in the process of completing our annual depreciation study and expect any results from that study to be concluded 
and initially recorded in the first quarter 2008. 

Intangible assets with definite useful lives represented $6.0 billion of our $64.1 billion in total assets as of 
December 31, 2007. Definite lived intangible assets consist primarily of customer relationships that are 
amortized over two to five years using the sum of the years' digits method, which we believe best reflects the 
estimated pattern in which the economic benefits will be consumed. Other definite lived intangible assets 
primarily include certain rights under affiliation agreements that we reacquired in connection with the 
acquisitions of certain PCS Affiliates and Nextel Partners, which are being amortized over the remaining terms 
of those affiliation agreements on a straight-line basis, and the Nextel and Direct Connect® trade names, which 
are being amortized over ten years from the date of the Sprint-Nextel merger on a straight-line basis. We also 
evaluate the remaining useful lives of our definite lived intangible assets each reporting period to determine 
whether events and circumstances wanant a revision to the remaining periods of amortization, which would be 
addressed prospectively. For example, we review certain trends such as customer churn, average revenue per 
user, revenue, our future plans regarding the iDEN network and changes in marketing strategies, among others. 
Significant changes in certain trends may cause us to adjust, on a prospective basis, the remaining estimated life 
of certain of our definite lived intangible assets. For additional information, please refer to note 3 of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

We review our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the cart'ying amount may not be recoverable. We group our long-lived assets at the lowest level for which 
identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other groups of assets and liabilities. Our 
asset groups consist of wireless and wireline, and the wireless asset group includes our intangible assets, our 
wireless property, plant and equipment and goodwill. Indicators of impairment for our asset groups include, but 
are not limited to, a sustained significant decrease in the market price of or the cash flows expected to be derived 
from the asset groups, or a significant change in the extent or manner in which the assets in the group are 
utilized. A significant amount of judgment is involved in determining the occurrence of an indicator of 
impairment that requires an evaluation of the recoverability of our long-lived assets. If the total of the expected 
undiscounted future cash flows is less than the canying amount of our assets, a loss is recognized for the 
difference between the fair value and carrying value of the assets. Impairment analyses, when performed, are 
based on our current business and technology strategy, our views of growth rates for our business, anticipated 
future economic and regulatory conditions and expected technological availability. 

In conjunction with our annual assessment of goodwill for impairment, we performed a recoverability test of 
the wireless long-lived assets in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of 
Long-Lived Assets. We included cash flow projections from our wireless operations along with cash flows 
associated with the eventual disposition ofthe long-lived assets, which included estimated proceeds from the sale 
of FCC licenses, trade names, and customer relationships. The undiscounted future cash flows ofthe wireless 
long-lived assets exceeded their net book value. As a result, no impairment charge was recorded. 

In addition to the analyses described above, we periodically assess certain assets that have not yet been 
deployed in our business, including network equipment, cell site development costs, and software in 
development, to detei-mine if an impairment charge is required. Network equipment and cell site development 
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costs are impaired whenever events or changes in circumstances cause us to abandon such assets ifthey are no 
longer needed to meet management's strategic network plans. Software development costs are impaired when it 
is no longer probable that the software project will be deployed. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we 
recorded an after-tax impairment charge of $ 103 million primarily related to the abandonment of certain iDEN 
cell sites under construction. For the year ended December 31, 2006, we recorded an after-tax impairment charge 
of $43 million primarily related to software asset impairments and abandonments of various assets, including 
certain cell sites under construction. For the year ended December 31, 2005, we recorded an after-tax impairment 
charge of $27 million primarily related to the write-off of various software applications. We also periodically 
assess network equipment that has been removed from the network to determine if an impairment charge is 
required. If we continue to have challenges retaining iDEN subscribers and as we continue to assess the impact of 
rebanding the iDEN network, management may abandon certain iDEN assets in future periods if we conclude 
those assets will either never be deployed or redeployed, in which case we would recognize a non-cash 
impairment charge that could be material to our consolidated financial statements. 

Valuation and Recoverability of Goodwill and Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives represented $22.1 billion of our $64.1 biflion in total assets as 
of December 31, 2007. We have identified FCC licenses and our Sprint and Boost Mobile trademarks as 
indefinite lived intangible assets, in addition to our goodwill, after considering the expected use ofthe assets, the 
regulatory and economic environment within which they are being used, and the effects of obsolescence on their 
use. We review our goodwill, which relates solely to our wireless reporting unit, and other indefinite lived 
intangibles annually in the fourth quarter for impairment, or more frequentiy if indicators of impairment exist. 
We continually assess whether any indicators of impairment exist, which requires a significant amount of 
judgment. Such indicators may include, a sustained significant decline in our share price and market 
capitalization; a decline in our expected future cash flows, a significant adverse change in legal factors or in the 
business climate; unanticipated competition; the testing for recoverability of a significant asset group within a 
reporting unit; and/or slower growth rates, among others. Any adverse change in these factors could have a 
significant impact on the recoverability of these assets and could have a material impact on our consolidated 
financial statements. 

When required, we first test goodwill for impairment by comparing the fair value of our wireless reporting 
unit with its net book value. Ifthe fair value ofthe wireless reporting unit exceeds its net book value, goodwill is 
not deemed to be impaired, and no further testing would be necessary. If the net book value of our wireless 
reporting unit exceeds its fair value, we perform a second test to measure the amount of impairment loss, if any. 
To measure the amount of any impairment loss, we determine the implied fair value of goodwill in the same 
manner as if our wireless reporting unit were being acquired in a business combination. Specifically, we allocate 
the fair value ofthe wireless reporting unit to all ofthe assets and liabilities of that unit, including any 
unrecognized intangible assets, in a hypothetical calculation that would yield the implied fair value of goodwill. 
If the implied fair value of goodwill is less than the recorded goodwill, we record an impairment charge for the 
difference. 

During the period from our annual 2006 goodwill impairment assessment through the third quarter 2007, we 
periodically analyzed whether any indicators of impairment had occurred. As part of these periodic analyses, we 
derived the estimated equity value ofthe wireless reporting unit, which we then compared to its net book value. 
Specifically, we reduced our stock price by the estimated value per share of our Wireline reporting unit and then 
added a control premium, as permitted by FASB guidance, to determine an estimate of the equity value of the 
wireless reporting unit. As the estimated fair value of the wireless reporting unit was higher than its net book 
value during each of these periods, no additional testing was necessary. 

In the fourth quarter 2007, we conducted our annual assessment of goodwill for impairment. During this 
quarter, we experienced a sustained, significant decline in our stock price. The reduced market capitalization 
reflected the Wireless segment's lower than expected performance, due in large part to fewer than expected net 
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subscriber additions. In previous periods, we had expected that we would be able to produce net post-paid 
subscriber additions during 2007. In the fourth quarter, we reported a loss of 683,000 post-paid subscribers which 
was the most post-paid subscribers we had ever lost in a quarter. 

We also updated our forecasted cash flows of the wireless reporting unit during the fourth quarter. This 
update considered cunent economic conditions and trends; estimated future operating results; our views of 
growth rates, anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions; and the availability of necessary technology, 
network infrastructure, handsets and other devices. Several factors led to a reduction in forecasted cash flows, 
including, among others, our ability to attract and retain subscribers, particularly subscribers of our iDEN-based 
services, in a highly competitive environment; expected reductions in voice revenue per subscriber; the costs of 
acquiring subscribers; and the costs of operating our wireless networks. 

Based on the results of our annual assessment of goodwill for impairment, the net book value of the wireless 
reporting unit exceeded its fair value. Therefore, we performed the second step of the impairment test to 
determine the implied fair value of goodwill. Specifically, we hypothetically allocated the fair value of the 
wireless reporting unit as detemiined in the first step to our recognized and unrecognized net assets, including 
allocations to intangible assets such as customer relationships, FCC licenses and trade names. Such items had fair 
values substantially in excess of cuirent book values. The resulting implied goodwill was $935 million; 
accordingly, we reduced the goodwill recorded prior to this assessment by $29.7 billion to write our goodwill 
down to the implied goodwill amount as of December 31, 2007. The $29.7 billion goodwill impairment charge is 
our best estimate of the goodwill charge as of December 31, 2007. Any adjustment to that estimated charge 
resulting from the completion of the measurement of the impairment loss will be recognized in the first quarter 
2008. The allocation discussed above is performed only for purposes of assessing goodwill for impairment; 
accordingly, we do not adjust the net book value ofthe assets and liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet 
other than goodwill as a result of this process. 

We performed extensive valuation analyses, utilizing both income and market approaches, in our goodwill 
assessment process. The following describes the valuation methodologies used to derive the fair value of the 
wireless reporting unit. 

• Income Approach: To determine fair value, we discounted the expected cash flows of the wireless 
reporting unit. The discount rate used represents the estimated weighted average cost of capital, which 
reflects the overall level of inherent risk involved in our wireless operations and the rate of return an 
outside investor would expect to earn. To estimate cash flows beyond the final year of our model, we 
used a terminal value approach. Under this approach, we used estimated operating income before 
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization in the final year of our model, adjusted it to estimate a 
normalized cash flow, applied a perpetuity growth assumption and discounted by a perpetuity discount 
factor to determine the terminal value. We incorporated the present value of the resulting terminal 
value into our estimate of fair value. 

• Market-Based Approach: To conoborate the results of the income approach described above, we 
estimated the fair value of our wireless reporting unit using several market-based approaches, including 
the value that we derive based on our consolidated stock price as described above. We also used the 
guideline company method, which focuses on comparing our risk profile and growth prospects to select 
reasonably similar/guideline publicly traded companies. 

The determination of fair value of the wireless reporting unit and other assets and liabilities within the 
wireless reporting unit requires us to make significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and 
assumptions primarily include, but are not limited to, the discount rate, terminal growth rates, operating income 
before depreciation and amortization, or OIBDA and capital expenditures forecasts. Due to the inherent 
uncertainty involved in making these estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates. We evaluated the 
merits of each significant assumption, both individually and in the aggregate, used to determine the fair value of 
the wireless reporting unit, as well as the fair values ofthe conesponding assets and liabilities within the wireless 
reporting unit, and concluded they are reasonable. 
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Changes in certain assumptions could have a significant impact on the goodwill impairment charge. For 
example, a decrease in OIBDA by 5% or an increase in capital expenditures by 5% would result in an additional 
goodwill impairment charge equal to our remaining goodwill of $935 million. Conversely, an increase in OIBDA 
by 5% or a decrease in capital expenditures by 5% would result in a reduction to the goodwill impairment charge 
by $2.9 billion and $2.0 billion, respectively. A 50 basis point increase or decrease in the discount rate would 
result in an approximate $350 million increase or decrease to the goodwill or impairment charge, respectively. A 
50 basis point increase or decrease in the terminal growth rate would result in an approximate $400 million 
decrease or increase to the charge, respectively. The sensitivity amounts above are calculated based on the impact 
ofthe change in the fair value ofthe wireless reporting unit, as well as the impact of changes in the fair values of 
the assets and liabilities of the wireless reporting unit. 

The allocation of the fair value of the wireless reporting unit to individual assets and liabilities within the 
wireless reporting unit also requires us to make significant estimates and assumptions. The allocation requires 
several analyses to determine fair value of assets and liabilities including, among others, customer relationships, 
FCC licenses, trademarks and cunent replacement costs for certain property, plant and equipment. 

When required, we test other indefinite lived intangibles for impairment by comparing the asset's respective 
carrying value to estimates of fair value, determined using the direct value method. Our FCC licenses are 
combined as a single unit of accounting following the unit of accounting guidance as prescribed by EITF Issue 
No. 02-7, Unit of Accoimting for Testing Impairment of Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets, except for our FCC 
licenses in the 2.5 GHz band, which are tested separately as a single unit of accounting. 

The accounting estimates related to our indefinite lived intangible assets require us to make significant 
assumptions about fair values. Our assumptions regarding fair values require significant judgment about 
economic factors, industry factors and technology considerations, as well as our views regarding the prospects of 
our business. Changes in these judgments may have a significant effect on the estimated fair values. 

Tax Valuation Allowances and Uncertain Tax Positions 

We are required to estimate the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the cunent year and the deferred 
tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been reflected in our consoUdated 
financial statements or tax returns for each taxing jurisdiction in which we operate. This process requires 
management to make assessments regarding the timing and probability of the ultimate tax impact. We record 
valuation allowances on deferred tax assets if we determine it is more likely than not that the asset will not be 
realized. The accounting estimates related to the tax valuation allowance require us to make assumptions 
regarding the timing of future events, including the probability of expected future taxable income and available 
tax planning opportunities. These assumptions require significant judgment because actual performance has 
fluctuated in the past and may do so in the future. The impact that changes in actual performance versus these 
estimates could have on the realization of tax benefits as reported in our results of operations could be material. 

We carried an income tax valuation allowance of $723 million as of December 31, 2007. This amount 
includes a valuation allowance of $477 million for the total tax benefits related to net operating loss 
carryforwards, subject to utilization restrictions, acquired in connection with certain acquisitions. The remainder 
ofthe valuation allowance relates to capital loss, state net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Within our 
total valuation allowance, we had $100 million related to separate company state net operating losses incurred by 
our subsidiaries after we acquired them. The valuation allowance was provided on these separate company state 
net operating loss benefits since these subsidiaries do not have a sufficient history of taxable income. Current 
analyses of cumulative historical income and qualitative factors indicate that the valuation allowance continues to 
be appropriate, meaning that we curtentiy believe that it is more likely than not that we wifl not realize such tax 
benefits in the future. We will continue to monitor these analyses and factors in future periods and may adjust the 
valuation allowance based on the facts and circumstances existing in future periods. For the valuation allowance 
relating to the acquired tax benefits described above, if we reverse any allowance in 2008, we would first reduce 
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goodwill or intangible assets resulting from the acquisitions. Any adjustment to the valuation allowance after 
2008 would be recorded to the statement of operations following the guidance in the recently issued SFAS 
No. 141R, Business Combinations, described in further detail in Significant New Accounting Pronouncements. 

We adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, or FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an 
interpretation of SFAS No. \09, Accounting for Income Taxes, on January 1, 2007. The adoption of FIN 48 did 
not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. The accounting estimates related to the 
liability for uncertain tax positions require us to make judgments regarding the sustainability of each uncertain 
tax position based on its technical merits. If we determine it is more likely than not a tax position will be 
sustained based on its technical merits, we record the impact of the position in our consolidated financial 
statements at the lai'gest amount that is greater than fifty percent likely of being realized upon ultimate 
settiement. These estimates are updated at each reporting date based on the facts, circumstances and infonnation 
available. We are also required to assess at each reporting date whether it is reasonably possible that any 
significant increases or decreases to the unrecognized tax benefits will occur during the next twelve months. See 
note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding FIN 48. Our 
liability for uncertain tax positions was $654 million as of December 31, 2007. 

Actual income taxes could vary from these estimates due to future changes in income tax law, significant 
changes in the jurisdictions in which we operate, our inability to generate sufficient future taxable income or 
unpredicted results from the final determination of each year's liability by taxing authorities. These changes 
could have a significant impact on our financial position. 

Significant New Accounting Pronouncements 

Fair Value Accounting Pronouncements 

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. This statement changes the 
definition of fair value, as defined by previous statements, to "the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the ineasurement date." 
Additionally, this statement establishes a hierarchy that classifies the inputs used to measure fair value. In 
February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities. This statement allows entities the choice to measure certain financial instruments and other items at 
fair value on specified measurement dates and report any unrecognized gains or losses in earnings and serves to 
minimize volatility in earnings that occurs when assets and liabilities are measured differentiy without having to 
apply complex hedge accounting provisions. Both SFAS No. 157 and SFAS No. 159 are effective for our 
quarterly reporting period ending March 31, 2008, however in February 2008, the FASB issued a FASB Staff 
Position to partially delay the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial 
liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurting 
basis, until fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. 

Based on the FASB Staff Position noted above, the partial adoption of SFAS No. 157 will not have a 
material impact on our financial position and results of operations in 2008. We are still assessing the impact that 
SFAS No. 157 will have on our nonrecuiTing measurements for nonfinancial assets and liabilities in 2009. Upon 
the partial adoption of SFAS No. 157 in the quarterly period ending March 31, 2008, we expect to have 
additional disclosures in the notes to our consolidated financial statements for certain recuning fair value 
measurements. We are continuing to evaluate the impact of the FASB Staff Position noted above as it relates to 
the disclosure of our nonrecuiring fair value measurements, such as our annual impairment review of our 
goodwill and FCC licenses, and it will require significant disclosures related to our key assumptions and 
variables used in these analyses. We do not plan to elect the fair value option under the provisions of SFAS 
No. 159 for eligible financial assets and liabilities held on January 1, 2008; however, we will apply the fair value 
provisions of that statement for all eligible assets and liabilities subsequentiy acquired or modified on or after 
January 1,2008. 
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Other New Accoiotting Pronouncements 

In September 2006, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 06-1, Accounting for Consideration Given 
by a Service Provider to a Manufacturer or Reseller of Equipment Necessaty for an End-Customer to Receive 
Service from the Service Provider EITF Issue No. 06-1 provides guidance regarding whether the consideration 
given by a service provider to a manufacturer or reseller of specialized equipment should be characterized as a 
reduction of revenue or as an expense. This issue is effective for our quarterly reporting period ending Mai-ch 31, 
2008. Entities are required to recognize the effects of applying this issue as a change in accounting principle 
through retrospective application to all prior periods unless it is impracticable to do so. We do not expect this 
consensus to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. 

In June 2007, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 06-11, Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of 
Divide/uls on Share-Based Paytnent Awards. EITF Issue No. 06-11 provides guidance regarding how an entity 
should recognize the tax benefit received as a result of dividends paid to holders of share-based compensation 
awards and charged to retained earnings (accumulated deficit) according to SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based 
Payment. This issue is effective for our quarterly reporting period ending March 31, 2008. We do not expect this 
consensus to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. 

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, Business Combinations, which revises SFAS 
No. 141, Business Combinations, originally issued in June 2001. SFAS No. 141R will apply to business 
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after January 1, 2009, and this Statement could have a 
material impact on us with respect to business combinations completed after the effective date. Such significant 
changes include, but are not limited to the "acquirer" recording 100% of all assets and liabilities, including 
goodwill, ofthe acquired business, generally at their fair values, and acquisition-related transaction and 
restructuring costs will be expensed rather than treated as part of the cost of the acquisition and included in the 
amount recorded for assets acquired. In addition, after the effective date, reversals of valuation allowances 
related to acquired deferred tax assets and changes to acquired income tax uncertainties related to any business 
combinations, even those completed prior to the Statement's effective date, will be recognized in earnings, 
except for qualified measurement period adjustments. 

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial 
Statements. This statement amends Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements, to 
establish accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the 
deconsolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS No. 160 is effective for our quarterly reporting period ending March 31, 
2009. This statement could have a material impact on us to the extent we enter into an anangement after the 
effective date of the standard where we are required to consolidate a non-controlling interest. If such an event 
occurred, we will report the non-controlling interest's equity as a component of our equity in our consolidated 
balance sheet, we will report the component of net income or loss and comprehensive income or loss attributable 
to the non-controlling interest separately and changes in ownership interests will be treated as equity transactions. 
Upon a loss of control, any gain or loss on the interest sold will be recognized in earnings. 

Financial Condition 

Our consolidated assets were $64.1 billion as of December 31, 2007, which included $28.1 billion of 
intangible assets, and $97.2 billion as of December 31, 2006, which included $60.1 billion of intangible assets. 
The decrease in our consolidated assets was primarily a result of the $29.7 billion goodwill impairment charge, 
recorded in 2007, the amortization of $3.3 billion related to our definite lived intangible assets, cash used in our 
stock repurchase program and the settlement of our securities loan agreement. See "—Liquidity and Capital 
Resources" for additional information on the change in cash and cash equivalents. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Management exercises discretion regarding the liquidity and capital resource needs of our business 
segments. This responsibility includes the ability to prioritize the use of capital and debt capacity, to determine 
cash management policies and to make decisions regarding the timing and amount of capital expenditures. 
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Discontinued Operations 

On May 17, 2006, we completed the spin-off of Embarq. In connection with the spin-off, Embarq 
transfened to our parent company $2.1 billion in cash and about $4.5 billion of Embarq senior notes in partial 
consideration for, and as a condition to, our transfer to Embarq of the local communications business. Embarq 
also retained about $665 million in debt obligations of its subsidiaries. The cash and senior notes were transfeiTcd 
by our parent company to our finance subsidiary. Sprint Capital Corporation, in satisfaction of indebtedness 
owed by our parent company to Sprint Capital. On May 19, 2006, Sprint Capital sold the Embarq senior notes to 
the public, and received about $4.4 billion in net proceeds. Embarq provided $903 million of net cash to us in 
2006 excluding cash received from Embarq in connection with the spin-off 

Cash Flow 

Year Ended December 31, Change 

2007 2006 2005 2007 Vs 2006 2Q06 Vs 2005 

(in millions) 

Cash provided by operating activities $ 9,245 $ 10,958 $10,679 (16)% 3% 
Cash used in investing activities (6,377) (11,392) (4,724) (44)% 141% 
Cash used in financing activities (2,668) (6,423) (1,228) (58)% NM 

At December 31, 2007, cash and cash equivalents were $2.2 billion as compared to $2.0 billion as of 
December 31, 2006. 

Operating Activities 

Net cash provided by operating activities of $9.2 billion in 2007 decreased $1.7 billion from 2006 reflecting 
a decline in our earnings, primarily due to: 

' a decrease in cash flows from discontinued operations of $903 million; 

• a decrease in cash received from customers of $779 million primarily due to a decrease in service 
revenues as a result of increased customer churn; 

• an increase in cash paid to our suppliers and employees of $285 million; and 

• a decrease in interest received of $151 million due to a decrease in average commercial paper and 
temporary cash balances held during the year; 

offset by 

• a decrease of $311 million in cash paid for interest on debt due to the retirement of debt and cash paid 
for taxes. 

Net cash provided by operating activities increased $279 million in 2006 from 2005 primarily due to a 
$12.0 billion increase in cash received from our customers as a result of the Sprint-Nextel merger in the third quarter 
2005, the PCS Affiliate acquisitions in 2005 and 2006 and the Nextel Partners acquisition in the second quarter 2006, 
as well as continued growth in the Wireless customer base. This increase was partially offset by an $8.5 billion 
increase in cash paid to suppliers and employees, $1.2 billion of proceeds received in 2005 fi-om the communications 
towers lease transaction and a decrease in cash provided from discontinued operations of $1.1 billion. 

Investing Activities 

Net cash u.sed in investing activities of $6.4 billion decreased $5.0 billion from 2006 primarily due to: 

• a $10.2 billion decrease in cash paid for acquisitions in 2007 as compared to 2006 when we acquired 
Alamosa Holdings, UbiquiTel, Velocita Wireless, Enterprise Communications and Nextel Partners for 
$ 10.5 billion compared to $287 million that we paid for the acquisition of Northern PCS in 2007; 
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a $ 1.2 billion decrease in capital expenditures from 2006 due to fewer cell sites, capacity modifications 
and inventory reductions in our Wireless segment and decreased investment in transport and switching 
equipment related to voice and cable customers; and 

' collateral of $866 million in cash received back from our securities loan agreements in 2007, compared 
to $866 million used to collaterize securities loan agreements in 2006; 

offset by 

• a net decrease in proceeds from sale and maturities of marketable securities, investments and assets net 
of purchases, of $1.8 billion; and 

• $6.3 billion in proceeds received in 2006 in connection with the spin-off of our Local segment, 
including $ 1.8 billion received from Embarq at the time of the spin-off and proceeds from the sale of 
Embarq notes of $4.4 billion. 

Net cash used in investing activities increased in 2006 by $6.7 billion from 2005 due primarily to: 

• a $10.3 billion increase in cash paid for acquisitions; 

• a $2.5 billion increase in cash paid for capital expenditures due to higher spending in our Wireless 
segment, in part related to spending on our iDEN network acquired in the Sprint-Nextel merger; and 

• $866 million in cash used to collateralize securities loan agreements; 

partially offset by 

• $6.3 billion in proceeds received in 2006 in connection with the spin off of our Local segment, 
including $1.8 billion received from Embarq at the time it was spun-off and proceeds from the sale of 
the Embarq notes of $4.4 billion. 

Financing Activities 

Net cash used in financing activities of $2.7 billion during 2007 decreased $3.8 billion compared to 2006, 
primarily due to: 

• a decrease in cash used for debt and credit facility payments of $6.7 billion. In 2007, we made principal 
and debt repayments of $1.4 billion compared to payments in 2006 of $4.3 billion in payments and 
retirements related to our senior notes and capital lease obligations, $3.2 billion related to the 
retirement of our terni loan and $500 million to retire the Nextel Partners credit facility; 

offset by 

• $135 million in net maturities of commercial paper in 2007 compared to net issuances of $514 million 
in 2006; 

• payment of $866 million in 2007 to settie eollaterized borrowings compared to proceeds of 
$866 million received from securities loan agreements in 2006; and 

• proceeds of $ 1.5 billion in 2007, including $750 million from our unsecured loan agreement with 
Export Development Canada and $750 million in principal fi'om the sale of floating rate notes due 2010 
compared to proceeds of $2.0 billion in principal amount of 6.0% senior serial redeemable notes 
received in 2006 that are due in 2016. 

Pursuant to our share repurchase program, we repurchased about 87 million of our common shares for 
$ 1.8 billion in 2007 compared to 98 million of our common shares repurchased in 2006 for $1.6 billion. We 
received $344 million in 2007 and $405 million in 2006 in proceeds from common share issuances, primarily 
resulting from exercises of employee options. We paid cash dividends of $286 million in 2007 compared to 
$296 million in 2006. During 2006, we used $247 million to retire our Seventh series redeemable preferred 
shares. 
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Net cash used in financing activities of $6.4 billion during 2006 increased $5.2 billion from 2005 primarily 
due to 

• $ 1.6 billion for the purchase of our outstanding common shares pursuant to our share repurchase 
program that commenced in the third quarter 2006; 

• $3.7 billion paid for the retirement of our term loan and Nextel Partners bank credit facility compared 
to 2005 when we retired a $2.2 billion term loan and a $1.0 billion revolving credit loan with a new 
$3.2 billion loan; 

• $4.3 billion in payments and retirements related to our capital lease obligations and senior notes 
compared to $1.2 billion in 2005; 

partially offset by 

• net proceeds from the sale of $2.0 billion in principal amount of 6.0% senior serial redeemable notes 
due in 2016; 

• proceeds of $866 million from securities loan agreements; 

• net proceeds of $514 million from issuance of commercial paper; and 

• $405 million in proceeds from common share issuances in 2006 compared to $432 million in 2005. 

We paid cash dividends of $296 million in 2006 coinpai-ed to $525 million in 2005. The decrease in cash 
dividends paid is due to a decrease in the dividend rate from $0,125 per common share per quarter in the first two 
quarters of 2005 to $0,025 per common share per quarter beginning in the third quarter 2005. This dividend rate 
decrease was partially offset by an increase in the average number of common shares outstanding in the year 
ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31, 2005, primarily as a result of the Sprint-
Nextel merger. 

Capital Requirements 

We currently anticipate that future funding needs in the near term will principally relate to: 

• operating expenses relating to our segment operations; 

• capital expenditures, particularly with respect to the expansion of the coverage and capacity of our 
wireless networks and the deployment of new technologies in those networks, including our plans to 
build a next generation broadband wireless network; 

• scheduled interest and principal payments related to our debt and any purchases or redemptions of our 
debt securities; 

• amounts required to be expended in connection with the Report and Order; 

• increasing expenditures for income taxes, after utilization of available tax net operating loss and tax 
credit carryforwards; 

• potential costs of compliance with regulatory mandates; and 

• other general corporate expenditures. 

Liquidity 

As of December 31, 2007, our cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities totaled $2.4 billion. 

We have a $6.0 billion revolving credit facility, which expires in December 2010 and provides for interest 
rates equal to the London Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, or prime rate plus a spread that varies depending on 
our parent company's credit ratings. There is no rating trigger that would allow the lenders to terminate this 
facility in the event of a credit rating downgrade. 
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In April 2006, we commenced a commercial paper program, which reduced our borrowing costs by 
allowing us to issue short-term debt at lower rates than those available under our $6.0 billion revolving credit 
facility. The $2.0 billion program is backed by our revolving credit facility and reduces the amount we can 
borrow under the facility to the extent of the commercial paper outstanding. As of December 31, 2007, we had 
$379 million of commercial paper outstanding. 

As of December 31, 2007, we had $2.6 billion in letters of credit, including a $2.5 billion letter of credit 
required by the Report and Order, outstanding under our $6.0 billion revolving credit facility. These letters of 
credit reduce the availability under the revolving credit facility by an equivalent amount. As a result ofthe letters 
of credit and outstanding commercial paper, as of December 31, 2007, we had about $3.0 billion of boiTowing 
capacity available under our revolving credit facility. 

In light of conditions in our business and the financial markets, we have taken actions designed to enhance 
our financial flexibility. First, in early 2008, we decided that we will not pay dividends for the foreseeable future. 
Second, in late February 2008, we drew down $2.5 billion under our revolving credit facility to mitigate potential 
refinancing risk related to $1.25 billion in bonds that mature in November 2008 and our commercial paper 
program, as well as to enhance our financial flexibility in general. We now have about $500 million of bonowing 
capacity available under our revolving credit facility. 

Our credit facilities require that we maintain a ratio of total indebtedness to trailing four quarter earnings 
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization of no more than 3.5 to 1.0, and as of December 31, 2007, the 
ratio was 2.5 to 1.0. A default under our credit facilities could trigger defaults under our other debt obligations, 
which in turn could result in the maturities of certain debt obligations being accelerated. 

Our credit facilities and the indentures that govern our outstanding senior notes also require that we comply 
with various covenants, including limitations on the incurrence of indebtedness and liens by us and our 
subsidiaries. Our credit facility covenants limit our subsidiaries (other than Nextel Communications and Sprint 
Capital Corp.) from incurring indebtedness or liens in excess of 15% of our consolidated shareholders' equity. As 
of Deceinber 3 ], 2007, indebtedness from such subsidiaries totaled $0.5 billion. Accordingly, the fourth quarter 
2007 charge related to the impairment of our goodwill has caused a reduction in the amount of debt and liens that 
can be incurred under our credit facilities by certain of our subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2007, we were in 
compliance with all covenants associated with our borrowings. 

Our ability to fund our capital needs from outside sources is ultimately impacted by the overall capacity and 
terms available from the banking and securities markets. Given the volatility in these markets, we continue to 
monitor them closely and to take steps to maintain financial flexibility and a reasonable cost of capital. 

On February 28, 2008, one debt rating agency downgraded our rating to below investment grade. 
Downgrades of our current short or long-term ratings to below investment grade would not accelerate scheduled 
principal payments of our existing debt. The downgrade of our rating may cause us to incur higher interest costs 
on our borrowings and our access to the public capital markets could be negatively impacted. Our access to the 
commercial paper market may not be available on terms attractive to us, or at all. 

As of December 31, 2007, we had a working capital deficit of $443 million compared to working capital of 
$562 million as of December 31, 2006. 
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Future Contractual Obligations 

The following table sets forth our best estimates as to the amounts and timing of contractual payments for 
our most significant contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007. The information in the table reflects future 
unconditional payments and is based upon, among other things, the terms of the relevant agreements, appropriate 
classification of items under generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, cunentiy in effect and certain 
assumptions, such as future interest rates. Future events, including additional purchases of our securities and 
refinancing of those securities, could cause actual payments to differ significantiy from these amounts. See 
"—Forward-Looking Statements." 

2013 and 
Future Contractual Obligations Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter 

(in millions) 

Senior notes, bank credit facilities, 
debentures and commercial paper<i' . . . . $36,673 $ 3,175 $2,024 $2,730 $2,917 $4,312 $21,515 

Capital leases<2> 174 29 17 12 12 12 92 
Operating leases^ î 16,276 1,567 1,638 1,493 1,347 1,224 9,007 
Purchase orders and other 

commitmentsHJ 15,388 7.957 2,436 1,381 886 602 2,126 

Total $68,511 $12,728 $6,115 $5,616 $5,162 $6,150 $32,740 

(1) Includes principal and estimated interest payments. Interest payments are based on management's 
expectations for future interest rates. 

(2) Represents capital lea.se payments including interest. 
(3) Includes future lease costs related to cell and switch sites, real estate, network equipment and office space. 
(4) Includes service, spectnan, nenvork capacity and other executoty cotUracts. Excludes blanket purchase 

orders in the amount of $2.4 billion. See below for further discussion. 

The table above does not include remaining costs to be paid in connection with the fulfillment of our 
obligation under the Report and Order. The total minimum cash obligation for the Repoit and Order is 
$2.8 billion. Costs incuned under the Repoit and Order associated with the reconfiguration ofthe 800 MHz band 
may be applied against the $2.8 billion obligation, subject to approval by the TA under the Report and Order. 
Because the final reconciliation and audit ofthe entire reconfiguration obligation outiined in the Repoit and 
Order will not take place until after the completion of all aspects of the reconfiguration process, there can be no 
assurance that we will be given full credit for the expenditures that we have incun-ed under the Report and Order. 
Additionally, since we, the TA and the FCC have not yet reached an agreement on the methodology for 
calculating certain amounts of property, plant and equipment to be submitted for credit associated with 
reconfiguration activity related to our own network, we cannot provide assurance that we will be granted full 
credit for certain of these network costs. However we believe that if we are successful in our appeal of the Third 
MO&O, we estimate, based on our experience to date with the reconfiguration program and on information 
cunently available, that our total direct costs attributable to complete the spectrum reconfiguration will range 
between $2.7 billion and S3.4 billion. This estimate is dependent on significant assumptions including the final 
licensee costs, and costs associated with relocating licensees in the Canadian and Mexican border regions for 
which there are currently no approved border plans. In addition, depending on the outcome of our discussions 
with the TA regarding the calculation of the credit for our internal network costs, our total approved costs would 
increase. Actual results could differ from such estimates. In addition, we are entitled to receive reimbursement 
from the mobile-satellite service licensees for their pro rata portion of our costs of clearing a portion of the 1.9 
GHz spectrum. Those licensees may be unable or unwilling to reimburse us for their share of the costs, which we 
estimate to be approximately $200 million. If we are unsuccessful in our appeal ofthe Third MO&O, we 
anticipate that our costs could exceed $3.4 billion, by an amount that would likely be material. However, we 
believe that it is unlikely we will be required to make a payment to the U.S. Treasury. From the inception of the 
program and through December 31, 2007, we have incuixed approximately $1.1 billion of costs directiy 
attributable to the spectrum reconfiguration program. This amount does not include any of our apportioned 
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internal network costs that we have preliminarily allocated to the reconfiguration program for capacity sites and 
modifications for which we may request credit under the reconfiguration program. 

"Purchase orders and other commitments" include minimum purchases we commit to purchase from 
suppliers over time and/or the unconditional purchase obligations where we guarantee to make a minimum 
payment to suppliers for goods and services regardless of whether suppliers fully deliver them. They include 
agreements for access and backliaul and customer billing services, advertising services and contracts related to 
information technology and customer care outsourcing arrangements. Amounts actually paid under some of these 
"other" agreements will likely be higher due to variable components of these agreements. The more significant 
variable components that determine the ultimate obligation owed include hours contracted, subscribers and other 
factors. In addition, we are party to various arrangements that are conditional in nature and create an obligation to 
make payments only upon the occunence of certain events, such as the delivei-y of functioning software or 
products. Because it is not possible to predict the timing or amounts that may be due under these conditional 
arrangements, no such amounts have been included in the table above. The table above also excludes about 
$2.4 billion of blanket purchase order amounts since their agreement terms are not specified. No time frame is set 
for these purchase orders and they are not legally binding. As a result, they are not firm commitments. 

Our liability for uncertain tax positions was $654 million as of December 31, 2007. Due to the inherent 
uncertainty of the timing of the resolution of the underlying tax positions, it is not practicable to assign this 
liability to any particular years in the table. 

Off-Balance Sheet Financing 

We do not participate in, or secure, financings for any unconsolidated, special purpose entities. 

Future Outlook 

We expect to be able to meet our cunentiy identified funding needs for at least the next 12 months by using: 

• our anticipated cash flows from operating activities as well as our cash, cash equivalents and 
marketable securities on hand; and/or 

• the $2.5 billion of cash that we drew down under our revolving credit facility on February 27, 2008, as 
well as any remaining cash available under the facility. 

In making this assessment, we have considered: 

• anticipated levels of capital expenditures and FCC license acquisitions, including funding required in 
connection with the deployment of next generation technologies and our next generation broadband 
wireless network; 

• anticipated payments under the Repoit and Order, as supplemented; 

• scheduled debt service requirements; and 

• other future contractual obligations. 

If there are material changes in our business plans, or cuiTcntiy prevailing or anticipated economic 
conditions in any of our markets or competitive practices in the mobile wireless communications industry, or if 
other presently unexpected circumstances arise that have a material effect on our cash flow or profitability, 
anticipated cash needs could change significantiy. 

The conclusion that we expect to meet our funding needs for at least the next 12 months as described above 
does not take into account: 

• any significant acquisition transactions or the pursuit of any significant new business opportunities or 
spectrum acquisition strategies; 
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• potential material purchases or redemptions of our outstanding debt securities for cash; and 

• potential material increases in the cost of compliance with regulatory mandates. 

Any of these events or circumstances could involve significant additional funding needs in excess of 
anticipated cash fiows from operating activities and the identified cunentiy available funding sources, including 
existing cash on hand and bonowings available under our existing revolving credit facility. If existing capital 
resources are not sufficient to meet these funding needs, it would be necessary to raise additional capital to meet 
those needs. Our ability to raise additional capital, if necessary, is subject to a variety of additional factors that 
cannot currently be predicted with certainty, including: 

• the commercial success of our operations; 

• the volatility and demand of the capital markets; 

• the market prices of our securities; and 

• tax law restrictions related to the spin-off of Embarq that may limit our ability to raise capital from the 
sale of our equity securities. 

We have in the past and may in the future have discussions with third parties regarding potential sources of 
new capital to satisfy actual or anticipated financing needs. At present, other than the existing anangements that 
have been described in this report, we have no legally binding commitments or understandings with any third 
parties to obtain any material amount of additional capital. 

The above discussion is subject to the risks and other cautionary and qualifying factors set forth under 
"— Forward-Looking Statements" and Part I, Item 1A "Risk Factors" in this report. 

Financial Strategies 

General Risk Management Policies 

We primarily use derivative instruments for hedging and risk management purposes. Hedging activities may 
be done for various purposes, including, but not hmited to, mitigating the risks associated with an asset, liability, 
committed transaction or probable forecasted transaction. We seek to miniinize counteiparty credit risk through 
stringent credit approval and review processes, credit support agreements, continual review and monitoring of all 
counterparties, and thorough legal review of contracts. We also control exposure to market risk by regularly 
monitoring changes in hedge positions under normal and stress conditions to ensure they do not exceed 
established limits. 

Our board of directors has adopted a financial risk management policy that authorizes us to enter into 
derivative transactions, and all transactions comply with the policy. We do not purchase or hold any derivative 
financial instruments for speculative puiposes with the exception of equity rights obtained in connection with 
commercial agreements or strategic investments, usually in the form of wairants to purchase common shares. 

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

We are primarily exposed to the market risk associated with unfavorable movements in interest rates, 
foreign currencies, and equity prices. The risk inherent in our market risk sensitive instruments and positions is 
the potential loss arising from adverse changes in those factors. 

Interest Rate Risk 

The communications industry is a capital intensive, technology driven business. We are subject to interest 
rate risk primarily associated with our bonowings. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates could 
adversely affect earnings and cash flows. Specific interest rate risk include: the risk of increasing interest rates on 
short-term debt; the risk of increasing interest rates for planned new fixed rate long-term financings; and the risk 
of increasing interest rates for planned refinancings using long-term fixed rate debt. 
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Cash Flow Hedges 

We enter into interest rate swap agreements designated as cash flow hedges to reduce the impact of interest 
rate movements on future interest expense by effectively converting a portion of our floating-rate debt to a fixed-
rate. As of December 31, 2007, we had no outstanding interest rate cash flow hedges. 

Fair Value Hedges 

We enter into interest rate swap agreements to manage exposure to interest rate movements and achieve an 
optimal mixture of floating and fixed-rate debt while minimizing liquidity risk. The interest rate swap agreements 
designated as fair value hedges effectively convert our fixed-rate debt to a floating-rate by receiving fixed rate 
amounts in exchange for floating rate interest payments over the life ofthe agreement without an exchange ofthe 
underlying principal amount. As of December 31, 2007, we had outstanding interest rate swap agreements that 
were designated as fair value hedges. 

About 86% of our debt as of December 31, 2007 was fixed-rate debt excluding interest rate swaps. While 
changes in interest rates impact the fair value ofthis debt, there is no impact to earnings and cash flows because 
we intend to hold these obligations to maturity unless market and other conditions are favorable. 

As of December 31, 2007, we held fair value interest rate swaps with a notional value of $1 billion. These 
swaps were entered into as hedges of the fair value of a portion of our senior notes. These interest rate swaps 
have maturities ranging from 2008 to 2012. On a semiannual basis, we pay a floating rate of interest equal to the 
six-month LIBOR plus a fixed spread and receive an average interest rate equal to the coupon rates stated on the 
underlying senior notes. On December 31, 2007, the rate we would pay averaged 8.0% and the rate we would 
receive was 7.2%. Assuming a one percentage point increase in the prevailing forwai'd yield curve, the fair value 
of the interest rate swaps and the underlying senior notes would change by $21 million. These interest rate swaps 
met all the requirements for perfect effectiveness under derivative accounting rules as all ofthe critical terms of 
the swaps perfectly matched the conesponding terms of the hedged debt; therefore, there is no net effect to 
earnings and cash flows for any fair value fluctuations. 

We perform interest rate sensitivity analyses on our variable rate debt including interest rate swaps. These 
analyses indicate that a one percentage point change in interest rates would have an annual pre-tax impact of 
$39 million on our consolidated statements of operations and cash flows as of December 31, 2007. While our 
variable-rate debt may impact earnings and cash flows as interest rates change, it is not subject to changes in fair 
vahies. 

We also perfonn a sensitivity analysis on the fair market value of our outstanding debt. A 10% decline in 
market interest rates would cause a $900 million increase in the fair market value of our debt to $22.9 billion. 
This analysis includes the hedged debt. 

Foreign Currency Risk 

We also enter into forward contracts and options in foreign cunencies to reduce the impact of changes in 
foreign exchange rates. Our foreign exchange risk management program focuses on reducing transaction 
exposure to optimize consolidated cash flow. We use foreign euiteney derivatives to hedge our foreign currency 
exposure related to settlement of international telecommunications access charges and the operation of our 
international subsidiaries. The dollar equivalent of our net foreign cunency payables from international 
settlements was $ 16 million and the net foreign cunency receivables from international operations was 
$12 million as of December 31, 2007. The potential immediate pre-tax loss to us that would result from a 
hypothetical 10% change in foreign cuirency exchange rates based on these positions would be insignificant. 
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Equity Risk 

We are exposed to market risk as it relates to changes in the market value of our investments. We invest in 
equity instruments of public and private companies for operational and strategic business purposes. These 
securities are subject to significant fluctuations in fair market value due to volatility of the stock market and 
industries in which the companies operate. These securities, which are classified in investments and marketable 
securities on the consolidated balance sheets, include equity method investments, investments in private 
securities, available-for-sale securities and equity derivative instruments. 

Additional information regarding our derivative instruments can be found in note 9 ofthe Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

In certain business transactions, we are granted wan-ants to purchase the securities of other companies at 
fixed rates. These warrants are supplemental to the terms of the business transaction and are not designated as 
hedging instruments. 

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

The consolidated financial statements required by this item begin on page F-1 of this annual report on 
Form 10-K and are incorporated herein by reference. The financial statement schedule required under 
Regulation S-X is filed pursuant to Item 15 of this annual report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by 
reference. 

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

Not applicable 

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

Disclosure controls are procedures that are designed with the objective of ensuring that information required 
to be disclosed in our reports under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, such as this Form 10-K, is reported in 
accordance with the SEC's rules. Disclosure controls are also designed with the objective of ensuring that such 
information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Acting 
Chief Financial Officer to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. 

In connection with the preparation of this Form 10-K as of December 31, 2007, under the supervision and 
with the participation of our tnanagement, including our Chief Executive Officer and Acting Chief Financial 
Officer, we carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls 
and procedures. Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Acting Chief Financial Officer 
concluded that the design and operation of the disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of 
December 31, 2007 in providing reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in reports we file 
or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is accumulated and communicated to management, 
including the Chief Executive Officer and Acting Chief Financial Officer to allow timely decisions regarding 
required disclosure and in providing reasonable assurance that the information is recorded, processed, 
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms. 

We continue to update our internal control over financial reporting as necessary to accommodate any 
modifications to our business processes or accounting procedures. During the fourth quarter 2007, we migrated 
certain customers onto a single billing platform. There have been no other changes in our internal control over 
financial reporting that occuned during the fourth quarter 2007 that have materially affected, or are reasonably 
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 
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V 

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial 
reporting. Our internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to our management and 
board of directors regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes. 

Our management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial 
reporting as of December 31, 2007. This assessment was based on the criteria set forth by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission, or COSO, in Internal Control—Integrated Framework. 
Based on this assessment, management believes that, as of December 31, 2007, our internal control over financial 
reporting was effective. 

Our independent registered public accounting firm has issued a repoit on the effectiveness of our internal 
control over financial reporting. This report appears on page F-2. 

Item 9B. Other Information 

Not applicable 
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PART III 

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 

The information required by this item regarding our directors is incoiporated by reference to the information 
set forth under the captions "Election of Directors—Nominees for Director," "—Board Committees and Director 
Meetings—The Audit Committee" and "—Board Committees and Director Meetings—The Nominating and 
Corporate Governance Committee" in our proxy statement relating to our 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, 
which will be filed with the SEC, and with respect to family relationships, to Part I of this report under 
"Executive Officers of the Registrant." The information required by this item regarding our executive officers is 
incoiporated by reference to Part I of this report under the caption "Executive Officers of the Registrant." The 
information required by this item regarding compliance with Section 16(a) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 
1934 by our directors, executive officers and holders often percent of a registered class of our equity securities is 
incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the caption "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership 
Reporting Compliance" in our proxy statement relating to our 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, which will 
be filed with the SEC. 

We have adopted the Sprint Nextel Code of Conduct, which applies to all of our directors, officers and 
employees. The Code of Conduct is publicly available on our website at http;//www.sprint.com/governance. If 
we make any amendment to our Code of Conduct, other than a technical, administrative or non-substantive 
amendment, or if we grant any waiver, including any implicit waiver, from a provision of the Code of Conduct, 
that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or 
controller, we will disclose the nature ofthe amendment or waiver on our website at the same location. Also, we 
may elect to disclose the amendment or waiver in a cuiTent report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation 

The information required by this item regarding compensation of executive officers and directors is 
incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the captions "Election of Directors—^Compensation 
of Directors," "Executive Compensation" and "Human Capital and Compensation Committee Report" in our 
proxy statement relating to our 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC. No 
information is required by this item regarding compensation committee interlocks. 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder 
Matters 

The information required by this item, other than the equity compensation plan information presented 
below, is incoiporated by reference to the information set forth under the captions "Security Ownership of 
Certain Beneficial Owners" and "Security Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers" in our proxy 
statement relating to our 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC. 

Equity Compensation Plan Information 

Currently we sponsor two active equity incentive plans, the 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan, or 2007 Plan and 
our Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or ESPP. We also sponsor the 1997 Long-Term Incentive Program, or the 
1997 Program; the Nextel Incentive Equity Plan, or the Nextel Plan; and the Management Incentive Stock Option 
Plan, or MISOP. On May 8, 2007, our shareholders approved the 2007 Plan, under which we may grant stock 
options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares, performance units 
and other equity-based and cash awards to our employees, outside directors and certain other service providers. 
Under the 2007 Plan, the Human Capita! and Compensation Committee, or HC&CC, of our board of directors, or 
one or more executive officers should the HC&CC so authorize, will determine the terms of each equity-based 
award. On February 11, 2008, we made certain amendments to the 2007 Plan to comply with new tax 
regulations, including new regulations under Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. No new grants can be 
made under the 1997 Program, the Nextel Plan or the MISOP. 
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The following table provides information about the shares of Series 1 common stock that may be issued 
upon exercise of awards as of December 31, 2007. 

Plan Category 

Equity compensation plans approved 
by shareholders of Series 1 
common stock 

Equity compensation plans not 
approved by shareholders of Series 
I common stock 

Total 

Number of Securities 
To be Issued 

Upon Exercise of 
Outstanding Options, 
Warrants and Rights 

116,033,416(1X2) 

47,647,671(8) 

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price of 

Outstanding Options, 
Warrants and Rights 

(b) 

$24.91(3) 

21.11 

Number of Securities 
Remaining Available for 
Future Issuance Under 

Equity Compensation Plans 
(Excluding Securities 

Reflected in Column (a)) 

(c) 

219,861,372(4)(5)(6)(7) 

163,681,087 219,861,372 

(1) Includes 3,754,798 shares covered by options and 1,157,250 restricted stock units under the 2007 Plan, 
69,530,149 shares covered by options and 10,172,641 restricted stock units outstanding underthe 1997 
Program and 30,417,950 shares covered by options outstanding under the MISOP. Also includes 
8,508 shares ofcotmnon .stock issuable under the 2007 Plan as a result ofthe purchase of those shares by 
directors with fourth quarter 2007 fees and purchase rights to acquire 992,120 shares of common stock 
accrued at December 31, 2007 wider the ESPP. Under the ESPP, each eligible employee may purchase 
common .stock at quarterly intervals at a purchase price per share equal to 90% ofthe market value on the 
last business day ofthe offering period. 

(2) Included in the total of 116,033,416 shares are 8,508 shares issued to directors underthe 2007 Plan and 
1,157,250 restricted stock units under the 2007 Plan, which will be counted against the 2007 Plan maximum 
in a 2.5 to 1 ratio. 

(3) The weighted average exercise price does not take into account the shares of common stock issuable upon 
vesting of restricted stock units issued under the 1997 Program or the 2007 Plan. These restricted stock 
units have no exercise price. The weighted average price also does not take into account the 8,508 .shares of 
common .stock issuable as a result ofthe purchase of those shares by directors with fourth quarter 2007 
fees; the purcha.se price of these shares was $13.09 for each share. The weighted average purchase price 
also does not take into account the 992,120 shares of common stock issuable as a result ofthe purchase 
rights accrued under the ESPP; the purchase price of these shares was $11.78 for each share. 

(4) Of these shares, 200,570,102 shares of common stock were available under the 2007 Plan, of which 
7,641,257 camefrotn the 1997 Program, the Nextel Plan, and the MISOP. 

(5) Includes 19,291,270 shares of common stock available for issuance under the ESPP after issuance ofthe 
992,120 shares purchased in the fourth quarter 2007 offering. See note 1 above. 

(6) No new awards may be granted under the 1997 Program or the Nextel Plan after April 15, 2007. 
(7) No new options may be granted under the MISOP and therefore this figure does not include any shares of 

our common stock that may be issued under the MISOP. Most options outstanding under the MISOP, 
however, grant the holder the right to receive additional options to purchase our common stock ifthe 
holder, when exercising a MISOP option, makes payment ofthe purchase price using shares of previously 
owned .stock. The additional option gives the holder the right to purchase the number of shares of our 
coninwn stock utilized in payment ofthe purchase price and tax withholding. The exercise price for this 
option is equal to the market price ofthe stock on the date the option is granted, and this option becomes 
exercisable one year from the date the original option is exercised. This option does not include a right to 
receive additional options. 

(8) Consists of options outstanding under the Nextel Plan. There are no deferred shares outstanding under the 
Nextel Plan. 
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 

The information required by this item is incoiporated by reference to the information set forth under the 
captions "Certain Relationships and Other Transactions" and "Election of Directors—Independence of Directors' 
in our proxy statement relating to our 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC. 

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services 

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the 
caption "Ratification of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm" in our proxy statement relating to our 
2008 annual meeting of shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC. 
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PART IV 

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 

1. The consolidated financial statements of Sprint Nextel filed as part of this report are listed in the Index to 
Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule. 

2. The financial statement schedule of Sprint Nextel filed as part of this report is listed in the Index to 
Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule. 

3. The following exhibits are filed as part of this report: 

Incorporated by Reference 

Exhibit No. Exhibit Description Form 
SEC 

File No. Exhibit Filing Date 
Filed 

Herewith 

(2) Plan of Acquisition, Reorganization, Arrangement, Liquidation or Succession 

2.1̂ ==̂  Separation and Distribution Agreement by 10-12B/A 001-32732 2.1 
and between Sprint Nextel Corporation 
and Embarq Corporation, dated as of May 
1,2006 

05/02/2006 

(3) Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of 
Incorporation 

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws 

-K 001-04721 

•K 001-04721 

(4) Instruments Defining the Rights of Sprint Nextel Security Holders 

4.1 The rights of Sprint Nextel's equity 8-K 001-04721 
security holders are defined in the Fifth, 
Sixth, Seventh and Eighth Articles of 
Sprint Nextel's Articles of Incorporation. 
See Exhibit 3.1 

4.2 Provision regarding Kansas Control Share 8-K 001-04721 
Acquisition Act is in Article 2, Section 
2.5 ofthe Bylaws. Provisions regarding 
Stockholders' Meetings are set forth in 
Article 3 ofthe Bylaws. See Exhibit 3.2 

4.3.1 Indenture, dated as of October 1, 1998, 
among Sprint Capital Corporation, Sprint 
Corporation and Bank One, N.A., as 
Trustee 

4.3.2 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
January 15, 1999, among Sprint Capital 
Corporation, Sprint Corporation and Bank 
One, N.A., as Trustee 

4.3.3 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as 8-K 001-04721 
of October 15, 2001, among Sprint 
Capital Corporation, Sprint Corporation 
and Bank One, N.A., as Trustee 

3.1 08/18/2005 

3 02/28/2007 

3.1 08/18/2005 

3 02/28/2007 

10-Q 001-04721 4(b) 11/02/1998 

8-K 001-04721 4(b) 02/03/1999 

99 10/29/2001 
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Exhibit No. Exhibit Description 

(10) Material Agreements: 

10.1 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as 
of November 23, 1998, among Sprint 
Corporation, TCI Telephony Services, 
Inc., Cox Communications, Inc. and 
Comcast Corporation. 

10.2.1 '̂̂ "̂  Letter Agreement between Motorola, Inc. 
and Nextel, dated November 4, 1991 

Form 

Incorporated by Reference 

SEC Filed 
File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith 

S-3/A 333-64241 10.2 01/22/1999 

S-1 33-43415 10.47 11/15/1991 

10.2.2=̂ =̂ '* iDEN Infrastructure Supply Agreement 10-Q 
between Motorola and Nextel, dated April 
13, 1999 

000-19656 10.2 08/16/1999 

10.2.3*'̂ ''̂ ' Term Sheet for Subscriber Units and 
Services Agreement, dated December 31, 
2003 between Nextel and Motorola 

10.2.4 Second Extension Amendment to the 
iDEN Infrastructure 5 Year Supply 
Agreement, dated December 14, 2004, 
between Motorola, Inc. and Nextel 
Communications, Inc. 

10.2.5=̂ =̂ ^̂  Amendment Seven to the Term Sheet for 
Subscriber Units and Services Agreement, 
dated December 14, 2004, between 
Motorola, Inc. and Nextel 
Communications, Inc. 

10.3 Credit Agreement, dated as of December 
19, 2005, among Sprint Nextel 
Corporation, Sprint Capital Corporation 
and Nextel Communications, Inc., the 
lenders named therein, and JP Morgan 
Chase Bank, N.A. as Administrative 
Agent 

(10) Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements: 

10.4 Sprint Nextel Short-Term Incentive Plan 10-K 

10.5 Summarv of 2007 Short-Term Incentive 10-K 

10-Q 000-19656 10.1.2 05/10/2004 

10-K 001-04721 10.1.20 03/11/2005 

10-K 001-04721 10.1.21 03/11/2005 

8-K 001-04721 10.1 12/21/2005 

Summary of 2007 Short-Term Incentive 
Plan 

10.6 Sprint Nextel 2006-2007 Integration 
Overachievement Plan 

10.7 Sprint Nextel 1997 Long-Term Stock 
Incentive Program, as amended 

10.8 Form of 2004 Award Agreement 
(awarding stock options and restricted 
stock units) with Gary D. Forsee 

001-04721 10.4 03/07/2006 

001-04721 10.5 03/01/2007 

8-K 001-04721 10.1 02/22/2006 

10-Q 001-04721 lO(aa) 11/09/2005 

10-Q 001-04721 10(a) 11/09/2004 
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Exhibit No. 

10.9 

10.10 

10.11 

10.12 

10.13 

10.14 

10.15 

10.16 

10.17 

10.18 

Exhibit Description 

10.19 

10.20 

10.21 

Form of 2004 Award Agreement (awarding 
stock options and restricted stock units) with 
other Executive Officers 

Form of 2004 Award Agreement (awarding 
restricted stock units ) with Directors 

Form of 2005 Award Agreement (awarding 
restricted stock units) with Directors 

Form of 2005 Award Agreement (awarding 
stock options and restricted stock units) with 
Gary D. Forsee 

Fonn of 2005 Award Agreement (awarding 
stock options and restricted stock units) wilh 
other Executive Officers 

Form of Award Agreement (awarding stock 
options and restricted stock units) with Gary 
D. Forsee 

Form of 2006 Award Agreement (awarding 
stock options ) with Gary D. Forsee 

Form of Award Agreement for Restricted 
Stock Unit Awards under the 1997 Long-
Term Stock Incentive Program for 2006 for 
non-employee directors of Sprint Nextel 

Form of Award Agreement for Restricted 
Stock Unit Awards under the 1997 Long-
Term Stock Incentive program for 2006 for 
Gary D. Forsee 

Form of Award Agreement for Restricted 
Stock Unit Awards under the 1997 Long-
Tenn Stock Incentive Program for 2006 for 
the other executive officers with Nextel 
employment agreements 

Form of Award Agreement for Restricted 
Stock Unit Awards under the 1997 Long-
Term Stock Incentive Program for 2006 for 
other executive officers 

Fonn of Award Agreement for Restricted 
Stock Unit Awards under the 1997 Long-
Term Stock Incentive Program for retention 
awards made to certain executive officers 

Summary of 2007 Long-Term Incentive 
Plan 

Incorporated by Reference 
SEC Filed 

Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith 

10-Q 001-04721 10(b) 11/09/2004 

10-Q 001-04721 10(c) 11/09/2004 

•K 001-04721 10.2 02/14/2005 

10-K 001-04721 lO(dd) 03/11/2005 

10-K 001-04721 lO(ff) 03/11/2005 

•K 001-04721 10.2 03/15/2005 

•K 001-04721 10.2 02/10/2006 

•K 001-04721 10.1 06/16/2006 

•K 001-04721 10.3 06/16/2006 

•K 001-04721 10.4 06/16/2006 

8-K 001-04721 10.5 06/16/2006 

8-K 001-04721 10.2 07/27/2006 

10-K 001-04721 10.23 03/01/2007 
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Incorporated by Reference 

Kxhibit No. 

10.22 

Exlilblt Description Form 
SEC 

File No. Exhibit Filing Date 
Filed 

Herewith 

10.23 

10.24 

10.25 

10.26.1 

10.26.2 

10.26.3 

10.27 

10.28 

10.29 

10.30.1 

10.30.2 

10.30.3 

Form of Award Agreement (awarding stock 
options and restricted stock units) under the 
1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive program 
for Gary D. Forsee 

Form of Award Agreement (awarding stock 
options and restricted stock units) under the 
1997 Long-Term Incentive Program for 
2007 for executive officers with Nextel 
employment agreements 

Form of Award Agreement (awarding stock 
options and restricted stock units) under the 
1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Program 
for 2007 for other executive officers 

Management Incentive Stock Option Plan, 
as amended 

Employment Agreement, dated as of March 
19, 2003, by and among Sprint Corporation, 
Sprint/United Management Company and 
Gary D. Forsee 

Amendment No. 1, to the Employment 
Agreement of Gary D. Forsee, dated as of 
December 15,2004 

Amendment No. 2, to the employment 
Agreement of Gary D. Forsee, dated as of 
March 15,2005 

Employment Agreement, dated April 1, 
2004, between Paul N. Saleh and Nextel 
Communications, Inc. 

Employment Agreement, dated August 28, 
2001, between Sprint Corporation and 
Timothy E. Kelly 

Employment Agreement, dated December 3, 
2003, by and among Sprint Corporation, 
Sprint/United Management Company and 
Kathryn A. Walker 

Employment Agreement, dated April 1, 
2004, between Bany J. West and Nextel 
Communications, Inc. 

First Amendment to the Employment 
Agreement of Barry J. West, dated July 25, 
2006 

Second Amendment to the Employment 
Agreement of Barry J. West, dated February 
28, 2007 

10-K 001-04721 10.24 03/01/2007 

10-K 001-04721 10.25 03/01/2007 

10-K 001-04721 10.26 03/01/2007 

10-Q 001-04721 10(d) 05/07/2004 

10-Q 001-04721 10(c) 05/14/2003 

;-K 001-04721 10 12/17/2004 

10-Q 001-04721 10(c) 05/09/2005 

10-Q 001-19656 10.2.2 05/10/2004 

10-Q 001-04721 10(h) 11/09/2004 

10-K 001-04721 10 (x) 03/09/2004 

lO-Q 000-19656 10.2.3 05/10/2004 

8-K 001-04721 10.3 07/27/2006 

10-Q 001 -04721 10.9 05/09/2007 
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V ,.,. 
ixhibit No. 

10.30.4 

10.31 

10.32 

10.33 

10.34 

10.35 

10.36 

10.37 

10.38 

10.39 

10.40 

10.41 

10.42.1 

10.42.2 

10.43 

Exhibit Description Form 

Incorporated by Reference 

SEC Filed 
File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith 

Third Amendment to the Employment 
Agreement of Baixy J. West, dated 
December 31, 2007 

Employment Agreement, dated as of March 
15, 2005, by and among Nextel 
Communications, Inc. and Richard LeFave 

Employment Agreement, dated April 1, 
2004, between Leonard J. Kennedy and 
Nextel Communications, Inc. 

Employment Agreement, dated as of March 
15, 2005, by and among Nextel 
Communications, Inc. and William G. 
Arendt 

Employment Agreement, dated as of 
February 12, 2007, between Sprint Nextel 
Corporation and Mark Angelino 

Employment Agreement, dated February 6, 
2007, between Sprint Nextel Corporation 
and Richard Lindahl 

Employment Agreement, dated June 26, 
2007, between Sprint Nextel Corporation 
and Keith O. Cowan 

Sprint Nextel Defened Compensation Plan, 
as amended and restated effective May 17, 
2006 

Sprint Executive Defened Compensation 
Plan, as amended, including summary of 
certain amendments to the Executive 
Deferred Compensation Plan 

Amended and Restated Centel Directors 
Deferred Compensation Plan 

Director's Deferred Fee Plan, as amended 

Sprint Nextel Corporation Change in 
Control Severance Plan dated January 1, 
2007, in which all of our executive officers, 
except Gary D. Forsee, participated 

10-K 001-04721 10.32 03/07/2006 

10-Q 000-19656 10.2.4 05/10/2004 

8-K 001-04721 10.2 03/15/2005 

10-K 001-04721 10.42 03/01/2007 

10-K 001-04721 10.43 03/01/2007 

10-Q 001-04721 10.1 08/09/2007 

10-Q 001-04721 10.7 08/09/2006 

•K 001-04721 10.2 10/12/2004 

10-Q 001-04721 10(c) 05/07/2004 

8-K 001-04721 10.1 02/14/2005 

10-K 001-04721 10.49 03/01/2007 

Sprint Supplemental Executive retirement 
Plan, as amended 

Summary of Amendments to the Sprint 
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 

10-K/A 001-04721 10(1) 03/05/2002 

10-Q 001-04721 lO(ee) 11/09/2005 

Retirement Plan for Directors, as amended 10-K 001-04721 10(u) 03/11/1997 
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Exhibit No. 

10.44 

10.45 

10.46 

10.47 

10.48 

10.49 

10.50 

10.51 

10.52 

10.53 

12 

21 

23 

31.1 

31.2 

Exhibit Description 

Form of Indemnification Agreement 
between Sprint Nextel and its Directors and 
Officers 

Amended and Restated 2007 Omnibus 
Incentive Plan, effective as of February 11, 
2008 

Form of Award Agreement (awarding 
restricted stock units) under the 2007 
Omnibus Incentive Plan for Non-Employee 
Directors 

Restricted Stock Unit Evidence of Award 
under the 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan for 
Paul N. Saleh, dated June 25, 2007 

Form of Evidence of Restricted Stock Unit 
Award under the 2007 Omnibus Incentive 
Plan for Outside Directors 

Evidence of Sign-On Award under the 2007 
Omnibus Incentive Plan for Keith Cowan 

Evidence of Pro-Rated 2007 Long Term 
Incentive Plan Award under the 2007 
Omnibus Incentive Plan for Keith Cowan 

Award Summary of Equity Award for 
Robert R. Bennett, dated August 17, 2007 

Employment Agreement, dated December 
17, 2007, between Daniel R. Hesse and 
Sprint Nextel Corporation 

Summary of Benefits and Fees for Directors 

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to 
Combined Fixed Charges and Prefen-ed 
Stock Dividends 

Subsidiaries ofthe Registrant 

Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent 
Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Certification of Chief Executive officer 
Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
Rule I3a-14(a) 

Certification of Acting Chief Financial 
Officer Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934 Rule 13a-14(a) 

Incorporated by Reference 
SEC Filed 

Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith 

10-K 001-04721 10.55 03/01/2007 

10-Q 001 -04721 10.10 05/09/2007 

10-Q 001-04721 10.2 08/09/2007 

10-Q 001-04721 10.1 11/09/2007 

10-Q 001-04721 10.2 11/09/2007 

10-Q 001-04721 10.3 11/09/2007 

10-Q 001 -04721 10.4 11/09/2007 

8-K 001-04721 10.1 12/20/2007 
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Incorporated by Reference 

Exhibit No. 

32.1 

32.2 

Exhibit Description 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer 
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As 
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 

Certification of Acting Chief Financial 
Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, 
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 

Form 
SEC 

File No. Exhibit Filing Date 
Filed 

Herewith 

Filed herewith 
Schedules and/or exhibits not filed will be furnished to the SEC upon request. 
Portions of this exhibit have been omitted and filed separately with the SEC pursuant to a request for 
confidential treatment. 

Sprint Nextel will furnish to the SEC, upon request, copies of instruments defining the rights of holders of 
long-term debt not exceeding 10% of the total assets of Sprint Nextel. 



SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant 
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 
(Registrant) 

By /s/ DANIEL R. HESSE 

Daniel R. Hesse 
Chief Executive Officer and President 

/s/ WILLIAM G. ARENDT 

William G. Arendt 
Acting Chief Financial Officer and 
Senior Vice President & Controller 

Principal Accounting Officer 

Date: February 29, 2008 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by 
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 29"i day of February, 2008. 

/s/ DANIEL R. HESSE 

Daniel R. Hesse 
Chief Executive Officer and President 

/s/ WILLIAM G . ARENDT 

William G. Arendt 
Acting Chief Financial Officer and 
Senior Vice President & Controller 

Principal Accounting Officer 
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SIGNATURES 
SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

(Registrant) 

Pursuant to the requirements ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the 
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 29̂ ^ day of February, 2008. 

/s/ 
J 

h i 

/s/ 

/s/ 

As/ 

JAMES H. HANCE, JR. 

amcs H. Hance, Jr., Chairman 

/s/ KEITH J. BANE 

Keith J. Bane, Director 

RojjER'j' R. B E N N E T T 

Robert R. Bennett, Director 

GORDON M . BETHUNE 

Gordon M. Bethune, Director 

FRANK M. DRENDEL 

Frank M. Drendel, Director 

LARRY C. GLASSCOCK 

/ s / D A N I E L R . H E S S E 

Daniel R. Hesse, Director 

/s/ V. JANET HILL 

V. Janet Hill, Director 

Isl IRVINE O. HOCKADAY, JR. 

Irvine O. Hockaday, Jr., Director 

/ s / L I N D A K . L O R I M E R 

Linda K. Lorimer, Director 

/s/ RODNEY O'NEAL 

Rodney O'Neal, Director 

Isl WILLIAM H. SWANSON 

Larry C. Glasscock, Director William H. Swanson, Director 

Isl RALPH V. WHITWORTH 

Ralph V. Whitworth, Director 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Scliedule 

Page 
Reference 

Consolidated Financial Statements 
Report of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-2 
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 F-3 
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 F-4 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 F-5 
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 

2005 F-6 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-8 

Financial Statement Schedule 
Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 

2005 F-57 

F-1 



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Spnnt Nextel Corporation: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets ofSprint Nextel Corporation and subsidiaries as 
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, cash flows and shareholders' 
equity for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007. In connection with our audits of the 
consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the financial statement schedule. Schedule II—Valuation and 
Qualifying Accounts. We also have audited Sprint Nextel Corporation's internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Sprint Nextel Corporation's management is 
responsible for these consolidated fmancial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting, included in Management's Report on Intemal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule and an opinion on the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective intemal control over financial 
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits ofthe consolidated financial statements included 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. Our audit of intemal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
intemal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of fmancial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's intemal control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions ofthe assets ofthe company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, intemal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls 
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Sprint Nextel Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of 
their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the 
related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as 
a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein. Also in our opinion, Sprint Nextel 
Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. 

As discussed in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of quantifying 
errors in 2006 and adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement 
Obligations, in the fourth quarter of 2005. 

/s/ KPMG LLP 

McLean, Virginia 
February 29. 2008 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

December 31, 

2007 2006 

(in millions) 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,246 $ 2,046 
Marketable securities 194 15 
Accounts and notes receivable, net 4,196 4,690 
Device and accessory inventory 938 1,176 
Deferred tax assets 447 923 
Prepaid expenses and other cuirent assets 640 1,454 

Total cuirent assets 8,661 10,304 
Investments 165 253 
Property, plant and equipment, net 26,496 25,868 
Intangible assets 

Goodwill 935 30,904 
FCC licenses and other 21,123 19,935 
Customer relationships, net 4,203 7,256 
Other definite lived intangible assets, net 1,835 1,962 

Other assets 691 679 

$ 64,109 $97,161 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 3,481 $ 3,173 
Accrued expenses and other cuirent liabilities 3,962 5,426 
Cunent portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations 1,661 1,143 

Total cuirent liabilities 9,104 9,742 
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 20,469 21,011 
Deferred tax liabilities 8,689 10,095 
Other liabilities 3,848 3,182 

Total liabilities 42,110 44,030 

Commitments and contingencies 
Shareholders' equity 

Common shares, voting, par value $2.00 per share, 6.5 billion shares authorized, 
2.951 billion shares issued and 2.845 billion shares outstanding and 2.951 billion 
shares issued and 2.897 billion shares outstanding 5,902 5,902 

Paid-in capital 46,693 46,664 
Treasury shares, at cost (2,161) (925) 
(Accumulated deficit) retained earnings (28,324) 1,638 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ( I l l ) (148) 

Total shareholders' equity 21,999 53,131 

$ 64,109 $97,161 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Year Ended December 31, 

2007 2006 2005 

(in millions, except per share amounts) 

Net operating revenues $ 40,146 $41,003 $28,771 
Operating expenses 

Cost of services and products (exclusive of depreciation included 
below) 17,191 16,763 12,537 

Selling, general and administrative 12,673 11,957 8,850 
Severance, exit costs and asset impairments 440 207 43 
Goodwill impairment 29,729 — — 
Depreciation 5,711 5,738 3,864 
Amortization 3,312 3,854 1,336 

69,056 38,519 26,630 

Operating income (loss) (28,910) 2,484 2,141 

Other income (expense) 
Interest expense (1,433) (1,533) (1,294) 
Interest income 151 301 236 
Equity in (losses) earnings of unconsolidated investees, net (3) (6) 107 
Realized gain on sale or exchange of investments, net 253 205 62 
Other, net (3) 32 39 

(1,035) (1,001) (850) 

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes (29,945) 1,483 1,291 
Income tax benefit (expense) 365 (488) (470) 

Income (loss) from continuing operations (29,580) 995 821 
Discontinued operations, net — 334 980 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net — — (16) 

Net income (loss) (29,580) 1,329 1,785 
Preferred share dividends — (2) (7) 

Income (loss) available to common shareholders $ (29,580) $ 1,327 $ 1,778 

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share 
Continuing operations $ (10.31) $ 0.34 $ 0.40 
Discontinued operations, net — 0.11 0.48 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net — — (0.01) 

Total $ (10.31) $ 0.45 $ 0.87 

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 2,868 2,950 2,033 

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 2,868 2,972 2,054 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Year Ended December 31, 

~2007 2006 2005 ' 
(in millions) 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Net (loss) income $(29,580) $ 1,329 $ 1,785 
Adju.slments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Income from discontinued operations — (334) (980) 
Goodwill impairment 29,729 — — 
Depreciation and amortization 9,023 9,592 5,200 
Provision for losses on accounts receivable 920 656 388 
Share-based compensation expense 265 338 254 
Losses on impairment of long-lived assets 163 69 44 
Gain on sale or exchange of investments, net (253) (205) (62) 
Deferred income taxes (360) 468 798 
Other, net (194) (70) 108 
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions: 

Accounts and notes receivable (504) (582) (364) 
Inventories and other cuirenl assets 182 (254) 23 
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (471) (1,024) 380 
Increase in communications lowers lease liability — — 1,195 
Non-cun-ent assets and liabilities, net 325 72 (114) 

Net cash provided by continuing operations 9,245 10,055 8,655 

Net cash provided by discontinued operations — 903 2,024 

Net cash provided by operating activities 9,245 10,958 10,679 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Capital expenditures (6,322) (7,556) (5,057) 
Expenditures relating to FCC licenses and other intangible assets (844) (822) (150) 
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (287) (10,481) (188) 
Proceeds from sale of Embarq notes —• 4,447 — 
Proceeds from spin-off of local communications business, net •— 1,821 — 
Proceeds from sale of investments 329 752 380 
Purchases of investments (8) •— —• 
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketable securities 15 1,657 808 
Purchases of marketable securities (194) (527) (821) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and FCC licen.ses 42 90 268 
Cash collateral for securities loan agreements 866 (866) — 
Other, net 26 93 36 

Net cash used in investing activities (6,377) (11,392) (4,724) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Borrowings under credit facility 750 — 3,200 
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities 750 1,992 
Purchase and retirements of debt (1,392) (4,342) (1,170) 
Retirement of bank facility term loan — (3>700) (3,200) 
Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper 6,008 4,618 — 
Maturities of commercial paper (6,143) (4,104) — 
Payments of securities loan agreeinents (866) 866 — 
Proceeds from issuance of common shares 344 405 432 
Purchase of common shares (1,833) (1,643) — 
Retirement of redeemable preferred shares —• (247) — 
Dividends paid (286) (296) (525) 
Olher, net — 28 35 

Net cash used in financing activities (2,668) (6,423) (1,228) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 200 (6,857) 4,727 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,046 8,903 4,176 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 2,246 $ 2,046 $ 8,903 

See Notes to Consol ida ted F inanc i a l Statements 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
(in millions) 

T, (Accumulated Accumulated 
c T ' " ^ ^ Deficit)/ Other 

Common Shares p^i^.j^ ^iiares Comprehensive Retained Comprehensive 
Shares<'» Amount Capital Shares Amount Income (Loss) Earnings (Loss) 

Balance, January 1,2005 1,475 $2,950 $11,873 — $ — $(586) $(716) 
Comprehensive income 

Net income $1,785 1,785 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net 

of tax 
Additional minimum pension 

liability (59) 
Foreign currency translation 

adjustment (9) 
Unrealized holding gains on 

securities 64 
Reclassification adjustment for 

realized gains on securities (16) 
Reclassification adjustments for 

losses on cash flow hedges 10 

Other com|)rchciisive loss (10) (10) 

Comprehensive income $1,775 

Common shares issued lo Nexicl 
shareholders 1,452 2,829 32,816 

Issuance of connnon shaies, net 34 67 458 
Common shares dividends (518) 
Preferred shares dividends (7) 
Share-based compcnsalion expense 302 
Conversion of Nextel vested share-based 

awards upon merger 639 
Oilier, net 55 

Balance, December 31,2005 2,961 5,846 46,136 — — 681 (726) 
Cumulative effect of adopting vSAB No. 

108*̂ ' (50) 
Comprehensivii income 

Net income $1,329 1,329 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net 

of tax 
Unrecognized net periodic pension 

and other postretirement benefit 
cost (17) 

I'oreign cunency translation 
adjuslnient 9 

Unrealized holding gains on 
securiiies 203 

Reclassification adjustment for 
realized gains on securities (288) 

Unrealized holding losses on 
qualifying cash How hedges (148) 

Reclassification adjustments for 
losses on cash fiow hedges 157 

Other comprehensive loss (84) (84) 

Comprehensivi^ income $1,245 

Issuance of common shares, net 28 56 324 (6) 95 (26) 
Purchase of common shares 98 (1,643) 
Common shares dividends (294) 
Preferred shares dividends (2) 
Share-based compensation expense 354 
Conversion of non-voling common shares 

to voting common shares (38) — (623) (38) 623 
Acceleiatcd vesting of Nextel share-based 

awards 51 
S|iin-off of local communicalions 

business 401 662 
Other, net . 21 

Balance, December 31,2006 2,951 5,902 46,664 54 (925) 1,638 (148) 

Total 

113,521 

1,785 

(10) 

35,645 
525 

(518) 
(7) 

302 

(84) 

449 
(1,643) 

(294) 
(2) 

354 

51 

1,063 
24 

53,131 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY—(Continued) 
(in millions) 

rp (Accumulated Accumulated 

Common Shares p . , . S ta res ' ^ , . Df '?">' ^ O ' T -Paid-m Comprehensive Retamed Comprehensive 
Shares*^' Amount Capital Shares Amount Income (Loss) Earnings (Loss) Total 

Balance, December 31,2006 2,951 5,902 46,664 54 (925) 1,638 (148) 53,131 
Comprehensive loss 

Net loss $(29,580) (29,580) (29,580) 
Olher comprehensive income (loss), net 

of lax 
Unrecognized net periodic pension 

and other poslrelirement benefit 
cost 14 

Foreign currency translation 
adjustment 16 

Unrealized holding gains on 
securities 10 

Reclassificalion adjustment for 
realized gains on securities (3) 

Olher comprehensive income 37 37 37 

Comprehensive loss $(29,543) 

Adoption of FIN 48'-" 
Issuance of common shares, net (36) (35) 597 
Purchase of common shares 87 (1,833) 
Common shares dividends 
Share-based compensation expense 263 
Investment dilution due lo affiliate equity 

issuances, net (213) 
Other, net 15 

Balance, December 31,2007 2,951 $5,902 $46,693 To6 $(2,161) 

(102) 

(286) 

2 

$(28,324) $(111) 

459 
(1,833) 

(286) 
263 

(213) 
17 

$21,999 

(1) See note 10 for information regarding common shares. 
(2) See note 1 for details of adoption of SAB No. 108. 
(3) See note 7 for details of adoption of FIN 48. 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCLVL STATEMENTS 

Note 1. Summary of Operations, Significant Accounting Policies and Other Information 

Summary of Operations 

We are a global cominunications company offering a coinprehensive range of wireless and wireline 
cominunications products and services that are designed to meet the needs of individual consumers, businesses 
and government customers. We have organized our operations to meet the needs of our targeted customer groups 
through focused coinmunications solutions that incorporate the capabihties of our wireless and wireline services. 
We are one of the three largest wireless companies in the United States based on the number of wireless 
subscribers. We own extensive wireless networks and a global long distance, Tier 1 Internet backbone. Our 
Series 1 voting common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "S." 

We offer digital wireless service in all 50 states, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands, in part through 
commercial affiliation arrangements between us and third party affiliates, each referred to as a PCS Affiliate. We, 
together with the three remaining PCS Affiliates, provide code division multiple access, or CDMA, based personal 
communications services, or PCS, under the Sprint® brand name. The PCS Affiliates offer digital wireless service 
mainly in and around sinaller U.S. metropolitan areas on wireless networks built and operated at their expense, in 
most instances using spectrum licensed to and controlled by us. We also offer numerous sophisticated data 
messaging, photo and video offerings, entertainment and location-based applications, marketed as Power Visions'^, 
across our CDMA network that utilize high-speed evolution data optimized, or EV-DO, technology. 

We also offer digital wireless services under our Nextel® brand name using integrated Digital Enhanced 
Network, or iDEN®, technology. The brand features our industry-leading walkie-talkie services, or Direct Connect®, 
which give subscribers the ability to communicate instantly across the continental United States and to and from 
Hawaii, and, through agreeinents with other iDEN-based providers, to and from selected markets in Canada, Latin 
America and Mexico, as well as a variety of digital wireless mobile telephone and wireless data transmission 
services. In order to offer subscribers of our iDEN services all of the benefits of applications on our CDMA network 
and our walkie-talkie features, we have a line of combined CDMA-iDEN devices, marketed as PowerSource'̂ '̂ , that 
feature voice applications over our CDMA network and our walkie-talkie applications over our iDEN network. We 
also offer wireless services that focus on the youth market, including the Boost Mobile® prepaid wireless service on 
our iDEN network and Boost Unlimited, a local calling prepaid service on our CDMA network. 

Our operations include the results of several companies acquired principally during 2006 and 2005, 
beginning either as ofthe date that each respective company was acquired or from the start ofthe month closest 
to the acquisition. Accordingly, these transactions affect the comparability of our reported results with those 
reported for prior periods. See note 2 for additional information regarding these transactions. 

On May 17, 2006, we spun-off to our shareholders our local communications business, which is now known 
as Eiubarq Corporation and is comprised primarily of what was our Local segment as reported in our 
consolidated financial statements in prior periods. The results of operations, balance sheets and the operating 
cash flows from this business are presented as discontinued operations for all periods presented. The footnotes 
accompanying these consolidated financial statements reflect our continuing operations and, unless otherwise 
noted, exclude information related to Embarq. See note 15 for additional information regarding this transaction. 

Consolidation Policies, Estimates, Adoption of SAB No. 108 and Reclassifications 

Consolidation Policies 

The consolidated financial statements include our accounts, and those of our wholly owned subsidiaries, and 
subsidiaries we control, as well as variable interest entities where we are the primary beneficiary. All significant 



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued) 

intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. We use the equity method to 
account for equity investments in unconsolidated enUties in which we have the ability to exercise significant 
influence over operating and financial policies. We recognize all changes in our proportionate share of the equity 
of these entities resulting from their equity transactions as adjustments to our investment and shareholders' 
equity balances. 

Estimates, Adoption of SAB No. 108 and Reclassifications 

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States, which require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of confingent assets and liabilities as ofthe date ofthe 
balance sheet as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Due to the 
inherent uncertainty involved in making those estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates. Areas in 
which significant estimates have been made include, but are not limited to, revenue recognition, the allowance 
for doubtful accounts receivable, inventory obsolescence, tax valuation allowances, useful lives for property, 
plant and equipment and definite lived intangible assets, goodwill and indefinite lived intangible asset 
iiupairment analyses, the evaluation of uncertain tax positions and the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed in business combinafions. 

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted Staff Accounting Bulletin, or SAB, No. 108, Considering the Effects 
of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Mis.statements in Cuirent Year Financial Statements. 
SAB No. 108 requires a dual approach for quantifying misstatements using both a method that quantifies a 
misstatement based on the amount of misstatement originating in the current year statement of operations, as well 
as a method that quantifies a inisstatement based on the effects of correcting the misstatement existing in the 
balance sheet. Prior to the adoption of SAB No. 108, we quanfified any inisstatements in our consolidated 
financial statements using the statement of operations method in addition to evaluating qualitative characteristics. 

In fourth quarter 2006, we discovered lease accounting misstatements during the process of migrating more 
than 30,000 leases into a single lease accounting system. During this process, we idenfified that we previously 
were not accurately calculating the straight-line impact of operating lease expense nor were we accurately 
following the definition of a lease term for a number of leases. These misstatements accumulated over several 
years and were immaterial when quantifying the misstatements using the statement of operations method. Upon 
adoption of SAB No. 108 on January 1, 2006, we recorded an $81 million increase to the defeired rent liability 
for the cumulative misstatements as of December 31, 2005. In addition, we reduced retained earnings by 
$50 inillion and recorded $31 million as a defen-ed tax asset. The related 2006 inisstateinent of $17 miUion, or 
$10 million net of tax, was recorded in the fourth quarter 2006. 

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash equivalents generally include highly liquid investments with original maturities at purchase of three 
months or less. These investments include money market funds, U.S. government and government-sponsored 
debt securities, corporate debt securities, municipal sectirities, bank-related securities, and credit and debit card 
transactions in process. 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued) 

Supplemental Cash Flow Information from Continuing Operations 

Year Ended December 31, 

2Q07 2006 2005 

(in millions) 

2007 

$— 
— 
-— 

15 

2006 

(in milli 

— 
— 
623 
44 

2005 

ons) 

$35,645 
639 
— 

90 

Interest paid, net of capitalized interest $1,474 $1,589 $1,232 
Interest received 152 303 229 
Income taxes paid 51 247 97 

Our non-cash activities included the following: 

Year Ended December 31, 

Common stock issued 
Acquisition of Nextel 
Vested stock option awards exchanged in acquisition of Nextel 
Conversion of non-voting common shares to voting common shares 
Employee stock purchase plans 
2.5 gigahertz, or GHz, spectrum acquisition 100 — — 

Earthlink common stock used to extinguish debt •— — 90 

Investments 

We record our investments in marketable equity securities at fair value as we consider them 
available-for-sale securities. Accordingly, we record unrealized holding gains and losses on these securities in 
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of related income tax. Realized gains or losses are measured 
and reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into earnings based on identifying the 
specific investments sold. During 2007, 2006 and 2005, we recorded gross unrealized holding gains of 
$8 million, $6 million and $143 million, and gross unrealized holding losses of $1 million in 2007 and $8 million 
in 2006, on equity securities. See note 9 for information regarding our sale of Nil Holdings, Inc. 
available-for-sale securities in 2006. Certain other equity securities are accounted for at cost. 

We record our investments in debt securities at amortized cost and classify these securities as current assets 
on the consolidated balance sheets when the original maturities at purchase are greater than 90 days but less than 
one year. Interest on investments in debt securifies is reinvested and included in interest income in the 
consolidated statements of operations. During 2007, 2006 and 2005, we recognized $31 million, $122 million 
and $96 million of interest income, respectively, on these securities. 

We assess any declines in the value of individual investments to determine whether the decline is other-
than-temporary and thus the investment is impaired. We make this assessment by considering available evidence, 
including changes in general market conditions, specific industry and individual company data, the length of Ume 
and the extent to which the market value has been less than cost, the fmancial condition and near-term prospects 
ofthe individual company and our intent and ability to hold the investment. 

We account for our investment in Virgin Mobile USA, LLC, or VMU, using the equity method. At 
December 31, 2007, we held an approximate 18.5% ownership interest and continued to have the ability to 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCLVL STATEMENTS—(Continued) 

exercise significant infiuence as VMU continues to use our network under the mobile virtual network operator, or 
MVNO, agreement. On October 16, 2007, VMU luade an initial public offering of its stock. In conjuncfion with 
this initial public offering, we sold approximately 48% of our ownership interest for cash proceeds of 
approximately $155 million. As our ownership percentage in VMU was reduced, we also recognized $85 million 
ofthe previously deferred gain of $180 million related to capital previously returned by VMU to us. 
Consequently, we recognized a total gain of $240 million in 2007. The remaining $95 million in return of capital 
is recorded as a deferred credit on our consolidated balance sheet due to the fact that VMU originally obtained 
financing in order to return our capital. At the time ofthe initial public offering, VMU also repaid outstanding 
debt to us in the amount of $45 million related to credit we had extended to VMU in 2006 through our 
participation in a revolving credit facility. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

We establish an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable sufficient to cover probable and reasonably 
estitnable losses. Because of the number of wireless accounts that we have, it is not practical to review the 
collectibility of each of such accounts individually when we determine the amount of our allowance for doubtful 
accounts each period. We do perform some account level analysis with respect to large wireless and wireline 
customers. Our estimate ofthe allowance for doubtful accounts considers a number of factors, including 
collection experience, aging of the accounts receivable portfolios, the credit quality of our subscriber base, 
estimated proceeds from future bad debt sales, and other qualitafive considerations, including macro-econoinic 
factors. 

The allowance for doubtful accounts represents our best estimate of future outcomes; to the extent that our 
actual experience differs significantly from historical trends, the required allowance amount could differ from 
our estimate. Any resulting adjustments would change the net accounts receivable reported on our consolidated 
balance sheet, and the bad debt expense (in the case of estimates related to doubtful accounts) or revenue (in the 
case of estiinates related to other allowances) reported in our results of operations in future periods. 

Device and Accessory Inventory 

Inventories of handsets and accessories in the Wireless segment ai"e stated at the lower of cost or market. 
We deterinine cost by the first-in, first-out, or FIFO, method. Handset costs and related revenues are recognized 
at the time of sale. We do not recognize the expected handset subsidies prior to the time of sale because the 
promotional discount decision is made at the point of sale and we expect to recover the handset subsidies through 
service revenues. 

We analyze the realizable value of our handset and other inventory on a quarterly basis. This analysis 
includes assessing obsolescence, sales forecasts, product life cycle and marketplace and other considerations. If 
our assessments regarding the above factors change, we may be required to sell handsets at a higher subsidy or 
potentially record expense in future periods prior to the point of sale to the extent that we expect that we will be 
unable to sell handsets or use them in the service and repair channel. 

Benefit Plans 

We provide a defined benefit pension plan and ceilain other postretirement benefits to certain employees, 
and we sponsor a defined contribution plan for all employees. Effective December 31, 2006, we adopted 
Statement of Financial Accounfing Standards, or SFAS, No. 158, Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit 
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans. This statement requires the recognition of the funded status of a benefit 
plan, tiieasured as the difference between the fair value of the plan assets and the benefit obligations, as an asset 
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCL^L STATEMENTS—(Continued) 

or liability in the consolidated balance sheet; it also requires that the changes in the funded status be recorded 
through comprehensive incotue in the year in which those changes occur. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, 
the fair value of our plan assets was $ 1.4 billion and $ 1.2 billion, respectively, and the fair value of our benefit 
obligations was $ 1.6 billion and $ 1.5 billion, respectively. As a result, the aggregated amount of all underfunded 
plans was $217 million at December 31, 2007 and $261 million at December 31, 2006, and was recorded as a 
liability in our consolidated balance sheet. We intend to make future cash contributions to the pension plan in an 
amount necessary to meet minimum funding requirements under ERISA. 

At the time of the Sprint-Nextel inerger, we did not extend plan participation in the defined benefit pension 
plan or other postretirement benefits to Nextel employees and amended our postretirement medical benefit plan 
to only include employees designated to work for Embarq and employees who were employed by us prior to the 
Sprint-Nextel tnerger and born before 1956. As of December 31, 2005, the pension plan was also amended to 
freeze benefit plan accruals for participants not designated to work for Embarq following the spin-off As of 
May 17, 2006, in connection with the spin-off of Embarq, accrued pension benefit obligations and postretirement 
benefit obligations for participants designated to work for Embarq and related plan assets were transferred to 
Embarq. The aggregate plan activity, including net expense of $18 million in 2007, $34 million in 2006, and 
$237 million in 2005, and related disclosures are not material to us as of December 31, 2007 and we have not 
provided the disclosures generally required by SFAS No. 158. 

Under our defined contribution plan, pailicipants may contribute a portion of their eligible pay to the plan 
through payroll withholdings. In 2007 and 2006, we matched in cash 100% of pailicipants' contributions up to 5% 
of their eligible compensation. In prior years, participants' contributions were matched with our common stock. Our 
total matching contributions were $128 million in 2007, $126 million in 2006 and $56 million in 2005. 

Income Taxes 

Income taxes are accounted for using the asset/liability approach in accordance with SFAS No. 109, 
Accounting for Income Taxes. Defeixed tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the temporary 
differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, applying enacted statutory tax 
rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets are also recorded 
for net operating loss, capital loss and tax credit carryforwards. We are required to estimate the amount of taxes 
payable or refundable for the current year and the deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax 
consequences of events that have been reflected in our consolidated financial statements or tax returns for each 
taxing jurisdiction in which we operate. This process requires management to make assessments regarding the 
timing and probability of the ultimate tax impact. We record valuation allowances on deferred tax assets if we 
determine that it is more likely than not that the asset will not be realized. Additionally, we establish reserves for 
uncertain tax positions based upon our judgment regarding potential future challenges to those positions. We 
recognize interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense or interest income. We recognize 
penalties as additional income tax expense. 

We adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for 
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, or FIN 48, on January 1, 2007. The accounting estimates related to the liability for 
uncertain tax positions require us to make judgments regarding the sustainability of each uncertain tax position 
based on its technical merits. If we determine it is more likely than not a tax position will be sustained based on 
its technical merits, we record the impact of the position in our consolidated financial statements at the largest 
amount that is greater than fifty percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settiement. These estimates are 
updated at each reporting date based on the facts, circumstances and information available. We are also required 
to assess at each reporting date whether it is reasonably possible that any significant increases or decreases to the 
unrecognized tax benefits will occur during the next twelve months. See note 7 for more information. 
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Property, Plant and Equipment 

We record property, plant and equipment, or PP&E, including improvements that extend useful lives, at 
cost. PP&E primarily includes network equipment, site costs, buildings and improvements, software, office 
equipment and non-network internal use software, all of which are being depreciated as they have been placed 
into service, as well as network asset inventory and construction in progress, which are not depreciated until they 
are placed in service. Network equipment, site costs and software includes switching equipment and cell site 
towers, base transceiver stations, site development costs, other radio frequency equipment, internal use software, 
digital fiber-optic cable, conduit, transport facilities, and transmission-related equipment. Buildings and 
improvements principally consists of owned general office facilities, retail stores and leasehold improvements. 
Non-network internal use software, office equipment and other primarily consists of furniture, information 
technology systems and equipment and vehicles. Network asset inventory and construction in progress primarily 
includes materials, transmission and related equipment, labor, engineering, site development costs, interest and 
other costs relating to the construction and development of our network. Capitalized interest incuired in 
connection with the construction of capital assets totaled $127 million in 2007, $113 million in 2006 and 
$53 million in 2005. Repair and maintenance costs and research and development costs are expensed as incurred. 

We capitalize costs for network and non-network software developed or obtained for internal use during the 
application development stage. These costs are included in PP&E and, when the software is placed in service, are 
depreciated over estimated useful lives of up to 8.5 years. Costs incuired during the preliminary project and post-
implementation stage, as well as maintenance and training costs, are expensed as incuired. 

The cost of PP&E generally is depreciated on a straight-line basis over estimated economic useful lives. 
Amortization of assets recorded under capital leases is recorded in depreciation expense. We depreciate leasehold 
improvements over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the respective assets. We 
depreciate buildings, network equipment, site costs and software over estimated useful lives of up to 31 years, 
with about 89% of those assets being depreciated over lives of five to 15 years, and non-network internal use 
software, office equipment and other depreciable propeity, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives of up 
to 12 years, with about 83% of those assets being depreciated over lives of three to five years. We calculate 
depreciation on certain of our assets using the group life method; accordingly, ordinary asset retirements and 
disposals are charged against accumulated depreciation with no gain or loss recognized. 

We perform annual internal studies to confirm the appropriateness of depreciable lives of most categories of 
PP&E since changes in technology, changes in our intended use of these assets, as well as changes in broad 
economic or industry factors, may cause the estimated period of use of these assets to change. These studies take 
into account actual usage, physical wear and tear, replacement history, and assumptions about technology 
evolution, to calculate the remaining life of our asset base. When these factors indicate the useful lives of PP&E 
are different from the previous assessment, we depreciate the remaining book values prospectively over the 
adjusted estimated useful lives. In addition to peiforming our annual studies, we also continue to assess the 
estimated useful life of the iDEN network assets, and our future strategic plans for this network, as an 
increasingly larger portion of our subscriber base is served by our CDMA network. A reduction in our estimate 
of the useful life of the iDEN network assets would cause increased depreciation charges in future periods that 
could be material. 

We review our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. We group our long-lived assets at the lowest level for which 
identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other groups of assets and liabilities. Our 
asset groups consist of wireless and wireline, and the wireless asset group includes our intangible assets and 
goodwill. Indicators of itnpairment for both asset groups include, but are not limited to, a sustained significant 
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decrease in the fair value of or the cash flows expected to be derived from the asset groups, or a significant 
change in the extent or manner in which the assets in the group are utilized. A significant amount of judgment is 
involved in determining the occurrence of an indicator of impairment that requires an evaluation of the 
recoverability of our long-lived assets. Ifthe total ofthe expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the 
carrying amount of our long-lived assets, a loss is recognized for the difference between the fair value and 
carrying value of the assets. Impairment analyses, when performed, are based on our current business and 
technology strategy, our views of growth rates for our business, anticipated future economic and regulatory 
conditions and expected technological availability. See note 3 for additional infonnation. 

In addition to the analyses described above, we periodically assess certain assets that have not yet been 
deployed in our business, including network equipment, cell site development costs, and software in 
development, to determine if an impairment charge is required. Network equipment and cell site development 
costs are impaired whenever events or changes in circumstances cause us to abandon such assets if they are no 
longer needed to meet management's strategic network plans. Software development costs are impaired when it 
is no longer probable that the software project will be deployed. We also periodically assess network equipment 
that has been removed from the network to determine if an impairment charge is required. If we continue to have 
challenges retaining current iDEN subscribers and as we continue to assess the impact of rebanding the iDEN 
network, management may abandon certain iDEN assets in future periods if we conclude that those assets will 
either never be deployed or redeployed, in which case we would recognize a non-cash impairment charge that 
could be material to our consolidated financial statements. 

We adopted FASB Intei-pretation No. 47, or FIN 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement 
Obligations, an interpretation of SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, in the fourth 
quarter 2005 resulting in a cumulative adjustment due to a change in accounting principle, after tax, of 
$ 16 million. The adjustment was due to the recognition of asset retirement obligations primarily related to our 
discontinued operations for environmental remediation requirements and contractual obligations for which 
estimated settlement dates can be determined. 

Intangible Assets 

Goodwill and Other Indefinite Lived Intangibles 

Goodwill represents the premium paid over the fair value ofthe net tangible and intangible assets we have 
acquired in business combinations. We have also acquired several kinds of Federal Communications 
Commission, or FCC, licenses, primarily through FCC auctions and business combinations, to deploy our 
wireless services. We have identified our FCC licenses and our Sprint and Boost Mobile® trademarks as 
indefinite lived intangible assets, in addition to our goodwill, after considering the expected use ofthe assets, the 
regulatory and economic environment within which they are being used, and the effects of obsolescence on their 
use. Refer to note 3 for additional description of our impairment testing policies for these assets. 

Definite Lived Intangible Assets 

Definite lived intangible assets consist primarily of customer relationships that are amortized over two to 
five years using the sum of the years' digits method, which we believe best reflects the estimated pattern in 
which the economic benefits will be consumed. Other definite lived intangible assets primarily include certain 
rights under affiliation agreements that we reacquired in connection with the acquisitions ofthe PCS Affiliates 
and Nextel Partners, which are being amortized over the remaining terms of those affiliation agreements on a 
straight-line basis, and the Nextel and Direct Connect® trade names, which are being amortized over ten years 
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from the date of the Sprint-Nextel merger on a straight-line basis. We also evaluate the remaining useful lives of 
our definite lived intangible assets each reporting period to determine whether events or circumstances warrant a 
revision to the remaining periods of amortization, which would be addressed prospectively. 

We review our long-lived intangible asset groups for impairment under the same policy described above for 
property, plant and equipment, that is, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the canying 
amount may not be recoverable. Impainnent analyses, when perfonned, are based on our cunent business and 
technology strategy, our views of growth rates for our business, anticipated future economic and regulatory 
conditions and expected technological availability. In addition, when our annual goodwill test requires us to 
deterinine the implied fair value of our goodwill, we also evaluate the recorded value of our long-lived assets for 
impairment. 

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities 

We recognize derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets and 
measure those instruments at fair value in accordance with SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative In.struments 
and Hedging Activities, as amended. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded each period in cunent 
earnings or other comprehensive income (loss) depending on the use ofthe derivative and whether it qualifies for 
hedge accounting. 

We use derivative instruments only for hedging and risk management purposes. Hedging activity may be 
done for purposes of mitigating the risks associated with an asset, liability, committed transaction or probable 
forecasted transaction. We are primarily exposed to the market risk associated with unfavorable movements in 
interest rates, equity prices and foreign currencies. We do not enter into derivative transactions for speculative or 
trading purposes. 

At inception and on an on-going basis, we assess whether each derivative that qualifies for hedge accounting 
continues to be highly effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows or fair value ofthe hedged item. If and 
when a derivative instrument is no longer expected to be highly effective, hedge accounting is discontinued. 
Hedge ineffectiveness, if any, is included in cunent period earnings. 

We formally document all hedging relationships between the hedging instrument and the hedged item as 
well as our risk management objectives and strategies for undertaking various hedge transactions. 

Treasuty Shares 

Shares of common stock repurchased by us are recorded at cost as treasury shares and result in a reduction 
of shareholders' equity. We reissue treasury shares as part of our shareholder approved stock-based 
compensation programs, as well as upon conversion of outstanding securities that are convertible into common 
stock. When shares are reissued, we determine the cost using the weighted average cost method. If the 
re-issuance of the shares is for an amount greater than the original cost of the treasury shares, we record an 
increase to paid-in capital for the excess. If the re-issuance is for less than the original cost of the treasury shares, 
we record a decrease to paid-in capital or retained earnings (accumulated deficit) for the shortage. 

Revenue Recognition 

Operating revenues primarily consist of wireless service revenues, revenues generated from handset and 
accessory sales, revenues from wholesale operators and PCS Affiliates, as well as long distance voice, data and 
Internet revenues. Sei'vice revenues consist of fixed monthly recuning charges, variable usage charges such as 
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roaming, directory assistance, and operator-assisted calling and miscellaneous fees, such as activation, upgrade, 
late payment, reconnection and early termination fees and certain regulatory related fees. We recognize service 
revenues as services are rendered and equipment revenue when title passes to the dealer or end-user customer, in 
accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple 
Deliverables, and SAB No. 104, Revenue Recognition. We recognize revenue for access charges and other 
services charged at fixed amounts ratably over the service period, net of credits and adjustments for service 
discounts, billing disputes and fraud or unauthorized usage. We recognize excess wireless usage and long 
distance revenue at contractual rates per minute as minutes are used. Additionally, we recognize excess wireless 
data usage based on kilobytes and one-time use charges, such as for the use of premium services, when rendered. 
As a result of the cutoff times of our multiple billing cycles each month, we are required to estimate the amount 
of subscriber revenues earned but not billed from the end of each billing cycle to the end of each reporting 
period. These estimates are based primarily on rate plans in effect and our historical usage and billing patterns. 
Regulatory fees and costs are recorded gross in accordance with EITF Issue No. 06-3, How Taxes Collected 
From Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should be Presented in the Income Statement (That 
Is, Gross Versus Net Presentation). The largest component ofthe regulatory fees is universal service fund, which 
represented about 2% of net operating revenue in 2007, 2006 and 2005. 

The accounting estimates related to the recognition of revenue in the results of operations require us to make 
assumptions about future billing adjustments for disputes with customers, unauthorized usage, future returns and 
mail-in rebates on handset sales. 

Dealer Commissions 

We account for compensation programs with our dealers in accordance with EITF Issue No. 01-9, 
Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer (Including a Reseller ofthe Vendor's Products). 
Any cash consideration given by us to a dealer or end-user customer is presumed to be a reduction of revenue 
unless we receive, or will receive, an identifiable benefit in exchange for the consideration, and the fair value of 
such benefit can be reasonably estimated, in which case the consideration will be presented as a selling expense. 
We compensate our dealers using specific compensation programs related to the sale of our handsets and our 
subscriber service contracts, or both. When a commission is earned by a dealer solely due to a selling activity 
relating to wireless service, the cost is recorded as a selling expense. When a commission is earned by a dealer 
due to the dealer selling one of our handsets, the cost is recorded as a reduction to equipment revenue. 

Advertising Costs 

We recognize advertising expense as incuned. These expenses include production, media and other 
promotional and sponsorship costs. Advertising expenses totaled $1.8 billion in 2007, $1.6 billion in 2006 and 
$1.4 billion in 2005. 

Share-Based Compensation 

We measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity-based securities 
using the fair value of the award on the date of the grant, and we recognize that cost over the period that the 
award recipient is required to provide service to us in exchange for the award. Any awards of liability 
instruments to employees would be measured at fair value at each reporting date through settiement. See note 11 
for additional infonnation. 
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Severance and Exit Costs 

We recognize liabilities for severance and exit costs based upon the nature ofthe cost to be incuned. For 
involuntary separation plans that are completed within the guidelines of our written involuntary separation plan, 
we record the liability when it is probable and reasonably estimable in accordance with SFAS No. 112, 
Employers' Accounting for Postetnployment Benefits. For voluntary separation plans, or VSP, the liability is 
recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 88, Employers' Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined 
Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits, when the VSP is accepted by the employee. For one-time 
termination benefits, such as additional severance pay or benefit payouts, and other exit costs, such as lease 
termination costs, the liability is measured and recognized initially at fair value in the period in which the 
liability is incurred, with subsequent changes to the liability recognized as adjustments in the period of change, in 
accordance with SFAS No. 146, Accoimting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities. When a 
business combination has occuired, we record severance and lease exit costs as part of the purchase price 
allocation in accordance with EITF Issue No. 95-3, Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with a Purchase 
Business Combination. See note 6 for additional information. 

Earnings (Loss) per Common Share 

Basic earnings (loss) per common share is calculated by dividing income (loss) available to common 
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings 
(loss) per common share adjusts basic earnings (loss) per common share for the effects of potentially dilutive 
common shares. Potentially dilutive common shares include the dilutive effects of shares issuable under our 
equity plans computed using the treasury stock method, and the dilutive effects of shares issuable upon the 
conversion of our convertible senior notes computed using the if-conveited method. 

Shares issuable under our equity plans were antidilutive in 2007 because we incuned a net loss from 
continuing operations. Although not used in the determination of earnings (loss) per common share for 2007, we 
had about 39 million dilutive shares issuable under the equity plans . All 11 million shares issuable upon the 
assumed conversion of our convertible senior notes could potentially dilute earnings per common share in the 
future, however, they were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per common share in 2007 due to 
their antidilutive effects. As of December 31, 2007, there were about 124 million average shares issuable under 
the equity plans that could also potentially dilute earnings per common share in the future that had exercise prices 
that exceeded the average market price during this period. 

Dilutive shares issuable under our equity plans used in calculating earnings per common share were about 
22 million shares for 2006. All 11 million shares issuable upon the assumed conversion of our convertible senior 
notes could potentially dilute earnings per common share in the future, however, they were excluded from the 
calculation of diluted earnings per common share for 2006 due to their antidilutive effects. Additionally, about 
115 million average shares issuable under the equity plans that could also potentially dilute earnings per common 
share in the future were excluded from the calculation of diluted eai'nings per common share in 2006 as the 
exercise prices exceeded the average market price during this period. 

Dilutive shares issuable under our equity plans used in calculating earnings per common share were about 
21 million shares for 2005. As of December 31, 2005, there were 11 inillion shares issuable upon the assumed 
conversion of our conveitible senior notes that could have potentially diluted earnings per common share in the 
future, but were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per common share for 2005 due to their 
antidilutive effects. Additionally, as of December 31, 2005, there were about 66 million average shares issuable 
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under the equity plans that could also have potentially diluted earnings per common share in the future, however, 
they were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per conrmion share in 2005 as the exercise prices 
exceeded the average market price during this period. 

Significant New Accounting Pronouncements 

New Fair Value Accounting Pronouncements 

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. This statement changes the 
definition of fair value, as defined by previous statements, to "the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date." 
Additionally, this statement establishes a hierarchy that classifies the inputs used to measure fair value. In 
February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities. This statement allows entities the choice to measure certain financial instruments and other items at 
fair value on specified measurement dates and report any unrecognized gains or losses in earnings and serves to 
minimize volatility in earnings that occurs when assets and liabilities are measured differentiy without having to 
apply complex hedge accounting provisions. Both SFAS No. 157 and SFAS No. 159 are effective for our 
quarteriy reporting period ending March 31, 2008, however in February 2008, the FASB issued a FASB Staff 
Position to partially delay the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial 
liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recuning 
basis, until fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. 

Based on the FASB Staff Position noted above, the partial adoption of SFAS No. 157 will not have a 
material impact on our financial position and results of operations in 2008. We are still assessing the impact that 
SFAS No. 157 will have on our nonrecurring measurements for nonfinancial assets and liabilities in 2009. Upon 
the partial adoption of SFAS No. 157 in the quarterly period ending March 31, 2008, we expect to have 
additional disclosures in the notes to our consolidated financial statements for certain recuning fair value 
measurements. We are continuing to evaluate the impact ofthe FASB Staff Position noted above as it relates to 
the disclosure of our nonrecurring fair value measurements, such as our annual impairment review of our 
goodwill and FCC licenses, and it will require significant disclosures related to our key assumptions and 
variables used in these analyses. We do not plan to elect the fair value option under the provisions of SFAS 
No. 159 for eligible financial assets and liabilities held on January 1, 2008; however we will apply the fair value 
provisions of that statement for all eligible assets and liabilities subsequently acquired or modified on or after 
January 1,2008. 

Other New Accounting Pronouncements 

In September 2006, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 06-\, Accounting for Consideration Given 
by a Service Provider to a Manufacturer or Reseller of Equipment Necessaty for an End-Customer to Receive 
Service from the Service Provider. EITF Issue No. 06-1 provides guidance regarding whether the consideration 
given by a service provider to a manufacturer or reseller of specialized equipment should be characterized as a 
reduction of revenue or as an expense. This issue is effective for our quarterly reporting period ending March 31, 
2008. Entities are required to recognize the effects of applying this issue as a change in accounting principle 
through retrospective application to all prior periods unless it is impracticable to do so. We do not expect this 
consensus to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. 

In June 2007, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 06-11, Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of 
Dividends on Share-Based Paytnent Awards. EITF Issue No. 06-11 provides guidance regarding how an entity 
should recognize the tax benefit received as a result of dividends paid to holders of share-based compensation 
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awards and charged to retained earnings (accumulated deficit) according to SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based 
Payment. This issue is effective for our quarterly reporting period ending March 31, 2008. We do not expect this 
consensus to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. 

hi December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 14IR, Business Combination^ which revises SFAS 
No. 141, Business Combinations, originally issued in June 2001. SFAS No. 141R will apply to business 
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after January 1, 2009, and this Statement could have a 
material impact on us with respect to business combinations completed after the effective date. Such significant 
changes include, but are not limited to the "acquirer" recording 100% of all assets and liabilities, including 
goodwill, ofthe acquired business, generally at their fair values, and acquisition-related transaction and 
restructuring costs will be expensed rather than treated as part of the cost of the acquisition and included in the 
amount recorded for assets acquired. In addition, after the effective date, reversals of valuation allowances 
related to acquired deferred tax assets and changes to acquired income tax uncertainties related to any business 
combinations, even those completed prior to the Statement's effective date, will be recognized in earnings, 
except for qualified measureinent period adjustments. 

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial 
StatemetUs. This statement amends Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements, to 
establish accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the 
deconsolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS No. 160 is effective for our quarterly reporting period ending March 31, 
2009. This statement could have a material impact on us to the extent we enter into an arrangement after the 
effective date of the standard where we are required to consolidate a non-controlling interest. If such an event 
occurred, we will report the non-controlling interest's equity as a component of our equity in our consolidated 
balance sheet, we would report the component of net income or loss and coinprehensive income or loss 
attributable to the non-controlling interest separately and changes in ownership interests will be treated as equity 
transactions. Upon a loss of control, any gain or loss on the interest sold will be recognized in earnings. 

Concentrations of Risk 

Our accounts and notes receivable are not subject to any concentration of credit risk. 

We are exposed to the risk of loss that would occur if a counterparty defaults on a derivative transaction 
used for hedging and risk management purposes. This exposure is controlled through credit approvals, continual 
review and monitoring of all counterparties and legal review of contracts. In the event of nonperformance by the 
counterparties, our accounting loss would be limited to the net amount we would be entitled to receive under the 
terms of the applicable interest rate swap agreement or foreign cuiTency contract. However, we do not anticipate 
nonperformance by any of the counterparties to these contracts. 

We rely on Motorola, Inc. to provide us with technology improvements designed to maintain and expand 
our iDEN®-based wireless services. Motorola provides substantially all ofthe iDEN infrastructure equipment 
used in our iDEN network, and substantially all iDEN handsets. We have agreements with Motorola that set the 
piices we must pay to purchase and license this equipment, as well as a structure to develop new features and 
make long-term improvements to our network. Motorola also provides integration services in connection with the 
deployment of iDEN network elements. We have also agreed to wananty and maintenance programs and 
specified indemnity arrangements with Motorola. Motorola is expected to continue to be our sole source supplier 
of iDEN infrastructure and iDEN handsets, except primarily for BlackBerry® devices, which are manufactured 
by Research in Motion. Further, our ability to timely and efficiently implement the spectrum reconfiguration plan 
in connection with the Report and Order, described in note 13 is dependent, in part, on Motorola. 
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All suppliers of our CDMA handsets license intellectual property from QUALCOMM Incorporated. Some 
ofthis QUALCOMM intellectual property has been found to infringe on certain patents owned by Broadcom 
Corporation. A district court recentiy enjoined QUALCOMM from further infringement ofthe patents at issue 
and from certain other activities. The injunction is effective immediately. However, the ruling contains a sunset 
provision that expires on January 31, 2009, which provides time for QUALCOMM to modify its infringing 
products to avoid infringement. If QUALCOMM does not modify its products so as to avoid infringement of 
Broadcom's patents at issue by January 31, 2009, QUALCOMM will be unable to sell or support those products 
that were found to infringe and we may be unable to use CDMA handsets that are the subject of these claims, 
including handsets that utilize QUALCOMM's QChat® technology, which we intend to use to provide walkie-
talkie services on our CDMA network. 

Note 2. UusinCvSs Combinations 

We have accounted for our acquisitions in the Wireless segment under the purchase method as required by 
SFAS No. 141. SFAS No. 141 requires that the total purchase price of each of the acquired entities be allocated 
to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair values at the respective acquisition dates. The 
allocation process requires an analysis of intangible assets, such as FCC licenses, customer relationships, trade 
names, rights under affiliation agreements, acquired contractual rights and assumed contractual commitments and 
legal contingencies to identify and record all assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their fair value. In valuing 
acquired assets and assumed liabilities, fair values are based on, but are not limited to: quoted market prices, 
where available; our intent with respect to whether the assets purchased are to be held, sold or abandoned; 
expected future cash flows; cutrent replacement cost for similar capacity for certain property, plant and 
equipment; market rate assumptions for contractual obligations; and appropriate discount rates and growth rates. 
The results of operations for all acquired companies are included in our consolidated financial statements either 
from the date of acquisition or fiom the start of the month closest to the acquisition date. 

Sprint-Nextel Merger and PCS Affiliate and Nextel Partners Acquisitions 

On August 12, 2005, a subsidiary of ours merged with Nextel and, as a result, we acquired 100% ofthe 
outstanding common shares of Nextel. This transaction was consummated as part of our overall strategy to offer 
a comprehensive selection of voice, data and multimedia products and services. The aggregate consideration paid 
for the merger was approximately $37.8 billion, which included $969 million in cash, 1.452 billion shares of our 
voting and non-voting common stock worth $35.6 billion, $1.1 billion of converted Nextel stock-based awaids, 
and other costs. As a result of the Nextel merger, we paid a premium of $15.6 billion over the fair value of the 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed for a number of potential strategic and financial benefits that we believed 
would result from the merger including: (1) the combination of extensive network and spectrum assets which 
would enable us to offer consumers, businesses and government agencies a wide anay of broadband wireless and 
integrated coinmunications services; (2) the combination of Nextel's strength in business and government 
wireless services with our position in consumer wireless and data services, including services supported by our 
global Internet Protocol network that would enable us to serve a broader customer base; (3) the size and scale of 
the cotnbined company which would be comparable to that of our two largest competitors which would enable us 
to achieve more operating efficiencies than what either company could achieve on its own; and (4) the ability to 
position us strategically in the fastest growing areas ofthe communications industry 

In the second half of 2005, we acquired US Unwired Inc., Gulf Coast Wireless Limited Partnership and 
IWO Holdings, Inc. for about $1.4 billion in cash, net of cash acquired. During 2006, we acquired Enterprise 
Communications Partnership, Alamosa Holdings, Inc., Velocita Wireless Holding Corp., UbiquiTel, Inc. and the 
remai ni ng 72% of Nextel Partners, Inc. for about $ 10.5 billion in cash, net of cash acquired. These acquisitions 
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were made as part of our overall strategy to enhance network coverage and expand the distribution of our 
services. We paid a premium of $ 10.7 billion over the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed for 
the PCS Affiliates, Velocita Wireless and Nextel Partners because we believed that these acquisitions would 
result in better control of the distribution services under Sprint and Nextel brands, and would provide us with 
strategic and financial benefits associated with a larger customer base and expanded network coverage. 

On August 1, 2007, we acquired Northern PCS Services, LLC, a PCS Affiliate, for a net purchase price of 
$287 million. As of December 31, 2007, the preliminary allocation of the purchase price included the following: 
$113 inillion to goodwill, $107 million to customer relationships and $56 miUion to reacquired rights. The results 
of Northern PCS's operations have been included in the consolidated financial statements since the acquisition 
date. Pro forma information has not been provided, as the impact to prior periods is immaterial. 

The purchase price allocation for the transactions from 2005 to 2007 is summarized in the table below along 
with the respective total fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. 

Purcbase Price Allocation 

Cuirent assets, including cash and cash 
equivalents 

Property, plant and equipment 
Goodwill 
FCC licenses 
Other indefinite lived intangibles 
Reacquired rights 
Customer relationships and other definite lived 

intangible assets 
Investments 
Other assets 
Cuirent liabilities 
Long-term debt 
Deferred income taxes, net 
Other liabilities 
Deferred compensation included in shareholders' 

equity 392 

Net assets acquired $37,816 

2005 

Nextel 
Merger 

$ 5,527 
8,337 

15,593 
14,240 

400 
— 

10,448 
2,678 

111 
(3,013) 
(8,984) 
(7,754) 

(159) 

PCS 
Affiliate 

Acquisitions 

383 
1,122 

— 
— 
354 

338 
— 
198 
— 

(703) 
5 

(168) 

2006 
PCS Affiliate 

and 
Nextel Partners 

Acquisitions 

(in millions) 

1,494 
9,461 
1,313 

— 
858 

2,298 
— 

1,178 
— 

(2,818) 
143 

(696) 

2007 
Acquisition(i> 

33 
113 
— 
— 

56 

107 
— 

10 
— 
(25) 
— 

(7) 

Total 

$ 5,527 
10,247 
26,289(2) 

15,553 
400 

1,268 

13,191 
2,678 
1,497 

(3,013) 
(12,530) 

(7,606) 
(1,030) 

392 

$1,529 $13,231 $287 $ 52,863(3) 

(1) Represents preliminaiy purcha.se price allocation of Northern PCS. We are in the process of completing our 
valuation of certain assets and liabUities, as well as internal studies of certain assets, property, plant and 
equipment, intangible assets, certain liabilities and commercial contracts, which when finalized, may result 
in additiotud adjusttnerds to the purchase price allocation. 

(2) During the fourth quarter 2007, we peiformed our annual goodwill and other indefinite lived intatigible 
asset impairment analyses. As a result, we recorded a non-cash impairment charge to goodwill of 
$29.7 billion. 

(3) Includes $2.4 billicni related to our 28% ownership interest in the common stock of Nextel Partners prior to 
June 2006 at which time we acquired the remaining 72%. 
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Note 3. Intangible Assets 

Indefinite Lived Intangibles 

Goodwill(iH2) . . 
FCC licenses . . 
Trademarks . . . 

Balance 
December 31, 

2005 

. $21,288 
18,023 

416 

$39,727 

Adjustments & 
Additions Related to 

Acquisitions & 
Other 

$ 9,616 
1,496 

$11,112 

Balance Adjustments & 
December 31, Additions Related to 

2006 Acquisitions & Other 

(in millions) 
$30,904 $ (240) 

19,519 1,188 
416 — 

$50,839 $ 948 

Goodwill 
Impairment 

$(29,729) 

$(29,729) 

Balance 
December 31, 

2007 

$ 935 
20,707 

416 

$22,058 

(I) 

(2) 

During 2007, we recorded additional goodwill of $113 million associated with the premium paid for 
Northern PCS. Offsetting this increase were net adjustments of $353 million, principally due to an 
adjustment in the fair value of our FCC licenses and to an adjustment to the net assets of Nextel Partners 
relating to the dilution of our ownership interest in Nextel Parttiers prior to our acquisition. 
Adjustments ami additions to goodwill during 2006 are related to the Sprint-Nextel merger and acquisitions 
of Nextel Parttiers, Velocita Wireless and the PCS Affiliates in 2005 and 2006, 

Goodwill 

Goodwill represents the premium paid over the fair value ofthe net tangible and intangible assets we have 
acquired in business combinations. Approximately $26.3 billion of our goodwill was recorded in connection with 
the recent business combinations described in note 2 and approximately $4.4 billion of our goodwill was 
recorded from acquisitions in previous years. All goodwill has been allocated to the Wireless segment. In fourth 
quarter 2007, we performed our annual assessment of impairment of goodwill. As a result of this assessment, 
which is described below, we recorded a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $29.7 billion. This charge is 
presented separately in the 2007 statement of operations. The substantial majority ofthe charge is not deductible 
for tax purposes. This charge does not result in a violation of any covenants of any of our debt instruments. 

Goodwill Impairment Testing Policy 

SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, requires that goodwill be tested for impairment at a 
reporting unit level, which is equivalent to our reported wireless operating segment as determined in accordance 
with SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information. We review our 
goodwill for impairment annually in the fourth quaiter, or more frequently if indicators of impairment exist. We 
periodically analyze whether any such indicators of impairment exist. A significant amount of judgment is 
involved in determining if an indicator of impairment has occuned. Such indicators may include a sustained, 
significant decline in our share price and market capitalization, a decline in our expected future cash flows, a 
significant adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate, unanticipated competition, the testing for 
recoverability of our long-lived wireless assets, and/or slower growth rates, among others. 

To assess goodwill for impairment, we first compare the fair value of our wireless reporting unit with its net 
book value. We estimate the fair value ofthe wireless reporting unit using discounted expected future cash flows, 
supported by the results of various market approach valuation models. Ifthe fair value ofthe wireless reporting 
unit exceeds its net book value, goodwill is not impaired, and no further testing is necessary. If the net book 
value of our wireless reporting unit exceeds its fair value, we perform a second test to measure the amount of 
impairment loss, if any. To measure the amount of any impairment loss, we determine the implied fair value of 
goodwill in the same manner as if our wireless reporting unit were being acquired in a business combination. 
Specifically, we allocate the fair value ofthe wireless reporting unit to all ofthe assets and liabilities of that unit, 
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including any unrecognized intangible assets, in a hypothetical calculation that would yield the implied fair value 
of goodwill. If the implied fair value of goodwill is less than the goodwill recorded on our balance sheet, we 
record an impairment charge for the difference. 

2007 Goodwill Assessment 

During the period from our annual 2006 goodwill impairment assessment through third quarter 2007, we 
periodically analyzed whether any indicators of impairment had occuired. As part of these periodic analyses, we 
derived the estimated equity value of the wireless repoiling unit, which we then compared to its net book value. 
Specifically, we reduced our stock price by the estimated value per share of our wireline repotting unit and then 
added a control premium, as permitted by FASB guidance, to determine an estimate of the equity value of the 
wireless repotting unit. As the estimated fair value ofthe wireless reporting unit was higher than its net book 
value during each of these periods, no additional testing was necessary. 

In fouith quarter 2007, we conducted our annual assessment of goodwill for impairment. During this 
quaiter, we experienced a sustained, significant decline in our stock price. The reduced market capitalization 
reflected the Wireless segment's lower than expected performance, due in large part to fewer than expected net 
subscriber additions. In previous periods, we had expected that we would be able to produce net post-paid 
subscriber additions during 2007. In the fourth quarter, we reported a loss of 683,000 post-paid subscribers which 
was the most post-paid subscribers we had ever lost in a quarter. 

We also updated our forecasted cash flows of the wireless reporting unit during the fourth quarter. This 
update considered current economic conditions and trends; estimated future operating results, our views of 
growth rates, anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions; and the availability of necessary technology, 
network infrastructure, handsets and other devices. Several factors led to a reduction in forecasted cash flows, 
including, among others, our ability to attract and retain subscribers, particularly subscribers of our iDEN based 
services, in a highly competitive environment; expected reductions in voice revenue per subscriber; the costs of 
acquiring subscribers; and the costs of operating our wireless networks. 

Based on the results of our annual assessment of goodwill for impairment, the net book value of the wireless 
reporting unit exceeded its fair value. Therefore, we performed the second step ofthe impairment test to 
determine the implied fair value of goodwill. Specifically, we hypothetically allocated the fair value ofthe 
wireless repotting unit as determined in the first step to our recognized and unrecognized net assets, including 
allocations to intangible assets such as customer relationships, FCC licenses and trade names. Such items had fair 
values substantially in excess of cuirent book values. The resulting implied goodwill was $935 million; 
accordingly, we reduced the goodwill recorded prior to this assessment by $29.7 billion to write our goodwill 
down to the implied goodwill amount as of December 31, 2007. The $29.7 billion goodwill impairment charge is 
our best estimate ofthe goodwill charge as of December 31, 2007. Any adjustment to that estimated charge 
resulting from the completion of the measurement of the impairment loss will be recognized in the first quarter 
2008. The allocation discussed above is performed only for purposes of assessing goodwill for impairment; 
accordingly we do not adjust the net book value of the assets and liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet 
other than goodwill as a result ofthis process. 

Methodologies, Estimates, and Assumptions 

We performed extensive valuation analyses, utilizing both income and market approaches, in our goodwill 
assessment process. The following describes the valuation methodologies used to derive the fair value of the 
wireless reporting unit. 

• Incotne Approach: To determine fair value, we discounted the expected cash flows of the wireless 
reporting unit. The discount rate used represents the estimated weighted average cost of capital, which 
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reflects the overall level of inherent risk involved in our wireless operations and the rate of return an 
outside investor would expect to earn. To estimate cash flows beyond the final year of our model, we 
used a terminal value approach. Under this approach, we used estimated operating income before 
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization in the final year of our model, adjusted to estimate a 
normalized cash flow, applied a perpetuity growth assumption and discounted by a perpetuity discount 
factor to determine the terminal value. We incoiporated the present value of the resulting terminal 
value into our estimate of fair value. 

• Market-Based Approach: To conoborate the results of the income approach described above, we 
estimated the fair value of our wireless reporting unit using several market-based approaches, including 
the value that we derive based on our consolidated stock price as described above. We also used the 
guideline company method which focuses on comparing our risk profile and growth prospects to select 
reasonably similar/guideline publicly traded companies. 

The determination of the fair value of the wireless reporting unit requires us to make significant estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reporting unit's expected future cash flows. These estimates and assumptions 
primarily include, but are not limited to, the discount rate, terminal growth rates, operating income before 
depreciation and amortization, or OIBDA and capital expenditures forecasts. Due to the inherent uncertainty 
involved in making these estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates. In addition, changes in 
underlying assumptions would have a significant impact on either the fair value ofthe wireless reporting unit or 
the goodwill impairment charge. 

The allocation ofthe fair value ofthe wireless reporting unit to individual assets and liabilities within the 
wireless reporting unit also requires us to make significant estimates and assumptions. The allocation requires 
several analyses to determine fair value of assets and liabilities including, among others, customer relationships, 
FCC licenses, trademarks and cuirent replacement costs for certain property, plant and equipment. 

Related Analyses 

In conjunction with our annual assessment of goodwill for impairment, we re-assessed the remaining useful 
lives of our long-lived assets and concluded they were appropriate. In addition, prior to the goodwill analysis 
discussed above, we performed a recoverability test ofthe wireless long-lived assets in accordance with SFAS 
No. 144. We included cash fiow projections from wireless operations along with cash flows associated with the 
eventual disposition ofthe long-lived assets, which included estimated proceeds from the sale of FCC licenses, 
trade names, and customer relationships. The undiscounted future cash flows ofthe wireless long-lived assets 
exceeded their net book value and, as a result, no impairment charge was recorded. See note I for additional 
details regarding our long-lived asset impairment testing policies. 

Other Indefinite Lived Intangibles 

We have identified FCC licenses and our Sprint and Boost Mobile® trademarks as indefinite lived intangible 
assets, in addition to our goodwill, after considering the expected use of the assets, the regulatory and economic 
environment within which they are being used, and the effects of obsolescence on their use. The Sprint and Boost 
Mobile trademarks are highly respected brands with positive connotations. We have no legal, regulatory or 
contractual limitations associated with our trademarks. We cultivate and protect the use of our brands. 

We hold several kinds of FCC licenses to deploy our wireless services: 1.9 GHz personal communications 
services, or PCS, licenses utilized in our CDMA network, 800 MHz and 900 MHz licenses utilized in our iDEN 
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network and 2.5 GHz licenses that we use for first generation wireless Internet access services. We also hold 
2.5 GHz, 1.9 GHz and other FCC licenses that we cunentiy do not utilize in our networks or operations. As long 
as we act within the requirements and constraints of the regulatory authorities, the renewal and extension of our 
licenses is reasonably certain at minimal cost. FCC licenses authorize wireless caniers to use radio frequency 
spectrum. That spectrum is a renewable, reusable resource that does not deplete or exhaust over time. We are not 
aware of any technology being developed that would render spectrum obsolete. Cuirently, there are no changes 
in the competitive or legislative environments that would put in question the future need for spectrum licenses. 

In fourth quarter 2007, we also tested other indefinite lived intangibles for impairment by comparing the 
asset's respective net book value to estimates of fair value, determined using the direct value method, and 
concluded that no impairment was necessary for these assets. Our FCC licenses are combined as a single unit of 
accounting following the unit of accounting guidance as prescribed by EITF Issue No. 02-7, Unit of Accounting 
for Testing Impairment of buiefinite-Lived Intangible Assets, except for our FCC licenses in the 2.5 GHz band, 
which are tested separately as a single unit of accounting. 

Definite Lived Intangibles 

Customer relationships 
Trademarks 
Reacquired rights . . . . 
Other 

Estimated amortization expense 

Useful Lives 

2 to 5 years 
10 years 

9 to 14 years 
5 to 16 years 

e 

December 31, 200' 

Gross 
Carrying 

Value 

$12,246 
900 

1,268 
87 

$14,501 

Accumulated 
Amortization 

r 

Net 
Carrying 

Value 

(in millions) 

$(8,043) $4,203 
(215) 685 
(184) 1,084 

(21) 66 

$(8,463) $6,038 

2008 

December 31, 2006 

Gross 
Carrying 

Value 

$12,224 
900 

1,203 
79 

$14,406 

2009 

. . $2,442 $1,559 

Accumulated 
Amortization 

$(4,968) 
(125) 

(82) 
(13) 

$(5,188) 

2010 2011 

Net 
Carrying 

Value 

$7,256 
775 

1,121 
66 

$9,218 

2012 

! millions) 

$735 $249 $201 

Definite lived intangible assets consist primarily of customer relationships that are amortized over two to 
five years using the sum ofthe years' digits method, which we believe best reflects the estimated pattern in 
which the economic benefits will be consumed. Other definite lived intangible assets primarily include certain 
rights under affiliation agreements that we reacquired in connection with the acquisitions of the PCS Affiliates 
and Nextel Partners, which are being amortized over the remaining terms of those affiliation agreements on a 
straight-line basis, and the Nextel and Direct Connect® trade names, which are being amortized over ten years 
from the date of the Sprint-Nextel merger on a straight-line basis. The weighted average amortization period for 
the acquired definite lived intangibles is eight years for 2007 and seven years for 2006. See note 2 for 
informafion regarding the increases in the gross carrying value of definite lived intangible assets. 

Spectrum Reconfiguration Obligations 

As discussed in note 13, costs incurred pursuant to the Repoit and Order that relate to the spectrum and 
infrastructure, when expended, are accounted for either as property, plant and equipment or as additions to the 
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FCC licenses intangible asset, consistent with our accounting policies. The following table represents payments 
directly attributable to our perfoimance under the Report and Order from the inception ofthe program: 

FCC licenses 
Property, plant and equipment 
Costs not benefiting our infrastructure or spectrum positions 

Total 

Through 
December 31, 

2006 

$428 
138 
155 

2007 
Payments 

(in millions) 

$304 
10 
79 

Through 
December 31, 

2007 

$ 732 
148 
234 

$721 $393 $1,114 

Excluded from the table above are estimated reconfiguration costs incuned to date that are included in 
property, plant and equipment on our consolidated balance sheet, which are based on allocations between 
reconfiguration activities and our normal network growth. These estimated allocations may vary depending on key 
assumptions, including subscribers, call volumes and other factors over the life ofthe reconfiguration program. As a 
result, the amount allocated to reconfiguration activity is subject to change based on additional assessments made 
over the course of the reconfiguration program. Since we, the Transition Administrator, or TA, and the FCC have 
not yet reached an agreement on our methodology for calculating the amount to be submitted for credit, we cannot 
provide assurance that we will be granted full credit for certain of these allocated network costs. 

Note 4, Long-Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations 

Balance 
December 31, 

2006 

Senior notes due 2008 to 2032 
1.50% to 10.00%, including fair value hedge 

adjustments of $(25) and $7, defened premiums 
of $390 and $273 and unamortized discounts of 
$35 and $36 $21,534 

Credit facilities 
Export Development Canada, 5.49% 
Commercial paper, 5.20% to 5.98% 

Capital lease obligations and other 
4.l l%to 11.174% 

Less current portion 

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations $21,011 

Borrowings 

Retirements and 
Repayments of 

Principal 
and Other 

(in millions) 

$ 750 $(1,389) 

Balance 
December 31, 

2007 

$20,895 

— 
514 

106 

22,154 

(1,143) 

$21,011 

750 
6,008 

18 

$7,526 

— 
(6,143) 

(18) 

$(7,550) 

750 
379 

106 

22,130 

(1,661) 

$20,469 

As of December 31, 2007, Sprint Nextel, the parent coiporation, had about $4.1 billion of debt outstanding, 
including commercial paper. In addition, about $17.8 billion of our long-term debt has been issued by wholly-
owned subsidiaries and has been fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Sprint Nextel. The indentures and 
financing arrangements of certain of our subsidiaries contain provisions that limit cash dividend payments on 
subsidiary common stock held by the parent corporation. The transfer of cash in the form of advances from the 
subsidiaries to the parent corporation is generally not restricted. 
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As of December 31, 2007, about $463 inillion of our outstanding debt, comprised of certain secured notes, 
capital lease obligations and mortgages, is secured by $1.7 billion of gross property, plant and equipment and 
other assets. 

We are currently in compliance with all restrictive and financial covenants associated with all of our 
borrowings. There is no provision under any of our indebtedness that requires repayment in the event of a 
downgrade by any ratings service. 

Senior Notes 

As of December 31, 2007, we have $20.9 billion of convertible and senior serial redeemable notes. Cash 
interest on these notes is payable semiannually in arrears. Most of our notes are redeemable at our discretion. We 
may choose to redeem some or all of these notes at the then applicable redemption price, plus accrued and unpaid 
interest. The $607 million in aggregate principal amount of our 5.25% notes due 2010 are convertible at any time 
prior to redemption, repurchase or maturity at the option of the holders into shares of our Series 1 common stock 
at an effective conversion price of $53.65 per share, plus $11.37 in cash for each $1,000 principal amount. As of 
December 31, 2007, senior notes also included $ 117 million of debt associated with a consolidated variable 
interest entity. 

In 2007, we paid a total of $ 1.4 billion in cash for early redemptions of senior notes, that we redeemed in 
their entirety, as follows: 

• $150 million of IWO Holdings, Inc's Senior Secured Floating Rate Notes due 2012 that we redeemed 
in January 2007 for $153 million in cash; 

• $420 million of UbiquiTel Operating Company's 9.875% Senior Notes due 2011 that we redeemed in 
March 2007 for $451 million in cash; 

$475 million of Nextel Partners, Inc's 8.125% Senior Notes due 2011 that we redeemed in July 2007 
for $494 million in cash; and 

• $251 million of Alamosa (Delaware), Inc's 11 % Senior Notes due 2010 that we redeemed in July 2007 
for $264 million in cash. 

In June 2007, we completed the sale of $750 inillion in principal amount of floating rate notes due 2010. 
Cash interest is payable quarterly in arrears on March 28, June 28, September 28 and December 28 of each year, 
at a rate of three-month London Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, plus 40 basis points. We may not redeem 
these notes prior to maturity. These notes are senior unsecured obligations and rank equal in right of payment 
with all our other unsecured senior indebtedness. 

In November 2006, we completed the sale of $2.0 billion in principal amount of 6.0% senior serial 
redeemable notes due 2016. Cash interest is payable semiannually in arrears on June 1 and December 1 of each 
year commencing June 1, 2007, at an annual rate of 6.0%. We may choose to redeem some or all of these notes at 
any time and from time to time at a redemption price equal to the greater of 100% of the principal amount and 
the sum ofthe present values ofthe remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest discounted to the 
redemption date, on a semi-annual basis, at a U.S. Treasury note interest rate for the remaining term, plus 30 
basis points, plus, in each case, accrued interest. These notes are senior unsecured obligations and rank equal in 
right of payment with all our other unsecured senior indebtedness. 
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In 2006, our 7.125% and 4.78% senior notes matured with an aggregate principal balance of $1.6 billion, 
which we paid in cash. We paid a total of $2.7 billion in cash for our 2006 early redemptions, that we redeemed 
in their entirety as follows: 

• redeemed all of our outstanding 9.5% senior notes due 2011, with an outstanding principal balance of 
$85 million, and our 6.0% senior notes due 2007, with an outstanding principal balance of $1.6 billion; 

• redeemed Nextel Partners' 1.5% convertible senior notes due 2008, with an outstanding principal 
balance of $140 miflion; 

• redeemed Alamosa's 13.625% senior notes due 2011, 12.0% senior notes due 2009, and 12.5% notes 
due 2011, with an aggregate outstanding principal balance of $247 million; 

• redeemed US Unwired's first priority senior secured floating rate notes due 2010, with an outstanding 
principal balance of $125 million, and IWO Holdings Inc's 10.75% senior discount notes due 2015, 
with an outstanding principal balance of $140 million; and 

• redeemed the 9.375% senior subordinated secured notes due 2009, and floating rate senior secured notes 
due 2011, of an Alamosa subsidiary, with an aggregate outstanding principal balance of $334 million. 

Our weighted average effective interest rate related to our senior notes was 7.0% in 2007 and 7.1% in 2006. 
The effective interest rate includes the effect of interest rate swap agreements accounted for as fair value hedges. 
See note 9 for additional information regarding interest rate swaps. 

Credit Facilities 

Our revolving bank credit facility provides for total unsecured financing capacity of $6.0 biUion. As of 
December 31, 2007, we had $2.6 billion of outstanding letters of credit, which includes a $2.5 billion letter of credit 
required by the FCCs Repoit and Order, and $379 million in commercial paper backed by this facility, resulting in 
$3.0 billion of available revolving credit. We also had an additional $8 million of outstanding letters of credit as of 
Deceinber 31, 2007 used for vaiious financial obligations that are not backed by our bank credit facility. 

In March 2007, we entered into a $750 million unsecured loan agreement with Export Development Canada. 
As of December 31, 2007, we had bonowed all $750 million available under this agreement and this loan will 
mature in March 2012. The terms ofthis loan provide for an interest rate equal to LIBOR plus a spread that 
Vcuies depending on our credit ratings. We may choose to prepay this loan, in whole or in part, at any time. 

On December 19, 2005, we entered into our bank credit facility, which consisted not only ofthe five year 
$6.0 billion revolving credit facility, but also a 364 day $3.2 billion term loan. The terms ofthis loan provide for 
an interest rate equal to LIBOR or the prime rate plus a spread that varies depending on our credit ratings. This 
bank credit facility does not include a rating trigger that would allow the lenders involved to terminate the facility 
in the event of a credit rating downgrade. The $6.0 billion revolving credit facility is also subject to a facility fee 
on the total facility which is payable quarterly. Facility fees can vary between 4 to 15 basis points based upon our 
credit ratings. This facility replaced an existing credit agreement, which included a $4.0 billion revolving credit 
facility and a $2.2 billion term loan. 

Our credit facility requires compliance with a financial ratio test as defined in the credit agreement. The 
maturity dates of the loans may accelerate if we do not comply with the financial ratio test. As of December 31, 
2007, we were in compliance with the financial ratio test under our credit facility. We are also obligated to repay 
the loans if certain change of control events occur. Bonowings under the facility are unsecured. 

The credit facility also contains covenants which limit our ability and the ability of some of our subsidiaries to 
incur additional indebtedness, including guaranteeing obligations of other entities and creating liens, to consolidate, 
merge or sell all or substantially all of our and their assets and to enter into transactions with affiliates. 
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Our ability to bonow additional amounts under the credit facility may be restricted by provisions included 
in some of our public notes that limit the incunence of additional indebtedness in certain circumstances. The 
availability of borrowings under this facility also is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of specified bonowing 
conditions. As of December 31, 2007, we have satisfied the conditions under this facility. 

In 2006, we retired our $3.2 billion term loan with a portion of the proceeds received in connection with the 
spin-off of Embarq. We also repaid and terminated a credit facility that we assumed as part of the Nextel Partners 
acquisition, which had a $500 million outstanding term loan and provided for a $100 million revolving credit 
facility, which had no outstanding bonowings against it. 

Commercial Paper 

In April 2006, we commenced a commercial paper program, which has reduced our boirowing costs by 
allowing us to issue short-term debt at lower rates than those available under our $6.0 billion revolving credit 
facility. The $2.0 billion program is backed by our revolving credit facility and reduces the amount we can 
borrow under the facility to the extent of the commercial paper outstanding. As of December 31, 2007, we had 
$379 miUion of commercial paper outstanding, included in the cunent maturities of long-term debt, with a 
weighted average interest rate of 5.765% and a remaining weighted average maturity of 15 days. 

Capital Lease Obligations and Other 

As of December 31, 2007, we had $ 106 million in capital lease and other obligations, primarily for the use of 
communication switches. 

Future Maturities of Long-Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations 

For the years subsequent to December 31, 2007, scheduled annual principal payments of long-term debt, 
including our bank credit facility and capital lease obligations outstanding as of December 31, 2007, are as 
follows: 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
Thereafter 

21,892 
Add deferred premiums/discounts and fair value hedge adjustments 238 

$22,130 

(in millions) 

$ 1,661 
617 

1,373 
1,667 
3,254 

13,320 

Seventh Series Redeemable Preferred Shares 

On March 31, 2006, we redeemed for cash all of our outstanding Seventh series prefeired shares at the 
stated value of $ 1,000 per share for an aggregate face amount of $247 million, which approximated the canying 
value at the time of redemption. Dividends of $6.73 per share were paid quarterly through March 31, 2006. 
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V. ..-

Note 5. Supplemental Balance Sheet Information 

December 31, 
2007 2006 

(in millions) 
Accounts and notes receivable, net 

Trade $ 4,065 $ 4,335 
Unbilled trade and other 523 738 
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (392) (383) 

$ 4,196 $ 4,690 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Receivable under securities loan agreements (see note 9) — $ 866 
Prepaid expenses 395 406 
Deferred charges and other 245 182 

$ 640 $ 1,454 

Property, plant and equipment, net 
Land $ 321 $ 280 
Network equipment, site costs and software 35,622 29,913 
Buildings and improvements 4,694 4,442 
Non-network internal use software, office equipment and other 3,293 3,479 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (21,473) (16,569) 

22,457 21,545 
Network asset inventory and construction in progress 4,039 4,323 

$ 26,496 $ 25,868 

Accounts payable 
Trade $ 2,750 $ 2,364 
Accrued interconnection costs 469 487 
Construction obligations and other 262 322 

$ 3,481 $ 3,173 

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 
Current deferred revenues $ 1,191 $ 1,257 
Securities loan agreements (see note 9) — 866 
Accrued taxes 561 559 
Payroll and related 355 468 
Accrued interest 440 390 
Other 1,415 1,886 

$ 3,962 $ 5,426 

Other liabilities 
Deferred rental income—coinmunications towers $ 930 $ 999 
Deferred rent 1,146 944 
Accrued taxes—uncertain tax benefits 553 — 
Non-current deferred revenue 245 204 
Post-retirement benefits and other non-cunent employee related liabilities 363 421 
Other 611 614 

$ 3,848 $ 3,182 
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Note 6. Severance, Exit Costs and Asset Impairments 

In 2007, total severance, exit costs and asset impairment costs aggregated $440 million compared to 
$207 million in 2006 and $43 inillion in 2005. For 2007, this included a $44 million loss on the sale ofthe 
operations of Velocita Wireless. 

Asset Impairment 

In 2007, we had asset impairments of $163 million, primarily attributable to our Wireless segment, which 
included the write-off of cell site development costs that we abandoned as the sites would not be used based on 
management's strategic network plans, the sale of Velocita Wireless, and the closing of retail stores due to 
integration efforts. In 2006, we had asset impairments of $69 million related to software applications and 
abandonment of various assets, including certain cell sites under construction in our Wireless segment. In 2005, 
we had asset impairments of $44 million related to various software applications. 

Severance and Exit Costs Activity 

Beginning in the first quaiter 2007, in order to improve our cost structure we reduced our full-time 
headcount and as a result of these and other terminations, we recorded $194 million across our Wireless and 
Wireline segments related to severance liability with a conesponding charge to severance expense. We 
completed the majority of our headcount reductions by March 31, 2007 and finalized our reductions by the end of 
the year. In addition, we recorded lease exit costs of $83 million in 2007. 

Beginning in the second half of 2005, we rationalized our cost structure resulting from the Sprint-Nextel 
inerger and the PCS Affiliates and Nextel Partners acquisitions. Our merger and integration efforts affected many 
areas of our business and operations, including network, information technology, customer care and general and 
administrative functions. These activities resulted in $138 million in severance and lease exit costs associated 
with work force reductions across both of our segments, which has been reported in the consolidated statements 
of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006. 

The following tables provide a summary of our severance and exit costs liability, exclusive of exit costs that 
are expected to be associated with business combinations, in accordance with SFAS Nos. 88, 112 and 146. 

2007 Activity 

Lease terminations 
Severance 

Total costs 

Balance 
December 31, 

2006 

$ 80 
34 

$114 

Cash 
Payments 

Expense and Other 

(in millions) 

$ 83 
194 

$277 

$ (68) 
(198) 

$(266) 

2006 Activity 

Balance 
December 31, 

2007 

$ 95 
30 

$125 

Lease terminafions 
Severance 

Total costs 

Balance 
December 31, 

2005 

$ 78 

fixpense*' 

Cash 
Payments 
and Other 

$ 78 

(in millions) 
$ 4 3 $ (41) 

95 (61) 

$138 $(102) 

Balance 
December 31, 

2006 

80 
34 

$114 
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Lease terminations 
Severance 
Other 

Total costs 

Balance 
December 31, 

2004 

$ 93 
55 
7 

$155 

2005 Activity 

Cash 
Payments 

Expensetn and Other 

(in millions) 
$ 9 

(8) 
(2) 

$(1) 

$(24) 
(47) 

(5) 

$(76) 

Balance 
December 31, 

2005 

$ 78 
— 
— 

$ 78 

(1) Excluded from the table above are severance and exit costs of $27 million in 2006, that were allocated to 
our Local segment prior to the spin-off of Embarq and are included in discontinued operations in the 
consolidated statement of operations. 

Exit Costs Associated with Business Combinations 

In connection with exit activities related to business combinations, we recorded certain costs associated with 
dispositions and integration activities in accordance with the requirements of EITF Issue No. 95-3. The exit costs 
are primarily related to termination fees associated with leases and contractual anangements, as well as 
severance and related costs associated with work force reductions. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we 
recorded $30 million of adjustments to such exit costs and adjusted the purchase price allocations. These actions 
have resulted in adjustments to accrued liabilities and goodwill related to the 2006 and 2007 acquisitions. The 
activity is presented in the table below: 

Lease terminations 
Severance 
Other 

Total costs 

Lease terminations 
Severance 
Other 

Total costs 

Balance 
December 31, 

2006 

$ 77 
28 

3 

$108 

Balance 
December 31, 

2005 

$ 42 
6 

— 

$ 48 

2007 Activity 

Purchase 
Price 

Adjustments 
Cash 

Payments 

(in millions) 

$(32) 
2 

__ 

$(30) 

$ (22) 
(28) 

(3) 

$ (53) 

2006 Activity 

Purchase 
Price 

Adjustments 
Cash 

Payments 

(in millions) 

$ 61 
159 

12 

$232 

$ (26) 
(137) 

(9) 

$(172) 

Balance 
December 31, 

2007 

$ 23 
2 

— 

$ 25 

Balance 
December 31, 

2006 

$ 77 
28 

3 

$108 
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Note 7. Income Taxes 

Income tax benefit (expense) allocated to continuing operations consists ofthe following; 

Year Ended December 31, 

2007 2006 2005 

(in millions) 
Current income tax benefit (expense) 

Federal $ 15 $ 102 $ 395 
State (7) (119) (67) 

Total cunent income tax benefit (expense) 8 (17) 328 

Defened income tax benefit (expense) 
Federal 113 (556) (835) 
State ^ 4 7 88 37 

Total deferred income tax benefit (expense) 360 (468) (798) 

Foreign income tax (expense) (3) (3) — 

Total income tax benefit (expense) $365 $(488) $(470) 

The differences that caused our effective income tax rates to vary from the 35% federal statutory rate for 
income taxes related to continuing operations were as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 
2007 2006 2005 

(in millions) 
Income tax benefit (expense) at the federal statutory rate $ 10,481 $(519) $(452) 
Effect of 

Goodwill impairment (10,265) — — 
State income taxes, net of federal income tax effect 51 (47) (20) 
State law changes, net of federal income tax effect 105 27 — 
Tax audit settiements — 42 ^ 
Other, net (7) 9 2 

Income tax benefit (expense) $ 365 $(488) $(470) 

Effective income tax rate 1.2% 32.9% 36.4% 

Income tax benefit (expense) allocated to other items was as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 

2007 2006 2005 

(in millions) 
Discontinued operations — $(234) $(635) 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — — 10 
Unrecognized net periodic pension and postretirement benefit cost*" (10) 4 39 
Unrealized gains (losses) on secmities'" (3) 48 (27) 
Unrealized gains (losses) on qualifying cash flow hedges'" — (5) (7) 
Stock ownership, purchase and option arrangements'-^ (15) 1 38 
Cumulative effect of adoption of SAB No. 108—leases* '̂ — 31 — 
Goodwill, reduction of valuation allowance on acquired assets 93 68 18 

(!) These amounts have been recorded directly to shareholders' equity—accumidated other comprehensive loss 
on the consolidated balance sheets. 
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(2) These amoimts have been recorded directly to shareholders' equity ̂ paid-in capital on the consolidated 
balance .sheets. 

(3) This amoimt has been recorded directly to shareholders' equity—retained earnings on the consolidated 
balance .sheet. 

We recognize defened income taxes for the temporary differences between the canying amounts of our 
assets and liabilities for financial statement purposes and their tax bases. Defened tax assets are also recorded for 
operating loss, capital loss and tax credit cany forwards. The sources of the differences that give rise to the 
deferred income tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2007 and 2006, along with the income tax effect of 
each, were as follows: 

Deferred tax assets 
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 407 
Capital loss carryforwards 
Accruals and other liabilities 
Tax credit carryforwards 
Pension and other postretirement benefits 

Valuation allowance 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Property, plant and equipment 
Intangibles 
Investments 
Other 

Current deferred tax asset 

Long-term deferred tax liability 

The foreign income included in income (loss) from continuing operations totaled $132 million in 2007, $52 
million in 2006 and $27 million in 2005. We have no material unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries. 

In 2006 and 2005, we acquired $756 million and $2.8 billion, respectively, of potential income tax benefits 
related to net operating loss canyforwards, capital loss carryforwards and tax credit canyforwards in the Sprint-
Nextel merger, and the PCS Affiliate and Nextel Partners acquisitions. In 1999, we acquired $193 million of 
potential tax benefits related to net operating loss canyforwards in the acquisitions of broadband fixed wireless 
companies. In 1998, we acquired $229 million of potential tax benefits related to net operating loss canyforwards 
in the controlling interest acquisition of our wireless joint venture, which we call the PCS Restructuring. The 
benefits from these acquisitions are subject to certain realization restrictions under various tax laws. As of 
December 31, 2007, a valuation allowance of $477 million remains on these defened tax benefits. If the benefits 
for which a valuation allowance has been provided at the time of acquisition are recognized in 2008, they will 
first reduce goodwill or intangibles resulting from the application ofthe purchase method of accounting for these 
transactions. If goodwill and intangibles related to the acquisition are reduced to zero, any additional tax benefits 
recognized would reduce income tax expense. Any adjustment to the valuation allowance after 2008 would be 
recorded to the statement of operations following the guidance in the recentiy issued SFAS No. 141R. 
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December 31, 2007 

Current 

$407 
— 
228 
— 
— 

635 
(115) 

520 

_ 

— 
— 

73 
73 

$447 

Long-Term 

December 31,2006 

Current 

(in millions) 

$ 1,053 
45 

1,008 
672 

84 

2,862 
(608) 

2,254 

2,214 
8,661 

68 
• — 

10,943 

$ 8,689 

$ 689 
-— 
356 
168 
— 

1,213 
(290) 

923 

_ 

__ 
— 
— 
— 

$ 923 

Long-Term 

$ 1,245 
45 

939 
465 

93 

2,787 
(663) 

2,124 

2,185 
9,961 

73 
— 

12,219 

$10,095 
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In connection with the PCS Restructuring, we are required to reimburse the former cable company partners 
of the joint venture for net operating loss and tax credit carryforward benefits generated before the PCS 
Restructuring if realization by us produces a cash benefit that would not otherwise have been realized. The 
reimbursement will equal 60% ofthe net cash benefit received by us and will be made to the former cable 
company partners in shares of our stock. The unexpired carryforward benefits subject to this requirement total 
$187 million. 

As of December 31, 2007, we had federal operating loss canyforwards of $2.8 billion and state operating 
loss carryforwards of $ 10.5 billion. Related to these loss canyforwards are federal tax benefits of $979 million 
and state tax benefits of $740 inillion. 

In addition, we had available, for income tax purposes, federal alternative minimum tax net operating loss 
canyforwards of $2.3 billion and state alternative minimum tax net operating loss carryforwards of $651 million. 
The loss carryforwards expire in varying amounts through 2027. We also had available capital loss canyforwards 
of $ 129 million. Related to these capital loss carryforwards are tax benefits of $45 million, which will expire in 
2009. 

We also had available $672 million of federal and state income tax credh canyforwards as of December 31, 
2007. Included in this amount are $397 million of income tax credits which expire in varying amounts through 
2027. The remaining $275 million do not expire. 

The valuation allowance related to defened income tax assets decreased $230 million in 2007 and decreased 
$117 million in 2006. The 2007 decrease is primarily related to a reclassification to other liabilities in accordance 
with the adoption of FIN 48 and the use of a capital loss on which a valuation allowance had been previously 
provided. The 2006 decrease is primarily related to the use of a capital loss on which a valuation allowance had 
been previously provided and the expiration of state net operating losses for which a valuation allowance had 
been provided. 

We believe it is more likely than not that these deferred income tax assets, net of the valuation allowance, 
will be realized based on cuirent income tax laws and expectations of future taxable income stemming from the 
reversal of existing defened tax liabilities or ordinary operations. Uncertainties suirounding income tax law 
changes, shifts in operations between state taxing jurisdictions and future operating income levels may, however, 
affect the ultimate realization of all or some of these defeired income tax assets. When we evaluated these and 
other qualitative factors and uncertainties concerning our company and industry, we found that they provide 
continuing evidence requiring the valuation allowance which we cuirently recognize related to the realization of 
the tax benefit of our net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards as of December 31, 2007. 

FASB Interpretation No. 48 

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January I, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in 
income taxes recognized in an enterprise's financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109 and prescribes 
a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a 
tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 generally is 
recorded directly to retained earnings. However, to the extent the adoption of FIN 48 resulted in a revaluation of 
uncertain tax positions acquired in any purchase business combination, the cumulative effect is recorded as an 
adjustment to the goodwill remaining from the corresponding purchase business combination. 

As a result of the adoption of FIN 48, we recognized a $20 million increase in the liability for unrecognized 
tax benefits, which was accounted for as a $24 million increase to goodwill and a $4 million increase to retained 
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earnings as of January 1, 2007. The total unrecognized tax benefits attributable to uncertain tax positions as of 
January 1, 2007 were $606 million. Upon adoption of FIN 48, we reclassified the majority of our liability for 
unrecognized tax benefits from defened tax liabilities to other liabilities with the remainder being netted against 
our deferred tax assets. Upon adoption, the total unrecognized tax benefits included items that would favorably 
affect the income tax provision by $89 million, if recognized. The total unrecognized tax benefits attributable to 
uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2007 were $654 million. At December 31, 2007, the total 
unrecognized tax benefits included items that would favorably affect the income tax provision by $108 million, if 
recognized. We recognize interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense or interest income. We 
recognize penalties as additional income tax expense. As of December 31, 2007, the accrued liability for income 
tax related interest was $71 million and the accrued liability for penalties was $13 million. 

A reconciliation ofthe beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows: 

(in millions) 

Balance at January 1, 2007 $606 
Additions based on cunent year tax positions 44 
Additions based on prior year tax positions 18 
Reductions for prior year tax positions (11) 
Reductions for settiements (3) 

Balance at December 31, 2007 $654 

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and each state jurisdiction which imposes an 
income tax. We also file income tax returns in a number of foreign jurisdictions. However, our foreign income 
tax activity has been immaterial. The Internal Revenue Service, or IRS, is cunently exanrining our 2005 and 
2006 consolidated federal income tax returns and other 2005 returns of certain of our subsidiaries. They have 
effectively completed the examination of our consolidated returns related to years prior to 2005. 

We have reached settlement agreements with the Appeals division of the IRS for our examination issues in 
dispute following the IRS exam for the years 2000-2002. The unresolved disputed issues from the 2003-2004 
IRS examination are awaiting consideration by the Appeals division of the IRS; however, they are immaterial to 
our consolidated financial statements. The IRS is also examining the 2001 through pre-merger 2005 consolidated 
income tax returns of our subsidiary, Nextel Communications, Inc. We are also involved in multiple state income 
tax examinations related to various years beginning with 1995, which are in various stages ofthe examination, 
administrative review or appellate process. Based on our cunent knowledge ofthe proposed adjustments from 
the aforementioned examinations, we do not anticipate the adjustments would result in a material change to our 
financial position. We also do not believe it is reasonably possible that we will have significant increases or 
decreases to the liability for unrecognized tax benefits during the next twelve months on our cunent uncertain tax 
positions. 

Note 8. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

We have determined the estimated fair values of financial instruments using available market information 
and appro]:)riate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data 
to develop fair value estimates. As a result, the estimates presented below are not necessarily indicative of the 
amounts that we could realize or be required to pay in a cunent market exchange. The use of different market 
assumptions, as well as estimation methodologies, may have a material effect on the estimated fair value 
amounts. 
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The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of our financial instruments at year-end were as follows: 

December 31, 
2007") 2006'!) 

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated 
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value 

(in millions) 
Marketable securities and other investments $ 294 $ 294 $ 106 $ 106 
Derivative instruments 15 15 (17) (17) 
Debt, including cuirent portion 22,130 22,019 22,154 22,993 

(1) Cash atul cash equivalents, accounts receivable, deposits, accounts payable and accrued expenses aiul 
other items have been excluded from the table above, as the carrying amount on the consolidated balance 
sheets approximate their canying amounts due to their .short tenn nature. 

Financial Instruments Valuation Method 

Marketable securities and other investments Primarily quoted market prices 

Derivative instruments Estimates using available market information and 
appropriate valuation methodologies 

Debt Available market prices and estimates using available 
market data information and appropriate valuation 
methodologies 

Letters of Credit 

Outstanding letters of credit totaled $2.6 billion as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. Pursuant to the terms of 
the Report and Order described in note 13 below, we were required to establish a letter of credit in the amount of 
$2.5 billion to provide assurance that funds will be available to pay the relocation costs of the incumbent users of 
the 800 megahertz, or MHz, spectrum in connection with the band reconfiguration process. This letter of credit is 
outstanding under our $6.0 billion revolving credit facility. The letter of credit is subject to fees competitively 
determined in the market place. We also use letters of credit to provide credit suppoit for various financial 
obligations. 

Note 9. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities 

Risk Management Policies 

Our derivative instruments typically include interest rate swaps, stock wanants, option contracts, and 
foreign cunency forward and option contracts. We primarily use derivative instruments to hedge our exposure to 
the market risks associated with unfavorable movements in interest rates, equity prices, and foreign cunencies. 
Our board of directors has authorized us to enter into derivative transactions, and all transactions comply with 
our risk management policies. 

Interest rate risk is caused by potential adverse movements in interest rates that affect earnings or cash 
flows. Specific interest rate risks include the risk of increasing interest rates on variable-rate debt, and the risk of 
increasing interest rates for new or refinanced fixed-rate debt. 
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Exposure to strategic investments in other companies includes the risk that unfavorable changes in market 
prices could adversely affect earnings and cash flows. We may also obtain equity rights in other companies, 
usually in the form of wanants to purchase common stock of the companies. These equity rights are typically 
obtained in connection with commercial agreements or strategic investments. 

Our foreign exchange risk management program focuses on reducing transaction exposure to optimize 
consolidated cash flow. We enter into forward and option contracts in foreign cunencies to reduce the impact of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. Our primary transaction exposure results from net payments made to and 
received from overseas communications companies for completing international calls made by our domestic 
customers and the operations of our international subsidiaries. 

Interest Rate Derivatives 

As of Deceinber 31, 2007, we held fair value interest rate swaps with a notional value of $1.0 billion. These 
swaps were entered into as hedges of the fair value of a portion of our senior notes and have matiu-ities ranging 
from 2008 to 2012. On a semiannual basis, we pay a floating rate of interest equal to the six-month LIBOR plus a 
fixed spread and receive an average interest rate equal to the coupon rates stated on the underlying senior notes. 

Our interest rate swaps meet all the required criteria under SFAS No. 133, as amended, in order to apply the 
shortcut method of accounting for these instruments, as all of the critical terms of the swaps perfectly match the 
conesponding terms of the hedged debt. Under the shortcut method, we can assume that our interest rate swaps 
are perfectly effective in hedging our interest rate risk. We recognize all changes in the fair values ofthe interest 
rate swaps cuirently as a gain or loss within other income (expense) on the consolidated statements of operations, 
in accordance with SFAS No. 133, as amended. Underthe shortcut method, these changes in the fair value ofthe 
hedging instrument are offset by an equal change in the fair value of the underlying debt, with no impact on 
earnings. 

During the fouith quarter 2005, we entered into a series of interest rate collars associated with the issuance 
of debt by Embarq at the time of its spin-off on May 17, 2006. These derivative instruments did not qualify for 
hedge accounting treatment in our consolidated financial statements, and changes in the fair value of these 
instruments were recognized in earnings from discontinued operations during the period of change. During 2006, 
the fair value of these derivatives increased, resulting in a $43 million gain, after tax. These derivatives were 
setfied upon completion ofthe spin-off 

Equity Derivatives 

In 2005, we entered into a series of option contracts associated with our investment in Nil Holdings 
designed to hedge our exposure to the risk of unfavorable changes in the price of Nil Holdings' common shares. 
The first contract was written for 1.7 inillion common shares of Nil Holdings and was not designated as a 
hedging instrument. Therefore, changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument were recognized in earnings 
during the period of change prior to settiement. We settied the first option contract on March 31, 2006 in 
conjunction with the sale of 1.7 inillion common shares of Nil Holdings. We recognized a gain of $37 million 
from the sale of the underlying shares, partially offset by a loss of $23 million from the change in fair value of 
the o])tion contract during 2006, resulting in a net gain of $14 million recorded to other income. 

The remaining option contracts were written for a total of about 13 million common shares of Nil Holdings 
related to the forecasted sale of those shares in the fourth quarter 2006 and were designated as effective cash flow 
hedges of a forecasted transaction pursuant to SFAS No. 133, as amended, and Derivative Implementation Group 
Issue No. G-20, A.sse.s.sing atul Measuring the Effectiveness of a Purchased Option Used in a Cash Flow Hedge. 
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In the fourth quaiter 2006, we sold our remaining investment of about 13 million common shares of Nil Holdings 
and settled the remaining option contracts using common shares of Nil Holdings bonowed under stock loan 
agreements. We recognized a gain of $396 million from the sale ofthe underlying shares, partially offset by a 
realized loss of $251 million from the change in fair value ofthe option contracts, resulting in a net gain of 
$145 million recorded to other income. We also recorded $53 million of income tax expense in the fourth quaiter 
2006 relating to this transaction as a result of the sale of the Nil Holdings shares and the settiement of the option 
contracts, as well as the reversal of a defened tax liability relating to the Nil Holdings shares. The use of 
borrowed shares to settle the option contracts was accounted for as a collateralized boirowing, resulting in an 
increase of $866 million to prepaid expenses and other current assets and accrued expenses and other current 
liabilities for the fair value of the underlying shares. In 2006, we recognized a financing cash infiow of 
$866 million related to the boirowing and an equal investing cash outflow related to collateral posted for the 
borrowed shares. The collateralized borrowing was terminated in January 2007. 

Note 10. Shareholders' Equity 

Our articles of incorporation authorize 6,620,000,000 shares of capital stock as follows: 

• 6,000,000,000 shares of Series 1 voting common stock, par value $2.00 per share; 

• 500,000,000 shares of Series 2 voting common stock, par value $2.00 per share; 

• 100,000,000 shares of non-voting common stock, par value $0.01 per share; and 

• 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock, no par value per shaie. 

Classes of Common Stock 

Series 1 Common Stock 

The holders of our Series 1 common stock are entitied to one vote per share on all matters submitted for 
action by the shareholders. 

Series 2 Common Stock 

The holders of our Series 2 common stock are entitled to 10% of one vote per share, but otherwise have 
rights that are substantially identical to those ofthe Series 1 common stock. There were about 75 million shares 
of Series 2 common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2007. 

Non-Voting Common Stock 

About 38 million shares of our non-voting common stock was issued in the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 
2005 to Motorola and its subsidiary, the only holders of non-voting common shares. In December 2006, 
Motorola and its subsidiary exercised their right to convert the non-voting common shares into an equal number 
of shares of our Series 1 common stock, resulting in a $623 million decrease in paid-in capital and a reduction in 
treasury shares, as shown in the consolidated statements of shareholders' equity. 

Dividends 

We paid a dividend of $0,025 per share on the Series 1 common stock and the Series 2 common stock in 
each of the quarters of 2007 and 2006 and in the third and fourth quarters of 2005 and a dividend of $0,025 per 
share on the non-voting common stock in each ofthe quarters of 2006 and in third and fourth quarters 2005. We 
paid a dividend of $0,125 per share on the Series 1 common stock and the Series 2 common stock in the first two 
quarters of 2005. 
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Share Repurchase Program 

On July 25, 2006, our board of directors authorized the purchase of up to $6.0 billion of our Series 1 
common stock through open market purchases. This authorization expired in January 2008. As of December 31, 
2007, we had repurchased 185 million shares of our Series 1 common stock for $3.5 billion at an average price of 
$18.77 per share. 

Common Stock Reserved for Future Grants 

As of December 31, 2007, Series 1 common stock reserved for future grants under plans providing for the 
grant of stock options and other equity-based awai'ds, future grants under the employees stock purchase plan or 
future issuances under various other arrangements included: 

Shares 

(in millions) 
Employees stock purchase plan 19.3 
Officer and key employees' and directors' stock options and other equity-based 

awards 200.6 
5.25% convertible debt conversion rights 11.3 

231.2 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss 

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss are as follows: 

Asof December 31, 

2007 2006 

(in millions) 
Unrecognized net periodic pension and postretirement benefit cost $(158) $(172) 
Unrealiy.ed net gains related to investments 11 4 
Foreign cunency translation adjustments 36 20 

Accumulated other coinprehensive loss $(111) $(148) 

Note 11. Share-Based Compensation 

As of December 31, 2007, we sponsored four equity incentive plans, the 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan, or 2007 
Plan; the 1997 Long-Term Incentive Progi'am, or the 1997 Program; the Nextel Incentive Equity Plan, or the Nextel 
Plan; and the Management Incentive Stock Option Plan, or MISOP, as well as our Employees Stock Purchase Plan, or 
ESPP. On May 8, 2007, our shareholders approved the 2007 Plan, under which we may grant stock options, stock 
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restiicted stock units, performance shares, performance units and other equity-
based and cash awards to our employees, outside directors and certain other service providers. Options are generally 
granted with an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying shares on the grant date, generally vest on an 
annual basis over three years, and generally have a contractual teim often years. Employees and dkectors who are 
granted restricted stock units are not requii'cd to pay for the shares but generally must remain employed with us, or 
continue to serve as a member of our board of directors, until the restrictions lapse, which is typically three years for 
employees and one yeai' for directors. The Human Capital and Compensation Committee, or HC&CC, of our board of 
directors, or one or more executive officers should the HC&CC so authorize, as provided in the 2007 Plan, will 
detennine the terms of each equity-based award. On February 11,2008, we made certain amendments to the 2007 Plan 
to comply with new tax regulations, including new regulations under Section 409A ofthe Intemal Revenue Code. No 
new grants can be made under the 1997 Program, the Nextel Plan or the MISOP. 
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During 2007, the number of shares available under the 2007 Plan increased by about 8 million, as the 
number of shares available under the 2007 Plan is increased by any shares originally granted under the 1997 
Program, the Nextel Plan, or the MISOP that are forfeited, expired, or otherwise terminated. As of December 31, 
2007, about 201 million common shares were available under the 2007 Plan. 

Under the 1997 Program, we previously had the authority to grant options, restricted shares, restricted stock 
units and other equity-based awards to directors and employees. As of December 31, 2007, awards to acquire 
about 80 million shares were outstanding under the 1997 Program. Under the 1997 Program, options generally 
were granted with an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying shares on the grant date; 
however, the 2005 option awards for certain senior level executives had an exercise price equal to 110% of the 
market value of the underlying shares on the grant date. Options granted in 2007 and 2006 generally vest on an 
annual basis over three years and have a contractual term of ten years. Options granted before 2006 generally 
vest on an annual basis over four years, and also have a contractual term of ten years. In addition, restricted stock 
units awarded to certain senior level executives in 2005 and many of the restricted stock units granted in 2006 
and 2007 contain performance provisions such as the achievement of defined levels of wireless subscriber 
additions, adjusted operating income before depreciation and amortization, cumulative free cash flow from 
operations, post-paid wireless subscriber retention and/or other qualitative and quantitative factors. Restricted 
stock units granted in 2007 have a three-year performance period and will vest on the third anniversary of the 
date of the award. Performance provision achievement for awards prior to 2007 is typically evaluated one year 
after grant, at which point we may increase or decrease the number of awards an employee is eligible to receive. 
To the extent the performance provisions are achieved, the vesting of any awards that remain outstanding is 
subject only to the remaining term of employment or service discussed above. Prior to 2005, restricted shares, or 
nonvested shares, were granted to officers and key employees under the 1997 Program. 

Under the Nextel Plan, outstanding Nextel deferred shares, or nonvested shares, which constitute an 
agreement to deliver shares upon the performance of service over a defined period of time, and grants of options 
to purchase Nextel common shares were converted at the time of the Sprint-Nextel merger into our nonvested 
shares or options to purchase a number of our common shares. As of December 31, 2007, awards to acquire 
48 million common shares were outstanding under the Nextel Plan. Options were granted prior to the Sprint-
Nextel merger with an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying shares on the grant date. These 
options vest on a monthly basis over periods of up to four years, and have a contractual term of ten years. 
Employees are not required to pay for the nonvested shares; however, they must remain employed with us until 
the restrictions on the shares lapse. The nonvested shares generally vest over a service period ranging from 
several months to four years. An accelerated vesting schedule may be triggered in the event of a change in 
control. Accelerated vesting was triggered with respect to certain deferred shares and options granted prior to the 
Sprint-Nextel merger as a result ofthe Sprint-Nextel merger. 

Under the MISOP, we granted stock options to employees eligible to receive annual incentive 
compensation. Eligible employees could elect to receive stock options in lieu of a portion of their target incentive 
under our annual incentive compensation plans. The options generally became exercisable on December 31 of 
the year granted and have a maximum contractual term of ten years. Under the MISOP, we also granted stock 
options to executives in lieu of long-term incentive compensation, or LTIP-MISOP options. The LTIP-MISOP 
options generally became exercisable on the third December 31 following the grant date and have a maximum 
term of ten years. MISOP options were granted with exercise prices equal to the market price of the underlying 
common stock on the grant date. As of December 31, 2007, options to buy about 30 million common shares were 
outstanding under the MISOP. 

In connection with the Sprint-Nextel merger, the vesting of certain equity-based awards issued under the 
1997 Program, the MISOP and the Nextel Plan was accelerated following the termination of employment of 
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certain award recipients. In January 2005, we adopted a retention program designed to retain our senior 
executives and other key personnel through completion of the Sprint-Nextel merger and for the one-year period 
following the merger. Under this program, if we terminated the employment of a program participant other than 
for cause within one year of the Sprint-Nextel merger, certain unvested equity-based awards held by that 
participant vested automatically. Under the Nextel Plan, if, within one year ofthe Sprint-Nextel merger, we 
tenninated other than for cause the employment of a holder of an equity-based award granted under the plan, or 
in the case of specified executives, the holder terminated his or her employment with good reason, as defined in 
the plan, then that holder's unvested equity-based awards vested automatically. 

Under our ESPP, eligible employees may subscribe quarterly to purchase shares of our Series 1 common 
stock through payroll deductions of up to 20% of eligible compensation. The purchase price is equal to 90% of 
the market value on the last trading day of each quarterly offering period. The aggregate number of shares 
purchased by an employee may not exceed 9,000 shares or $25,000 of fair market value in any calendar year, 
subject to limitations imposed by Section 423 ofthe Internal Revenue Code. As of December 31, 2007, this plan 
authorized for purchase about 19 inillion shares, net of elections made in 2007 by employees participating in the 
fourth quarter 2007 offering period under the ESPP to purchase about 992,000 of our common shares, which 
were issued in the first quarter 2008. Employees purchased these shares for $11.78 per share. 

Currently, we use treasury shares to satisfy share-based awards or new shares if no treasury shares are 
available. 

Adoption of SFAS No. 123R 

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123R, which supersedes SFAS No. 123, Accounting for 
Stock-Based Compensation. SFAS No. 123R requires us to measure the cost of employee services received in 
exchange for an award of equity-based securities using the fair value of the award on the date of grant, and we 
recognize that cost over the period that the award recipient is required to provide service to us in exchange for the 
award. Any awards of liability instruments to employees would be remeasured at fair value at each reporting date 
through settlement. 

Pre-tax share-based compensation cost charged against net income (loss) for our share-based award plans 
was $265 inillion for 2007, $361 million for 2006 and $303 million for 2005. Pre-tax share-based compensation 
cost charged against income from continuing operations for our share-based award plans was $265 million for 
2007, $338 million for 2006 and $254 million for 2005. Ofthe total share-based compensation in 2005, 
$234 million related to stock-based grants issued after December 31, 2002; $37 million related to the 
recombination of our two tracking stocks; and $32 million related to the separation of certain of our employees 
employed with us prior to the Sprint-Nextel merger. 

The total income tax benefit recognized in the consolidated financial statements for share-based award 
compensation was $96 million for 2007, $138 miUion for 2006 and $111 million for 2005. The total income tax 
benefit recognized in the statement of operations related to continuing operations for share-based award 
compensation was $96 inillion in 2007, $129 miUion for 2006 and $93 million for 2005. 

As of Deceinber 31, 2007, there was $211 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to our 
share-based award plans that is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.61 years. Cash 
received from exercise under all share-based payment anangements was $344 million for 2007, $405 million for 
2006 and $432 million for 2005. The actual tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from exercise ofthe share-
based payment arrangements totaled $4 million for 2007, $6 mUlion for 2006 and $6 million for 2005. 
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Under our share-based payment plans, we had options, restricted stock units and nonvested shares 
outstanding as of December 31, 2007. Awards with graded vesting are recognized using the straight-line method. 
Forfeitures were estimated for 2007, 2006 and 2005 share-based awards using a 4% weighted average annual 
rate. 

Options 

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option valuation 
model. The risk-free rate used in 2007, 2006, and 2005 is based on the zero-coupon U.S. Treasury bond with a 
term equal to the expected term of the options. The volatility used is the implied volatility from traded options on 
our common shares or the historical volatility of our common shares over a period that approximates the 
expected term of the options. The expected dividend yield used is estimated based on our historical dividend 
yield and other factors. The expected term of options granted is estimated using the simplified method, defined as 
the average ofthe vesting term and the contractual term. Options outstanding as of December 31, 2007 include 
options granted under the 2007 Plan, the 1997 Program, the Nextel Plan, and the MISOP as discussed above. 

2007 20a6<'> 2005 

Weighted average grant date fair value S 6.05 $ 6.97 $ 9.27 
Risk free interest rate 3.70% - 5.12% 4.53% -5.21% 3.60% -4.54% 
Expected volatility'2) 26.6%-38.3% 22.5%-27.9% 18.8%-58.8% 
Weighted average expected volatility'^) 29.0% 24.7% 44.9% 
Expected dividend yield 0.46% - 0.72% 0.44% - 0.58% 0.42% - 2.26% 
Weighted average expected dividend yield 0.56% 0.46% 2.06% 
Expected term (years) 6 6 6 
Options granted (millions) 17 14 8 

(1) Values, other than the risk free interest rate and the expected tenn, have been adjusted for the spin-off of 
Embarq based on the 1.0955 conversion rate. 

(2) In 2006 and 2007, we based our estimate of expected volatility on the iniplied volatility of exchange traded 
options, consistent with the guidance in SAB No. 107, Share-Based Payment. In 2005, expected volatility 
was based on our historical volatility. 

A summary of the status of the options under our option plans as of December 31, 2007, and changes during 
the year ended December 31, 2007, is presented below: 

Weighted 
Average 

per 
Shares Share Weighted Aggregate 
Under Exercise Average Remaining Intrinsic 
Option Price Contractual Term Value 

(in millions) (in years) (in millions) 
Outstanding January 1, 2007 171 $23.33 

Granted 17 18.50 
Exercised (24) 14.26 
Forfeited/expired (\3) 29.73 

Outstanding December 31,2007 211 S23.71 4.83 $75 

Vested or expected to vest at December 31,2007 J ^ $23.74 4.80 $75 

Exercisable at December 31,2007 121 $24.81 3.90 $75 
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As of December 31, 2007, there was $150 million of total um*ecognized compensation cost related to 
unvested options and that cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.45 years. The 
total intrinsic value of options exercised was $150 million during 2007, $264 million during 2006 and 
$267 million during 2005. 

Restricted Stock Units 

The fair value of each restricted stock unit award is calculated using the share price at the date of grant. 
Restricted stock units consist of those units granted under the 2007 Plan and the 1997 Program, as discussed 
above. 

Restricted Stock Units 

Weighted Average Grant 
Date Fair Value of 

Restricted Stock Units 

Outstanding January 1, 2007 . . . 
Granted 
Vested 
Forfeited 
Performance inet̂ '* 
Performance not metc* . . . , 

Outstanding December 31, 2007 

Future 
Performance 
and Service 
Required 

Future 
Service 

Required 

(in thousands) 

— 
6,172 

— 
(296) 

5,876 

8,761 
1,507 

(4,345) 
(279) 

5,644 

Future 
Performance 
and Service 
Required 

$ -
18.80 

— 
18.78 

18.81 

Future 
Service 

Required 

$19.14 
16.90 
15.25 
24.21 

21.29 

(1) We evaluate performance conditions for restricted stock units at the end of the petfonnance period. 
Restricted stock imits granted in 2007 have a three year petfonnance period. Therefore, as of December 31, 
2007, there are no units categorized as either peiformanee met or peiformanee not met as the performance 
period has not yet lapsed. Other adjustments to the original grants are categorized as forfeited. 

As of December 31, 2007, there was $61 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to 
restricted stock uitits that is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2 years. The total fair 
value of restricted stock units vested was $78 million during 2007, $49 million during 2006 and $4 million 
during 2005. The weighted-average grant date fair value of restricted stock units granted during 2007 was 
$ 18.43 per unit, compared with $24.04 per unit for 2006 and $24.61 per unit for 2005. 

Certain restricted stock units outstanding as of December 31, 2007 are entitled to dividend equivalents paid 
in cash, but performance-based restricted stock units are not entitled to dividend equivalent payments until the 
applicable performance period has been completed. Dividend equivalents paid on restricted stock units are 
charged to retained earnings (accumulated deficit) when paid. 

Nonvested Shares 

Our nonvested shares consist of restricted shares granted under the 1997 Program and defened shares 
granted under the Nextel Plan, as discussed above. The um'ecognized compensation cost related to nonvested 
shares is not material. 
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Note 12. Segments 

We have two reportable segments: Wireless and Wireline. These segments are organized by products and 
services. Until May 2006, we operated a third reportable segment, our local communications business, that 
provided local and long distance voice and data services and is classified as discontinued operations. See note 15 
for more information. 

Our executives use segment earnings as the primary measure to evaluate segment performance and make 
resource allocation decisions. Segment earnings is defined as wireless or wireline operating income before other 
segment expenses, such as depreciation, amortization, severance, exit costs, asset impairments and other, and 
merger and integration expenses solely and directly attributable to the segment. Expenses and income items 
excluded from segment earnings are managed at the corporate level. In the second quarter 2007, we modified our 
segment earnings to exclude merger and integration costs solely and directly attributable to a segment. Such 
change was not material to segment earnings in 2007. 

Our Wireless segment includes revenue from a wide array of wireless mobile telephone and wireless data 
transmission services and the sale of wireless equipment. Through our Wireless segment, we, together with the 
third-party PCS Affiliates, offer digital wireless service in all 50 states, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands. 

Our Wireline segment includes revenue from domestic and international wireline voice and data 
communication services and services to the cable multiple systems operators that resell our long distance service 
and/or use our back office systems and network assets in support of their local and long distance telephone 
services provided over cable facilities. 

We generally account for transacfions between segments based on fully distributed costs, which we believe 
approximate fair value. In certain transactions, pricing is set using market rates. Segment financial information is 
as follows: 

Statement of Operations Informafion 

2007 
Net operating revenues 
Inter-segment revenues^" 
Total segment operating expenses'^) 

Segment earnings 

Less; 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Severance, exit costs and asset impairments'^' 
Goodwill impairment 
Merger and integration expenses'"** 
Olher, net 

Operating loss 
Interest expense 
Interest income 
Other, net 

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes . . . . 
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Wireless 

$ 34,698 
2 

(24,786) 

$ 9,914 

Corporate, 
Other and 

Wireline Eliminations 
(in millions) 

$5,479 $ (31) 
984 (986) 

(5,389) 829 

$ 1,074 $(188) 

Consolidated 

$40,146 

(29,346) 

10,800 

(5,711) 
(3,312) 

(440) 
(29,729) 

(516) 
(2) 

(28,910) 
(1,433) 

151 
247 

$(29,945) 
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Statement of Operations luformation Wireless 

2006 
Net operating revenues'-'̂ * $ 35,097 
Inter-segment revenues*'* 4 
Total segment operating expenses'-'̂ ' (23,423) 

Segment earnings $ 11,678 

Less: 
Depreciation . 
Amortization 
Severance, exit costs and asset impairments'^' 
Merger and integration expenses*'" 
Other, net 

Operating income . 
Interest expense 
Interest income 
Other, net 

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 

Wireless 
(in millions) 

2005 
Net operating revenues'^) $ 22,320 $ 6,177 $ 274 
Inter-segment revenues*" 6 641 (647) 
Total segment operating expenses* )̂ (15,394) (5,784) 471 
Segment earnings . $ 6,932 $ 1,034 $ 98 

Less: 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Severance, exit costs and asset impairments*^' 
Merger and integration expenses'"*' 
Other, net 

Operating income 
Interest expense 
Interest income 
Other, net 

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 

Wireline 

Corporate, 
Other and 

Eliminations 

(in millions) 

$ 5,819 
741 

(5,569) 

$ 991 

Wireline 

$ 87 
(745) 
689 

$ 31 

Corporate, 
Other and 

Eluninations 

Consolidated 

$ 41,003 
— 

(28,303) 

12,700 

(5,738) 
(3,854) 

(207) 
(413) 

(4) 

2,484 
(1,533) 

301 
231 

$ 1,483 

Consolidated 

i 28,771 

(20,707) 

8,064 

(3,864) 
(1,336) 

(43) 
(580) 
(100) 

2,141 
(1,294) 

236 
208 

; 1,291 
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Corporate, 
Other and 

Other Information Wireless Wireline Eliminations Consolidated 
(in millions) 

2007 
Capital expenditures'^' $ 5,067 $ 567 $ 688 $ 6,322 
Total assets'6'*8' 54,876 3,629 5,604 64,109 
2006 
Capital expenditures*^) $ 5,944 $ 828 $ 784 $ 7,556 
Total assets* "̂ 90,884 3,548 2,729 97,161 
2005 
Capital expenditures'^' $ 3,545 $ 384 $ 1,128 $ 5,057 
Total as.sets'W) 82,989 3,174 16,597 102,760 

(1) Intersegment revenues consist primarily of long distance services provided to the Wireless segment for 
resale to wireless customers. 

(2) Included in the 2007 corporate results are operating expenses related to our planned deployment of a next 
generation broadband wireless network 

(3) See note 6 for additional information on severance, exit costs and asset impairments. 
(4) Merger and integration expenses are generally non-recurring in nature and primarily include co.stsfor the 

launch of common customer inteifacing systems, processes and other integration and planning activities. In 
2007, these costs also included certain costs to provide wireless devices that operate seamlessly between the 
CDMA and iDEN networks, certain customer care costs, costs to retain employees, costs related to 
re-branding and other integration co.sts. 

(5) Included in the 2006 and 2005 corporate results are the historical net revenues and related operating costs 
of certain consumer wireline customers transferred to Embarq in connection with the .spin-off'. These 
operating results were previously reported in our Local segment and reflect activity through the date ofthe 
spin-off. These operating results have not been reflected as discontinued operations due to our continuing 
involvement with these consumer wireline customers under a wholesale long distance agreement with 
Embarq. This agreement became effective as ofthe date ofthe spin-off. 

(6) Corporate assets are not allocated to the operating .segments, and consist primarily of cash and cash 
equivalents, the corporate headquarters campus and other assets managed at a corporate level. Corporate 
capital expenditures were incurred mainly for various administrative assets. Operating expenses related to 
corporate as.sets are allocated to each segment. 

(7) Coiporate and other includes as.sets of discontinued operations related to Embarq. 
(8) Corporate and other includes amounts related to our planned deployment of a next generation broadband 

wireless network. 
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Net 0])erating revenues by service and products were as follows: 

Wireless 

2007 
Wireless services $31,044 
Wireless equipment 2,595 
Voice — 
Data — 
Internet — 
Other 1,061 

Total net operating revenues $34,700 

2006 
Wireless services $31,059 
Wireless equipment 3,172 
Voice ~ 
Data — 
Internet ~ 
Other 870 

Total net operating revenues $35,101 

2005 
Wireless services $19,289 
Wireless equipment 2,129 
Voice — 
Data — 
Internet — 
Other 908 

Total net operating revenues $22,326 

Wireline 

( 

$ -
— 

3,509 
1,210 
1,575 

169 

$6,463 

$ — 
— 

3,769 
1,432 
1,143 

216 

$6,560 

$ — 
— 

4,120 
1,620 

829 
249 

$6,818 

Corporate 
and 

Eluninations(i><« 

in millions) 

$ 
(36) 

(820) 
(92) 
(71) 

2 

$(1,017) 

$ 

1 

$ 

$_ 

. 

— 
(638) 

(73) 
(27) 
80 

(658) 

— 
(595) 
(42) 

(3) 
267 

(373) 

Consolidated 

$31,044 
2,559 
2,689 
1,118 
1,504 
1,232 

$40,146 

$31,059 
3,172 
3,131 
1,359 
1,116 
1,166 

$41,003 

$19,289 
2,129 
3,525 
1,578 

826 
1,424 

$28,771 

(1) Revenues eliminated in consolidation consist primarily of long distance services provided to the Wireless 
.segment for resale to wireless customers. 

(2) Included in the 2006 and 2005 coiporate results are the historical net revenues of certain consumer 
wireline customers transferred to Embarq in connection with the spin-off. These revenues were previously 
reported in our Local .segment and reflect activity through the date ofthe spin-off. These revenues have not 
been reflected a.s discontinued operations due to our continuing involvement with these consumer wireline 
customers imder a wholesale long distance agreement with Embarq. This agreement became effective as of 
the date ofthe spin-off. 
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Note 13. Commitments and Contingencies 

In September 2004, the U.S. District Court for the District of Kansas denied a motion to dismiss a 
shareholder lawsuit alleging that our 2001 and 2002 proxy statements were false and misleading in violation of 
federal securities laws to the extent they described new employment agreements with certain senior executives 
without disclosing that, according to the allegations, replacement of those executives was inevitable. These 
allegations, made in an amended complaint in a lawsuit originally filed in 2003, are asserted against us and 
certain current and former officers and directors, and seek to recover any decline in the value of our tracking 
stocks during the class period. The parties have stipulated that the case can proceed as a class action. All 
defendants have denied plaintiffs' allegations and intend to defend this matter vigorously. Allegations in the 
original complaint, which asserted claims against the same defendants and our foimer independent auditor, were 
dismissed by the Court in April 2004. We have recently filed a motion to dismiss the amended complaint, or for 
summary judgment. We are awaiting a decision on that motion. Our motion to dismiss the amended complaint 
was denied, and the parties are engaged in discovery. 

Various other suits, proceedings and claims, including purported class actions, typical for a large business 
enterprise, are pending against us or our subsidiaries. While U is not possible to determine the ultimate 
disposition of each of these proceedings and whether they will be resolved consistent with our beliefs, we expect 
that the outcome of such proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on 
our financial condition or results of operations. 

Spectrum Reconfiguration Obligations 

In recent years, the operations of a number of public safety communications systems in the 800 MHz block 
of spectrum have experienced interference that is believed to be a result of the operations of commercial mobile 
radio service, or CMRS, providers operating on adjacent frequencies in the same geographic area. 

In 2001, Nextel filed a proposal with the FCC that would result in a more efficient use of spectrum through 
the reconfiguration of spectrum licenses and spectrum allocations in the 700, 800 and 900 MHz bands and, 
thereby, resolve many of these interference problems. In 2004, following a rulemaking to consider proposals to 
solve the public safety interference issue, the FCC adopted a Report and Order that included new rules regarding 
interference in the 800 MHz band and a comprehensive plan to reconfigure the 800 MHz band. In February 2005, 
Nextel accepted the Report and Order, which was necessary before the order became effective, because the 
Report and Order required Nextel to undertake a number of obligations and accept modifications to its FCC 
licenses. We assumed these obligations when we merged with Nextel in August 2005. 

The Report and Order provides for the exchange of a portion of our FCC spectrum licenses, which the FCC 
is implementing through modifications to these licenses. Specifically, the Report and Order modified a number 
of FCC licenses in the 800 MHz band, including many of our licenses, and implemented rules to reconfigure 
spectrum in the 800 MHz band in a 36-month phased transition process. It also obligated us to sunender all of 
our holdings in the 700 MHz spectrum band and certain portions of our holdings in the 800 MHz spectrum band, 
and to fund the cost incuired by public safety systems and other incumbent licensees to reconfigure the 800 MHz 
spectrum band. Under the Report and Order, we received licenses for 10 MHz of nationwide spectrum in the 1.9 
GHz band, but we are required to relocate and reimburse the incumbent licensees in this band for their costs of 
relocation to another band designated by the FCC. 

The reconfiguration process is to be completed by geographic region and involves reaching agreement and 
coordinating numerous processes with the incumbent licensees in that region, as well as vendors and contractors 
that will be performing much of the reconfiguration. We are permitted to continue to use the spectrum in the 800 
MHz band that was sunendered under the Report and Order during the reconfiguration process; however, as part 
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ofthe reconfiguration process in most regions, we must cease using portions ofthe surrendered 800 MHz 
spectrum before we are able to commence use of replacement 800 MHz spectrum, which has contributed to the 
capacity constraints experienced on our iDEN network, particularly in some of our more capacity constrained 
markets, and has impacted the performance of our iDEN network in the affected markets. 

The Report and Order requires us to complete the 800 MHz band reconfiguration within a 36-month period, 
ending in June 2008, subject to certain exceptions, particularly with respect to markets that border Mexico and 
Canada, and to complete the 1.9 GHz band reconfiguration within a 31.5-month period, originally ending in 
September 2007 and recentiy extended, as discussed below. If, as a result of events within our control, we fail to 
complete our reconfiguration responsibilities within the designated time periods for either the 800 MHz or 1.9 
GHz reconfigurations, the FCC could take actions against us to enforce the Report and Order. These actions 
could have adverse operating or financial impacts on us, some of which could be material. We believe, based on 
our experiences to date, that the 800 MHz reconfiguration will not be completed within the applicable FCC 
designated time period due primarily to circumstances largely outside of our control. 

On September 11, 2007, the FCC issued a Third Memorandum Opinion and Order, or Third MO&O, in 
which the FCC ordered, among other things, that by June 2008 we vacate many 800 MHz channels that we 
cunentiy use, even if the applicable public safety licensee is not ready to relocate to the vacated spectrum. Based 
upon reports filed by the 800 MHz TA and discussions with public safety licensees, we believe that a significant 
number of large public safety agencies will not be able to complete their reconfigurations by June 2008. Should 
this occur, the Third MO&O provides that we would no longer have access to a significant portion of 800 MHz 
spectrum. 

Any sudden and significant decrease in network capacity that results from the requirements of the Third 
MO&O could adversely affect the performance of our iDEN network. To compensate, we could attempt to 
construct additional sites or acquire additional spectrum, to the extent possible. In those markets where these 
network investments are not possible, we may be required to curtail subscriber additions and incent certain 
existing subscribers of iDEN services to use PowerSource devices or move to our CDMA network until the 
capacity limitation can be alleviated, particularly if the replacement 800 MHz spectrum is not available for any 
length of time. Degradation in network performance in any market could result in higher subscriber churn in that 
market. The loss of a significant number of subscribers could adversely affect our results of operations. 

We believe that the Third MO&O is not consistent with the terms of the Report and Order or our 
understanding of the reconfiguration process described in the Report and Order, which served as the basis under 
which Nextel consented to its terms. In addition, we believe that the process by which the Third MO&O was 
adopted was legally deficient in a number of respects. Accordingly, on October 12, 2007, we filed an appeal with 
the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit. On November 27, 2007, the U.S. Court of Appeals granted our 
Motion for Expedition, setting forth an accelerated briefing schedule which should result in a decision by the 
Court by the FCC's June 2008 deadline. Both the FCC and we have filed our briefs with the Court, and oral 
arguments are scheduled to begin March 18, 2008. 

In addition, as part of the Report and Order, the reconfiguration of the 1.9 GHz band was required to be 
completed by September 7, 2007. On September 5, 2007, we, along with the Association for Maximum Service 
Television, Inc., or MSTV, the National Association of Broadcasters, or NAB, and the Society of Broadcast 
Engineers, or SBE, filed a joint petition requesting an additional 29 months to complete the transition ofthe 
broadcast auxiliary service, or BAS, to frequencies above 2025 MHz. On November 6, 2007, the FCC granted a 
waiver until January 5, 2008 to complete the BAS transition above 2025 MHz. On December 6, 2007, Sprint 
Nextel, the MSTV, the NAB and the SBE submitted a consensus plan for completing the transition ofthe BAS 
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licensees that should complete the BAS transition by September, 2009. The FCC subsequentiy extended the 
waiver of the BAS relocation date until March 5, 2008 and encouraged the BAS licensees and new entrant 
mobile-satellite service licensees to continue discussing ways to share use of the spectrum before the transition is 
completed. 

The Report and Order requires us to make a payment to the U.S. Treasury at the conclusion of the band 
reconfiguration process to the extent that the value of the 1.9 GHz spectrum we received exceeds the total of the 
value of licenses for spectrum positions in the 700 MHz and 800 MHz bands that we suirendered under the 
decision, plus the actual costs that we incur to retune incumbents and our own facilities under the Repoit and 
Order. The FCC determined under the Repoit and Order that, for purposes of calculating that payment amount, 
the value of the 1.9 GHz spectrum is about $4.9 billion and the aggregate value of the 700 MHz spectrum and the 
800 MHz spectrum sunendered, net of 800 MHz spectrum received as part of the exchange, is about $2.1 billion, 
which, because of the potential payment to the U.S. Treasuty, results in minimum cash expenditures of about 
$2.8 billion by us under the Report and Order. The FCC has designated an independent Transition Administrator 
to monitor, facilitate and review our expenditures for 800 MHz band reconfiguration. A precise methodology for 
evaluating and confirming our internal network costs has not yet been established by the TA. Because the TA 
may not agree that all of the costs we submit as external and internal costs are appropriate or are subject to credit, 
we may incur certain costs as part of the reconfiguration process for which we will not receive credit against the 
potential payment to the U.S. Treasury. 

In addition, a financial reconciliation is required to be completed at the end of the reconfiguration 
implementation to determine whether the value of the spectrum rights received exceeds the total of (i) the value 
of spectrum rights that are surrendered and (ii) the qualifying costs referred to above. If so, we will be required to 
pay the difference to the U.S. Treasury, as described above. Based on the FCCs determination of the values of 
the spectrum rights received and suirendered by Nextel, the minimum obligation to be incuired under the Report 
and Order is $2.8 billion. The Report and Order also provides that qualifying costs we incur as part of the 
reconfiguration plan, including costs to reconfigure our own infrastructure and spectrum positions, can be used to 
offset the minimum obligation of $2.8 billion; however, we are obligated to pay the full amount ofthe costs 
relating to the reconfiguration plan, even if those costs exceed that amount. From the inception of the program 
and through December 31, 2007, we have incuired approximately $1.1 biUion of costs directiy attributable to the 
spectrum reconfiguration program. This amount does not include any of our internal network costs that we have 
preliminarily allocated to the reconfiguration program for capacity sites and modifications for which we may 
request credit under the reconfiguration program. If we are successful in our appeal of the Third MO&O, we 
estimate, based on our experience to date with the reconfiguration program and on information currentiy 
available, that it is unlikely we will be required to make a payment to the U.S. Treasury. This belief is dependent 
on significant assumptions including the final licensee costs, and costs associated with relocating licensees in the 
Canadian and Mexican border regions for which there are cunentiy no approved border plans and does not 
include any of our apportioned internal network costs. Actual results could differ fi'om such estimates. In 
addition, we are entitled to receive reimbursement from the mobile-satellite service licensees for their pro rata 
portion of our costs of clearing a portion of the 1.9 GHz spectrum. Those licensees may be unable or unwilling to 
reimburse us for their share of the costs, which we estimate to be approximately $200 million. If we are 
unsuccessful in our appeal of the Third MO&O, we anticipate that our additional costs would likely be material. 

As required under the terms of the Report and Order, we delivered a $2.5 billion letter of credit to provide 
assurance that funds will be available to pay the relocation costs of the incumbent users of the 800 MHz 
spectrum. Although the Report and Order provides for the possibility of periodic reductions in the amount ofthe 
letter of credit, no reductions had been requested or made as of December 31, 2007. 
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As of December 31, 2007, we had a remaining liability of $59 million associated with the estimated portion 
of the reconfiguration costs that represents our best estimate of amounts to be paid under the Report and Order 
that would not benefit our infrastructure or spectrum positions. All other costs incuned pursuant to the Report 
and Order that relate to the spectrum and infrastructure, when expended, are accounted for either as property, 
plant and equipment or as additions to the FCC licenses intangible asset, consistent with our accounting policies. 
See note 3 for more information. 

Operating Leases 

We lease various equipment, office facilities, retail outlets and kiosks, switching facilities, transmitter and 
receiver sites under operating leases. The non-cancelable portion of these leases ranges from monthly up to 
25 years. These leases, with few exceptions, provide for automatic renewal options and escalations that are either 
fixed or based on the consumer price index. Any rent abatements, along with rent escalations, are included in the 
computation of rent expense calculated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Our lease term for most leases 
includes the initial non-cancelable term plus at least one renewal period, as the exercise of the related renewal 
option or options is reasonably assured. Our cell site leases generally provide for an initial non-cancelable term 
of five to seven years with up to five renewal options for five years each. 

As of December 31, 2007, our rental commitments for operating leases, including lease renewals that are 
reasonably assured, consisted mainly of leases for cell and switch sites, real estate, information technology and 
network equipment and office space. These commitments in future years are as follows: 

(in millions) 
2008 $1,567 
2009 1,638 
2010 1,493 
2011 1,347 
2012 1,224 
Thereafter 9,007 

Total rental expense was $2.0 biUion in 2007, $1.8 biUion in 2006 and $1.2 billion in 2005. 

Communication Towers Lease Transaction 

In May 2005, we closed a transaction with Global Signal, Inc. under which Global Signal acquired exclusive 
rights to lease or operate about 6,500 communications towers owned by us for a negotiated lease term, which is 
the greater of the remaining terms of the underlying ground leases, about 15 years at present, or up to 32 years, 
assuming successful renegotiation of the underlying ground leases atthe end of their cunent lease terms. 

We have subleased space on about 6,400 of the towers from Global Signal. This sublease anangement is 
accounted for as an operating lease. Since we maintain ownership ofthe towers, we continue to reflect the towers 
on our consolidated balance sheet. 

At closing, we received proceeds of about $ 1.2 billion, which we recorded in other liabilities on our 
consolidated balance sheet. The deferred rental income is being recognized as a reduction of lease expense 
related to our subleasing arrangement on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the underlying ground 
leases. 
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Commitments 

We are a party to other commitments, which includes service, spectrum, network capacity and other 
executory contracts in connection with conducting our business. As of Deceinber 31, 2007, the minimum 
amounts due under these commitments were as follows: 

(in millions) 
2008 $7,957 
2009 2,436 
2010 1,381 
2011 886 
2012 602 
Thereafter 2,126 

Amounts actually paid under some of these agreements will likely be higher due to variable components of 
these agreements. The more significant variable components that determine the ultimate obligation owed include 
such items as hours contracted, subscribers and other factors. In addition, we are a party to various arrangements 
that are conditional in nature and obligate us to make payments only upon the occunence of certain events, such 
as the delivery of functioning software or a product. 

Environmental Compliance 

Environmental compliance and remediation expenditures result mainly from the operation of standby power 
generators for our telecommunications equipment. These expenditures arise in connection with standards 
compliance, permits or occasional remediation, which are usually related to generators, batteries or fuel storage. 
In light of the FCCs new requirement that caniers increase their use of generators and batteries at cell sites, 
installation costs likely will increase. However, we cannot assess with certainty the impact of any future 
compliance and remediation obligations and we do not believe that future environmental compliance and 
remediation expenditures will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations. 

We have identified seven former manufactured gas plant sites in Nebraska, not cunentiy owned or operated 
by us, that may have been owned or operated by entities acquired by Centel Corporation, formerly a subsidiary of 
ours and now a subsidiary of Embarq. We and Embarq have agreed to share the environmental liabilities arising 
from these former manufactured gas plant sites. Three ofthe sites are part of ongoing settlement negotiations and 
administrative consent orders with the Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA. Two ofthe sites have had 
initial site assessments conducted by the Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality, or NDEQ, but no 
regulatory actions have followed. The two remaining sites have had no regulatory action by the EPA or the 
NDEQ. Centel has entered into agreements with other potentially responsible parties to share costs in connection 
with five of the seven sites. We are working to assess the scope and nature of these sites and our potential 
responsibility, which are not expected to be material. 
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Note 14, Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 

During 2006, we acquired several companies and the financial results of those acquired companies are 
included in our quarterly financial data either from the date of their respective acquisition or firom the start of the 
month closest to the acquisitions. We also acquired Northern PCS in August 2007 whose results are not material 
to our consolidated results of operations. See note 2 for information regarding these business combinations. 

Quarter 

1st 2nd 3rd 4th 

(in millions, except per share data) 

2007 
Net operating revenues $10,092 $10,163 $10,044 $ 9,847 
Operating income (loss)'" 1 316 398 (29,625) 
Income (loss) from continuing operations*"'2' (211) 19 64 (29,452) 
Net income (loss)'"*^) (211) 19 64 (29,452) 
Basic earnings (loss) per common share from continuing 

operations*"!^' (0.07) 0.01 0.02 (10.36) 
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share from continuing 

operations'"'-^) (0.07) 0.01 0.02 (10.36) 

Quarter 
1st 2nd 3rd 4th 

(in millions, except per share data) 
2006 
Net operating revenues $10,068 $10,008 $10,489 $ 10,438 
Operating income 484 712 719 569 
Income from continuing operations 164 291 279 261 
Net income 419 370 279 261 
Basic earnings per common share fiom continuing operations* '̂ 0.05 0.10 0.09 0.09 
Diluted earnings per common share from continuing operations'^' . . . . 0.05 0.10 0.09 0.09 

(1) In the fourth quarter 2007, we peiformed our annual assessment of impairment for goodwill. As a result of 
diese analyses, which are described in note 3, we recorded a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of 
$29.7 billion. 

(2) The net loss for the first quarter is primarily due to increased wireless equipment subsidy and an increase in 
.severance costs related to our workforce reductions. 

(3) The sum ofthe quarterly earnings per share amounts may not equal the annual amounts because ofthe 
changes in the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. 

Note 15. Discontinued Operations 

On May 17, 2006, we completed the spin-off of our local communications business, which is now known as 
Embarq Corporation. Embarq offers regulated local communications services as an incumbent local exchange 
carrier and provides a suite of communications services, consisting of local and long distance voice and data 
services, including high-speed Internet access. As required by SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or 
Disposal of Long-Lived As.sets, and as permitted by SFAS No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows, the resuhs of 
operations and cash flows from operating activities ofthis business are presented as discontinued operations for 
all periods presented. 
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In the spin-off, we distributed pro rata to our shareholders one share of Embarq common stock for every 
20 shares held of our voting and non-voting common stock, or about 149 million shares of Embarq common 
stock. Cash was paid for fractional shares. The distribution of Embarq common stock is considered a tax free 
transaction for us and for our shareholders, except cash payments made in lieu of fractional shares, which are 
generally taxable. 

In connection with the spin-off, Embarq transfeired to our parent company $2.1 billion in cash and about 
$4.5 billion of Embarq senior notes in partial consideration for, and as a condition to, our transfer to Embarq of 
the local communications business. Embarq also retained about $665 million in debt obligations of its 
subsidiaries. Our parent company transferred the cash and senior notes to our finance subsidiary, Sprint Capital 
Corporafion, in satisfaction of indebtedness owed by our parent company to Sprint Capital. On May 19, 2006, 
Sprint Capital sold the Embarq senior notes to the public, and received about $4.4 billion in net proceeds. 

Also, in connection with the spin-off, we entered into a separation and distribution agreement and related 
agreeinents with Embarq, which provide that generally each party will be responsible for its respective assets, 
liabilities and businesses following the spin-off and that we and Embarq will provide each other with certain 
transition services relating to our respective businesses for specified periods at cost-based prices. The transition 
services primarily include billing, field support, information technology and real estate services. We also entered 
into agreements pursuant to which we and Embarq will provide each other with specified services at commercial 
rates. 

At the time of the spin-off, all outstanding options to purchase our common stock held by employees of 
Embarq were cancelled and replaced with options to purchase Embarq common stock. Outstanding options to 
purchase our common stock held by our directors and employees who remained with us were adjusted by 
multiplying the number of shares subject to the options by 1.0955 and dividing the exercise price by the same 
number in order to account for the impact of the spin-off on the value of our shares at the time the spin-off was 
completed. 

Generally, restricted stock units awarded pursuant to our equity incentive plans and held by our employees 
at the time of the spin-off (including those held by those of our employees who became employees of Embarq) 
were treated in a manner similar to the treatment of outstanding shares of our common stock in the spin-off. 
Holders of these restricted stock units received one Embarq restricted stock unit for every 20 restricted stock 
units held. Outstanding defened shares granted under the Nextel Incentive Equity Plan, which represent the right 
to receive shares of our common stock, were adjusted by multiplying the number of defeired shares by 1.0955. 
Cash was paid to the holders of defened shares in lieu of fractional shares. The results of operations of the local 
communications business were as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 

Net Operating revenue 
Income before income taxes 
Income tax expense 
Income from discontinued operations 

2006<i) 2005 

(in millions) 

$2,503 
568 
234 
334 

$6,253 
1,615 

635 
980 

(1) Includes results only through May 17, 2006. 
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Note 16. Subsequent Events 

Severance and Exit Costs 

Management announced in January 2008 that we intend to further streamline our cost structure through a 
work force reduction, reduced utilization of outsourced services and contractors, and the elimination of third-
party distribution points and company-owned retail locations. The reduction in workforce will be completed 
using a combination of involuntary and voluntary separation plans. We expect to record a charge for the 
severance and related costs associated with the workforce reduction of about 4,000 internal positions in the first 
quarter 2008. We will record a charge related to exit and other costs associated with the elimination of certain 
distribution points and retail locations as we incur them throughout 2008. 

Credit Facility 

On February 27, 2008 we drew down $2.5 billion in principal amount under our revolving credit facility. 
We now have about $500 million of bonowing capacity available under our revolving credit facility. 
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Balance 

of Year 

2007 

2006 

2005 

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 383 

Valuation allowance-deferred income tax assets $ 816*''' 

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 291 

Valuation allowance-deferred income tax assets $1,070 

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 240 

Valuation allowance-defened income tax assets $ 669 

Additions 

Charged 
to Income 

(Loss) 

$920 

$ 14 

$656 

$ 10 

$388 

$ 15 

Charged 
to Other 
Accounts 

(in millions) 

$ 41*" 

$ 20* '̂ 

$ 61*" 

$ 31*3' 

$181'" 

$386'3' 

Balance 
Other End 

Deductions of Year 

$(952)*2) $ 392 

$(127)*-̂ ' $ 723 

$(625)'2' $ 383 

$(158)'- '̂ $ 953 

$(518)(2' $ 291 

$ — $1,070 

The schedule above only reflects continuing operations. 

(!) Amounts charged to other accounts consist of receivable reserves for billing and collection sen'ices we 
provide for certain PCS Affiliates. Uncollectible accounts are recovered from affdiates. In 2005 and 2006, 
the amounts include the allowance recorded in the merger of Nextel and the PCS Affiliates and Nextel 
Partners acquisitions. 

(2) Accounts written off, net of recoveries. 
(3) Amount represents increases in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets related primarily to the 

purchase price allocations in the Sprint-Nextel merger and the PCS Affiliates and Nextel Partners 
acquisitions. 

(4) Amount represents valuation allowances no longer required due to the utilization or expiration of income 
tax carryfonvards. 

(5) Amount includes a beginning balance adjustment for reclas.sification of valuation allowance to other 
liabilities in accordance with the adoption of FIN 48. 

(6) Amount represents increases in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets related to the purchase price 
allocation in the PCS Affiliate acquisitions. 
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APPENDIX H - BASIC AND ENHANCED FEATURES MATRICES 

TRS Standard Features 

Customer Feature 

Answering Machine Retrieval 

ASL to Conversational English 

Average Speed of Answer 

Background Noises 

Beepers and Pagers 

CA Typing Speed 

Caller ID 

CapTel to TRS Call types 

Carrier-of<hoice 

Cellular/PCS Phone Access 

Credit for Wrong Numbers 

Customer Branding 

Deaf-Blind Pacing (Slow-
typing) 

Dialed Number Verification 

Directory Assistance 
(Intrastate/lnterstate) 

Emergency Calling (E911) 

Error Correction 

Frequently Dialed Numbers 

Gender ofthe CA 

Benefits 

Relay users can retrieve voicemail or answering machine messages at their same 
location or through voice processing solution. 

Relay users with minimal English skills can communicate fully through Sprint. CAs 
translate to assist in dearer understanding. Alternately, CAs will follow instructions 
ifthe caller requests verbatim relay. 

Relay users are answered quickly as Sprint routinely exceeds the FCC minimum 
requirements related to speed of answer. 

Text relay users receive background noises through CA's tying in parenthesis. 
Sprint's new CA software offers quick access to 272 background noises. 

Relay users have functionally equivalent access to beepers and pagers. 

Relay users receive quick and accurate typing with Sprint. Sprint's recent evaluation 
showed an average typing speed of 79.4 wpm with over 95% accuracy. 

Relay users can see who Is callingthem before they answer the phone. Caller ID 
featuring SS7 technology is used to deliverthe ten digit phone number ofthe calling 
party, when not blocked through the LEC for local and toll calls. 

CapTel users can communicate with other Relay users. Sprint supports CapTel user 
to Relay user calls. The calls will arrive as inbound Voice to outbound TTY, VCO or 
HCO calls. CapTel users can also connect to Relay as a VCO relay user by dialing 711 
from their CapTel phone. The user can then place calls to relay users, e.g. VCO to 
TTY, VCO to VCO. or VCO to HCO calls. 

Relay users can choose their preferred Carrier for Intrastate, InterLATA, IntraLATA 
and InternationaL 

Relay users can dial 711 or Ohio Relay toll free number(s) to complete Relay calls. 

Relay users can get immediate credits for toll calls when the wrong numbers is 
reached. 

Relay users can select how they would like their calls answered each time they call 
in. This preference overrides the self-learning database feature. 

Deaf-Blind relay users can receive slower transmission at 15 wpm (or any 5-wpm 
increment) in order to catch the whole conversation. This is done automatically 
ratherthan just telling the CA to type slower. 

Text relay users receive verification ofthe number they are dialing to ensure that 
the correct number is being connected. 

Relay users can dial Directory Assistance at rates no greater than that of traditional 
voice users. When the number is obtained, the caller may choose to place the call 
through the Relay or dial direct. 

Relay users can obtain emergency services (911) through Relay. 

Text relay users enjoy more accurate text messages as over 500 words are 
automatically corrected as the CA types. 

Relay users can set up "speed dial" lists through the Relay. 

Relay users can request the gender of CA. This gender of the CA is transmitted to 
text-based users. 
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Customer Feature 

HCO Permanent Branding 

HCC^HeC)^^;^^vj^Xi^^ 

HCO-TTY 

Iftat ir ig^rp^^JHeo)^ 

HCO with Privacy 

inbc^tetematS^ 

Last Number Redial 

Benefits 

HCO users are answered with a special greeting: 

(Service identifier) 1234 ^^' j I have the numberingyoii are calling please? 

HCO users can contact HCO users through the Relay. The CA will voice to both 
parties what is typed on each user's TTY. 

HCO users can contact TTY users through the Relay, HCO users can listen while tlie 
CA is reading/voicing the TTY user's typed message. The HCO user types their 
conversation directly to the TTY user. 

Speech-impaired users with normal hearing can listen to the person they are calling 
with HCO. The HCO user types his/her conversation for the CAto read and voice to 
the standard (voice) telephone user. 

HCO users can choose to keep their conversations more private by requesting that 
the CA not hear the voice caller speaking. The Relay CA will only voiced responses 
Uom the HCO user io the voice user. 

Relay users can access Relay from any international destinations outside of United 
States through Sprint's International inbound 10-digit number- 605-224-1837. 

Relay users can request the CA to redial their last number by requesting "Last 
Number Redial" or "LNR". 

Locar/txtended^fe? Seivii:̂ ^^^^ 
'̂ -1 Relay users who subscribe to extended area service plans receive equivalent service 

Machine Recording 
Capabilities 

Remote Access to Customer 
Profile 

Reverse 2-Line VCO 

m 

^ through the Relay. 

Relay users can select to receive entire recordings on the first call without redials. 
The CA software can record the recording and type it at a normal pace. 

Relay users can dial 900 calls via relay via a toll-free 900 number which observes LEC 
restrictions so that customers do not have to register blocks with the Relay. 

Relay users can access their profile when not calling in from their registered 
telephone number by providing identifying Information and password. 

Relay users can reach regionally restricted toll-free numbers through Sprint. 

A VCO user receives a call from a voice user first then dials/connects the Relay CA. 

Speech-Challenged Indicator 

Spanish-speaking relay users can access Ohio Relay. Sprint offers proficient bilingual 
(Spanish) CAs and full functionality. 

Speech-challenged users (HCO) can type "S" to Inform the CA that they will be 
utilizing HCO. 

Speeeh-to-Speê h 

Speech-to-Speech Busy Line 
Verification 

-Spefic}S^%ech fe^JP^^ 

speech-to-speech using 
Spanish 

"Spe^Sv^^p^ech^^ 

Text protocols 

ToilbiSCOuHk-:̂ :.̂ :̂  i - K 

:̂-j 
Speech-challenged users can speak with assistance of specialized CAs. 

STS users will be able io immediately conWm the STS CA dialed the right number if 
a busy signal is reached. The STS CA will repeat the number aloud to confirm. 

STS users can communicate with other users of relay Including Voice, TTY, VCO, HCO 
or STS. 

Spanish speaking STS users can speak directly to others with the assistance of 
specialized bilingual CAs. 

Xj A STS user can speak directly to the CA without the other party hearing the STS 
^J user's voice. The CA will then re-volce the message to the other party. 

Relay users can access Ohio Relay using TTY (Baudot), ASCII, TurboCode^^ or 
Enhanced Turbocode (Sprint Is the exclusive provider of Enhanced Turbocode). 

Relay users will receive 50% off of Sprint MTS rates Interstate toll calls. 

Appendix H-TRS Standard Features Matrix 264 Sprint's Response to the PUC of Oliiofor the Provision of TRS in Ohio 



Customer Feature 

Transfer capabilities 

TRS Customer Service 

TTY Operator Services (OSD) 

TTY to TTY (Call Release) 

TurboCode™ 

two-line HCO 

Two-line VCO 

Variable Time Stamp Macro 

VCO Permanent Branding 

VCOw/Privacy/NOGA 

VCO-HCO 

VCO-TTY 

VCO-VCO 

Voice Call progression 

Voice<arry-Over(VCO) 

Rfilay 
Ohio 

Benefits 

Voice or TTY relay users needing a specialized CA or different department (e.g. 
Customer Service) can be transferred without hanging up. 

Relay users can reach TRS Customer Service, which is available 24 hours-a-day, 7 
days-a-week to request information, or to offer commendations and submit 

complaints. 

Relay users can access TTY Operator services to complete TTY-to-TTY calls; obtain 
Directory Assistance information; or receive credit for erroneous billing. The toll-free 

number is: 1-800-855-4000. 

TTY users can use relay to call another TTY when a CA Is necessary to set up the call. 

Relay users can enjoy quicker transmission (up to 110 wpm) and interrupt when 
using Ohio Relay with Turbocode. 

HCO users with two telephone lines can use or\t line to hear the hearing person 
directly while the other line is used to type to the CA simultaneously. 

VCO users with two telephone lines can use one line to speak directly to the hearing 
person while the other line is used to receive the CA's typed responses 

simultaneously. Two-Line VCO offers a more natural flow of conversation without 
pauses required with single line calls. 

Relay users can receive the last few words relayed Ifthe person on the other line 
disconnects while they are typing. 

VCO callers can automate the set-up the call without typing. The permanent VCO 
brand greeting macro would be: 

Ohio Relay 1234F Voice (OR Type) Now GA 

VCO users can choose to keep conversations more private by requesting that the CA 
not hear the VCO caller speaking. The Relay CAwill only listen to the hearing party 

and type the conversation to the VCO user. 

VCO users can contact HCO users through the Relay. The VCO user speaks directly to 
the HCO user and the HCO user types their conversation directly to the VCO user. 

VCO users can contact TTY users through the Relay. The VCO user can use his/her 
own voice and the CA will listen to the VCO caller's spoken words then type the 
message to the TTY user. The TTY user types directly to VCO user without any CA 

Interaction. 

VCO users can contact other VCO users through the Relay. The CA listens to VCO 
users speak and type the spoken words for the parties at both ends. 

Voice or HCO users can listen during call set-up I.e. ringing, busy. 

Deaf or Hard-of-Hearing people who prefer to use their own voice can speak directly 
to the party they are calling. The CA types the voiced responses back to the VCO user 

who can read the typed messages across the TTY screen. 
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State Options 

CAidehtlficatlon-

Dtallng Verification 

Description 

:g^rriiifg^ 

Service Identification for text 
users 

Toj j ; f reeNum®; 
^ r i f l gu i i t t cW^ ; 

Service Identification for voice 
users 

The state may select how it would like CAs' announced (e.g. "Relay Operator", "CA", 
"Relay Agent"). 

The state may decide what Information they would like to be displayed to text users 

when the CA dials the call Including: 

Type of call (local, LD, Toll, Toll-free, 900) 

Number Verification (XXX-XXX-XXXX) 

The state has many options to allow or restrict access to the state relay service 
including: 

Unrestricted - allowing callers from anywhere in the US to place calls using Ohio 
Relay 

Restricted-allowing Ohio Relay users to use the service from anywhere in the nation 
after providing in-state verification (telephone number) 

No Roaming - Ohio Relay calls must originate or terminate In the State of Ohio 

The state may modify their state greeting as it appears to text users, (e.g. "ORS", 
"Ohio Relay" or "Ohio TRS") 

The state can select how each toll free number is configured. Different options 
Include: 

If customer preferred answer type should be used or If all calls should be answered 
following default communication mode (e.g. STS, VCO) 

Default answer type if not known 

With Sprint's vast experience, we will offer recommendations based that 
experience with Relay customers. 

The state may modify their state greeting as it is voiced to hearing users, (e.g. 
"ORS", "Ohio Relay" or "Ohio Relay Service") 

7-1-1 

Description 

With cooperation of Local Exchange Companies, the Relay can accept 711 calls. 

Intelligent Call Router 

Self-learning Database 

sprint's TRS modems support enhancements In ASCII communication protocols. The 
capabilities of Sprint's modems Include auto detection; connections with modems 
up to 14.4k; and faster ASCII detection (3 seconds). 

Dynamic Call Routing technology automatically and seamlessly routes Relay calls to 
the first available English or Spanish CA In the network. 

Sprint provides Intercept messages in voice and TTY In event of system failure 
occurrence within the Relay switch. Center, or outbound circuits. 

Sprint's platform automatically tracks 

SprintlP.com 

^pp: ; |P0T i |p f l 

SprlntVRS.com 

Description 

Sprint's IP based relay service (www.sprintip.com) Is available 24/7/366 and Is 
compliant with all existing FCC requirements. Sprint will recover all costs of 
providing this service through the Interstate TRS fund. In addition. Sprint Is proud to 
offer Spanish service and live connection to Customer Service. 

Sprint's IP service is accessible through any AOL instant messaging connection 
including wireless devices. In addition. Sprint Is proud to offer Spanish service and 
live connection to Customer Service. 

Sprint offers a fully compliant Video Relay Service (VRS) available at 
www.sprintvrs.com for American Sign Language users who have access to high 
speed internet, a personal computer and a web camera. Downloadable software 
provides access to other video users as well as speed dial for hearing contacts. 
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R^lay 
Ohio 

State Options 

SprintVRS on VP 

Sprint VRS VideoMall 

Sprint WebCapTel 

Description 

Sprint offers VRS users the ability to connect using any common videophone in the 
market by dialing 711.tv or sprintVRS.tv. 

As a part of Sprint's VRS offerings, users can receive video messages directly to an 
email address when they are not available for live calls. 

Sprint's latest CapTel offering requires no special equipment. Users can place 
telephone calls using a personal computer, internet connection and separate phone 

line at www.sprintcapteLcom. 

Sprint's Response to the PUC of Ohio for the Provision ofTRS in Ohio 267 Appendix H - TRS Standard Features Matrix 

http://www.sprintcapteLcom


Rfilay 
Ohio 

f 
Appendix H - TRS Standard Features Matrix 268 Sprint's Response to the PUC of Ohio for the Provision ofTRS in Ohio 



RMlay 
Ohio 

TRS FCC Compliance Matrix 

FCC Order 
Ref. 90 -571 

664.603 

FCC Requi rement :̂j flili \̂ f̂ yC^&m litStdr'J.it̂ : 

Provision o f Services 

Each common carrier providing telephone voice 
transmission services shall provide, not later than 
July 26,1993, in compliance with the regulations 
prescribed therein, throughout the area in which it 
offers services, telecommunications relay services, 
individually, through designees, through a 
competitively selected vendor, or in concert with 
other carriers. 

Speech-to-speech relay service shall be provided by 
March 1,2001. 

Interstate Spanish language relay service shall be 
provided by March 1,2001. 

In addition, not later than October 1,2001, access via 
the 711 dialing code to all relay services as a toll free 
call. 

Sprint has been a TRS provider since September 1, 
1990. As of July 1,2008, Sprint provides TRS to 29 
States, the Federal Government, Common wealth of 
Puerto Rico, the Country of New Zealand and three 
resellers. 

Sprint was the first TRS provider to offer Speech-to-
speech relay service (California, 1996). 

Sprint was the first TRS provider to offer Intrastate 
and Interstate Spanish services (Texas, 1991). As a 
standard offering ofTRS, Sprint provides Spanish 
services to the States. Sprint also offers Spanish-
speaking Customer Service. 

Sprint fully implemented 711 accesses for all of its 
States on October 1,2001. Sprint Local and wireless 
divisions have implemented 711 access on 
September 15,2001. 
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FCC Order 
Ref. 90-571 

6 64.604 
A.1 

564.604 
A.2 

664.604 
A. 3 

Ji 

Rfilay 
Ohio 

FCC Requirement ^Pit^teEcatiTOnainfi 

Operational Standards 

CbmrTiun^lgi i$^ssft^ 

So^ar^febjiigffiij^ 
itfielsp^alizlJidHJrftim^f^ 
^ftfrhlarlng # l l j f i | ^ ^ r t ^ 

BsmuithccornpiteTffsWm 
J p e l i i r i & ^ i f t # ^ S ( i n ^ p ^ K t S ^ ^ 
iami l iar l tywUf iS^gJi^ l^ 

iCeHairtfiKCe^nsiaifpno^M 
Spi?ecS%]lsg":^o^ 

® aft prphlBitea W m i i i ^ 
jEajIstS^Brnltingijierl^^ 

^rfjallbfijcajjaftie^hg^ 
:npfma!ly pfovldeJtw^co^ 1 v > 

1 

Sprint requires that all CAs have a high school 
graduate equivalency as a minimum qualification 
forthejob. 

All CAs are tested and evaluated to ensure Relay 
sklllsmeetthefollowingFCC Guidelines. CA training 
provides familiarity with hearing, deaf, and Speech-
Disabled cultures and ASLtranslation. 

Each Sprint CA Is required to take the 60 WPM 
typing test quarterly (four times a year). 

Sprint administers Oral-to-type tests. 

Sprint VRS Interpreters are qualified, certified 
interpreters. (RID CI/CT and CSD; NAD 111, IV, V). J 

1 

CAs are trained and evaluated to ensure all aspects 
of confidentiality are maintained and conversational 
context is properly provided. Sprint CAs are 
prohibited from disclosing any call content. 

STS CAs are permitted to retain Info from a call In 
order to facilitate the completion of consecutive 
subsequent calls. 

CAs relay calls verbatim and do not alter relayed 
conversation. During the annual merit reviews, each 
CA reviews the confidentiality and code of ethics 
with his/herteam supervisor. 

CAs process all calls and never prohibit sequential 
calls or limit length of calls. 

Sprint TRS is capable of handling all call types 
normally provided by common carriers | 
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V - - ' 

FCC Order 
Ref. 9 0 - 5 7 1 

6 64.604 

A.4 

6 64.604 

A.5 

6 64.604 
A.6 

6 64.604 

A.7 

664.604 
B.1 

R^lay 
Ohio 

FCC Requi rement 

Hand l ing o f Emergency Calls 

Providers must use a system for incoming 

emergency calls that, at a minimum, automatically 

and immediately transfers the caller to an 

appropriate PSAP. 

A CA must pass along the caller's number to the 

PSAP when a caller disconnects before being 

connected to emergency services. 

In-call Replacement o f CAs 

CAs answering and placing a TTY-based TRS or VRS 

call must stay with the call for a minimum of 10 

minutes. 

STS CAs-15 minutes. 

CA Gender Preferences 

TRS providers must make best efforts to 

accommodate a TRS user's requested CA gender 

when a call is initiated and, if a transfer occurs, at 

the time the call is transferred to another CA. 

STS Called Numbers 

STS users must be provided the option to maintain a 

list of narties and phone numbers that the STS user 

calls. When the STS user requests one of these 

names, the CA must repeat it and state the phone 

number to the STS user. 

This Information must be transferred to any new 

provider. 

fi^^tnil'̂ i(^&muMi't'mi^ 

Via E911 database. Sprint automatically and 

immediately connects the caller to an appropriate 

PSAP. 

CAs pass along the caller's number to the PSAP when 

the caller disconnects prior to be connected to the 

emergency service. 

TRS and VRS CAs stay on the call for a minimum of 

10 minutes. 

STS CAs stay on the call fora minimum of 15 

minutes. 

Sprint users are able to request the gender of the CA. 

Sprint makes every effort to satisfy this request and 

to maintain the same gender during transfers. 

Sprint offers STS users the option of maintaining a 

list of names and phone numbers. When the STS 

user requests a name, the STS CA will repeat the 

name and the number to user. 

Sprint will provide the STS user information to any 

new provider. 

Technical Standards 

ASCII & Baudot 

TRS shall be capable of communicating with ASCII & 

Baudot format at any speed generally in use. 

Sprint TRS communicates with Baudot and ASCII in 

all speeds that are generally In use. 

The following Baudot codes are available on Sprint 

TRS' platform: Baudot 45.5, Baudot 50, Turbo Code, 

and E Turbo Code. 
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FCC Order 
Ref. 90-571 

6 64.604 
B.2 

6 64.604 
B.3 

664.604 
B.4 

FCC Requirement 

;Speed:bf^ri|vii^r ^̂  i ^ ^ i ^ ^ 

JfRSUhalJjnilQ^^d^uatl^^ 
£111 c^llsafl|\Afi|p^ y^J r f lO^CQr j<y i ^ ^ rn | t ^ ^ 

SA/vtijchfesuItslSfijei^ 
piat^d^^not^puQfti^ 

^^bai i t iohettol l i i^ 
=iF^yM;^cu[2^ 

Jfie^is^^^i^^fe^eHBJfe^j^ 

segic^S^tgsiirii^^D^^ 

I'SsiliEjIl o p i p t e ^ ^ r f a ^ * ^ ^ 

:jR5jHaj|h™)re3updJ^^ 
^qflfeal&itto^6cj|iiip§nrfrt^ 
^qfficgs,1r|cli^n|j^^ 
?erT^eHcyiis^^:iS.^^5S^ 

iiHequ^te^vfef^k^lJt u# l i S ^ ^ 

Sprint ensures that 85% of all calls are answered 
within 10 seconds and that caller's calls are 
Immediately placed. Sprint does not put calls In a 
queue or on hold. 

Abandoned calls are Included In the speed-of-
answer calculation. 

Speed of Answer Is measured on a daily basis. 

Sprint's system Is designed to the P.01 standards. 

Sprint provides users with access to their IXC carrier 
through the Sprint Carrier of Choice program 
allowing for the same access that Is provided to 
voice users. 

Sprint TRS is available 24 hours a day, everyday. 

Sprint has redundancy features that provide 
functional equivalency, including uninterruptible 
power for emergency use. 

1̂ Sprint's network facilities are sufficient to ensure 
^ that the probability of a busy response due to loop 
l i trunk congestion is functionally equivalent to what a 
= ;! voice caller would experience. 

j^oregulatloHjei^^ 
^ i s c S o r ^ i e ^ i ^ j ^ K f e d e ^ j ^ ^ 
: t ^ c h h b i o ^ t f t ^ s t i 8 ^ ^ 

yCGL&HG(itechnq[^^ 

Sprint is the nation's leader in the development and 
offering of technological features for TRS. Sprint has 
Introduced over fifty key product enhancements 
including Split Screen ASCII, Customer Database, 
Turbo Code, E Turbo Code/Dial Through, Gated VCO, 
Voice call progression. 

Sprint provides VCO and HCO technology as 
standard features as well as several variations on 
these technologies. 
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FCC Order 
Ref. 90 -571 

3 64.604 
B.6 

664.604 
C.l 

6 64.604 
C.2 

Rfilay 
Ohio 

FCC Requ i rement '^fi^k^xmiMiimSj. 

Voicemai l & Interact ive A/Venus 

CAs must alert the TRS user to the presence of a 

recorded message & interactive menu thru a hot key 

on the CA's terminal. 

TRS providers shall electronically capture recorded 

messages Stretaln them forthe length ofthe call, & 

may not impose any charges for additional calls that 

must be made by the user in order to complete calls 

involving recorded or interactive messages. 

TRS will handle pay-per-calls. 

CAs keep the user informed and notify ofthe 

presence of recorded messages and interactive 

menus. CA positions have hot key functionality that 

electronically capture recorded messages and retain 

them for the length of the call. 

Sprint does not charge for any additional calls 

necessary to complete call involving recorded or 

interactive menus. 

Sprint was the first provider to process pay-per-calls 

(Texas, 1996). 

Funct ional Standards 

Consumer Compla in t Logs 

States must maintain a log of complaints including 

all complaints dbout TRS to Indude minimum 

include the date the complaint was filed, the nature 

ofthe complaiht, the date of resolution and an 

explanation of the resolution. 

States & TRS providers shall submit to the FCC by 

July 1 of each year, summaries of logs indicating the 

numberof cqrriplalnts received for the 12-month 

period ending May 31. 

Sprint maintains a log of all complaints. The log 

includes all ofthe required fields induding the date, 

the nature, the date of resolution, and the 

explanation of resolution. 

Sprint provides summaries ofthe logs, which 

indicate the number of complaints received for a 12-

month period ending May 31^ 

Sprint has submitted annual summary of Consumer 

Complaints log report: 

June 1,2002 • 

June 1,2003 • 

June 1,2004 • 

June 1,2005 • 

June 1,2006 

June 1,2007 • 

•May 31,2003 

•May 31,2004 

•May 31,2005 

•May 31,2006 

•May 31,2007 

May 31,2008 

Contact Persons 

States must submit to the FCC a contact person or 

office for TRS consumer information and complaints 

about intrastate TRS. 

Sprint provides full support, induding a primary 

point-of-contact, to contractadmlnistrators to meet 

FCC requirements. 
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"*1 

FCC Order 
R ^ ^ - 5 7 ] ^ 

664.604 
C.3 

6 64.604 
C.4 

6 64.604 
C,5 

6 64.604 
C,6 

Rfilay 
Ohio 

FCC Requirement at̂ ffî ^MIflMnfe 
PuWRfl^JMisiblrifft^^ 

TncorplJatiplvTO 
shalftsiiure^hatiailerlamafi^^ 

^Condyiic^gSrigi^^ 
'to|ubl!c^eMila||l 

fljis^yi^p|y/9tl^^ 
TjElitffprfun^gii^^ 
^compin]GatjoBe^^ 
^ tbf i iuratgigr f^^^ 

3 te}n^ lp i |^ ; ; ; i$^L^^ |^^§5^\^^ 

:Jfli!iftitc§S^ 

/jurllijdlgni^epii^ibfrpfoW^ 

' ( H ) ^ o y j ; ^ c 5 y ^ ; S ^ U ^ u ^ p ^ 

:iflterst|ti^s^ 

Sprint follows all FCC requirements for public access 
to Information and publishes in directories, 
brochures and billing inserts, instructions for TRS 
Induding711 access In phone directories, DA services 
and the incorporation of TTY numbers In phone 
directories to assure that callers are aware of all 
forms ofTRS. 

Sprint regularly provides 711 dialing information In 
its education and outreach programs. 

Sprint TRS users pay rates no greaterthan the rates 
paid for functionally equivalent voice 
communication services. 

I (I) Sprint follows FCC requirements In the 
1 jurisdictional separation of costs. 

>:| (II) Interstate TRS Is recovered from all subscribers 
% for everyinterstate service utilizing the shared-
if, funding cost recovery mechanism. 

%l)if eletbmHljHIcai^^^^ (Iii) Sprint works with NECA for reimbursement of 
^dWni!s|ere||^tfg8^ti^l f i?^ interstate minutes. 
^s^aticm^riiS^ 

CbTHi)laints~ 

^(l);i^fefi^f^fsowpia^^ 

; ^ Irtoy^oMpla Wr^iuiiS^ 

;(ivj^|rtt|^lafegorn ^iqltiJoHc 

(vji^omplaijitpftce^ 

The Sprint TRS Customer Contact process is fully 
compliant with all FCC Requirements. 
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FCC Order 
Ref. 90 -571 

6 64.604 
C.7 

664.605 

Availability 

ofSS7 

Technology 

to TRS 

Facilities 

Transmittal 

of Calling 

Party 

Information 

Rfilay 
Ohio 

FCC Requi rement 

T rea tmen t o f TRS C ustomer Info 

Future contacts between the TRS administrator and 

the TRS vendor shall provide for the transfer of TRS 

customer profile data from the outgoing TRS vendor 

to the incoming TRS vendor. Such data must be 

disclosed in usable form at least 60 days prior to the 

provider's last day of service, and shall not be sold, 

distributed, Shared or revealed in any other way by 

the relay provider or its employees, unless 

compelled tp do so by lawful order. 

State Cer t i f ica t ion 

Per FCCs Public Notice on TRS State Re-certification 

released 5/1/02, the FCC requests an application be 

submitted tfirqugh State's Office ofthe Governor or 

other delegated executive office empowered to 

provide TRS., 

Concluded that TRS providers should have access to 

SS7 or similar technology to make Caller ID and 

other benefits available and facilitate provision of 

TRS.(<J16) 

Conduded that TRS providers are required to 

observe FCCs rules pertainingto Caller ID and call 

blocking services. (<J22) 

Concluded that when a TRS facility is able to 

transmit any identifying information to the network, 

the TRS facility must pass through, to the called 

party, the number of TRS facility, 711, or. If possible, 

the 10-digit number ofthe calling party. The 

identifying information passed through the TRS 

fadlitytothe called party is to be determined bythe 

TRSProvider,(</25) 

Concluded that the following call types are adopted 

as mandatory minimum standards ofTRS. 

Two Line VCO 

Two Line HCO 

HCO-to-TTY 

HCO-to-HCO 

VCO-to-TTY 

VCO-to-VCO 

This requirement is waived for Internet Relay and 

Video Relay Services through January 1,2009. (*J36) 

%]'/ii;B.(fs (ŝ & n I z & a m (i: 

sprint transfers TRS customer profile data to 

incoming TRS vendors. The data is provided in usable 

form at least 60 days prior to the last day of service 

and is not sold, distributed, shared or revealed In any 

other way by Sprint, or Sprint employees. 

Sprint provides each Sprint TRS state a re­

certification packet and assists inthe re<ertificatIon 

process. 

Sprint's SS7 platform supports Caller ID services. 

Sprint complies with all FCC rules pertaining Caller ID 

and call blocking services. 

Sprint's 5S7 platform transmits the 10-digIt number 

for local and toll calls. Sprint's SS7 platform also will 

recognize the ID blocking Indicators. 

Sprint has provided the VCO and HCO calling 

combinations since 1996. 
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FCC Order 
Ref. 90-571 

Handling of 
Eniergency 

Calls 

Answering 
Machine 
Message 
Retrieval 

Call Release 

Speed 
Dialing 

Three-way 
Calling 

R^lay 
Ohio 

FCC Requirement 

Inquired ttatajf IRS j y i p ^ 
ert)erg^n(^(^|?fet(ft^|^ 
twelve jiipnthsrD^ 
fed&aifeglirteti 

\fhlVfe^e^alipyvfyiY u ^ 
jTiessagaiJeft^ fe orher^ic^^ -: 
:an^wef[ri|nf!^ihfi^ affin^om 

^^m^^mm^ 
sprint Immediately connects emergency callers to 
an "appropriate" PSAP as defined by the FCC. 

Sprint provides Answering Machine Retrieval for 
both voice mailboxes and voice answering 
machines. 

Ĉpncluded thM te to, 

aU reJ&s^aflpvviJjC^qi^^ 
;tb^oii|Cf:^^fSbssn;^ig^ 

R^iedtH%igej:he|^ 

pe i^ l ru j t i re fenb i i r^s^ ' 

Sprint has provided the Call Release feature since 
2003. 

:i Once a call is "released" from the CA workstation, 
j j the call is no longer a relay call and accordingly will 
:̂ ; not be charged to the state customer. 

JhR^i^ireff lef t tS^^ 

^Sfieed|liai[ngiJli^flsieH 
^SlepM^rtffrpiie^^ 
:tpde^!rrthen;fe1il|f^s]^^ 

^hlV^qylrefD^t;i^fOfefelft& 
-jatSiaiyJiflSO^i - - - - - - -

sprint has provided Speed Dialing or Frequent Dialed 
Numbers feature since September 1,1996. 

^ h r & w | y ; ^ ! j | n ^ 2 ^ 
;Snpf5S^S/^]^( |^ 

1. tlmTRSS^niu^ 
: teC3JwrtthJ^^ 

iorĵ  

tgf uSr t b l ^ f t t t i ^ A ^ l ^ t e ^ 
itarpetifn%^(^h|s^i^POT 
iteiephgr^'lSfl/ft&lTQb^oi^^ 

Sprint has supported three-way calling capabilities, 
from the customer's premises, since September 1, 
1995. 
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FCC 03-112 

Final Rules 

664.603 

^ ^ l a f 
^ Ohi@ 

CapTel FCC Compliance Matrix 

FCC Requi rement 

Each common carrier providing 

telephone voice transmission 

services shall provide, not later 

than July 26,1993, in 

compliance with the 

regulations prescribed therein, 

throughout the area in which it 

offers services, 

telecommunications relay 

services, individually, through 

designees, through a 

competitively selected vendor, 

or in concert with other 

carriers. 

Speech-to-speech relay service 

shall be provided by March 1, 

2001. 

Interstate Spanish language 

relay service shall be provided 

by March 1,2001. 

tn addition, not later than 

October 1,2001, access via the 

711 dialing code to all relay 

services as a toll free call. 

The Communications Act 

defines TRS as "telephone 

transmission services that 

provide the ability for an 

individual who has hearing or 

speech impairment to engage 

In communication by wire or 

radio with a hearing individual 

in a manner that is functionally 

equivalent to the ability of an 

individual who does not have a 

hearing impairment or speech 

Impairment to communicate 

using voice communication 

services by wire or radio." Since 

TRS calls handled via captioned 

telephone VCO service fall 

squarely within this definition 

-I.e. they allow 

communications between 

persons with hearing or speech 

disabilities and persons 

without such dlsabilities~we 

condude that captioned 

telephone VCO service falls 

within statutory definition of 

TRS.(<J7) 

Communica t ions 

Assistant (CA) 

Competency Skills 

CAs are to be sufficiently 

trained to effectively meet the 

specialized communications 

needs of individuals with 

hearingand speech disabilities. 

CAs must have competent skills 

in typing, grammar, spelling, 

and Interpretation of 

typewritten ASL, familiarity 

with hearing and speech 

disability cultures, languages. 

Requirement applies. 

Use of CapTel's voice 

recognition software "Is a 

permissible means for 

achieving the CA's competency 

skills required bythe TRS 

mandatory minimum 

standards" (<j39). 

Sprint 's C o m m i t m e n t 

Sprint has been a CapTel 

provider, on trial basis, since 

May 1,2002. On January 1, 

2004, Sprint successfully 

converted a CapTel trial into a 

FCC-complaint CapTel service, 

the first-ever in the TRS 

Industry. 

Speech-to-speech relay service 

for CapTel has been waived by 

the FCC. See Section 64.604 

A.3. 

Sprint is also the first CapTel 

providerto offer intrastate and 

interstate Spanish services 

beginning on January 1,2004. 

Sprint is able to process 

inbound 711 calls to indude 

access to CapTel services. 

Sprint requires that all CapTel 

CAs have a high school 

graduate equivalency as a 

minimum qualification. 

Ail CapTel CAs are tested and 

competent in typing, grammar, 

and spelling to ensure skills 

meet the following FCC 

Guidelines. CapTel CA training 

provides familiarity with 

hearing, deaf, and speech-

Sprint 
Relay 

\ 
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Conf ident ia l i t y & 
Conversat ion Contex t 

CAs are prohibited from 
disdosingthe content of any 
relayed conversation 
regardless of content 

CAs are prohibited from 
Intentionally altering a relayed 
conversation and must relay all 
conversation verbatim unless 
specifically requested to do 
otherwise. 

Types o f Calls 

CAs are prohibited from 
refusing single or sequential 
calls or limiting the length of 
calls utilizing relay sen/ices. 

Waived. Interpreting typed ASL 
is not applicable. 

Use of voice recognition 
technology in the provision of 
CapTel VCO service "is a 
permissible means for... 
enhancing transmission 
speed..."(<139) 

Waived. Permits useof oral-to-
text tests instead. 

Requirement applies. 

Requirement applies. 

Waived for outbound calls {*J 
46) because the CapTel CA is 
not involved In call set up and 
cannot refuse the call {*J46) 

Not waived for Inbound calls to 
a CapTel user made through a 
TRS facility. However, if call is 
made directly to the captioned 
telephone access number no 
set up is involved and the 
CapTel CA cannot refuse to call 
( W ) . 

liiiaaiiM 
disabled cultures. 

A captioned telephone user 
does not type during CapTel 
calls; therefore it is not 
necessary for the CAto 
interpret typewritten ASL. 

Internal and independent 
testing show that CapTel's 
voice recognition technology 
routinely transmits above 150 
WPM (words-per-minute). 

Oral to text tests are given to 
all CapTel CAs as part of 
training as well as on an 
ongoing basis. 

CapTel CAs are trained and 
evaluated to ensure at! aspects 
of confidentiality are 
maintained and conversational 
context is properly provided. 

CapTel CAs are prohibited from 
intentionally altering a relayed 
conversation and will relay alt 
conversation verbatim. 

CapTel will not refuse single or 
sequential inbound calls or 
limitthe length of calls 
utilizing the service. 

CapTel users dial sequential 
calls directly, therefore there is 
no way for a CapTel CAto 
refuse sequential calls or limit 
length of calls 

If an inbound call is made to a 
captioned telephone user via 
the captioned telephone access 
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TRS shall be capable of 
handling any ^pe of call 
normally provided by common 
carriers and can decline calls if 
credit card authorization is 
denied. 

Hand l ing o f Emergency 
Calls 

Providers must use a system 
for incoming emergency calls 
that, at a minimum, 
automatically and immediately 
transfers the caller to the 
nearest PSAP. 

A CA must pass along the 
caller's number to the PSAP 
when a caller disconnects 
before being connected to 
emergency services. 

In-call Replacement o f 
CAs 

CAs answering and placinga 
TTY-based TRS or VRS call must 
stay with the call for a 
minimum of 10 minutes. 

CA Gender Preferences 

TRS providers must make best 
efforts to accommodate a TRS 
user's requested CA gender 
when a call is initiated and, If a 
transfer occurs, at the time the 
call is transferred to another 
CA. 

Requirement applies. 
Note; The requlrementto 
provide 711 dialing is waived 
for outbound calls made from a 
CapTel phone. Inbound 711 
calling waived for one year 
(8/1/03-7/31/04). 

Also STS and HCO are waived 
(V29). 

Requirement applies. 

Requirement applies. 

Requirement applies. 

Waived. (<J 36,47-48). 

sprint's commitment 

number, set-up is automatic, 
and there is no way for a CA to 
refuse the calL 

CapTel is capable of handling 
all call-types normally provided 
by common carriers. 

CapTel users dial 9-1-1 and 
Sprint routes the call directly to 
the most appropriate PSAP. 

The 911 PSAP center receives 
the caller's Automated Number 
Identification (ANI) and 
Automated Locator 
Identification (ALI). Ifthe call Is 
disconnected, the 911 center 
will call the CapTel user back. 

CapTel CAs stay on all calls for a 
minimum of 10 minutes. 

Does not apply. Waived. 

Sprint 
Relay 

\ 
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6 64.604 B.l 

6 64.604 B.2 

d 64.604 B.3 

STS users must be provided the 

option to maintain a list of 

names and phone numbers 

thatthe STS user calls. When 

the STS user requests one of 

these names, the CA must 

repeat it and state the phone 

number to the STS user. 

This Information must be 

transferred to any new 

provider. 

ASCII & Baudot 

TRS shall be capable of 

communicating with ASCII & 

Baudot format at any speed 

generally In use. 

Speed of Answer 

TRS shall include adequate 

staffing to ensure 85% of all 

calls answered within 10 

seconds by any method which 

results in the caller's call 

immediately being placed, not 

put in a queue or on hold. 

Abandoned calls shall be 

included in the speed-of-

answer calculation. 

Speed of Answer is to be 

measuredi on a daily basis. 

The system shall be designed 

to a P.01 standard. 

Equal Access t o IXCs 

TRS users shall have access to 

theirchosen IXC carrier 

through the TRS and to all 

other operator services, to the 

same extent that such access is 

provided to voice users. 

Waived. (<[29) 

Waived. (n53-54) 

Requirement applies 

Requirement applies. 

Requirement applies. 

Requirement applies. 

Does not apply. Waived. 

Does not apply. Waived. 

Sprint CapTel ensures that 85% 

of all calls are answered within 

10 seconds and that calls are 

Immediately placed. Sprint 

does not put calls in queue or 

on hold. 

Abandoned calls are included 

in the speed-of-answer 

calculation. 

Sprint's CapTel system is 

designed to a P.01 standard or 

greater measured on a daily 

basis. 

CapTel users are able to choose 

their IXC (Interexchange 

Carrier) through the CapTel 

Carrier-of-Choice program, 

allowing for the equivalent 

access as that provided to 

hearing voice users. 
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FCC 03-112 
Final Rules 

FCC Requi rement 

d 64.604 B.4 TRS Facil it ies 

TRS shall operate everyday, 24 
hours a day. 

TRS shall have redundancy 
features functionally 
equivalent to the equipment in 
normal central offices, 
including uninterruptible 
power for emergency use. 

Adequate network facilities 
shall be used in conjunction 
with TRS. 

d 64.604 6.5 Technology 

No regulation set forth In this 
subpart Is intended to 
discourage or impairthe 
development of improved 
technology that fosters the 
availability of telecommto 
people with disabilities. 

VCO & HCO technology are 
required to be standard 
features ofTRS. 

Rfilay 
Ohio 

FCC noted that CapTel Is not a 
mandated service but stated 
that CapTel is a form of 
enhanced VCO service. It 
allowed interstate 
reimbursement from the 
Interstate TRS Fund. Fora 
providerto be eligible for 
reimbursement from the 
Interstate TRS Fund for the 
provision ofTRS, the provider 
must either meetthe 
mandatory minimum 
standards or request and 
receive waivers ofthe 
standards. (<J 22,24) 

State TRS programs, of course, 
are free to offerthis service 
and to reimburse providers of 
Intrastate captioned telephone 
VCO service. CI 22). 

FCC acknowledged that Ca pTel 
Is an enhanced VCO service of 
TRS(<J44). 

Waived for HCO. (V 29) 

Sprint's Cortimitment 

Sprint CapTel Is available 24 
hours-a- day, every day ofthe 
week. 

Sprint CapTel has redundancy 
features that provide 
functional equivalency, 
including uninterruptible 
power for emergency use. 

Sprint's CapTel network 
facilities are sufficient to 
ensure that the probability of a 
busy response due to loop 
trunk congestion is 
functionally equivalent to what 
a voice caller would 
experience. 

Sprint is the nation's leader in 
the development and offering 
of technological features for 
TRSand CapTel. 

Does not apply. Waived. 
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FCC 03-112 
Final Rules 

6 64.604 B.6 

6 64.604 C I 

FCC Requ i rement 

Vo icemai l & In teract ive 
Menus 

CAs must alert the TRS user to 
the presence of a recorded 
message & interactive menu 
thru a hot key on the CA's 
terminal. 

Requirement applies. 

TRS providers shall 
electronically capture recorded 
messages St retain them for 
the length ofthe call, & may 
not impose any charges for 
additional callsthat must be 
made by the user in order to 
complete calls involving 
recorded or interactive 
messages. 

Requirement applies. 

TRS will handle pay-per-calls. 
Requirement applies. 

Funct ional s tandards 

Consumer C o m p l a i n t 
Logs 

States must maintain a log of 
complaints Induding all 
complaints about TRS to 
indude minimum indude the 
date the complaint was filed, 
the nature ofthe complaint, 
the date of resolution and an 
explanation ofthe resolution. 

States & TRS providers shall 
submittotheFCCbyJulylof 
each year, summaries of logs 
indicatingthe number of 
complaints received for the 12-
month period ending May 31. 

Requirement applies. 

Requirement applies. 

The CapTel user both hears and 
Interacts directly with the 
recorded message and makes 
the selections as requested by 
the interactive menu. The 
CapTel user is alerted to the 
presence of a recording by 
hearing the recording and 
seeingthe captions ofthe 
recording as the message is 
played. 

CapTel users can replay 
messages as necessary until 
the message Is either heard 
and/or read as captions. The 
user can stay on the line as 
long as desired until the 
message is understood in Its 
entirety or replayed. This is 
requested bythe user directly. 
Regardless of the time 
necessary to capture the entire 
message, it is treated as one 
call. 

Sprint CapTel supports pay-per-
call call types. 

Sprint CapTel maintains a log 
ofall complaints. The tog 
indudesall ofthe required 
fields Induding the date, the 
nature, the date of resolution, 
and the explanation of 
resolution. 

Sprint CapTel provides 
summaries of the logs, which 
indicate the number of 
complaints received for a 12-
month period ending May 3̂ ^̂  
annually. 
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FCC 03-112 
Final Rules 

d64i604C2 

364^6d4C.3 

6 64,604 C.4 

FieC^qUiVi^mlril: 

Contact Persons 

States must submit to the FCC 
a contact person or office for 
TRS consumer information and 
complaints about intrastate 
TRS. 

Public Access t o In fo 

Carriers, through publication in 
their directories, periodic 
billing inserts, placement of 
TRS instructions, in phone 
directories, DA services, & 
incorporation of TTY numbers 
in phone directories, shall 
assure that callers are aware of 
all forms of TRS. 

Conduct ongoing education 
and outreach programs to 
publicize availability of 711 
access. 

Rates 

TRS users shall pay rates no 
greater than the rates paid for 
functionally equivalent voice 
communication services with 
respect to such factors as the 
duration ofthe call, the time of 
day, and the distance from the 
point of origination to the 
point of termination. 

Requirement applies. 

Requirement applies. 

Requirement applies. 

Requirement applies. 

iMffiWiflMK® 

sprint CapTel provides full 
support, induding a primary 
point-of-contact, to contract 
administrators to meet FCC 
requirements. 

Sprint follows all FCC mandates 
for public access to relay 
information. Sprint publishes 
711 access instructions in phone 
directories, brochures and 
billing inserts. Callers can also 
obtain TTY and all other reiay 
services by calling Directory 
Assistance. 

Sprint conducts ongoing 
education and outreach about 
the availability of CapTel 
induding access through 711. 

CapTel users pay rates no 
greaterthan the rates paid for 
functionally equivalent voice 
telecommunication services. 

Sprint 
Relay 
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FCC03-112 
FinalRules 

864i604t*5 

664;604C.6 

FCC Requi rement 

Jurisdict ional Separat ion 
o f Costs 

(i) General, where appropriate, 
costs of providing TRS shall be 
separated in accordance with 
the Jurisdictional separation 
procedures and standards set 
for in the Commission's 
regulations 

(ii) Cost recovery, Costs caused 
by interstate TRS shall be 
recovered from all subscribers 
for every interstate service, 
utilizing a shared-funding cost 
recovery mechanism 

(Hi) Telecommunications Relay 
Services Fund-To be 
administered bythe National 
Exchange Carrier Association, 
Inc. (NECA) 

Compla in ts 

(I) Referral of complaint, 

(ii) Intrastate complaint 
resolution, 

(iii) Jurisdiction of Commission, 

(iv) Interstate complaint 
resolution, 

(v) Complaint Procedures 

1 . . ; 
' L V ' • 

1 

Requirement applies. 

Requirement applies. 

Requirement applies. 

Requirement applies. 

(i) Sprint follows FCC 
requirements regardingthe 
jurisdictional separation of 
costs. 

(11) Interstate CapTel is 
recovered from all subscribers 
of interstate services 

(ill) Sprint works in cooperation 
with the National Exchange 
CarrierAssodation, Inc. (NECA) 
for reimbursement of 
interstate minutes. 

The Sprint CapTel customer 
contact process is fully 
compliant withal! FCC 
Requirements. 

s 
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FCC 03-112 
FinalRules 

664.604G;7 

664.605 

Avai lab i l i ty o f 
SS7 Technology 
t o TRS Facilities 

Types o f Calls 

FC<|^Jii|ri|0rit 

Treatment o f TRS 
Customer In fo 

Future contacts between the 
TRS administrator and the TRS 
vendor shall provide for the 
transfer of TRS customer 
profile data from the outgoing 
TRS vendor to the incoming 
TRS vendor. Such data must be 
disclosed in usable form at 
least 60 days prior to the 
provider's last day of service, 
and shall not be sold, 
distributed, shared or revealed 
in any other way by the relay 
provider or Its employees, 
unless compelled to do so by 
lawful order. 

State Cer t i f icat ion 

Per FCCs Public Notice on TRS 
State Re-certification released 
5/1/02, the FCC requests an 
application be submitted 
through State's Office ofthe 
Governor or other delegated 
executive office empowered to 
provide TRS. 

Conduded that ifaTRS 
provider Is able to transmit any 
calling party identifying 
Information to the network, it 
must provide Caller ID service. 

Two Line VCO 

Two Line HCO 

HCO-to-TTY 

HCO-to-HCO 

VCO-to-TTY 

VCO-to-VCO 

R^laf 
Ohii 

Requirement applies. 

Requirement applies. 

Requirement applies. 

Sprint will transfer CapTel 
customer data to any incoming 
CapTel vendors. The data will 
be provided in usable form at 
least 60 days prior to the last 
day of service and is not sold, 
distributed, shared or revealed 
in any other way by Sprint, or 
Sprint employees, unless Sprint 
is compelled by legal process to 
provide such information. 

Sprint provides each Sprint TRS 
state with a re-certification 
packet and assists its state 
customers in the re­
certification process. 

Sprint CapTel transmits the 
caller's 10-digit number and 
recognizes caller ID blocking 
indicators. 

Sprint CapTel delivered the SS7 
technology on February 1, 
2004. 

Minimum standards pertaining Sprint CapTel supports VCO 
to HCO are waived. calling combinations. 

VCO requirements still apply. 

Sprint 
Relay 
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FCC 03-112 
Final Rules 

H ^ r r d H n ^ 
E rne rge r t ^ -

Mach ine 
R#trlWal: 

CaHRial^^s^ 

FCC Requi rement 

Concluded that TRS providers 
must use a system for 
Incoming emergency TRS calls 
that at a minimum, 
automatically and Immediately 
transfersthecallertoan 
appropriate Public Safety 
Answering Point. 

Conduded thatthe answering 
machine and voice mail 
retrieval are TRS features that 
must be provided to TRS users. 

Answering machine retrieval 
through TRS is accomplished 
when the recipient of the 
message, the TRS user, calls the 
TRS facility and has the CA 
listen to the voice messages. 

Conduded that call release Is 
required under FCCs functional 
equivalency mandate. 

Call release allowsaCA to set 
up a TTY-to-TTY call that once 
set up does not require the CA 
to relay the conversation. The 
feature allows CA to sign-off or 
be "released" from the 
telephone line without, 
triggering a disconnection 
between two TTY users, after 
the CA connects the originating 
TTY caller to the called party's 
TTYthrough e.g. a business 
switchboard. 

Conduded that speed dialing 
feature is required under FCCs 
equivalency mandate. 

Speed dialing allows users to 
manually store a listof 
telephone numbers with 
designated speed dialing codes 
In the TRS user's consumer 
profile. 

Rfilay 
Ohio 

Requirement applies. 

The requirement was not 
addressed in the Declaratory 
Ruling. 

Waived. (<152) 

Spr int 's C o m m i t m e n t 

CapTel users may dial 9-1-1 
directly. Sprint routes CapTel 
calls to the most appropriate 
PSAP. 

Answering machine features 
and voicemail retrieval Is 
available via CapTel. 

Answering machine retrieval 
through CapTel is 
accomplished when the CapTel 
facility captions the voice 
messagesto CapTel users. 

Does notapply. Waived. 

The requirement was not 
addressed in the Dedaratory 
ruling. 

CapTel telephones are 
equipped with speed dial 
features. 

f 
Appendix H - TRS Standard Features Matrix 286 Sprint's Response tothe PUCofOhioforthe Provision ofTRS in Ohio 



FCC 03-112 
Final Rules 

Three-way 
Cal l ing 

Rfilay 
Ohio 

FCC Requi rement 

Conduded that three-way 
calling is required under FCCs 
functional equivalency 
mandate but did not 
specifically mandate the way 
such functionality had to 
provide. 

The FCCs Order imposing such 
requirement stated that 
"generally" three-way calling 
can be provided "in one oftwo 
ways" One way is for the TRS 
consumer to request that the 
CA set up the call with two 
other parties. 

The second way is to set up a 
three-way call is for TRS user to 
connect to two telephone lines 
at the same time from his or 
her premises by usingthe 
telephone's switch hook (or 
"flash") button. 

Sprint 's C o m m i t m e n t 

The requirement was not 
addressed in the Dedaratory 
Ruling 

Sprint CapTel users are able to 
partidpate in three-way calls. 
One-Line CapTel. The person 
using the captioned phone is 
unable to establish a three-way 
call with captions. 

Two-Line CapTel - Either party 
can initiate a 3-way call as long 
as the user purchased this 
feature as a Local Exchange 
Carrier (LEC) option. 
Thus, Sprint CapTel meets the 
requirement forthree-way 
calling. 

Sprint CapTel users are also 
ableto partidpate on a 
conference bridge to speak to 
three or more individuals on 
one call. 
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APPENDIX I - CA PERFORMANCE TESTS 

SPELLING TEST 

1. Word: coughing 
Sentence: I stopped coughing after 1 had a glass of water. 
Meaning: Loud, sharp releaseof air through the windpipe 

2. Word: principal 
Sentence: His tenure as principal of West High School did not last long. 
Meaning: Head administrator of a school 

3. Word: than 
Sentence: It was much warmer today than yesterday. 
Meaning: Comparing two things 

4. Word: accept 
Sentence: Unfortunately, the company does not accept credit cards. 
Meaning: To receive or to agree 

5. Word: disabilities 
Sentence: There is a large population of people with disabilities living in 

the United States. 
Meaning: Inability to perform some or all ofthetasksof daily life 

6. Word: you're 
Sentence: You're walking around with your shoes untied. 
Meaning: Contraction foryou are 

7. Word: temperature 
Sentence: The temperature outside is approximately 10 degrees 

Fahrenheit. 
Meaning: Degree of heat 

8. Word: enabling 
Sentence: My roommate is enabling me to live life as a slob. 
Meaning: Make something possible 

9. Word: dessert 
Sentence: We had strawberry shortcake for dessert. 
Meaning: Sweet dish eaten atthe end of a meal 

10. Word: anonymous 
Sentence: There is an Alcoholics Anonymous meeting at the civic center 

this evening. 
Meaning: Nameor identity withheld 
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11. Word: pneumonia 
Sentence: She was diagnosed with walking pneumonia. 
Meaning: Inflammation ofthe lungs caused by infection 

12. Word: commitment 
Sentence: They have both made the commitment to each other and wil 

proceed with the ceremony. 
Meaning: Responsibilityjoyalty 

13. Word: community 
Sentence; The community did not support the proposal. 
Meaning: People in the same area or with a common background 

14. Word: their 
Sentence: They received their books the first day. 
Meaning: Shows possession 

15. Word: equivalent 
Sentence: Four quarts is equivalent to one gallon. 
Meaning: Beingthe same, equal to 

16. Word: functionally 
Sentence: That would be considered functionally equivalent. 
Meaning: Operational, practical 

17. Word: technology 
Sentence: Technology is constantly evolving, each and every day. 
Meaning: Method of applyingtechnical knowledge 

18. Word: significant 
Sentence: 1 feel that is a significant change to the process. 
Meaning: Meaningful, substantial 

19. Word: peculiar 
Sentence: 1 have a peculiar notion about this. 
Meaning: unusual, unique 

20. Word: mutual 
Sentence: Thefeeling is mutual. 
Meaning: Felt or shared by two people or groups 
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PERFORMANCE SUFtVaf (Exampte) 

Agent 

Start Time 

Supervisor. Date 

End Time 

Correct Number Dialed 
1. Y N V.'aslhecorrect numtBrdalsdft'ithlnSsecondsor 
appropriate message and saccndsussd whan dialing number? 

Billinq procedures 
2. Y N Wers billing instructions folbwed? 
3. Y N Was branding infomialion prcvidsd? 

Greeting / Announcement 
4. Y N Vi'as the TOcsgreeting typed vsrtiaJim? 
5. Y N Was a prompC stale-spedfic announcemsnt'grseling 

used and was the agent's ID provided? 
6. Y N Waslaniliarily dsen'icedeemiined? 

Call Processing Procedures 
7. Y N Was the call processed according to procedures? 
8. Y N Were call procedures changed as directed by 

customer? 
9. Y N V.'as gender idenliticalion used •A'hen appioprale? 

10. Y N Was the call dosed according lo procedures? 

Person Request/ Identification 
11. Y N Wasstaie-speclfcannourcen»Bnladaptedas 

directed? 
12. Y N Were TTY requests confirmed in parenthesis? 
13. Y N WasttB Caller's name usedinlheannounsment? 

14. Y N Was the Callsd-to name used in the announcement? 

Service Explanation 
15. Y N Was the service exptanalion isedappropriale lo call 

type? 
16. Y H W^explanaion adjusted after standaid 

explandion? 

Progress of Call / Customer infamed 
17. Y N Were the call steps relayed at time of occurrence? 
18.Y N v;ere cdlctflngssrsla/edattimBdoccLrrence? 
19. Y N Were all appropride n^cros used thrcughDut Ihe 

call? 

Technical/Infonnation/Referral 
20. Y N Were ccmplex system messages explainsd 

effecWely? 
21. Y N Were compbc directions (diaved? 
22. Y N Were appropriate referral;'contactnumlMrdfersd? 

Accuracy/Spelling 
23. Y N Was the message typed verbalim? 
24. Y N Were words spelled ccrrect^? 
25. Y N Were standard abbreviations used? tlopticnal) 
26. Y N Wasihe recCTdedmessa^typedvertdtim? 

Descriptive/ Spirit/ Background 
27. Y N Were impacting orenhancing sounds and 

backgojnd info typed? 
28. Y N Were desciiptwQ \TOtds usad? fpplbnal) 
29.Y N Wasihe typingslyleadaptedtoconveyemction 

fnV)? 

Flow / Complete Message 
30. Y N Vias the complete message read? 
31. Y N Was a conversational flav maintained? 

Corwersaiional English Trat^tation 
32. Y N Was ASL translated to grammatiMlly cor reel Englsh; 
33. Y N Was Ihe message readvefbahm if necessary? 

Spirit/ Expression -C lar i ty / Enunciation 
34. Y N Was natural voice inlleclbri used reading TTY 

message? 
35. Y N Was the voice dear and wrlh accurate 

ffcnuncidron? 

Caller Control 
36. Y N Was transparency maintained? 
37. Y N Were appropriate phrases used lore-direct? 

Define Agent Role / Pacing 
38. Y N Was redefinition of tole effecbvelyccmmunicaled? 
39. Y N Were appropriate phrases used toeducdte caller? 

40. Y 

41. Y 

N Were appropriate phrasES used to pace Ihs 
cLEtomer? (optbnall 

N Wei3 Ihe calter's last thoughts ccnveyed as 
necessary? {cptionali 

Composure/Etiguette 
42, Y H Was palisrte ard llsxibiWy demorelraled? 
43, Y N Was politeness and professicnalismdemonstrabdl 
44, Y N Wasrespcnsrvenessandfoci^marlarnGd? 

1 1 Y b.} Vi.ice 

> 

o 

n 
-< 
i / t 

Agenl'Tia ir»ee Signature _ 

Y = Y e s N = No Blank: 

Supewisor Signature. Date/Titns. 

NotObsenffid Total Vs Total N's 

TO 

file:///TOtds


# 

Rplay 
Ohio 

STS CA PROFICIENCY TEST 

Agor^:. Agents. Suporvlfior. Date-

Start Time. , ErKJ Tlme_ Can Type: S2S to vo loe_ Voice to S2S _ 2Llna VGO to voice _ VCO_ 

Correct Questions Asked Before Dialing^ 
1.Y N VWasttwcrjstomer asked S everything Is to be 

repealed or only what is not understood? 
2. Y N Was tt» customer asked if there are any 

special instruotlona torthe call? 
3. Y N Was the correct number dialed wltWn 5 seconds? 
4. Y N Were FDnumt»r& accessed ap(»oprfate}yil given? 
Billing procedures* 
5. Y W Were blOing (nstfucflons foJlowscJ? 
6.Y N Was branding information prwkfed? 
Pocuaft Preparation 
7. Y N Was responsive anij focus maintained? 
8. Y N Were appropriate listening skilled used? 
9. Y N Was the agsntwritingdcwn into as needed? 
Greeting / Announcement* 
10. Y N Was the voice greeting typed verbatim? 
11. Y N Was a prompt state^^cjticannouncenwnt^greellng 

used andwasthe ^enrs 10 prwkted? 
12.Y N WastamHiarityofservk^determlred? 
Can Processing Procedures* 
13. V N Was the call processed according bprooediTOS? 
14.Y N Were calprooedures changed as directed by 

customer? 
15. Y N Was gender idantificatJon used when appropriate? 
16. Y N Was the ceUI closed aKording to procodures? 
Person Request / Identtflcatlon' 
17. Y N Was the customer prompted for a llva person whert 

reaching a recording 
18. Y N Was the Cater'8 name used in the announcement? 
19. Y N Was UwCaHed-to name used In the annowcertienl? 
Servlca Explanation* 
20. Y N Was explanatton used approprtals to cat type? 
21. Y N Was e)qjlanallon adjusted after standard explanation? 
Progress of Call / Customer Informed' 
22. Y N Were the call stepe raleyed at Ume otoccurrerve? 
23. Y N Were caS changes retsyed at time of occunienoe? 
24. Y N Were all appropriate macros used throughout tt>e cati? 
Technical/ Information/ Referral 
25. Y N Wereoomploc system messages expl^ned effectively? 
26. Y N Were corr^jtw directions followed? 
27. Y N Were appropriate leterrid/contact number offered? 
Accuracy/Spelling* 
28. Y N Was the massage typed verbatim? 
29. Y N Were words speliBd correct^? 
30. Y N Were standard abbreviations used? 
31. Y N Was the reconded message typed vertatim? 
Dasoipilve/ Spirit/ Background* 
32. Y N Were Impacting ancVorer^ianclngsomds and 

bacicground mfo typed 
33. Y N Were dascrlp^s words used? 
34. Y N Was the typing style adapted to convey emotion (TTY)? 
Spirit / Expression-- Clarity / Enunciation 
35. Y N Was natural voice htlecuon used whan revolclng? 
3G.V N Was the voice cleared with accurate prsnundafkin? 
Caller Control* 
37. Y N Was tran8pftrBn(y maintained? 
38. Y N Was an appropriate attempt made to redirect? 
Define Agent Role f Pacing 
3d.Y N Were appropriate phrases used to redirect? 
40. Y N Were appropriate f^rasosised to educate caller? 
41. Y N iE^)proach demonstrated? 
42. Y N Were the calter's last ttvju^ta conveyed as neoeasaiy? Evaluator. 
Operator Mode Composuie/Etiquette 
43. Y N Was patience and fletlbSity demorstrated? Date/Time 
44. Y N Was politeness, protessionallsrn and friandy natural 

Total Y s _ 

Agent Signature 

Super̂ risor Signature 

ADL, 

Total N'8, Score; 

Y=Ye3 NaNo Blanks not Observed •FCC/Contractially Compliant Component 
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DATE: TIME; 

Rfilay 
Ohio 

CAPTEL PROFICIENCY TEST 

CAPTEL EVALUATION FORM 

CA#: 

.*v»cfc(j 

/ 

ISlOt^Bk 

2nd break 
3rd br«cik 
End of call 

* c-^ccfid:-

4* am:* 4 

Inllfal 
[>elay 

/ 

/ 

Final Delay 

0 

0 
<w«<fc 

^ #DIV.OI Tianscriptron Rate 

= #DlV/0! Standards Accuracy 

= #DIV.OI Rav- Accuracy 

1 
Ave ray? Delay 
#DTV,'01 
#DIV;OE 
#DIV,0! 
#DIV/0! 

[clarification Requests 

a Coriactlons 
« Corrected Errors 

TEXT CAPTIONED BY CA 

Vflliw hhjhlght- errat) w:<d - no 
conecHc-n 
Oi« n fori - a*i«d AXJtd 

SCRIPT: 

BliBtcfit-omiltedwad 
Red h»3hlight-erred wcrd with carectlsn 
P^d Cfll- Car'3Ct»:ra 

Unddilln-3- eirc* oiprjited tcAards 
Standard Aauracy rating 
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Rfilay 
Ohio 

Sprint 
Relay 

# 
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